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13 November 1889

3 October 1938

15 December 1938

7 May 1906
7 May 1906

19 January 1914
Not Dated

26 July 1940

2 November 1942
11 May 1943

7 September 1943
3 October 1943

5 April 1945

7 May 1945

6 May 1946

6 May 1946

3 March 1947

3 March 1947

16 April 1947

5 May 1947

21 May 1947

21 May 1947

21 May 1947

21 May 1947

21 May 1947

4 August 1947

1 December 1947
3 May 1948

14 February 1949
7 March 1949
Not Dated

2 May 1949

6 March 1950

6 March 1950

1 May 1950

1 May 1950

1 May 1950

3 July 1950

3 July 1950

18 June 1950

13 November 1950
10 July 1950

190 July 1950

22 October 1951
8 December 1951
28 April 1952

28 April 1952

5 May 1952

City Of Dixon Ordinances
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Title

Description Of Original Village And Bylaws
Denomination Of Ordinances

Boundaries Of Wards

Seal Of City

Elections

Appointment Of Officers

Clerk

Marshal And Special Police

Treasurer

Collector

Assessor

Attorney

Street Commissioner And Provisions For Labor

Police Judge

Rules Of Procedure

Fees And Salaries Of Officers

Enforcing Fines And Penalties

Board Of Health

Opening Of Streets

Construction Of Sidewalks

Slaughtering House

To Restrain Animals Running At Large

Billiard Tables

Lotteries

To Prevent Sale Of Liquors, Intoxicants

Dangerous Structures

Railroads

Misdemeanors

Nuisances

Declaring The Result Of A Special Election To Issue Bonds For Water And Sewer Systems
Vagrants

Dogs And Taxes

Changing The Date Of Certain Public Improvement Bonds

Merchants Licenses

In Regard To City's Officers

Government Of Cemetery

Revenue Of City Government

To Become A City Of The Fourth Class, Election To Be Held 31 May 1905
To Become A City Of The Fourth Class, Election To Be Held 31 May 1906
Prohibiting Of Stock Running At Large (Hand Written)

Revised And Published Ordinances Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri
Annual Tax On Dogs

Tax Levy For The Year of 1940

Granting A Franchise To Sho-Me Power Cooperative, Inc.

Tax Levy For The Year of 1943

Prohibiting The Maintaining Or Operating Of Billiard Table Or Pool Table
Regulating The Presence Of Minors Under The Age Of Sixteen Years
Authorizing The Execution Of A Contract With Sho-Me Power Cooperative, Inc.
Tax Levy For The Year of 1945

Tax Levy For The Year of 1946

Regulating And Limiting The number Of Wholesale Or Package Liquor Stores And retail Liguor Stores
Levying License Tax On Juke Boxes And Pin Ball Machines

Amending Ordinance No. 23

Providing For The Holding Of A Special Election For Issuance Of Bonds For The Sewer System And Waterworks
Tax Levy For The Year of 1947

For The Purpose Of Oiling Certain Streets Designated As District One

For The Purpose Of Oiling Certain Streets Designated As District Two

For The Purpose Of Oiling Certain Streets Designated As District Three
For The Purpose Of Oiling Certain Streets Designated As District Four

For The Purpose Of Oiling Certain Streets Designated As District Five
Providing For Assessing A Special Tax For Oiling Of Said Streets
Providing For Licensing Persons Engaged In Selling Motor Vehicle Fuels
Tax Levy For The Year of 1948

Granting Missouri Central Natural Gas Company Permission To Operate
Special Election — Partial Copy

A Non-Grading Ordinance Regulating Eating And Drinking Establishments
Tax Levy For The Year Of 1949

A Bill For An Ordinance For The Extension Of City Limits

Notice Of City Election For Extension Of City limits

Establishing New City Limits

Establishing New Corporate Limits For The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1950

Vacating A Portion Of Second Street

Oiling Of Certain Streets

Oiling Of Certain Streets

Amending Ordinance 23 By Repealing Section No. 2 Thereof

Non-Grading Ordinance Regulating Eating And Drinking Establishments
For The Purpose Of Oiling Certain Streets

Special Tax Levy

Holding Of A Special Election For Issuance Of Bonds

Telephone Company

Providing For The Holding Of A Special Election For Issuance Of Bonds For The Waterworks
Extension Of The City Limits Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Levy A Tax For The Establishment Of And Maintenance Of A Free Library
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5 May 1952

2 March 1953
9 April 1953

4 May 1953

2 June 1953

2 June 1953

2 June 1953

1 March 1954
5 April 1954

7 June 1954

5 March 1955
3 January 1955
4 January 1956
2 April 1956

2 April 1956

7 May 1956

7 May 1956

2 October 1956
7 May 1956

7 May 1956
14 May 1956

1 May 1956

6 May 1957

6 May 1957

17 June 1957
17 June 1957
5 May 1958

9 April 1958
16 June 1958
6 May 1959
23 June 1958
16 July 1958

8 March 1960
10 May 1960
5 April 1961

7 May 1962

19 October 1962

25 January 1963

3 April 1963

3 April 1963

6 March 1963

7 May 1963

18 November 1963
18 November 1963
11 June 1964

9 May 1964

2 May 1966

2 May 1966

17 March 1969

15 October 1968

16 January 1970

7 December 1969
7 December 1969
16 April 1970

19 May 1970

19 March 1971

4 May 1971

3 March 1971

5 February 1974

7 May 1974
7 May 1974

7 May 1974

7 May 1974

8 August 1974

3 September 1974
7 October 1974

7 October 1974

7 October 1974
26 March 1975

5 May 1975

5 May 1975

5 May 1975

12 May 1975

12 May 1975

12 May 1975

15 May 1975

City Of Dixon Ordinances

Title

Tax Levy For The Year of 1952

Notice Of Special Election For The Extension Of The City Limits

Establishing New City Limits

Tax Levy For The Year of 1953

Repealing Ordinance 83 And Council Meeting Minutes

Authorizing And Directing The Issuance Of Bonds For Extension And Improvements To The Sewer System
Authorizing And Directing The Issuance Of Bonds For Extension And Improvements To The Waterworks System
Pertaining To The Providing For the Sanitary Methods Of Disposal Of Human Excreta And Other Bodily Wastes
Affidavit Of Publication

Tax Levy For The Year of 1954

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1955

Extend To All Eligible Employees Social Security Benefits Per Social Security Act Amendments Of 1950
Providing For Licensing Persons Engaged In Selling Motor Vehicle Fuels

Extension Of The City Limits Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Extension Of The City Limits Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Establishing New Limits Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Authorizing And Directing The Issuance Of Public Improvement Bonds

Employing A Deputy City Marshal And Police Officer

Tax levy For The Year Of 1956

Vacating A Portion Of Sixth Street

Providing For And Directing The Submission To Qualified Electors For Issuance Of Bonds

Authorizing And Directing The Issuance Of Public Improvement Bonds

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1957

Vacating That Part Of North And South Street North Of 7" Street In Danner's Addition

Relating To Streets, Sidewalks, Driveways And Alleys

Governing The Municipal Water Distributing System

Amended Ordinance 110 Fixing The Tax Levy For The Year Of 1958

Fixing The Tax Levy For The Year Of 1958

Providing For The Office Of The Clerk To Be Elective

Tax levy For The Year Of 1959

Repealing Ordinance No. 23 And Ordinance No. 79, And Enacting In Lieu Thereof A New Ordinance
Providing For Rates And Charges For The Use And Service Of The Sewage System

Calling A Special Election For Purpose Of Purchasing Fire Equipment, Including A Fire Truck

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1960

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1961

Authorizing, Fixing and Determing a Rate of Levy on the Hundred Dollar Valuation on all Taxable Property withing the City of Dixon for 1962
Calling A Special Election For Issuance Of Tax Secured Bonds To Construct City Hall and Fire Station

Calling A Special Election For The Issuance Of Sewage System Revenue Bonds And Special Meeting Minutes
Extension Of The City Limits Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Minutes Of Special Meeting

Granting A Franchise To Gascosage Electric Cooperative

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1963

Authorizing And Directing The Issuance Of Bonds For Extension And Improvements To The Sewage System
Establishing Rates And Charges For The Services Of The Sewer System

Authorizing A Contract For Garbage And Trash Collection

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1964

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1966

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1966

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1968

Authorizing A Contract For Garbage And Trash Collection

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1969

Calling A Special Election In The City Of Dixon, Missouri, Proposing General Obligation Bonds For Extending And Improving The Waterworks
Authorizing The Issuance Of Fire Station Bonds Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Calling A Special Election In The City Of Dixon, Missouri, To Issue General Obligation Bonds For A New Fire Station
Declaring Results Of The Special Bond Election

Extension Of The Corporate Limits Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1970; Fire Station Bonds Issuance

Granting To Dixon Cable Company

Tax Levy For The Year Of 1971

Authorizing Execution Of A Quit Claim Deed

Adapting Chapter 300, Revised Statues Of Missouri, Known As The “Model Traffic Ordinance” As And For The Traffic Ordinance Of This City
Providing For The Appointment Of A City Attorney-Councilor

Regulating The Use Of Public And Private Sewers And Drains, Private Sewage Disposal

Providing For A Sewer And Water Connection Fee

Water and Sewer Services Furnished Outside Corporate Limits of the City of Dixon

Pertaining To The Sewer And Water Systems; Modified By Ord. 257,262 And 457

Regulating Solid Waste Management; Modified By Ord. 158

Establishing City Park Board: Repealed By Ord. 185

Vacating That part Of Oak Street Extending Across Railroad Right-Of-Way Repealed By Ordinance 168
Erection And Maintenance Of Electric Flashing Signals At Railroad Crossing On Elm Street Repealed By Ordinance 168
Regulating The Speed Of Locomotives And Trains Repealed By Ordinance 168

Relating To Disaster Preparedness

Change Monthly Service Charge for Solid Waste And Delete Last Paragraph of Ordinance 152
Employing Attorneys For The City

Authorizing The Purchase of Certain Office Equipment

Granting Franchise To Gascosage Electric Cooperative; Amended Ord. 400

Special Election For Ordinance 161

Special Meeting Minutes for Ordinances 161 And 162

Imposing A Sales Tax

Tax Levy For The Year of 19__
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City Of Dixon Ordinances

Ordinance Date Title

165 2 June 1975 Prohibiting The Stealing of Property

166 19 June 1975 Relating To Narcotic Drugs

167 7 July 1975 Vacating A Certain Alleyway

168 4 August 1975 Repealing Ordinances 154, 155 And 156 Concerning Railroad Operations

169 4 August 1975 Imposing A Tax For General Revenue Purposes On All Sellers

170 3 November 1975 Authorizing The Issuance Of One General Obligation Bond Repealed By Ordinance 171

171 1 December 1975 Repealing Ordinance 170 For Issuance Of General Obligation Bonds

172 11 December 1975 Providing A Budget For FY-77

173 5 January 1976 Governing The Operation Of A Motor Vehicle While Under The Influence Of Alcohol Repealed By Ordinance 174 And 453

174 1 March 1976 Governing The Operation Of A Motor Vehicle While Under The Influence Of Alcohol; Repealed By Ord. 452
3 May 1976 Resolution Setting Aside Park Land

175 13 September 1976 Prohibiting The Making, Drawing Or Uttering Insufficient Funds Checks

176 9 February 1977 Authorizing The Borrowing Of Money

177 9 February 1977 Vacating a Portion of Street in Shelton-Elkins Addition to the City of Dixon, Missouri

178 7 March 1977 Authorizing The Execution Of An Agreement For Engineering Services For A Sewer Project

179 7 March 1977 Enacting A New Ordinance Providing For Business Licenses

180 6 June 1977 Authorizing The Transfer Of Certain Funds

181 6 June 1977 Governing The Operation Of A Motor Vehicle

182 12 July 1977 Pertaining To Regulating Solid Waste
12 July 1977 Waiver Of Notice Of Special Meeting For Ordinance 183

183 12 July 1977 Authorizing Entering Into An Agreement For Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste

184 Tax Levy For The Year of 1977

185 6 December 1977 Establishing A City Park Board; Amended Ord. 393

186 6 December 1977 Establishing A Library Board

187 6 December 1977 Authorizing The Borrowing Of Funds For The Park Board

188 6 December 1977 Employing Accountants For The City

189 6 December “1977 Employing An Attorney For The City; Waiver Of Notice For Special Meeting

190 6 December 1977 Providing A Budget For FY-78

191 6 March 1978 Authorizing The Employment Of The City Attorney

192 1 May 1978 Establishing A Personnel Policy; Repealed By Ord. 249

193 7 August 1978 Relating To Animal Control

194 5 September 1978 Tax Levy For The Year of 1978

195 4 October 1978 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (Shepherd Park)

196 25 October 1978 Amending Section 3 Of Ordinance 141 Dated 19 March 1971

197 26 Dec 1978 Establishing The City Police Court

198 13 March 1979 Relating To Enumeration Of Nuisances

199 10 April 1979 Calling For A Special Election To Fill The Vacancy Of Alderman Of The Second Ward

200 19 April 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

201 19 April 1979 Relating To Personnel Policy Repealed By Ord. 249

202 2 May 1979 Special Election For Alderman

203 8 May 1979 Relating To Reimbursement For Travel Expenses For Elected Officials

204 12 June 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

205 12 June 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

206 12 June 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

207 12 June 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

208 12 June 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

209 10 July 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

210 10 July 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

211 14 August 1979 Tax Levy For The Year of 1979

212 11 September 1979 Calling For A Special Election To Issue General Obligation Bonds And Revenue Bonds

213 9 October 1979 Execute An Agreement For The Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste; Repealed By Ord. 246

214 9 October 1979 Reimposing The City Sales Tax On Residential Utility Service Provided Within The Municipality

215 20 November 1979 Result Of The Special Bond Election Held On 6 November 1979

216 11 December 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

217 11 December 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

218 11 December 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

219 11 December 1979 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

221 Relating To Snow Removal From City Streets

222 25 March 1980 Fixing The Salary For The City Clerk

223 8 April 1980 Establishing Personnel Policy For The City Of Dixon, Missouri Repealed By Ordinance 249

224 12 May 1980 Relating To The offense Of Interfering With A Police Officer In The Discharge Of His Official Duties

225 10 June 1980 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

226 10 June 1980 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

227 10 June 1980 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

228 10 June 1980 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

229 10 June 1980 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

230 8 July 1980 Tax Levy For The Year of 1980

231 19 August 1980 General Obligation Combined Waterworks And Sewerage System Bonds Series 1980

232 19 August 1980 Combined Waterworks And Sewerage System Refunding And Improvement Bonds Series 1980 Amended By Ord. 457

233 9 September 1980 Relating To Loitering In Public Places

234 16 December 1980 Pertaining To Fair Housing Regulations

235 13 January 1981 Authorizing The Mayor To Execute An Agreement For The Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste

236 10 December 1980 A Comprehensive Business License Ordinance For The City Of Dixon, Missouri (Letter Size)

237 10 March 1981 Relating To Peace Disturbance

238 13 January 1980 A Comprehensive Stop Sign Ordinance

239 8 September 1981 Tax Levy For The Year of 1981

240 3 August 1981 Returning The Office Of City Clerk To A Hired Position

241 Establish A User Charge System For Sewerage System

242 Sewer Use

243 5 October 1981 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

244 5 October 1981 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

245 7 December 1981 Authorizing The Payment Of Certain Wages And Salaries Of Waterworks, Sewage System And Maintenance

246 13 February 1982 Authorizing An Agreement With M&M Sanitation For Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste

247 19 April 1982 Defining Food And Drink Place Of Business, Regulatory Authority; Repealed by Ord. 443
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248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332

19 April 1982
19 April 1982

2 August 1982

2 August 1982

7 September 1982
4 October 1982

1 November 1982

10 December 1982
7 March 1983

7 March 1983

7 March 1983

4 April 1983

4 April 1983

6 June 1983

6 May 1983

6 June 1983

28 June 1983

8 August 1983

10 October 1983
7 November 1983
5 December 1983
19 April 1984

22 June 1984

31 July 1984

6 August 1984

4 March 1984

4 March 1986

14 June 1985

1 July 1985

15 August 1985

5 September 1985
7 October 1985

7 October 1985

2 December 1985
6 January 1986

3 February 1986
3 February 1986
12 February 1986
2 June 1986

25 August 1986

8 September 1986
8 September 1986
22 September 1986
3 November 1986
1 December 1986
23 November 1986
10 December 1986
5 January 1987
20 July 1987

3 August 1987

3 August 1987

26 October 1987
7 December 1987
7 December 1987
4 January 1988

5 July 1989

21 August 1989
14 September 1989
6 November 1989
4 December 1989
6 February 1990
27 March 1990

5 April 1990

21 June 1990

2 July 1990

2 July 1990

2 July 1990

2 July 1990

2 July 1990

27 August 1990
12 September 1990
10 December 1990
6 May 1991

6 May 1991

6 May 1991

6 May 1991

13 May 1991

3 June 1991

3 June 1991

3 June 1991

4 June 1991

3 June 1991

City Of Dixon Ordinances
Title

Regulating The Maintenance And Operation Of An Ambulance Service

Establishing A Uniform Personnel Policy For City Employees Amended By Ordinance 463 & 475
For Installation Of Railroad Crossing Signals At The Intersection Of Elm St. And The Railroad Grade Crossing
Tax Levy For The Year of 1982

Relating To Animal Control; Repealed By Ord. 408

Legislation To Revise And Update Current Statues Relating To Municipal Laws

Hiring And Fixing The Salary For The City Clerk For A Period Of One (1) Year

Establishing A User Charge System For Wastewater Treatment Works; Repealed By Ord. 257
National Drunk And Drugged Driving Awareness Week City Of Dixon Proclamation

Establishing A User Charge System For Waste Water Treatment Works Amended By Ord. 457
Fixing The Salary Of The City Marshal

Fixing The Salary Of The Municipal Court Judge; Amended Ord. 404

Fixing The Salary Of The Mayor Amended By Ord. 519

Fixing The Salary Of The Board Of Alderman Amended By Ord. 520

Amending The Water Rate And Charge System In Effect As Reflected In Ordinance 151; Amended Ord. 399
Apply For Outdoor Recreation Assistance Program For Park Improvements

Resolution Stating The Support For The Pulaski County Community Development Block Grant
Regulating The Use Of Public And Private Sewers And Drains

Tax Levy For The Year of 1983

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Hiring And Fixing The Salary The Position Of City Clerk

Pertaining To The Subject Matter Of Operators Licenses And Vehicle License Plates

Pertaining To The Subject Of Nuisances

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Providing For The Mandatory Collection, Transportation, Storage, Processing And Disposal Of Solid Waste
Tax Levy For The Year of 1984

Execute An Agreement For Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste Repealed By Ord. 426
Adopting And Enacting A Code Of Ordinances Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Authorizing Granting Of Easement

Requiring The Display Of Street Numbers On Dwellings Or Structures

Tax Levy For The Year of 1985

Establishing Opening And Closing Hours For Certain Businesses Serving Alcoholic Beverages
Providing For The Sale Of Water To Public Water Supply District Number 3

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Hiring And Fixing The Salary For The City Clerk For A Period Of One (1) Year

Authorizing The Mayor To Execute An Agreement For The Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste
Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into An Agreement With The Missouri Division Of Highway Safety
Authorizing The Mayor And City Clerk To Enter Into A Loan Agreement With Cord Moving And Storage Co. Inc.
Vacating A Portion Of Streets And Alleys In Santee's Addition

Tax Levy For The Year of 1986

Establishing Penalties For Delinquent Property Taxes Within The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Providing For Court Costs in Municipal Ordinance Violation Cases

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Hiring And Fixing The Salary Of The City Clerk For A Period Of Two Years

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Authorizing the Mayor to Execute on Behalf of City of Dixon that Certain Agreement for the Collection and Disposal of Solid Waste

Establishing Penalties For Possession Of Intoxicants By A Minor

Tax Levy For The Year of 1987

Establishing Penalties For Operating An Unlicensed Motor Vehicle

Adapting A Solid Waste Management Plan

Establish A Water Meter Installation Fee

Authorizing The Mayor To Execute An Agreement For The Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste
Providing For Renewal Of A Franchise Granted To Gascosage Electric Cooperative Amended By Ord. 400
Abandon Certain Easements Across Real Property And Enter Into A Lease With Dixon Senior Center

Tax Levy For The Year of 1989

Vacating A Portion Of EIm Street

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri Repealed By Ord. 472

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Establish A One-Half Of One Percent Sales Tax For Capital Improvements And Put It Before The Voters For Approval

Authorizing The Mayor To Execute Documents Necessary To Join The Missouri Intergovernmental Risk Management Association

Adopting Rules And Regulations For The Establishment And Operation Of The Dixon Police Department Amended By Ord. 325

Establishing The Control, Registration And Disposition Of Animals Running At Large Within City Limits

Establishing Penalties For Operating A Motor Vehicle Without Using A Restraining Device Repealed By Ord. 412
Establishing Penalties For Trespass In The First Degree

Establishing Penalties For Trespass In The Second Degree

Establishing An Increase In Court Costs For The Law Enforcement Officers Training Fund

Authorizing The Municipal Court To Enter A Judgment For The Crime Victim's Compensation Fund Repealed By Ord. 454
Tax Levy For The Year of 1990

Establishing Penalties For Possession Of Open Container Of Intoxicants

Authorizing The Mayor To Execute An Agreement For The Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste

Authorizing The Mayor To Execute An Amendment To The Agreement For The Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste
Establishing Penalties For Failure To Procure Annual City Business License

Amending Ordinance 312, To Provide For Written Disciplinary Action Against Patrolmen

Prohibiting The Smoking Of Tobacco Products In City Hall

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (Country Club Estates)

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Designating East Chestnut Street As One-Way

Establish The Name Or Names Of Certain Street (Ash Street)

Vacating A Portion Of Hilltop Street

To Submit The Question Of A Tax Levy Of Seventy One Cents On The One Hundred Dollars Assessed Valuation
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333
334
335
336
337

338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363A
363B
364A
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407

408
409
410
411

412

20 August 1991
19 August 1991
19 August 1991

9 September 1991
7 October 1991
11 Jauary 1992

3 February 1992
16 March 1992

4 May 1992

24 August 1992
5 October 1992

2 November 1992
7 December 1992
7 June 1993

7 June 1993

7 June 1993

7 June 1993

12 July 1993

25 August 1993
4 October 1993

1 November 1993
1 December 1993
3 January 1994
24 March 1994

4 April 1994

11 July 1994

11 July 1994

11 July 1994

19 August 1994
19 August 1994
29 August 1994

7 November 1994
7 November 1994
21 November 1994
5 December 1994
5 December 1994
24 January 1995
5 December 1994
24 January 1995
24 January 1995
6 February 1995
6 March 1995

13 March 1995

3 April 1995

1 May 1995

5 June 1995

10 July 1995

26 July 1995

7 August 1995

21 August 1995

2 October 1995

2 October 1995

6 November 1995
21 November 1995
5 February 1996
4 March 1996

14 March 1996
14 March 1996
19 March 1996

6 May 1996

23 May 1996

1 June 1996

5 August 1996

5 August 1996

12 August 1996
28 August 1996

7 October 1996

4 November 1996
2 December 1996
2 December 1996
2 December 1997
2 December 1996
16 December 1996
16 December 1996
6 January 1997

6 January 1997
14 June 1997

11 August 1997
11 August 1997
26 August 1997

8 September 1997

8 September 1997

City Of Dixon Ordinances

Title

Tax Levy For The Year of 1991

Providing For The Appointment Rather, Rather Than The Election, Of A Chief Of Police, Amended By Ord. 337

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Prohibiting The Maintenance Of Nuisances, Providing For Abatement And Penalties For Nuisances

Establishing A New Date For Submission Of The Question Posed By Ordinance 334, Providing For An Appointed Chief Of Police
Grant Of Easement For A Sewer Line

Authorizing The Holding Of A Special Election To Fill The Unexpired Four Year Term Of City Marshal, One Year Remains
Providing For The Appointment, Rather Than The Election, Of A Chief Of Police

Vacating A Portion Of Pearl Street In Murphy's Addition

Tax Levy For The Year of 1992

Amending Section 1 Of Ordinance 341, Tax Levy For The Year of 1992

To Enter Into A Legal Service Contract With Williams, Robinson, Turley & White, P.C.

Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into An Obligation With The Sate Bank Of Dixon For Purchasing A City Computer System
Establish A Water Meter Installation Fee (NEED BETTER COPY)

Fixing The Salary Of The City Marshal Amended By Ord. 405 & 498

Fair Housing Defining Discriminatory Practices And Creating A Fair Housing Committee (NEED A BETTER COPY)
Establishing Housing Rehabilitation Grant Guidelines Under The Community Block Grant No. 93-ND-04 (NEED BETTER COPY)
Accepting The Ozark Rivers Solid Waste Management Plan

Tax Levy For The Year of 1993

Enable City police Officers To Act In An Emergency Situation Outside City Limits

Enter Into A Legal Services Contract With Williams, Robinson, Turley, & White, P.C.

Authorizing The Conveyance Of A Special Warranty Deed To Brown Shoe Group, Inc.

Authorizing the Mayor to Execute on Behalf of City of Dixon an Extension to the Agreement for the Collection and Disposal of Solid Waste, For One Year
Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

Vacating A Ten Foot Wide Strip Running Along The West Side Of Pine Street

Execute An Agreement For The Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste Amended By Ord. 385, Repealed By Ord. 426
Changing The Name Of Brown Street 1 & 2 To Paramount Street 1 & 2

Execute An Agreement For The Operation Of The Rural Fire Department Within The City Limits

Calling For A Special Election On Imposing A Sales Tax For Transportation Purposes (NO ATTACHMENTS)
Vacating A Portion Of Sixth Street And Ellen Street

Tax Levy For The Year of 1994

Changing Street Names For Emergency 911 Purposes (Spruce, Dogwood, Redbud And Andrews Drive)

Dedicating Streets For Emergency 911 Purposes

Vacating A Portion Of Fifth Street

Imposing A Tax For Transportation Purposes

Prohibiting Transport Of A Child Without A Child Safety Restraint Repealed By Ord. 412

Dedicating And Naming An Alley For Emergency 911 Purposes (Pecan Alley)

Changing The Name Of The City Park To Dixon Lion's Club Park

Pertaining To Fair Housing, Discriminatory Housing Practices

Enter Into A Legal Services Contract With Williams, Robinson, Turley, & White, P.C.

Amending Ordinance 370 Pertaining To Fair Housing, Discriminatory Housing Practices

Amending The Water Rate And Charges, And The Waste Water User Charges Amended By Ord. 457

Enter Into A Lease Purchase Agreement With The State Bank Of Dixon For Financing Equipment (NO EXHIBIT ATTACHED)

Authorizing the Mayor to Accept a Promissory Note and Second Deed of Trust from Universal Mfg and Equip Co for the Refinancing of an Existing Industrial Development Loan from City of Dixon

Dedicating And Naming An Alley For 911 Purposes (Plum Alley)

Authorizing The Conveyance Of A Special Warranty Deed To Dixon R-1 School District

Enter Into A Lease Purchase Agreement With The State Bank Of Dixon For Financing Equipment

Establishing Rules And Procedures For The Removal Of Officers Of The City And Veto Override

Vacating a Portion of a Street Known as Walnut Street Lying South of Chestnut Street in Santee's Addition in Dixon

Tax Levy For The Year of 1995 (NEED BETTER COPY)

Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With Stack & Associates, Inc. To Provide Engineering Consultant Services
Vacating A Portion Of An Alley In Murphy's Addition

Designating Truck Routes And Regulating Parking Of Vehicles Over 24,000 Pounds Gross Weight

Amending Ordinance 358, To Execute An Agreement For Collection And Disposal Of Solid Waste Repealed By Ord. 426
Enter Into A Legal Services Contract With Williams, Robinson, Turley, White & Rigler, P.C.

Provide For The Collection Of Court Costs To Be Used For Police Officer Training Fund

Providing For Police Training Requirements

Provide For The Collection Of Court Costs To Be Used For Police Officer Training Fund

Granting A Renewal Franchise To Cable America Corporation

Changing The Name Of The City Park To John Sheppard Park

Authorizing Participation In An Economic Adjustment Program

Amending Ordinance 185, Establishing A City Park Board

Establishing A Fee For Collection And Removal Of Solid Waste Amended By Ord. 406, Repealed By Ord. 426
Authorizing The Mayor To Amend The Contract With Wat-Park Sanitation Service

Calling For A Special Election On A General Obligation Bond Question

Tax Levy For The Year of 1996

Amending Ordinance 2, Designating Wards For The City

Amending Ordinance 262, Pertaining To Water Rate And Charge Stystem

Amending Ordinance 304 And 161, Pertaining To Gascosage Electric Cooperative

Renewal Of Franchise Granted To Gacosage Electric Cooperative

Providing For Appointment Rather Than Election Of A Chief Of Police, Election On 1 April 1997 (NOT SIGNED OR DATED)
Authorizing General Obligation Street Bonds Series 1996

Amending Ordinance 259, Fixing The Salary Of The Municipal Judge Amended By Ord. 518

Amending Ordinance 346, An Ordinance Fixing The Salary Of The City Marshal Amended By Ord. 498

Amending Ordinance 394 Establishing A Fee For The Collection And Removal Of Solid Waste

Fixing The Terms And Conditions Under Which The City Will Supply Utilities Outside Of The City Limits

Proclamation For National Flag Day

Repealing Ordinances 43 And 252 And Establishing Regulations Regarding Animals Within The City Limits

Amending Ordinance 4 Providing For Elections

Tax Levy For The Year of 1997

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri

A Proclamation For The Sale Of Buddy Poppies By The Veterans Of Foreign Wars 1997

Repealing General Ordinances Nos 315 and 367 and Establishing Regulations Concerning the Use of Seatbelts in a Motor Vehicle and Passengers in Truck Beds within City Limits
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Ordinance Date

413
414
415

416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426

427
428
429

430
431
432

433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
443
444

445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454

455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470

471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487

1 December 1997
3 March 1998

2 March 1998

7 April 1998

1 May 1998

4 May 1998

4 May 1998

4 May 1998

14 May 1998

14 May 1998

3 August 1998

3 August 1998

14 September 1998
14 September 1998
14 September 1998
28 September 1998

7 December 1998
7 December 1998
4 January 1999

1 May 1999

3 May 1999

30 August 1999

13 September 1999
13 September 1999

15 November 1999
6 December 1999
3 January 2000

7 February 2000
7 February 2000
20 April 2000

20 April 2000

5 June 2000

5 June 2000

7 August 2000

21 August 2000
11 September 2000
6 November 2000
5 February 2001
5 March 2001

2 April 2001

2 April 2001

4 June 2001

30 August 2001

1 October 2001

1 October 2001

1 October 2001
23 October 2001

4 February 2002
4 February 2002
4 February 2002
6 May 2002

6 May 2002

6 May 2002

3 June 2002

1 July 2002

1 July 2002

5 August 2002

5 August 2002
12 August 2002
12 August 2002
7 October 2002

2 December 2002
6 January 2003
21 January 2003
7 July 2003

4 August 2003
18 August 2003
8 September 2003
5 January 2004

1 March 2004

15 March 2004
17 May 2004

16 August 2004
13 September 2004
18 October 2004
6 December 2004
11 April 2005

22 August 2005
12 October 2005
5 December 2005
9 January 2006

City Of Dixon Ordinances

Title

Regulating CABO One And Two Family Dwellings (NO ATTACHMENTS) Repealed By Ord. 459

Naming An Alley For 911 Purposes As Tyson Alley

Designating Tyson Alley As One-Way

Ballot Language And Proclamation By Mayor

Loyal Day Proclamation

Regulating Mobile Homes And Mobile Home Parks Repealed By Ord. 448

Authorizing The Mayor To Execute A Petition Requesting Annexation (NO EXHIBIT A ATTACHED)

Vacating A Twenty Foot Alley Along East Side Of Block Six Of Murphy's Addition

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (Roberson)

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (Luebbert)

Vacating All Streets And Easements Shown On The Plat For Heritage Village

Repealing Ordinance 50 And Establishing Regulations Governing The Presence Of Minors

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (NEED BETTER COPY)

Tax Levy For The Year of 1998 (NEED BETTER COPY)

Amending The Water Rates And Charges And The Waste Water User Charges System (NEED BETTER COPY)
Repealing Ordinances 274, 358, 385 And 394, And Establishing Regulations For Collection And Removal Of Solid Waste
A Proclamation For The Sale Of Buddy Poppies By The Veterans Of Foreign Wars 1998

Enter Into A Lease Purchase Agreement For Financing Equipment (Truck) (NO EXHIBIT 1 ATTACHED)

Enter Into A Lease Purchase Agreement For Financing Equipment (Dumpster) (NO EXHIBIT 1 ATTACHED)
Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Lease Agreement With The Dixon Rural Volunteer Fire Protection District
Loyalty Day Proclamation

Missouri Community Assessment Program Resolution

Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract For Legal Services With Williams, Robinson, White, Rigler & Parker, P. C.
Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With The Ft. Leonard Wood Regional Commerce And Growth Association
Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With Municipal Tax Consulting And Management

A Proclamation For The Sale Of Buddy Poppies By The Veterans Of Foreign Wars 1999

Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract For Jailer/Dispatcher Duties (NO EXHIBIT A ATTACHED)

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (101 Davis Street)

Calling For A Special Election To Authorize One-Half Of One Percent Sales Tax (Check Against Original and Ord. 442)
Authorizing The Conveyance Of A Special Warranty Deed To Dixon Senior Center, Inc (NO EXHIBIT A ATTACHED)
Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract To Purchase Two Acres Of Land (NO EXHIBIT A ATTACHED)
Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract For Sale To Town & Country Supermarkets (NO EXHIBIT A ATTACHED)
Authorizing The Mayor To Execute A Deed Of Release Releasing A Deed Of Trust (NO EXHIBIT A ATTACHED)
Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (202 N. Doyel Street)

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (303 N. High Street)

Repealing Ordinance 247 Defining Food And Drink Place Of Businesses, Regulatory Authority

Tax Levy For The Year of 2000

Resolution To Endorse Dixon Area Development Committee

City Provides Retirement Coverage To Eligible Employees

Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With Archer Engineering (NO EXHIBIT A ATTACHED)
Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With Flynn Drilling to Provide Well Drilling Services to the City
Repealing Ordinance 416 Regulating Mobile Homes And Mobile Home Parks

Repealing Ordinance 145 And Adapting Chapter 300 RsoM, Known As The Model Traffic Ordinance

Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With The Ft. Leonard Wood Regional Commerce And Growth Association
Tax Levy For The Year of 2001

Repealing Ordinance 174 And Establishing Regulations Governing Driving While Intoxicated

Repealing Ordinance 173 And Establishing Regulations Governing Driving With Excessive Blood Alcohol Content
Authorizing The Municipal Court To Enter A Judgment For The Crime Victim's Compensation Fund

Proclamation 50" Anniversary Of The Korean War

Proclamation For Sale Of Buddy Poppies

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (300 N. Doyle Street)

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (103 N. High Street) (INCOMPLETE COPY)

Amending Ordinance 151, 257 And 373 The Water Rate And Charges And The Waste Water User Charges System
Annexing to the City, An Unincorporated Area Contiguous and Compact to the Existing Corporate Limits Upon Request of all Property Owners in the Area after Pulbic Hearing
Repealing Ordinance 413 Regulating CABO One And Two Family Dwellings

Amending Ordinance 4 Providing For Elections Within The City

Enter Into A Contract With Ft. Leonard Wood Regional Commerce And Growth Association

Naming A Street For Emergency 911 Purposes (Katie Lane)

Amending Ordinance 249 Establishing A Uniform Personnel Policy

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (400 E. 5" Street)

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (201 N. High Street)

Tax Levy For The Year of 2002

Enter Into A Contract With Utility Services Communication Co.

Establishing The Betty Crews Memorial Walking Trail

Establish A Drug And Alcohol Policy For The City (NEED BETTER COPY)

Publish Names Of Citizens Who Are Delinquent Paying Taxes

Resolution Requesting The Establishment Of An Enterprise Zone

Authorizing $734,999.70 In General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2003

Repealing Ordinance 308

Tax Levy For The Year 2003

To Opt Out Of The State Imposed Sales Tax Holiday

Amending Ordinance 249 Establishing A Uniform Personnel Policy

Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (Lots 1 & 2 in Gilbert & Sease)

Enter Into A Legal Services Contract With Williams, Robinson, White & Rigler, P. C.

Pertaining To Firearms In City Buildings

Tax Levy For The Year of 2004

Enter Into A Contract With Pitney Bowes Co. To Provide Postage Machine And Service

Enter Into An Agreement For Water Meters With Midwest Meter And Determining A Water Rate Increase
Vacating A Portion Of The Alley Running North And South Between Blocks 2 And 3 of Shelton-Elkins Addition
Vacating A Portion Of 6" Street Between Pine Street And Walnut Street

Tax Levy For The Year of 2005

Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract For The Purchase Of Real Estate (NO EXHIBIT ATTACHED)
Dixon Public Library Petition And Ballot Proposal

Providing For The Holding Of A Special Election For The Appointment Of The Collector
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City Of Dixon Ordinances

Ordinance Date Title
488 20 March 2006 Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With Flynn Drilling Co.
489 1 May 2006 Changing The Position Of Collector From An Elected To An Appointed Position
490 10 July 2006 Dixon Public Library Petition And Ballot Proposal
491 10 July 2006 Adopting And Enacting A New Code Of Ordinances Of The City
492 14 August 2006 Tax Levy For The Year of 2006
493 4 December 2006 Establishing A Method For The Repairing, Vacation Or Demolition Of Dangerous Buildings
13 December 2006 Petition To Vacate Richard Street
494 8 January 2007 Abandoning, Discontinuing, Closing And Vacating Richard Street As A Public Street
495 5 February 2007 Annexing Property To The City Of Dixon, Missouri (103 N. Oak Lane)
496 9 April 2007 Repeal Sub-paragraph 6 Of Section 125.260 Of The City Code And Enacting A New Section Relating To Jail Fees
497 20 August 2007 Enter Into A Contract With Outreach Consulting & Counseling Services To Provide Probation And Monitoring Services
498 20 August 2007 Fixing The Salary Of The City Marshal
499 20 August 2007 Tax Levy For The Year of 2007
500 20 August 2007 Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With Jeff Rujawitz To Provide Cleaning Services
501 18 September 2007 Repeal Section 340.110 Of The City Code Relating To The Operation Of All-Terrain Vehicles Repealed By Ord. 539
502 4 December 2007 To Establish A Procedure To Disclose Potential Conflicts Of Interest And Substantial Interests For Certain Officials
503 4 April 2008 Resolution Relating To Meeting, Records And Votes Of Governmental Bodies
504 4 August 2008 Establish a Procedure to a Lead Ban in Public and Private Drinking Water Plumbing
505 28 August 2008 Tax Levy For The Year of 2008
506 23 February 2009 To Enter Into A Lease Purchase Agreement With Maries County Bank To Purchase A Refuse Truck (NO COPY OF LEASE)
507 9 September 2009 Tax Levy For The Year of 2009 (NOT SIGNED, NO RECORDED VOTE)
508 1 January 2010 Notice Of Election To Raise Library Tax Levy (NO RECORDED VOTE, NOT SIGNED, NOT DATED)
509 1 February 2010 Establishing the Eligible Enhanced Enterprise Zone
510 12 April 2010 Authorizing The Sale Of Property At 704 W. 5" Street To B. E. E. Investments, LLC (Brown Shoe Factory) (NOT SIGNED)
511 3 May 2010 Amend Section 700.120: Right To Turn On Water Into Service Pipes, Of The Dixon City Code (Ref. Council Minutes 3 May 2010)
512 3 May 2010 Amend Chapter 215.040: Nuisances Of The Code Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri Abatement of Nuisances (Ref. Council Minutes dated 3 May 2010)
513 3 May 2010 Amend Chapter 215.027: Nuisances Of The Code Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri Debis on Property (Ref. Council Minutes 3 May 2010)
514 12 July 2010 Combining The Existing Waterworks System And The Existing Sewerage System
515 12 July 2010 Calling A Special Election On A Revenue Bond $3.5 Million For The Combined Waterworks And Sewerage Systems
516 30 August 2010 Tax Levy For The Year of 2010
517 Cross Connection Control - General Policy (NO RECORD IN COUNCIL MINUTES ON THIS ORDINANCE)
518 1 March 2011 Amending Ordinance 404, Fixing The Salary Of The Municipal Judge (Ref. 1 Mar 2011 Minutes)
519 1 March 2011 Amending Ordinance 260, Fixing The Salary Of The Mayor (Ref. 1 Mar 2011 Minutes)
520 1 March 2011 Amending Ordinance 261, Fixing The Salary Of The Board Of Alderman (Ref. 1 Marech 2011 and 19 Apr 2011 Minutes)
521 22 August 2011 Tax Levy For The Year of 2011 (Ref. 22 Aug 2011 Minutes)
522 14 September 2011 Concerning Acceptance And Compliance Requirements For USDA Rural Development Assistance (Ref. 14 Sept 2011 Minutes)
523 17 October 2011 Employment Of Attorney Mel L. Gilbert To Assist The City Of Dixon (Ref. 17 Oct 2011 Minutes)
524 10 September 2012 Tax Levy For The Year of 2011
525 5 November 2012 Accepting The Resignation Of Mayor Ben Copeland
526 5 November 2012 Electing Jeff Clark As Acting President Of The Board Of Alderman
527 5 November 2012 Acting President To Act On All Accounts And Authorizing Other Signatures Repealed By Ord. 528
528 13 February 2013 Repeal Of Ordinance 527 Relating To Accounts With Financial Institutions
529 13 February 2013 Vacating A Portion Of The Alley Between Blocks 2 And 3 Of Shelton-Elkins Addition
530 9 September 2013 Authorizing The Execution Of An Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement With Pulaski County
531 14 August 2013 Authorizing An Agreement With Pulaski County To Collect Personal Property And Real Estate Taxes
532 22 August 2013 Tax Levy For The Year of 2013
533 4 November 2013 To Repeal Section 210.030 Of The Code Of Laws And Enacting A New Section Relating To Harassment
534 4 November 2013 Establishing The Acts Necessary To Commit The Offense Of Disorderly Conduct
535 4 November 2013 To Regulate Manufactured And Mobile Homes For Safety, Health And General Welfare Of The Public
536 23 January 2014 To Repeal Section 110.170 Of The Code Of Laws Of The City Of Dixon, Missouri And Enacting A New Section
537 21 April 2014 Authorizing $915,00 Combined Waterworks And Sewage System Revenue Bonds Series 2014 (NEED BETTER COPY)
538 2 June 2014 Authorizing An Agreement With The Dixon Senior Center For City Water
539 23 June 2014 Permitting The Use Of All-Terrain Vehicles On City Streets
540 4 September 2014 Tax Levy For The Year of 2014
541 5 January 2015 Limitation of The Number of Liquor Licenses
542 25 August 2015 Tax Levy For The Year of 2015
543 21 September 2015 To Repeal Section 605.110 Of The Code Of Laws Relating To Juke Boxes And Pinball machines
544 21 September 2015 To Repeal Section 605.120 Of The Code Relating To Billiard And Pool Tables
545
546 11 January 2016 Enacting a New Section of Chapter of the Municipal Code: Management of Cat Population; Permitted Acts
547 11 January 2016 Amendment To Ordinance 405 Fixing The Salary of The City Marshal
1 February 2016 Amendment To Ordinance 536 Relating To Meetings Of The Board Of Alderman (Bill 2016-01)
548 1 November 2016 A Resolution To Adapt Pulaski County Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan
549 February 1, 2016 $970,000 General Obligation Street Bonds Series 201°6
550 31 August 2016 Tax Levy For The Year of 2016
551 6 September 2016 Intergovernmental Agreement Between County of Pulaski and City of Dixon to House Prisoners in Dixon City Jail (Not Signed by Presiding Commissioner, Sheriff or County Clerk)
9 September 2016 Agreement To House Pulaski County Prisoners In Dixon City jail
552 20 September 2016 Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With Lou Fusz Automotive For Dixon Police Pepartment Vehicles
553 20 September 2016 Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With Lou Fusz Automotive For Maintenance Department Vehicles
554 12 December 2016 Renewing A Contract With Gascosage Electric Cooperative For Street Lighting And Electric Service For Twenty (20) Years
554A 12 December 2016 Renewing A Contract With Gascosage Electric Cooperative For Easments For Twenty (20) Years
555 6 February 2017 Enacting A New Section 205.190 Of Chapter 205 Of The Municipal Code (Duplicate to 558)
556 8 May 2017 A Standard For Installation And Replacement Of Driveway Culverts
557 5 June 2017 Amending Certain Provisions Of The Municipal Code To Conform To Senate Bill Number 572
558 9 May 2107 Enacting A New Section 205.190 Of Chapter 205 Of The Municipal Code (Duplicate to 555)
559 8 May 2017 Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Contract With Court Money
560 9 May 2017 Regulating The Use Of Public And Private Sewers And Drains
561 11 September 2017 Tax Levy For The Year 2017
562 17 August 2018 Resolution For Council On City's Finances
563 21 August 2018 Amendment to Ordinance 336, Nuisances
564 30 August 2018 Tax Levy 2018 (NO COPY)
565 20 September 2018 WCA Contract for Trash Service
566 5 November 2018 Law Enforcement Sales Tax, Ballot Issue (NO COPY)
567 17 January 2019 Water and Sewer Rate Increase
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Ordinance Date

568
569
570
571
572

573

574
575
576
577
578
579
580
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
648
649
650
651
652
653
654

7 January 2019
17 January 2019
8 July 2019

22 July 2019

29 August 2019

18 November 2019

18 November 2019
18 November 2019
2 December 2019
2 December 2019
9 January 2020

24 March 2020

15 June 2020

26 August 2020
24 September 2020
29 October 2020

7 December 2020
5 April 2021
24 March 2021
21 June 2021
12 July 2021
17 August 2021
26 August 2021
7 September 2021
23 September 2021
7 September 2021
23 September 2021
1 November 2021
1 November 2021
6 December 2021
3 January 2022
7 February 2022
7 February 2022
7 March 2022
7 March 2022
7 March 2022
8 April 2022
2 May 2022
5 July 2022
1 August 2022
1 August 2022
1 August 2022
12 September 2022
12 September 2022
12 September 2022
3 October 2022
5 December 2022
9 January 2023
1 May 2023
10 April 2023
1 May 2023
12 June 2023
12 June 2023
7 August 2023
29 August 2023
10 July 2023
10 July 2023
11 September 2023
2 October 2023
2 October 2023
6 November 2023
6 November 2023
11 December 2023
11 December 2023
08 January 2024
08 February 2024
04 March 2024
09 April 2024
04 March 2024
06 May 2024
08 August 2024
03 September 2024
03 September 2024
09 September 2024
09 September 2024
02 December 2024
02 December 2024
02 December 2024
02 December 2024

02 December 2024
09 January 2025

03 February 2025

City Of Dixon Ordinances

Title

Amending and Updating Ordinance 408 Dated August 11, 1997 Establishing Regulations Regarding Animals Present within the City Limits (Not signed)

Amending and Setting the Water Rates and Charges and the Wastewater Rates and Charges System in Effect in the City

Payment of Persons Designated as Special Municipal Judge

Medical Marijuana Facilities

Tax Levy 2019

Use Tax for General Revenue Purposes at the rate of 1.5%; Providing for the Use Tax to be Repealed, Reduced or Raised and Providing for Submission of the Proposal to the Qualified Voters of the

City for their Approval at the Municipal Election held on Tuesday, April 7, 2020, Fixing an Effective Date

Law Enforcement Tax

Fixing the Salary of the City Marshal

Adopting and Enacting a New Chapter 210A, Offenses of City of Dixon, Pulaski Co, State of Missouri

Adopting and Enacting a New Chapter 140, Open Meetings and Records Policy, of the City of Dixon, Pulaski Co, State of Missouri

Authorizing the Mayor to Declare a State of Emergency Arising from Imminent Threat of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus

Authorizing the Mayor to Declare a State of Emergency Arising from Imminent Threat of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus

Adopting the Stay at Home Order of the Pulaski Co Commission and Health Board (Not Passed)

Modifying and Amending the Personnel Policy for the City of Dixon

Creating the Offense of False Reports, Creating Penalites for the Offense of False Reports, and Fixing an Effective Date Not passed

Vision Reducing Material Not passed

Authorizing, Fixing and Determining a Rate of Levy on the Hundred-dollar Valuation of all Taxable Property within the City for the year 2020
Authorizing and Directing the City to Enter into an Agreement with the Missouri Office of State Courts Administrator and Assessing a Court Automation Fee
Resolution to Adopt the Pulaski County Multi-Jurisdiction Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan

Establish a Right to Discontinue Service of Homeowner who has not Paid their Water/Trash/Sewer Accounts Not passed

Authorizing a Contract Agreement for the Renovation of Dixon City Hall and Police Department

Annexation of Certain Parcels of Land into the City Limits of the City of Dixon

Authorizing a Contract for the Sale of 213 Country Club Road

Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into an Addendum to its Cooperative Agreement with the County Collector-Replaced by 597

Establish a Procedure to Disclose Potential Conflicts of Interest and Substantial Interests for Certain Officials

Authorizing, Fixing and Determining a Rate of Levy on the Hundred-dollar Valuation of all Taxable Property within the City for the year 2021
Authorizing, Fixing and Determining a Rate of Levy on the Hundred-dollar Valuation of all Taxable Property within the City for the year 2021-Corrected
Authorizing the Mayor of the City of Dixon to Enter into a Contract with Archer Group PC

Ratifying and Authorizing a Contract for Garbage and Trash Collection by and Between the City of Dixon and Waste Corporation of Missouri, LLC
Authorizing the Mayor of the City of Dixon to Enter into a Contract with MRPC (Missouri Regional Planning Commission)

Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into an Addendum to its Cooperative Agreement with the County Collector

Holding of an Election within and for the City of Dixon, Missouri on the Questions of the Elimination of the Elected Position of City Marshal and Instead Provide for the Appointment of a Police Chief
Imposing a Use Tax for General Revenue Purposes at 2% Rate

Ratifying and Authorizing a Contract to Lease a Parking Lot to J&B Towing and Recovery LLCLC

Requiring Applicants for a Business License to Provide Proof of Worker's Compensation Insurance

Waiving the 5% Increase in Water Rates for the Year 2022

Establishing Water and Sewer Rates for Multi-Residential Properties

Annexing Certain Parcels of Real Estate into the Corporate Limits of the City of Dixon

Fixing the Salary of the Mayor of the City of Dixon

Fixing the Salary of the Members of the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon

Providing for the State Auditor's Office of the State of Missouri to Perform an Audit of the City's Financial Records

Providing for the Appointment of a Chief of Police

Amending and Setting Waterworks Rates and Charges and the Wastewater Rates and Charges

Annexing Certain Parcels of Real Estate into the Corporate Limits of the City of Dixon

Authorizing, Fixing, and Determining a Rate of Levy on the Hundred-Dollar Valuation of all Taxable Property within the City for the Year 2022
Adopting and Enacting a New Code of Ordinances of the City of Dixon, County of Pulaski, State of MO

Changing the Name of Paramount Street to Round House Road

Modifying and Amending the Personnel Policy for the City of Dixon

Granting GTech Fiber, LLC Permission and Authority to Construct, Reconstruct, Excavate, and Use its Equipment to Operate a Fiber-Optic Based Internet Service
Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into an Agreement with General Code for eCode360 Upgrades

Changing the Name of North Oak Street to QC Street

Establishing a Requirement for Permits for any Excavation and Digging done Within the City Limits and Setting the Cost of the Permit

Changing and Setting the Deposit Amounts for the Residential and C ial Water Customers for the City of Dixon

Adopting the International Building Code, 2006 Edition

Authorizing the Purchase of Real Estate and Directing the Mayor to Execute a Contract for the Purchase of 300 South Ellen Street in Dixon, Mo
Establish a Procedure to Disclose Potential Conflicts of Interest and Substantial Interests for Certain Officials

Authorizing the Mayor of Dixon to Execute Task Order #4 of the Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements

Authorizing, Fixing, and Determining a Rate of Levy on the Hundred-Dollar Valuation of All Taxable Property Within the City for the Year 2023
Authorizing the Mayor of Dixon to Enter into a Contract with Reese Equipment Company, LLC on Behalf of the City of Dixon

City Ordinance Violations be Heard by a Pulaski Co Circuit Court & Terminating the City Municipal Court

Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into a Contract with Ridge Top Internet, LLC on Behalf of the City

Adopting and Enacting a New Code of Ordinances to Include the 2022 State Statutes

Authorizing the Mayor of Dixon to Execute Addendum #1 to Agreement for Engineer Services

Authorizing the Mayor of Dixon to Enter into a Contract with MRPC

Setting the Schedule of Court Costs-Replaced by 633

Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission

Setting the Schedule of Court Costs - Amended

Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into an Agreement for Dispatching Services with City of Saint Robert

Authorizing the Mayor to Execute Task Order #5 of the Lead Service Line Inventory

Annexing Real Estate into Corporate City Limits of the City of Dixon

Adopting and Enacting a New Code of Ordinances to Include the 2023 State Statutes

Establishing Penalties and Late Fees for Failure to Timely Procure or Renew Annual City Alcohol License as Required by Ordinances of City of Dixon
Modifying the Procedures for Issuance of Business Licenses for the City of Dixon, Missouri

Assessing Registration Fees for Vacant and Unsafe Structures

Authorizing, Fixing, and Determining a Rate of Levy on the Hundred-Dollar Valuation of All Taxable Property Within the City for the Year 2024
Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into a Contract with MRPC

Ratifying and Authorizing a Contract for Garbage and Trash Collection by and between the City of Dixon and Waste Corporation of Missouri, LLC
Annexing Real Estate into the Corporate Limits of the City of Dixon

Ratifying and Authorizing a Value Lease Agreement

Annexing Real Estate into Corporate City Limits of the City of Dixon

Requirement of Backflow Prevention Devices

Setting Fees for Certain Types of Permits

Setting Tap Fees for New Connections to Water and Sewer Service

Prohibiting Private Wells within City Limits

Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into Agreement with Midstate Pipeline Maintenance for WWTP Phase I

Appointment of Carrie Williamson as City Attorney and City Prosecutor
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Ordinance Date

655
656
657
658
659
661

662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672

03 March 2025
03 March 2025
07 April 2025

07 April 2025
07 April 2025
02 June 2025
05 May 2025
05 May 2025
05 May 2025
05 May 2025
05 May 2025
05 May 2025
05 May 2025
02 June 2025
02 June 2025
02 June 2025
02 June 2025

City Of Dixon Ordinances

Title
Adopting & Enacting a New Code of Ordinances to Include 2024 State Statutes
Appointing Kelli Livengood as City Clerk
Agreement for Installation of Sewer Services with School and City

Approving Agreement to Terminate Dispatch Services Between City of St. Robert and Dixon

Approving Agreement for Dispatching Services

Filling the Vacancy of the Unexpired Term of the Office of Ward 2 Alderman by the Appointment of a Successor

Authorizing the City to Pay a Portion of Dependent Health Insurance Premiums, Setting Limit on Total Annual Cost

Authorizing the Purchase of Axon Body Camera Equipment and Services from Axon Enterprise, Inc. for The City of Dixon Police Department
Appointing Wesley Wilfong as Chief of Police for the City of Dixon, Missouri

Appointing Avriona Medley as City Collector for the City of Dixon, Missouri

Reappointing Carrie Williamson as City Attorney and City Prosecutor

Approving a Proposal from Outdoor Warning Consulting LLC for the Repair of a Whelen OA2 Outdoor Warning Siren & Programming of Siren for County Activation
Selecting and Approving a Pest Control Services Agreement

Establishing a Procedure to Disclose Potential Conflicts of Interest and Substantial Interests for Certain Officials

Adopting and Implementing a Purchasing Policy for the City of Dixon

Selecting and Approving a Contractor to Install the City's Generators

Approving Change Order No. 1 to Contract with Midstate Pipeline Maintenance, LLC for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Phase 1 Improvements



BILL NO. 2022-0013 ORDINANCE NO. & /.3

ORDINANCE CHANGING THE NAME OF A STREET KNOWN AS PARAMOUNT
STREET No. 2 RUNNING EAST AND WEST FROM THE END OF LOT 4, BLOCK
ONE IN THE CITY OF DIXON TO THE INTERSECTION WITH
PARAMOUNT STREET No. 1 TO ROUND HOUSE ROAD; AND CHANGING THE
NAME OF A STREET KNOWN AS PARAMOUNT No. 1 RUNNING NORTH AND
SOUTH FROM 4™ STREET TO THE INTERSECTION WITH PARAMOUNT No. 2,
IN THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI TO ROUND HOUSE ROAD.

WHEREAS, the Board of Alderman of the City of Dixon, Missouri have determined that
it would be in the best interest of the City to change the name of Paramount Street No. 1 to
ROUND HOUSE ROAD and Paramount Street No. 2 to ROUND HOUSE ROAD.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN FOR
THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The street known as Paramount Street No. 2 running east and west from the end
lot 4, block one in the City of Dixon to the intersection with Paramount Street No. 1 in the City
of Dixon, Missouri shall be known as ROUND HOUSE ROAD Street No. 2.

Section 2.  The street known as Paramount Street No. 1, running north and south from 4™
street to the intersection with what was previously known as Paramount No. 2, in the City of
Dixon, Missouri, shall be known as ROUND HOUSE ROAD Street No. 1.

Section 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its
passage and approval.

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
DIXON, MISSOURI ON THIS /4 ** DAY OF. e drc 2022
v

MIKE NULL, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Ué&fmwiﬁw

ACTING CITY CLERK

(City Seal)



BILL NO. 2022-0014 ordinance #_& / v

AN ORDINANCE MODIFYING AND AMENDING THE PERSONNEL POLICY FOR THE CITY OF DIXON
WHEREAS, the City of Dixon, Missouri (City), is a City of the Fourth Class, and
WHEREAS, the City has numerous employees; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the best interests of the City to update
Article 1 of Chapter 135 of the City Code,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN FOR CITY OF DIXON,
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The attached Personnel Policy is hereby approved and adopted by the City.

SECTION 2: Chapter 135, Article | of the Dixon City Code is repealed and replaced with the
attached updated Chapter 135 Article 1.

SECTION 3: Chapter 135 Article ll: Drug and Alcohol Policy shall remain in full force and
effect.

SECTION 4: Any other ordinance and any part of any other ordinance in conflict with the
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 5: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its approval
and passage by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon, Missouri.

READ TWO TIMES ALVP PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON,
MISSOURI, THIS /A ™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022.

EST:
@ﬂ/ﬂ/)w d?ﬂ/fﬂ/k-“

Acting City Clerk
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CITY OF DIXON

305 S Elm St
P.O. Box 177
Dixon, MO 65459
Email: klivengood@cityofdixonmo.org

WELCOME LETTER

Welcome to the City of Dixon!

We are excited to have you as part of our team. We believe that you have the knowledge, skills, abilities,
and character to contribute to the success of our city and share our commitment to being the best
community in the area.

We strive to provide the highest level of service to our residents, businesses, and visitors. The primary
goal of the City, and yours, as one of its employees, is to live up to our code of ethics in everything
we do. We can only achieve this through hard work and commitment from every employee. You and
every other employee are essential to our success in that endeavor.

We know that joining a new organization requires some adjustment; you will meet new people, work
in different surroundings, and need to become familiar with new policies, procedures, and benefit
packages of employment. This employee handbook contains the key policies, goals, benefits, and
expectations of the City. You should use it as a reference as you pursue your career with the City.

Welcome aboard! We look forward to working with you and wish you many years of success.

Sincerely,

Kelli Livengood
Office Administrator


mailto:klivengood@cityofdixonmo.org

CHAPTER 135: PERSONNEL POLICY
ARTICLE I: GENERAL
Effective September 12, 2022

SECTION 135.001: INTRODUCTION: NATURE AND PURPOSE

This Personnel Policy has been prepared for the purpose of establishing uniform
managerial policies and procedural guidelines relating to exempt and non-represented
employees of the City of Dixon. It is not intended to create and should not be construed as
creating a contract of employment between the City and the employees covered by this
Policy, either individually or collectively. Rather, the policies and procedures contained in
this Personnel Policy may be changed or withdrawn at any time by the City, with or without
prior notice to covered employees.

All employees covered by this Personnel Policy, except as may otherwise be provided in
written contracts of employment signed on behalf of the City by authorized officials, are
employed on an “at will” basis by the City. Such employees may leave the employment of
the City any time and for any reason, and the City may discharge or terminate such
employees at any time and for any reason not prohibited by law.

All covered employees are expected to read Chapter 135 of the City of Dixon Code and
refer to it when dealing with personnel policy problems and questions. This updated
Personnel Policy supersedes all previous policies and handbooks relating to personnel
policy and procedure for exempt and non-represented personnel.

Nothing in this Chapter 135: Personnel Policy precludes the establishment of written
departmental rules and regulations applying to the employees employed in or assigned to
a particular department. However, if a direct conflict should arise between a department
rule or policy and the express provisions of this Chapter, the express provisions of this
Chapter shall control.

In the event that any of the policies contained or referred to herein should be in conflict
with the constitution or laws of the United States or of the State of Missouri, updates and
revisions will be made to this Chapter in a timely manner.

SECTION 135.002: A CODE OF ETHICS FOR CITY OF DIXON PERSONNEL

WE ACKNOWLEDGE, in all matters, public service will take precedence over personal
gain.

WE BELIEVE the use of public property, of whatever value, for personal profit or
convenience is incompatible with the above philosophy.



WE WILL decline to grant special privileges to any citizen above those available to all on
the same basis.

WE CONSIDER City employment to be our primary pursuit; any secondary employment
should be undertaken with that belief in mind.

WE HONOR information gathered confidentially for official purposes, and we will not
disclose it unless required by law.

WE WILL be guided by reason and good judgment in our decisions; not by gifts or favors.
WE RECOGNIZE it is improper to advocate for private interests before public bodies.

WE FEEL it is imperative to disclose any financial interests in a business which contracts
with the City, and regarding which we may exert direct or indirect influence.

WE REALIZE interference with pending legislation or the enforcement of current
legislation to serve personal ends is forbidden.

SECTION 135.003: DEFINITIONS

A policy establishing personnel policies for employees of the City of Dixon, Missouri
concerning positions, pay, promotions, demotions, transfers, paid time off, separation and
other related subjects adopting Chapter 135: Personnel Policy of the Code Book for the
City of Dixon. All City employees will sign a Disclaimer and Acknowledgment statement
(Appendix 1a) when receiving a new or updated/amended copy of the City of Dixon
Employee Personnel Policy.

As used in this policy, the following words and terms, unless the contents clearly require
otherwise, shall have the meaning indicated below:

a. Appointing Authority. A person having power to make appointments to positions.
Appointing authorities include, but are not limited to, the Mayor, City Council and
those designated by them.

b. Compensation. All forms of valuable considerations, including salary or wages earned
by or paid to any employee by reason of service in a position with the City.

c. Date of Employment. The date on which an employee begins service with the City, be
it part or full-time. If an individual is re-employed, only the date of his/her current
employment shall serve as the official date of employment for all personnel
transactions.

d. Demotion. The change of an employee from rank or status in a position to a rank or
status of a lower position with or without a pay decrease.

e. Dismissal. The permanent involuntary separation of an employee from his/her position
for cause.



f. Employee. A person legally occupying a position with the City or an authorized leave
of absence from such service. Elected officials and members of appointed Boards and
Commissions shall not be considered as employees nor shall the provisions of this
policy be applicable to them.

g. Immediate Family. The employee’s spouse, children, mother, father, mother-in-law,
father-in-law, brothers or sisters. It shall also include other close relatives living
habitually under the same roof. The City Mayor may consider other persons living
habitually under the same roof to be in the same status as a member of the employee’s
immediate family.

h. Personnel Officer. The Mayor will serve as the Personnel Officer although specific
functions may be delegated to designated subordinates.

i. Probationary Period. A working test period of three (3) months during which an
employee is required to demonstrate his/her fitness for the position he/she is appointed
to by actual performance of the duties of that position. This period may be increased
from three (3) months to one (1) year for all new Police Officers. During the
probationary period, employees can be released or terminated by the Department
Supervisor and/or City Mayor by his/her own action.

j.  Promotion. A change in the position of an employee from one rank or status to a
position in another rank or status with or without a pay increase.

k. Transfer. The change of an employee from one position to another position in the same
rank or status to another rank or status having essentially the same pay, involving the
performance of similar duties and requiring substantially the same basic qualifications.

POLICY VARIANCES

Due to the wide scope of employment that this personnel manual attempts to cover, it may
be necessary for some Department Supervisors to submit minor variances or clarifications
of this manual to the Mayor and City Council for approval.

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

Should any section or provision of this policy be declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, that decision shall not affect the validity of the policy as a whole
or any part thereof, other than the part so declared to be invalid.

SECTION 135.010: FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

The City of Dixon is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate against
any employee or applicant because of race, color, religion, sex (including gender identity,
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sexual orientation, and pregnancy), national origin, age (40 or older), disability or genetic
information. Federal regulations provide: “Under the laws enforced by EEOC, it is illegal
to discriminate against someone (applicant or employee) because of that person's race,
color, religion, sex (including gender identity, sexual orientation, and pregnancy),
national origin, age (40 or older), disability or genetic information. It is also illegal to
retaliate against a person because he or she complained about discrimination, filed a
charge of discrimination, or participated in an employment discrimination investigation
or lawsuit. The law forbids discrimination in every aspect of employment. The laws
enforced by EEOC prohibit an employer or other covered entity from using neutral
employment policies and practices that have a disproportionately negative effect on
applicants or employees of a particular race, color, religion, sex (including gender
identity, sexual orientation, and pregnancy), or national origin, or on an individual with a
disability or class of individuals with disabilities, if the polices or practices at issue are
not job-related and necessary to the operation of the business. The laws enforced by
EEOC also prohibit an employer from using neutral employment policies and practices
that have a disproportionately negative impact on applicants or employees age 40 or
older, if the policies or practices at issue are not based on a reasonable factor other than
age.” It is the intention of the City of Dixon to comply with and adhere to such
regulations. (CC1985 §18-2; Ord. No. 249 81, 4-19-82)

SECTION 135.020: TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EMPLOYEES

Following are classifications for City employees and are set according to the LAGERS
pension plan criteria:

1. Temporary, whether paid on salary or hourly basis:

a. Full-time. Any employee scheduled to regularly work a minimum of 40 hours
per each calendar week.

b. Part-time. Any employee who is not full-time, i.e., thirty (30) - thirty-two (32)
hours a week, who was a pre-arranged daily schedule and works for a pre-
arranged period of time, i.e., 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 Noon, January through June.
Note: Twenty-nine hours is considered part time per LAGERS pension plan
criteria.

2. Permanent, whether paid on a salary or hourly basis:

a. Full-time. Any employee who is paid on a salaried basis or hourly, who is
regularly scheduled to work forty (40) hours per week indefinitely until
termination of employment.

b. Part-time. Any employee who is paid on a salaried or hourly basis, who works
a pre-arranged weekly schedule that is less than forty (40) hours per week
indefinitely until termination of employment. (CC 1985 §18-3; Ord. No. 249
82, 4-19-82: Ord. No. 463 81, 7-1-02)


https://www.eeoc.gov/employers/coverage-0

SECTION 135.030: PROBATION PERIOD

All City employees are hired by the City on a ninety (90) day probationary period and within
that interim may be dismissed if their performance is determined to be unsatisfactory by the
Mayor and Board of Alderman. Before the expiration of the ninety (90) day probationary
period, employees are not allowed absences based upon Paid Time Off. PTO will be accrued
in the amount of six (6) hours per pay period. If the employee resigns or is terminated,
accumulated PTO will be paid out. (Ord. No. 249 83, 4-19-82: Ord. No. 463 81, 7-1-02:
Ord. No. 580, 06-15-2020) NEED REVISED ORDINANCE

SECTION 135.040: WORK SCHEDULE AND OVERTIME

A. Except as otherwise herein provided, all full-time City employees shall work from 8:00
a.m. through 4:30 p.m. every Monday to Friday. A half hour lunch period may be taken
between 12:00 Noon and 1:00 p.m. or in accordance with some other approved office
schedule. It is to be understood that in all cases where an employee is unable to attend work
during any regular workday, he/she will call and their Supervisor of the anticipated absence
and the reason thereof one hour prior to shift starting on said workday.

B. Employees will occasionally be asked to work overtime hours. Hourly employees shall be
compensated for such overtime work at time and a half. Salaried employees shall not be
entitled to either additional pay but compensated time off for overtime work. (CC 1985
§18-5; Ord. No. 249 §4, 4-19-82)

C. Any employee can earn comp time with a maximum forty (40) hours.

SECTION 135.050: PAY PERIOD

The pay period will be two weeks long and be Saturday through the second Friday with
pay the following Thursday. Employees will be paid on a bi-weekly basis. (Ord, No. 249
85, 4-19-82; Ord. No. 475 81, 1-5-04). NEED REVISED ORDINANCE

SECTION 135.060: APPEARANCE

All employees shall report for work in a clean and well-groomed state. The employee’s
clothing shall be appropriate for the job situation. (CC 1985 §18-7; Ord. No. 249 86, 4-
19-82)

SECTION 135.070: EMPLOYEE EVALUATIONS

All employees will be evaluated at least annually. Hourly rate employees shall be evaluated
by their immediate supervisor. Salaried employees shall be evaluated by the Mayor. All
evaluations shall be in a standard form, as approved by the Board of Aldermen, and shall
be in writing. Each employee will be presented a copy of his/her evaluation after its making
and shall have an opportunity to discuss the comments thereon with the evaluator.
Evaluations are performed for the benefit of both the City and its employees. Evaluations
are intended to provide a time for the review of employee’s strengths and weaknesses and
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to provide the City with an objective basis for pay increase and promotion. Any employee
who feels aggrieved by the evaluation shall be given an opportunity to review the same
with the Board of Aldermen. (CC 1985 §18-8; Ord. No. 249 §7, 4-19-82)

ON 135.080: PAY INCREASES

Base salary increases will be considered annually in October of each year. Increases
will be based on length of employment, job description and overall performance as
reflected in the employee’s past evaluations.

It is the intention of the City to provide its employees with annual, cost of living
adjustments to their pay. It is understood, however, that all pay adjustments, including
those for cost-of-living changes, are subject to the City’s financial condition at the time
and other budget limitations. (Ord. No. 249 88, 4-19-82; Ord. No. 463 §7-1-02)

ON 135.090: PERSONNEL RECORDS

Employee personnel records and monthly attendance records will be maintained by the
Dixon City Clerk. An employee, upon request, may review his/her personnel file, provided
however, that all personnel records are to remain at City Hall and may not be removed
therefrom. (CC 1985 §18-10; Ord. No. 249 89, 4-19-82)

ON 135.100: ANNUAL LEAVE / PAID TIME OFF (PTO)

Paid Time Off (PTO) hereunder is defined as a period during which the employee takes
off work while being paid. This policy includes sick, vacation, personal, bereavement, and
any other absences. Every permanent, full-time employee shall be entitled to incur six (6)
hours of PTO leave per pay period to be used after the 90 day probationary period; seven
and a half (7.5) hours of PTO leave per pay period after five (5) full years of employment
and nine (9) hours of PTO leave per pay period after ten (10) full years of employment. All
such leave may be taken by the employee with pay at his/her regular, prorated salary or
hourly rate. Existing employees will be grandfathered in on PTO up to two hundred forty
(240) hours. An employee with an absence for more than thirty (30) days must inform the
Mayor of the employee’s expected length of absence so the City’s needs may be met. If
such a serious situation has arisen necessitating the invocation of the above requirements,
an employee may return to work only with a release allowing unrestricted duty given by a
licensed professional. Disabilities caused or contributed to by pregnancy and recovery
therefrom shall be covered by PTO days.

1. PTO leave shall not accrue to an employee while on leave of absence without pay.

2. Temporary and permanent part-time employees shall not accrue PTO.
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3. The maximum accumulated PTO limit is two hundred forty (240 hours).

4. PTO shall also include loss of time due to an illness or death in the employee’s
immediate family which requires the employee’s personal care and attention (the term
“immediate family” as used shall describe children, husband, wife, parents, brothers,
sisters, grandparents and spouse’s parents) and other excused absence from work due
to circumstances beyond the employee’s control. PTO taken related to a death in an
employee’s immediate family, as defined above shall not exceed three (3) days. If the
deceased is a relative outside the employee’s immediate family, the employee will be
allowed personally to attend the funeral not to exceed one (1) day. (Ord. No. 249 8§10,
4-19-82; Ord. No. 83, 7-1-02)

5. Whether an absence is excused or not excused shall be determined by the Mayor whose
determination shall be final. The employee shall notify the Supervisor as much in
advance of the taking of PTO as is practical under the circumstances. PTO will be paid
only at the current rate of pay.

6. Accumulated PTO will be paid out upon retirement and/or termination.

SECTION 135.110: INSURANCE

Health Insurance shall be offered to every full-time City employee after completion of the
90 day probationary period. If the employee chooses to take the health insurance, it is paid
by the City for the employee only at 100%. The employee may add dependents for an
additional amount to be paid by the employee. Employees may opt into additional
supplementary insurance including dental, vision and life insurance. The employee is
responsible for paying supplementary insurance premiums.

SECTION 135.120: JURY DUTY

When an employee receives a notice to serve, the employee must immediately notify
his/her Supervisor. Employees required by a court of law to serve on jury duty will be paid
the difference between what the court pays and their regular salary each day they serve.
Note: Court currently pays six (6) dollars per day for serving on jury duty. (CC 1985 §18-
12; Ord. No. 249 §4-19-82)

SECTION 135.130: VOTING TIME

For Federal, State, and Municipal elections, employees are encouraged to exercise his/her
right to vote. If employees do not have sufficient time outside regular work shifts, the
Missouri Revised Statutes states that employers will allow employees to leave work to go
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to the polls. The law allows employees to be absent up to three (3) hours of unpaid time
while the polls are open for the sole purpose of voting. To request time off to vote,
employees should contact his/her Supervisor. Leave benefits may be used for the work time
missed.

The law provides that an employee cannot be discharged, penalized or disciplined for
leaving work to vote, as long they give their employer notice prior to Election Day.

SECTION 135.140: MILITARY LEAVE

1. All City employees who are or may become members of the National Guard or of any
reserve component of the Armed Forces of the United States, shall be entitled to leave
of absence from their respective duties, without loss of time, pay, regular leave,
impairment of efficiency rating, or of any other rights or benefits, to which otherwise
entitled, for all periods of military services during which they are engaged in the
performance of duty or training in the service of this state at the call of the governor
and as ordered by the adjutant general without regard to length of time, and for all
periods of military services during which they are engaged in the performance of duty
in the service of the United States under competent orders for a period not to exceed a
total of one hundred twenty hours (120) in any federal fiscal year.

2. Before any payment of salary is made covering the period of the leave the officer or
the employee shall file with the appointing authority or supervising agency an official
order from the appropriate military authority as evidence of such duty for which
military leave pay is granted which order shall contain the certification of the officer or
employee's commanding officer of performance of duty in accordance with the terms
of such order.

3. No member of the organized militia shall be discharged from employment by any of
the aforementioned agencies because of being a member of the organized militia, nor
shall he be hindered or prevented from performing any militia service he may be called
upon to perform by proper authority nor otherwise be discriminated against or
dissuaded from enlisting or continuing his service in the militia by threat or injury to
him in respect to his employment. Any officer or agent of the aforementioned agencies
violating any of the provisions of this section is guilty of a misdemeanor.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other administrative rule or law to the contrary,
any person entitled to military leave pursuant to the provisions of subsection 1 of this
section shall only be charged military leave for any hours which that person would
otherwise have been required to work had it not been for such military leave. The
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minimum charge for military leave shall be one hour and additional charges for military
leave shall be in multiples of the minimum charge.

SECTION 135.150: INCLEMENT WEATHER

1. The City of Dixon remains open during most periods of inclement weather; however,
where extraordinary circumstances warrant, due to weather or other unforeseen
business interruption, the City reserves the right to close the facility. The City makes a
decision by 6:30 a.m. during periods of such inclement weather and communicates this
to all employees. The City also posts closures on the City of Dixon Facebook page, as
well as, the local radio station.

2. If the City has announced to be closed on a given day, all full-time staff will receive
regular pay for the day of closure. For mandatory employees on a day of closure, the
employee will receive regular pay.

3. If the City remains open on an adverse weather day, employees who report to work will
receive their normal pay for the day. If an employee elects not to report to work on a
facility open day, the employee can elect to 1) use any accrued paid time off for the
missed day or 2) the employee will not be paid for the day. Regardless of whether the
facility remains open or closed on an inclement day, it is each employee’s decision to
determine if they can safely arrive at work under the conditions. If an employee elects
not to work on a given day, the City requires the courtesy of a phone call to your
manager or supervisor advising as to your status for the day, prior to the beginning of
the work day.

SECTION 135.160: MATERNITY/PATERNITY LEAVE

In accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), an employee shall
be entitled to a total of twelve (12) work weeks of leave during any twelve (12) month
period following the birth of a child, the placement of a child for adoption or foster care,
or care for a seriously ill child. An employee requesting maternity leave must, where
foreseeable, give notice to the City thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of the leave time.
When the need for leave is not foreseeable, the employee must give notice to the City as
soon as is practical. Any employee requiring leave under this Section shall be restored to
the position held at the commencement of the leave with no loss of benefits and no
reduction of compensation. Maternity/Paternity leave may be extended by the Mayor past
the twelve (12) week period with the approval of the Board of Aldermen and upon a
doctor’s written order that the employee is unavailable for work. Except, to the extent that
the employee uses available personal leave or vacation leave, maternity/paternity leave
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shall be granted as leave without pay. (Ord. No. 249 8§12, 4-19-82; Ord. No. 463 84, 7-1-
02)

SECTION 135.170: LEAVE WITHOUT PAY

Any approved absence from work which does not qualify as vacation or personal leave
shall be considered leave without pay. (CC 1985 818-14; Ord. No. 249 813, 4-19-82)

The Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) applies to all public agencies, all
public and private elementary and secondary schools and companies with fifty (50) or more
employees.

Employees are eligible for FMLA leave if they have worked for the City at least 1,250
hours over the past twelve (12) months. Whether an employee has worked the minimum
1,250 hours of service is determined according to FLSA principles for determining
compensable hours of work. A covered employer must grant an eligible employee up to a
total of twelve (12) workweeks of unpaid leave during any 12-month period for one or
more of the following reasons:

1. for the birth and care of a newborn child of the employee

2. for placement with the employee of a son or daughter for adoption or foster care

3. to care for a spouse, son, daughter or parent with a serious health condition

4. to take medical leave when the employee is unable to work because of a serious
health condition

5. for qualifying exigencies arising out of the fact that the employee’s spouse, son,
daughter or parent is on active duty or call to active duty status as a member of the
National Guard or Reserves in support of a contingency operation

The City shall grant an eligible employee who is a spouse, son, daughter, parent or next of
kin of a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard
or Reserves, with a serious injury or illness up to a total of twenty-six (26) work weeks of
unpaid leave during a “single 12-month period” to care for the service member.

Under some circumstances, employees may take FMLA leave intermittently — taking leave
in separate blocks of time for a single qualifying reason — or on a reduced leave schedule
—reducing the employee’s usual weekly or daily work schedule. When leave is needed for
planned medical treatment, the employee must make a reasonable effort to schedule
treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the employer’s operation. If FMLA leave is for birth
and care, or placement for adoption or foster care, use of intermittent leave is subject to the
employer's approval.

Under certain conditions, employees or employers may choose to “substitute” (run
concurrently) accrued paid leave (such as sick or vacation leave) to cover some or all of
the FMLA leave. An employee’s ability to substitute accrued paid leave is determined by
the terms and conditions of the employer’s normal leave policy.

13



Employees seeking to use FMLA leave are required to provide 30-day advance notice of
the need to take FMLA leave when the need is foreseeable and such notice is practicable.
If leave is foreseeable less than 30 days in advance, the employee must provide notice as
soon as practicable — generally, either the same or next business day. When the need for
leave is not foreseeable, the employee must provide notice to the employer as soon as
practicable under the facts and circumstances of the particular case. Absent unusual
circumstances, employees must comply with the employer’s usual and customary notice
and procedural requirements for requesting leave.

Employees must provide sufficient information for an employer reasonably to determine
whether the FMLA may apply to the leave request. Depending on the situation, such
information may include that the employee is incapacitated due to pregnancy, has been
hospitalized overnight, is unable to perform the functions of the job, and/or that the
employee or employee’s qualifying family member is under the continuing care of a health
care provider.

When an employee seeks leave for a FMLA-qualifying reason for the first time, the
employee need not expressly assert FMLA rights or even mention the FMLA. When an
employee seeks leave, however, due to a FMLA-qualifying reason for which the employer
has previously provided the employee FMLA-protected leave, the employee must
specifically reference either the qualifying reason for leave or the need for FMLA leave.

During leaves of absence, the City will attempt to hold an employee’s position open. The
City will not, however, always be able to do this due to unreasonable hardships placed on
the City. Therefore, the City does not guarantee job restoration upon completion of any
leave of absence, except as required by FMLA, USERRA or other applicable state or
federal law.

For leaves of absence granted under this policy, it is the employee’s responsibility to pay
their portion of the premium for all insurance benefits. Employees in a leave of absence
will not accrue vacation or sick time or other benefits while on a leave of absence.

The City expects employees on leaves of absence to provide periodic updates regarding
their condition and expected date of return. Employees should contact their Department
Head before their leave expires to arrange for return. If a leave of absence is taken for a
medical reason, the City will also require certification from an employee’s physician of the
employee’s fitness to return to work.

If an employee is unable to return by his/her leave expiration date, a written physician’s
statement providing the new expected return date may be submitted prior to the expiration
of your original leave and an extension of up to ninety (90) days may be approved at City’s
sole discretion. Any employee who fails to return to work on the agreed-upon date
following leave, and who has not received an extension, will be considered to have
voluntarily resigned his or her position.
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In addition to the unpaid leave protections of FMLA, the City recognizes the importance
of balancing work and personal life, and understands that employees may find that
personal, health or family problems make it necessary to be absent from work for a certain
period. The City will work with employees in the event circumstances make unpaid leave
a necessary to avoid significant personal or family hardship.

Before an employee may take a non-qualified FMLA unpaid leave of absence, written
permission must be obtained from the City Administrator. Although the City will attempt
to preserve employee’s job while on a non-qualified FMLA unpaid leave, it is unlikely that
the City will be able to preserve a position for a non-FMLA unpaid leave period for an
extended period. An extended period is defined as leave in excess of twenty-one (21)
consecutive days, or unpaid leave accumulation of more than twenty-one (21) days in a
twelve (12) month period.

SECTION 135.180: ABSENCE WITHOUT LEAVE

A. Absence without leave includes failure to report to work or to remain at work during
scheduled hours, when such absence is not subsequently justified. Any such absence
may not be charged by the employee against earned personal or annual leave credits.

B. Any employee who is absent from duty without first having obtained authorization for
such absence shall be subject to discipline as hereinafter provided. (CC 1985 §18-15;
Ord. No. 249 814, 4-19-82)

SECTION 135.190: HOLIDAYS

A. The following days are holidays and will be observed by the City of Dixon, Missouri,
as paid holidays:
January first (1%') as New Year’s Day:
Third (3 Monday in January as Martin Luther King Jr. Day;
Third (3') Monday in February as President’s Day;
Good Friday;
Last Monday in May as Memorial Day;
Nineteenth (19'") day in June as Juneteenth Day;
Fourth (4™") day in July as Independence Day;
First (1) Monday in September as Labor Day;
Second (2" Monday in October as Columbus Day;
. Eleventh (11" day of November as Veterans’ Day;
11. Fourth (4" Thursday in November & Friday following as Thanksgiving Holiday;
12. Twenty-fourth (24") day of December as Christmas Eve & Twenty-fifth (25") day
of December as Christmas Day.
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B. If holiday falls on a Saturday, it is observed on Friday. If the holiday falls on a Sunday
it is observed on Monday. All employees will be expected to work the day before and
the day after each of the above-mentioned holidays with the exception of employee’s
scheduled vacation days.

C. The Mayor may at his or her discretion add an additional day of Holiday from time to

time.

SECTION 135.200: MISCONDUCT AND DISCIPLINE

A. A documented verbal warning or written reprimand, documented disciplinary
probation, forfeiture of day off, leave without pay, strike, suspension, demotion or
dismissal of an employee are authorized forms of discipline when it is determined
that an employee has performed improperly as specified in this section.

B. The following are declared to be improper conduct and may be grounds for
disciplinary action. This list is intended to serve as a guide to employees and is not
inclusive.
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17.

Conviction of a felony.

Acts of incompetence or negligence.

Absence without leave.

Acts of insubordination.

Willful disregard of orders.

Intentional failure or refusal to carry out instructions.

Acts of misconduct while on duty.

Habitual tardiness and/or absenteeism.

Misappropriation, destruction, theft, or conversion of City property.

. Falsification of any information required by the City.

. Failure to properly report accidents or personal injury.

. Neglect of carelessness resulting in damage to City property or equipment.
. Subsequent physical or mental unfitness.

. Failure to promptly inform supervisor when unable to report to work as

scheduled.

. Repeated conviction while employed by the City on misdemeanors and/or

traffic charges.

Introduction, possession or use of intoxicating liquors or controlled substances
on City property or in City vehicles or proceeding to or from work under the
influence of alcohol or controlled substance.

Disrespect or abusive conduct toward a citizen or other employees while on
duty.
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18. Any violation of approved City policy pertaining to performance and/or
conduct.

19. Violation of City personnel policies. (CC 1985 §18-16; Ord. No. 249 8§15, 4-
19-82)

20. Violation of Weapons Policy (8210.280)

SECTION 135.210: FORMS OF DISCIPLINE

There are several forms of employee discipline. This listing does not necessarily imply a
required sequence of discipline or consequences.

1. Minor infractions of rules and regulations or poor job performance may result in the
Mayor or a supervisor giving an employee a verbal warning. The warning shall include
a description of the deficiency and corrective action to be taken. Verbal warnings shall
be logged in the employee’s personnel file.

2. Failure to correct a deficiency pointed out to any employee through a warning of a
serious infraction of rules and regulations or dereliction of duty may result in the Mayor
or a supervisor issuing an employee a reprimand. A “reprimand” is a written
communication from the Mayor or supervisor to the employee pointing out offenses or
deficiencies and detailing corrective action needed. Employees and their supervisor are
encouraged to sign the reprimand. A copy will be given to the employee and another
copy will be placed in the employee’s personnel file.

3. An employee who has failed to respond to any of the above disciplinary measures or
who had violated any of the provisions of Section 135.150 may be dismissed by the
Mayor or a supervisor after review and approval of the action by the Board of
Aldermen. The employee shall be entitled to a hearing with the Board of Aldermen
upon filing of written request within seven (7) business days of dismissal. Written
notice of such disciplinary action citing reasons and scope of action taken shall be
provided by the employee. Such notice shall be signed by the Mayor or a supervisor
and the employee. A copy shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file. Employees
terminated due to unsatisfactory job performance shall receive payment for accrued
vacation. If the Board of Aldermen votes in favor of employee’s dismissal, the
employee can ask the Mayor for an appeal. The Mayor may or may not override the
Board of Aldermen’s decision. The Mayor’s decision will be final. (CC 1985 §18-17;
Ord. No. 249 816, 4-19-82)

SECTION 135.220: HEALTH AND SAFETY/WORKER’S COMPENSATION

A. Safe Conditions: The City is committed to providing employees with a safe and healthful
working environment. The City makes every effort to comply with relevant federal and
state occupational health and safety laws and to develop programs conducive to such an
environment, while minimizing health and safety risks to employees and other visitors to
City facilities.
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To accomplish these objectives, all City employees are expected to:
1. Wear safety equipment in the performance of their duties

2. Wear issued clothes or uniforms as intended unless modifications are approved by
City Administrator

3. Maintain a safe and healthful working environment, and

4. Adhere to the proper operating procedures and practices to prevent injuries and
ilInesses

B. Unsafe Conditions: Employees should report any unsafe conditions or behaviors
encountered in the workplace. Employees should not hesitate to contact their Department
Head/Supervisor when safety directions and assistance are needed. Employees may face
disciplinary action, up to and including termination, for failure to report the following:

1. Injuries sustained on the premises or on a job site regardless of perceived severity

2. Any safety related incident or injury, including any complaint made by a citizen,
supplier, or his/her representative

3. Any unsafe conditions or actions perpetrated by any employee or contractor on any
job site including customer sites

C. Worker’s Compensation: The City of Dixon provides its employees with Worker’s
Compensation insurance coverage which protects against accidents occurring on the job.
Reporting accidents and injuries promptly helps the City provide the most appropriate care
for injured employees and return them to work as safely and swiftly as possible. (CC 1985
§18-20; Ord. No. 249 8§19, 4-19-82)

Any accident, incident or "near miss," no matter how slight the injury or damage, should
be reported to your immediate supervisor. The supervisor is required to then notify the
Mayor and the City Clerk before the end of the shift. The City is responsible for taking
appropriate follow-up action, including directing medical attention, completing an
investigation report and recommending or implementing appropriate corrective actions.

The City may direct medical treatment as allowed by the Missouri worker’s compensation
statute. Any request for medical treatment should be made to the City Clerk. If you choose
to seek care on your own without authorization it may be at your own expense. If you
receive medical care and after an investigation your condition is deemed not work-related
according to the workers compensation statutes, you or your insurance company will be
liable for the medical charges.
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D. Accident Reports: In the event of any on-the-job injuries, accidents, vehicle crashes or
equipment and property damages, employees are required to take the following action:
1. Contact the supervisor immediately about the incident.
2. Notify the Police Department for an investigation into accidents or crashes
involving vehicles or equipment
o Any crashes or accidents involving City owned vehicles should be
investigated by an agency other than the Dixon City Police Department

Employees shall fill out investigation forms requested by the City Clerk and return them
promptly. Detailed investigation may include interviews, photographs, training/document
reviews and preparation of a written report for all serious accidents and incidents.

Employees may be required to take a post-accident drug and alcohol test upon receiving
medical care from the City’s designated doctor or clinic for any work-related injury and/or
illness.

This accident reporting policy has been designed with your best outcome in mind. Failure
to follow the City’s accident reporting policy could result in a written warning, suspension
or dismissal.

E. Return to Work Policy: Employees may return to work in their assigned duties and
responsibilities as soon as medically cleared. Employees who are medically cleared to
perform duties other than their normal tasks will be assigned to any duties for which they
are medically cleared, even when these duties are in a different department than their
normal employment.

Department heads will be responsible for preparing a return to work schedule of duties,
which meets any restrictions that have been ordered under physicians care. While on
restricted duties employee is not guaranteed to be working at their normal
duties/classification and may be required to work outside their normal department. Return
to work schedules/duties must receive City Administrator approval.

SECTION 135.230: TRAVEL EXPENSES

A. All travel reimbursement rates will be set forth by the U.S. General Services
Administration which is regulated by the Federal Government. The travel rates are also
applicable for the City of Dixon Elected Officials.

B. City employees shall be reimbursed for the documented and authorized extraordinary
use of their private motor vehicles while attending to City business as long as a City
vehicle is not available. Mileage will be reimbursed at the current Federal
reimbursement rate. Mileage reimbursement will be allowed only for the actual,
extraordinary miles traveled.
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C. City employees will be reimbursed for meals purchased in conjunction with
extraordinary travel while on City business. The current State Meal Allowance rate
shall apply. Reimbursement will not be made without an itemized receipt. Alcohol
should not be on any receipts submitted for reimbursement. If alcohol is included on
the receipt, it will not be reimbursed by the City. Paid receipts should be submitted to
the City Clerk within seven (7) days upon return.

D. Prior approval for any travel contemplated by the employee shall first be approved by
the Board of Aldermen.

E. Employees on approved City business requiring an out of town, overnight stay shall
have his/her lodging expenses reimbursed by the City not to exceed the current Per
Diem rate for the traveled area. The employee will pay for the lodging and submit the
paid receipt for reimbursement by either reservation or registration within seven (7)
days upon return. (CC 1985 §18-21; Ord. No. 249 8§20, 4-19-82; Ord. No. 463 86, 7-1-
02)

F. It is the employee’s responsibility to manage their reservations. Reservations not
canceled by the employee are not eligible for reimbursement by the City.

G. The City is tax exempt and will not reimburse taxes paid on expenses needing
reimbursed. The proper tax exemption documents should accompany payment so
employees are not charged tax.

H. Falsification of travel records, receipts, mileage logs or any other expense
reimbursement report is considered theft and will result in disciplinary action, up to
and including termination.

SECTION 135.240: SEXUAL HARASSMENT

A. Applicability. This section shall apply to all employees of the City of Dixon present on
City-owned premises.

B. Definition. As used in this Section, the following term shall have this prescribed meaning:
SEXUAL HARASSMENT: In accordance with the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission’s sexual harassment guidelines, the City of Dixon shall consider unwelcome
sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a
sexual nature as constituting sexual harassment when:

1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or
condition of employment,
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2. Submission to or a rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as a basis for
employment decisions, and/or

3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive
working environment.

C. Other Harassment. Any physical or verbal conduct based upon an individual’s race,
religion, national origin, real or perceived disability, political affiliation or personal
association which has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s
work performance, denying employment, training or promotional opportunities or creating
an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment is prohibited.

All forms of harassment will be reported to the Mayor and/or Board of Aldermen for
immediate action. (Ord. No. 463 87, 7-1-02)

SECTION 135.250: MISSOURI LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES’
RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Board of Aldermen on behalf of the City of Dixon, Missouri, a “political subdivision”
as defined in Sections 70.600 through 70.760, RSMo., hereby elects to have covered by
the Missouri Local Government Employees’ Retirement System all its eligible present and
future general and Police employees and to cover such employees under Benefit Program
L-7 (1.5%). (Ord 445)

SECTION 135.260: E-MAIL AND INTERNET USE POLICY

This policy applies to City of Dixon employees when using computers or Internet
connections supplied by the City of Dixon, whether or not during work hours, and whether
or not from City of Dixon premises.

1. No Privacy. City supplied computers and internet access are provided to assist
City Officials and employees in the conduct of business and no employee shall use
those computers or internet access for anything other than to conduct City
business. Employees are advised that privacy is not to be assumed in electronic
communications. Any employee using e-mail or internet access provided by the
City is responsible to maintain and/or enhance the City’s public image. All
messages created, sent or received using e-mail and all use of City supplied
computers and internet access are subject to monitoring by the City and
supervisory personnel. Any information retained on City of Dixon facilities may
be disclosed to outside parties or to law enforcement authorities.
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Internet Use on Cellphones. All e-mails, text messages and recorded messages
a City Official and/or an employee receives or sends which pertains to city
business are public knowledge and public record. The City’s Internet Use Policy
is also applicable to personal cellphones.

Improper Activities. You may not disseminate or knowingly receive harassing,
sexually explicit, threatening or illegal information by use of City of Dixon
facilities, including offensive jokes or cartoons. You may not use City of Dixon
facilities for commercial advertisements, solicitations or promotions.

Nature of E-Mail. E-mail resembles speech in its speed and lack of formality.
Unlike speech, e-mail leaves a record that is retrievable even after the sender and
recipient delete it. If you would not want to read your message on the front of a
newspaper, do not send it by e-mail.

Intellectual Property of Others. You may not download or use material from the
Internet or elsewhere in violation of software licenses, or the copyright trademark
and patent laws. You may not install or use any software obtained over the Internet
without permission from the City of Dixon Network Administration and City
Mayor.

Report Violations. If you observe or learn about a violation of this policy, you
must report it immediately to your supervisor.

. Acknowledgment. | understand that if | do not comply with the E-Mail and
Internet Use Policy, an employee may be subject to discipline, including but not
limited to, the loss of access to City of Dixon facilities and discharge from
employment. In addition, a City Official and/or an employee may be subject to
indemnification or legal action against them for damages or an attempt to damage
computer hardware or software.

Social Networking/Facebook Policy

a. The Official City of Dixon Facebook Page. This page will provide
updates, information, events, photos and videos for past, current and
future residents of Dixon, Missouri.

b. The purpose of this Facebook page is to deliver news and event
information from the City of Dixon, MO to people who are interested in
Dixon programs and activities.

c. City employees will immediately remove any comment which violates
any local, state or federal laws regarding discrimination, harassment or
violence. In addition, if the content contains offensive language, is
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discriminatory, an unauthorized commercial message, or is out of
context, then that content will be removed. Repeated offenses will result
in the user being banned or restricted from our community forum. The
City does not discriminate based on viewpoint, but may remove
comments and restrict access to users who engage in activities which
encourages spam, malware, malicious software or “disruptively
repetitive content” and remarks totally unrelated to subject matter.

This page is monitored by City employees as well as the Mayor. We
will attempt to give answers to your comment, questions, concerns and
complaints within twenty-four (24) hours. Thank you for your patience
and understanding. Event listings are a service to our citizens and a
courtesy for not-for-profit/civic organizations in our community.

An event listing is not an endorsement by the City of Dixon. City Hall
cannot answer any questions about local events that are not sponsored
by the City itself. Please contact the individual that is listed for the
particular event. If your group or organization has an event that should
be included on our calendar, please e-mail a brief summary of your
event, the link of the event, event particulars (time, date, location, costs)
and point of contact information to cityclerk@cityofdixonmo.org with the
subject line of “Event Sharing”. Events will be added on a first come,
first serve basis, as time allows. The City of Dixon is not responsible for
any event cancellations and/or errors as part of this service.
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CITY OF DIXON
ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY

FOLLOWING IS THE ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY OF OUR
COMPANY. WE REQUEST YOU READ THIS POLICY THOROUGHLY AND SIGN BOTH
COPIES WITH A CITY OF DIXON REPRESENTATIVE PRESENT. THE CITY OF DIXON
REPRESENTATIVE WILL THEN SIGN EACH COPY WITH ONE TO STAY WITH YOUR
EMPLOYEE PACKET AND ONE FOR YOURSELF.

THE ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND COMPLIANCE WITH THIS POLICY IS A
CONDITION OF EMPLOYMENT.

ATTACHMENT
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DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE STATEMENT

In 1988, Congress passed the “Drug-Free Workplace Act” it became effective March 18, 1989.

In response to the legal requirements for an alcohol and drug free workplace, and our company’s
concern and obligation for the health and safety of our workforce, City of Dixon is instituting the
following Workplace Statement.

This statement certifies our company’s policy and intent to provide and maintain an alcohol and
drug free environment for our employees who are our most valuable resource, prohibiting the
possession, use, consumption distribution or sale of alcohol and/or controlled/illegal substance in
the workplace.

In addition, our policy will provide information to all employees on the danger of workplace
alcohol/drug use. The policy will also provide sanctions that employees will face for violations of
the City of Dixon Alcohol/Drug Free Workplace Policy.

Finally, this policy contains an acknowledgment and consent that must be dated, signed and
witnessed by each employee who receives a copy of our policy.

Our Alcohol/Drug-Free Workplace Statement specifically requires City of Dixon to notify each
employee that as a condition of employment, each employee must:

» Comply with our company’s Alcohol/Drug-Free Workplace Policy

* Notify City of Dixon of any conviction for an alcohol/drug related offense committed in
the workplace, within five (5) days of the conviction.
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CITY OF DIXON

ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY
I. PURPOSE

The City of Dixon (the “Company”) is concerned and recognizes a responsibility to provide a safe,
healthy and productive work environment for all employees. This Policy is designed to help
accomplish that goal by eliminating drug and alcohol abuse among our employees. Employees
who use illegal drugs or abuse other controlled substances or alcohol tend to be less productive,
less reliable, less cautious and prone to greater absenteeism resulting in the potential for increased
cost, delay and risk in our Company’s business. Ultimately, they threaten our competitiveness.

We believe our employees have the right to work with persons free from the effects of alcohol and
drugs. This Policy is designed to help accomplish that goal by eliminating alcohol and drug abuse
among our employees.

We regret any inconvenience that may be caused to employees who do not abuse alcohol or drugs.
We believe, however, that the benefits to be derived from this Policy in terms of enhanced safety,
productivity, and quality of the workplace will more than make up for any inconvenience to the
rest of us. We seek the understanding and cooperation of all employees in implementing this Policy
to make our Company a safe and enjoyable place to work.

II. CONDITIONAL JOB OFFER SCREENING

The Company will utilize conditional job offer screening practices to prevent hiring or rehiring (a)
individuals who use illegal drugs or (b) individuals whose use of legal drugs or alcohol indicates
a risk of unsatisfactory or unsafe job performance.

I11. USE, POSSESSION, OR SALE OF DRUGS OR ALCOHOL
A. ALCOHOL

The possession, consumption, purchase or sale of alcohol on Company premises is
prohibited. Furthermore, no employee shall be under the influence of alcohol while
performing Company business off Company premises if such use or influence in the
opinion of the Company may affect the safety of the employee, co-workers or members of
the public, the employee’s job performance, or the safe or efficient operation of the
Company. Any exception to this Policy for special situations (e.g., Christmas parties) must
be approved in advance by the President and conducted in accordance with any limitations
which accompany approval.

In addition, persons whose positions with the Company require driving Company
equipment or vehicles as a part of their work may be removed from such positions if found
to have been driving under the influence of alcohol whether on duty or off.
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B. LEGAL DRUGS

The use of illegal drugs may affect the safety of the employee or co-workers or members
of the public, the employee’s job performance, or the safe or efficient operation of the
Company facility. “Legal Drug” includes prescribed drugs and over-the-counter drugs
which have been legally obtained and are being used for the purpose for which they were
prescribed or manufactured. Therefore, any employee who is taking any legal drug which
might impair safety, performance, or any motor functions must advise his/her supervisor
before reporting to work under such medication. If the Company determines that such does
not pose any safety or product quality risk, the employee will be permitted to work. A letter
of certification from his/her physician must be provided upon request for the employee’s
personnel file.

C. ILLEGAL DRUGS

The use, purchase, sale, transfer, possession, being under the influence, or the presence in
one’s system of a detectable amount of an illegal drug by any employee is prohibited where
the employee is on Company premises or is performing Company business, or where such
activity away from the Company premises or business affects the employee’s suitability
for continued employment or may harm the reputation of the Company and its employees.
It also includes marijuana, amphetamines, cocaine, opiates, phencyclidine, barbiturates,
benzodiazepines, methadone and propoxyphene.

I\VV. DRUG AND ALCOHOL SCREENING

A. A urinalysis, or other drug/alcohol screening may be conducted:

1. To all applicants to whom a job offer has been made.
2. Post-accident or if probable cause is suspected.

3. When there is reason to believe that an employee may be using drugs or may
be under the influence of drugs or alcohol.

4. As part of periodic follow-up testing if the employee is found to have breached
these policies but has been permitted to remain employed.

5. Whenever an employee is working in a job classification which has been
designated by the Company as a “safety risk classification”.

B. Anemployee’s cooperation with such a test is required as a condition of employment.
The employee’s refusal to cooperate with such a request and provide a specimen may
be grounds for termination where there is any reason to believe that the employee has
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violated this Policy and the employee’s refusal to cooperate prevents a medical
determination of his/her condition. Employees who produce a “diluted” urine
specimen will be given only one (1) additional opportunity to submit one (1) additional
specimen at the employee’s cost. This specimen must be given by the employee at the
Company’s designated collection facility according to established Company protocol
for urine collection and tested by the Company’s designated NIDA approved
laboratory at the employee’s cost. Further, this additional specimen must be collected
within eight (8) hours from the time the employee is notified of the “diluted”
specimen. Failure to produce a negative urine test result or to comply with all the
tenants of this document and the established Company procedures for its
implementation will constitute noncompliance with this Policy.

V. SEARCHES

A. Routine searches of Company property may be conducted at times unannounced, this
includes, but is not limited to, lockers, storage areas, jobsite trailers, Company
vehicles and rooms normally used to store employee’s personal property.

B. Should the Company suspect that an employee has sold, purchased, used or possessed
alcohol, drugs or drug paraphernalia on Company premises, the Company may
inspect the employee’s personal effects (lunch boxes, tool boxes) or automobile on
Company property.

VI. VIOLATIONS OF POLICY

A. Any violation of this Policy may be grounds for termination. However, in some
circumstances and at the sole discretion of the Company, a lesser penalty may be
selected.

B. If the employee has not engaged in misconduct, unsafe conduct or poor job
performance, but is found to have alcohol or drugs in his/her system, the employee
may be placed on an unpaid medical leave (maximum one month) until he/she
presents reliable medical evidence that he/she has overcome any substance use
problem, and he/she shall be reinstated to his/her former position if he/she consents
in writing to occasional testing on request over the next 12 months to be certain that
he/she has not resumed usage of drugs or alcohol in violation of this Policy. If such
subsequent usage is detected, the employee will be terminated.

VII. SELF-IDENTIFICATION TO COMPANY MANAGEMENT/SUPERVISION

Employees who take the initiative of advising their supervisor or manager that they have a medical
problem with regard to alcohol or drug use, who have not engaged in misconduct or repeated poor
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performance at work, and who demonstrate a commitment to take the necessary remedial action,
will be provided a medical leave of absence for such purpose.

VIll. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Company reserves the right to change, rescind or depart from this Policy in whole or in part.
Nothing in this Policy alters an employee’s status. The Company hopes each employment
relationship will be a happy and enduring one. Nevertheless, employees remain free to rescind
their employment at any time with or without cause.
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EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CONSENT

I have carefully and thoroughly read the Company’s Alcohol and Substance Abuse Policy and
agree to follow the Policy.

Employee’s Signature Date

Employee’s Name (Printed)

Witness’ Signature Date

Witness’ Name (Printed)
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RECEIPT OF HANDBOOK

I have received a copy of the City Employee Handbook. I
acknowledge this Handbook contains general information for employees and has been prepared to
acquaint me with the City policies and benefits of employment with City. | understand that it is
my obligation to read and understand what this Handbook says. | understand | am encouraged to
contact my Supervisor any time | have uncertainty about any personnel policy, procedure or
benefit.

| understand that this Handbook and its policies supersede all prior oral and written
communications, including previous Handbooks, and are subject to change or elimination at any
time at the discretion of the City. | further understand that the policies, procedures and benefits
outlined in this Handbook are subject to change and may be changed or eliminated at any time
without prior notice. When changes are issued, | am obligated to insert those changes into the
Handbook to assure its remaining current. | further understand that it is my responsibility to ask
questions and seek clarification to any or all of the policies contained within the Employee
Handbook.

| understand the Handbook does not create any contractual right and is not an employment contract.
| further understand that City employs its employees on an “employment-at-will” basis, meaning
that, in the absence of a signed contract between an employee and employer covering the duration
of employment, either party is free to terminate the employment relationship at any time.

| understand that the computers, Internet access, email and other electronic communications
systems are the property of the City and that the City reserves the right to review, audit, intercept,
access and disclose all data or documents created or stored on the City’s computers, including
emails. By my signature below, | consent to such monitoring and access by the City.

| am aware that, during the course of my employment, confidential information may be made
available to me. I understand that this information is critical to the success of City and must not be
disseminated or used outside of City premises. In the event of termination of employment, whether
voluntary or involuntary, | hereby agree to return all confidential information and documents in
my possession and agree not to utilize or exploit this information with any other individual or City.

| understand that signing the Receipt of City Employee Handbook is a condition of employment.

Print Employee Name

Employee Signature

Date
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CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI

BILL NO. 2022-0015 ORDINANCE NO. {0_{5

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING GTECH FIBER, LLC A LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY, ORGANIZED AND EXISTING UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
MISSOURI, AND ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, THE NON-EXCLUSIVE RIGHT,
PERMISSION AND AUTHORITY TO CONSTRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, EXCAVATE
FOR, PLACE, MAINTAIN, OPERATE, AND USE ITS POLES, TOWERS, WIRES,
CONDUITS, CONDUCTORS, MANHOLES, UNDERGROUND VAULTS, MAINS,
SERVICE PIPES AND OTHER EQUIPMENT AND APPLIANCES IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH, IN, ALONG, ACROSS, OVER AND UNDER THE STREETS, ROADS,
ALLEYS, SIDEWALKS, SQUARES, BRIDGES, AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES IN
THE CITY OF DIXON AND AREAS DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF DIXON FOR
PUBLIC UTILITY USE, FOR THE PURPOSE OF OPERATING A FIBER-OPTIC
BASED INTERNET SERVICE WITHIN THE INCORPORATED BOUNDARIES OF
THE CITY WITH THE INTENT OF PROVIDING HIGH-SPEED INTERNET ACCESS,
TELEPHONE VOICE SERVICES, AND TELEVISION VIDEO PROGRAMMING.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON,
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The non-exclusive right, permission and authority is hereby granted to and
vested in GTech Fiber, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company its successors and assigns
(Company) to construct, reconstruct, excavate for, place, maintain, operate and use all necessary
or appropriate poles, towers, wires, conduits, conductors, manholes, underground vaults, mains,
service pipes, and other equipment, with all necessary or appropriate appurtenances and
appliances in connection therewith, in, along, across, over and under the streets, roads, alleys,
sidewalk, squares, bridges, and other public places within the corporate limits of the City of
Dixon, (City) as now fixed and as hereafter extended, and areas dedicated to the City for public
utility use, for the purpose of operating a fiber-optic based internet service with the incorporated
boundaries of the City with the intent of providing high-speed internet access, telephone voice
services, and television video programming. GTech Fiber, LLC will install and maintain all such
equipment, appliances and apparatus with due regard to and the rightful use by other persons,
with vehicles or otherwise, of the streets, roads, alleys, sidewalks, squares, bridges and other
public places, and areas dedicated to the City for public utility use, and GTech Fiber, LLC’s
exercise of the rights, permission and authority hereby granted shall always be subject to proper

regulation by the City in the exercise of its police powers.



SECTION 2. As consideration for the non-exclusive rights and privileges conferred by
this Ordinance, GTech Fiber, LLC and any of its third-party providers of telephone voice
services or television video programming shall pay to the City of Dixon a franchise fee equal to
five percent (5%) of the monthly gross operating revenues of GTech Fiber, LLC as collected
from each residential and commercial customer residing within the corporate limits of the City
of Dixon, except that gross operating revenues shall not include any taxes and/ or fees including,
without limitation, sales tax, franchise fees, FCC fees and/or copyright fees. Said fees shall be
calculated on a calendar monthly basis and said payment shall be due on the 15% of the
following month. Concurrent with the payment of such fee, GTech Fiber, LLC, or its
successors, shall file with the City Clerk a statement listing its monthly gross revenues within
the City of Dixon for the preceding month, and such statement shall be certified by an officer of
GTech Fiber, LLC.

SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall confer no right, privilege or authority on Company,
its successors, licensees, transferees or assigns, unless Company shall within ninety (90) days
after due notice to the Company of the enactment of this Ordinance file with the City Clerk an
acceptance of the terms and provisions hereof; provided, however, that if such acceptance be not
so filed with said period of ninety (90) days, all rights, privileges, and authority herein granted

shall become null and void.

SECTION 4. This Ordinance and non-exclusive Franchise, upon its enactment and its
acceptance by Company, as hereinbefore provided, shall continue and remain in full force and

effect for a period of twenty (20) years from the approval.

SECTION 5. The rights, privileges and authority hereby granted shall inure to and be
vested in Company, its successors and assigns, successively, subject to all the terms, provisions
and conditions herein contained, and each of the obligations hereby imposed upon Company

shall devolve and be binding upon its successors and assigns, successively, in the same manner.

SECTION 6. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance or

with any of its provisions are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

SECTION 7. This Ordinance shall not relieve Company of the obligation to comply
with any ordinance now existing in the City or enacted in the future requiring Company to obtain

written permits or other approval from the City prior to commencement of construction of



facilities within the streets thereof, except Company shall not be required to obtain permits or

other approval from the City for the maintenance and repair of its facilities.

SECTION 8. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application of such provision to
circumstances, shall be held invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance, or the application of such
provision to circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid, shall not be affected

thereby.

SECTION 9. This Ordinance shall take effect and the rights, privileges and authority
hereby granted shall vest in Company upon its filing of an acceptance with the City Clerk
according to its terms prescribed herein and as provided for in Section 3. The Ordinance shall
be subject to approval or disapproval of the voters of this City only upon the terms and
conditions as provided in Mo. Rev. Stat. §88.251. If the City Clerk does not receive within thirty
(30) days after the passing of this ordinance, a petition sufficient in form and signed by the
requisite number of voters, it shall be a valid and binding non-exclusive franchise of the City

upon the filing of an acceptance by the Company according to the terms prescribed herein.

SECTION 10. GTech Fiber, LLC will comply with all applicable Planning, Zoning,
height, setback and other restrictions as regulated by the City and obtain from the City all

applicable licenses and permits as mandated by ordinance or code.

First read this / A day of W , 2022,

- v

Second read and final passage this 7 2 day gﬁjf;m b 2022

ATTEST:

/{\’J .J'd.;zx;' Z 2/ ﬁW
City Clerk




STATE OF MISSOURI )
) ss.
COUNTY aPULASKI )
|

L oz reo é /v, the City Clerk within and for the City of Dixon, in
the County of Pulaski, in the Sfate of Missouri, do: hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a
full, true and correct copy of Ordinance é[ﬁ of the City of Dixon as passed by the Board of
Aldermen and approved by the Mayor on this /3 *#  day of L fpec ,2022, as

fully as the same appears of record in my office.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of
the City of Dixon, Missouri at my office in the City of Dixon, this /22 /A = day of > 2 Lo
2022.

/(<4 Hooun I 7 % LA iy

City Clerk




BILL # 2022-0016 ORDINANCENO. Ol p

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT
WITH GENERAL CODE FOR eCode360 Upgrades

WHEREAS the City of Dixon has recently re-codified its code, and utilized the services of
General Code to do so;

WHEREAS the City’s Code is available online; and

WHEREAS there are additional features available to the City, and the City believes those
features would be beneficial.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: The eCode 360 Upgrade Proposal attached hereto is approved,;

SECTION 2: The Mayor or person acting as Mayor is authorized and directed to sign said
agreement on behalf of the City of Dixon;

SECTION 3: The City’s Budget for the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 is hereby amended to include a
line item for “General Code” in the amount of $1195.00.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS DAY OF (2-k ), . , 2022,

APPROVED:

———

Mayor, City of Dixia,gz_Mi_s_spu_ri_ e

ATTEST:

City Clerk



GENERAL

eCode360 Upgrade Proposal

PREPARED FOR:

City of Dixon, Missouri

PREPARED BY:

SUSAN LANE
CODIFICATION ACCOUNT MANAGER
slane@generalcode.com
314-603-6405
1-800-836-8834 extension 496

DATE:
September 29, 2022
(Valid for 60 days)



eCode360 Upgrade

General Code® is pleased to present the City of Dixon with this proposal to upgrade your
eCode360 site from Lite to Premium.

Your eCode360 Lite site currently includes the following features:
' . Between regular Code supplements, General Code will temporarily post
. l PDF copies of new legisiation to your online Code
| Custom Settings for  Control the look of your eCode360 by selecting custom colors and

New Laws

! Admin Users accents, ini uploading a custom banner or photo o
| - Easy and Flexible i Search by key words, phrases, section numbers and more
Searching |
" Electronic Index LA comprehenswe list of key words and phrases to speed searching |
" Dynamic Tableof ~ Users can find the information they need and see their current location
| Contents + with a table of contents that moves as users browse
. Email or Share Links  Email alink to a specific Code section or share via social  media
, Printng ! Print with user- -friendly functionality and a variety of user optlons
Bookmarkmg . Save "favorites” to quickly return to sections of the Code |
| Searches ; 1
'";&?Eri'ive Vlew - ‘ V|ew a permanent archive of your Code, updated with each supplement f
i “StICky" Table: + Table headers remain stationary as you scroll |
: Headers ,
i Translate Users can wew?pur Code in more than 100 addmonal languages :

eCode360 Search App ! Use your moblle device to search your Code f

By upgrading to Premium eCode360 the City will have access to the above features pius;
. As new legislation is posted, we will add links from the New Laws
| section of eCode360 to the affected Code chapters or articles
 Public and Private | _

; i Create personalized links and annotations within the Code
 Notes i

Lmked New Laws

" '§ Search across multiple Codes by munlmpallty geographlc reglon
Multicode Search ] government type or population to find sample legislation or other Code
i | content for zoning use, legal cases or historical research
| Administrative users can download Code text to a Microsoft Word |
. Download to Word i q i
| ocument to edit and track changes when drafting new legislation
| Download to PDF | Public users can directly download Code text to a PDF document
‘ J Code Change Indicators help users identify sections of your Code that

have been changed and provide links to the new legislation
“ i ' Search across the Code, Public Documents, New Laws and Notes using
Advanced Search s an intuitive query tool and filtering system to quickly pinpoint the most

| relevant information

Administrative users can add customized titles and comments to your
legislation in New Laws
eAlert Publlc users can sign up to receive notifications of changes in the Code

 PubDocs Module | Post non-Code documents along with your online Code R

i i

New Laws Indicator

Customizable Titles




Project Investment $1,195

Includes setup and first Premium eCode360 annual Maintenance of $1,195
The annual maintenance fee billing date will remain December 1, for each year the City utilizes

General Code’s online service.

Payment Terms
100% will be invoiced upon defivery

Project Authorization
The City of Dixon, Pulaski County, Missouri, hereby agrees to the procedures outlined above, and

to General Code's Codification Terms and Conditions, which are available at
htto:/fwww. generalcode.comiterms-and-conditions-documents/.

Slgnatur% Date A z - <"’Q?ﬁ

This document serves both as a proposal and as an ment. To accept this proposal and
delegate authority to General Code to administer themg% please sign, scan and
email this page to contracts@generalcode.com, or fax or mail this pagete General Code at (585)
328-8189 & 781 Elmgrove Road e Rochester, NY 14624,




A Member of the ICC Family of Solutions

AN
AR
1)

INTERNATIONAL
CODE COUNCIL

781 Elmgrove Road | Rochester, NY 14624 | 800.836.8834 | generalcode.com



BILL NO. 20582 - CoVT ORDINANCE NO. (O’ r‘{

ORDINANCE CHANGING THE NAME OF A STREET KNOWN AS NORTH OAK
LANE TO QC LANE

WHEREAS, the Board of Alderman of the City of Dixon, Missouri have determined that
is would be in the best interest of the City to change the name of NORTH OAK LANE to QC
LANE

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN FOR
THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The street known as North Oak Lane in the City of Dixon, Missouri shall be
known as QC Lane.

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its
passage and approval.

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF

DIXON, MISSOURI ON THIS 5% DAY OF Decewlber ,2022.

MIKE NULL, MAYOR
ATTEST:

- -

CITY CLERK =/

(City Seal)



BILL NO. 2023-0018 ORDINANCE No. é / 8

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DIXON ESTABLISHING A REQUIREMENT FOR
PERMITS FOR ANY EXCAVATION AND DIGGING DONE WITHIN THE CITY
LIMITS AND SETTING THE COST OF THE PERMIT

WHEREAS there is frequent construction and excavation occurring within the city limits of
Dixon; and

WHEREAS the Board of Aldermen finds it to be in the best interests of the City of Dixon to
require a permit for such construction and excavation.

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN FOR THE CITY OF
DIXON:

SECTION 1: A permit shall be required for any construction, excavation, or digging of holes
within the city of Dixon for any projects, residential or commercial, that requires compliance
with the Underground Facility Safety and Damage Prevention Act, RSMO. 319.010 et seq.

SECTION 2: Permit Applications shall be available at City Hall. Applications shall be
submitted with appropriate documentation and the permit fee at a minimum three business days
before any construction or excavation occurs.

SECTION 3: The fee for such permit shall be $25.00.

SECTION 4: Permits may be approved by the maintenance supervisor or mayor. If a permit
application is not approved, the applicant may appeal the denial to the Board of Aldermen.

SECTION 5: Violation of this ordinance shall be punishable by a fine up to $250.00.
SECTION 6: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.
READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED THIS DAY OF JANUARY 2023

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS 9 “ DAY OF Al

Mayor, City of D&on%i

ATTEST:

e . R

City Clerk




ORDINANCE No. 619 BILL No. 2023-0019

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING AND SETTING THE DEPOSIT AMOUNTS FOR THE
RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERICAL WATER CUSTOMERS OF
THE CITY OF DIXON.

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is a city of the fourth class;
WHEREAS the City of Dixon owns and operates a water and sewer system;

WHEREAS the deposits currently being made for new water and sewer customers often do not
cover the remaining balances upon closing of accounts;

WHEREAS the Board of Alderman of the City of Dixon believes it is necessary to raise the
deposit rates.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

Section 1: The existing Dixon City Code § 700.015 is hereby repealed and replaced with the
following language:

Section 700.015 Deposit ~Meter. Each residential, commercial, or industrial applicant for a water
meter who owns the real estate where they are applying for services at will be required to deposit
with the City $100.00. Each residential, commercial, or industrial applicant for a water meter
who does not own the real estate for which they are applying for services will be required to deposit
with the City the amount of $275.00. Upon request for termination of service, the amount so
deposited will be returned to the depositor, provided all water, sewerage, and trash charges due the
City are currently paid in full. If there are water, sewerage, or trash fees due the City, the amount
of such fees will be first deducted from the deposit and the balance thereof, if any, returned to the
depositor upon termination of service.

Section 2: No current water and sewer customers shall be required to make any additional
deposits. Any current deposits shall continue to be held until termination of service and those
funds shall be utilized as set out in Section 1.

Section 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and affect from the date of its passage.
READ TWO TIME AND PASSED THIS DAY OF MAY 2023
APPROVED:

-

MikeA6ull, & ayer; City of Dixon, Missouri

ATTEST:

eanna Burns, ActingT



Bill No. 2023-0020 Ordinance No. (0 2.0

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DIXON ADOPTING THE
INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, 2006 EDITION

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is a Fourth Class City in the State of Missouri; and

WHEREAS the Board of Aldermen for the City of Dixon believes it would be in the
best interests of the City to Adopt a Building Code; and

WHEREAS the Board of Aldermen believes it will promote the health, safety, and
welfare of the City.

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
DIXON AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: A certain document which is on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City
of Dixon, being marked and designated as the International Building Code, 2006 edition,
as published by the International Code Council, be and is hereby adopted as the Building
Code of the City of Dixon in the State of Missouri; for regulating and governing the
conditions and maintenance of all property, buildings and structures; by providing the
standards for supplied utilities and facilities and other physical things and conditions
essential to ensure that structures are safe, sanitary and fit for occupation and use; and the
condemnation of buildings and structures unfit for human occupancy and use and the
demolition of such structures as herein provided; providing for the issuance of permits and
collection of fees therefor; and each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties,
conditions and terms of said Building Code on file in the office of the City Clerk of the
City of Dixon are hereby referred to, adopted and made a part hereof, as if fully set out in
this Article, with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if any, prescribed in
Section 3 of this ordinance.

Section 2: All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

Section 3:

The following Sections of the International Building Code adopted are hereby revised:
Section 101.1. Insert: City of Dixon.
Section 1612.3. Insert: City of Dixon.



Section 1612.3. Insert: date of issuance.
Section 3410.2. Insert: date of passage

Section 4:

That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any
reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this ordinance. The Board of Alderman of the City of Dixon hereby
declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or
phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsection,
sentences, clauses and phrases be declared unconstitutional.

Section 5: The cost of any permit required under the code shall be $25.00.

Section 6: Any person who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail to comply
with any of the requirements thereof or who shall erect, construct, alter or repair a building
or structure in violation of an approved plan of or directive of the Code Official, or of a
permit or certificate issued under the provision of this code, shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not more than five hundred dollars ($§500.00) or by
imprisonment not exceeding ninety (90) days, or both such fine and imprisonment. Each
day that a violation continues after due notice has been served shall be deemed a separate
offense.

Section 7: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.
READ TWO TIME AND PASSED THIS [Dﬂ' DAY OF APRIL 2023

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS JO¥ DAY OF _{oyi| , 2023,

APPROVED:

Mll, ) City of Dixen, Missouri
ATTEST: <
Gf’g h
beAa

Deanna Burns, Acting City/ Clerk




ORDINANCE No. 621 Bill No. 2023-0021

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE AND DIRECTING
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE OF 300 S. ELLEN
STREET IN DIXON MISSOURI

WHEREAS the City has been offered the opportunity to purchase real estate located within the
boundaries of the City of Dixon; and

WHEREAS the Board of Alderman of the City of Dixon finds that it would be beneficial to the
City of Dixon to purchase said real estate.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: The Contract attached hereto as Exhibit A, providing for the purchase of the real
estate located at 300 S. Ellen Street, Dixon, Missouri is hereby approved, and made a part hereof.

SECTION 2: The Mayor is authorized to sign said contract on behalf of the City of Dixon.
SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS =7 DAY OF e , 2023,

APPROVED:

Mayor, —City oﬁ/_ Djx.on{MTssouri

ATTEST:

&@Q@ﬁnﬂ——)
City Clerk



EXHIBIT A

CONTRACT FOR SALE OF REAL ESTATE

The City of Dixon, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of
Missouri (hereinafter “Buyers” or “City of Dixon”) and Kerry Rowden and Wendy Rowden,
Husband and Wife, (hereinafter “Sellers), agree as follows:

1. This contract is for the purchase of real estate located at 300 South Ellen, Dixon, Pulaski
County, Missouri 65459. The legal description of said real estate is

All of Lot | in Block 24 of the Original Town (now City) of Dixon, Pulaski County,
Missouri; Except the South 90 feet of said Lot 1. Subject to any easements of record.

2. Buyers agree to purchase the real estate described herein along with all improvements
and fixtures thereon from Sellers for the total purchase price of $21,000.00 which shall be due
and payable at the time of delivery of a warranty deed.

3. Sellers agree to prepare and Deliver to the Buyers a Warranty Deed conveying the real
estate to Buyers.

4. Buyers and Sellers agree that the real estate is being sold as is.

5. Sellers represent that there are no liens or encumbrances on the real estate, and that title
will be delivered free and clear from any liens or encumbrances in fee simple.

6. Sellers represent that there is currently a renter in the real estate who is in possession of
the real estate under an expired lease, and therefore the term is a month-to-month lease. Sellers
represent that they have given notice to vacate by May 31, 2023 to the renter. Sellers assign all
rights and causes of action regarding the lease to Buyers, including but not limited to future rents
and any claims for damages to the real estate.

7. Sellers and Buyers agree that Buyers will be responsible for any costs associated with the
eviction. Sellers will assist in the eviction by providing any necessary documentation of notice to
vacate.

8. Buyers shall have immediate possession of the real estate upon payment of their
obligations under this contract.

9. Sellers understand that this contract is subject to approval of Board of Alderman of the
City of Dixon, and a vote will be held during the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board
of Alderman on May 1, 2023.

10. If approved by the City of Dixon, Buyers and Sellers agree to schedule a closing with
seven days.

11. Time is of the essence to Sellers.




12. This Contract embodies and constitutes the entire understanding between the parties with
respect to the transactions contemplated herein. All prior or contemporaneous agreements,
understandings, representations, oral or written, are merged into this Agreement.

13. This Contract may only be modified in writing by both parties.

14. This Agreement embodies and constitutes the entire understanding between the parties
with respect to the transactions contemplated herein. All prior or contemporaneous agreements,

understandings, representations, oral or written, are merged into this Agreement.

Sellers:

7’4% %//2,7/13 m% YRS

7 Wowden , ate

Buyers:

Wendy Ro#den, Date

{422

Date

O'Z /zpzs

Attest: City Clerk




BILL No, 2023-0022
ORDINANCE # 622

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI TO ESTABLISH A PROCEDURE
TO DISCLOSE POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND SUBSTANTIAL
INTERESTS FOR CERTAIN OFFICIALS .

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Declaration of Policy, The proper operation of government requires that public
officials and employees be independent, impartial and responsible to the people; that government
decisions and policy be made in the proper channels of the governmental structure; that public
office not be used for personal gain; and that the public have confidence in the integrity of its
government. In recognition of these goals, there is hereby established a procedure for disclosure
by certain officials and employees of private financial or other interests in matters affecting the

city.

Section 2. Conflicts of Interest
a. All elected and appointed officials as well as employees of a political
subdivision must comply with section 105.454 of Missouri Revised
Statutes on conflicts of interest as well as any other state law governing
official conduct.

b. Any member of the governing body of a political subdivision who has a
“substantial or private interest” in any measure, bill, order or ordinance
proposed or pending before such governing body must disclose that
interest to the secretary or clerk of such body and such disclosure shall be
recorded in the appropriate journal of the governing body. Substantial or
private interest is defined as ownership by the individual, his spouse, or
his dependent children, whether singularly or collectively, directly or
indirectly of: (1) 10% or more of any business entity; or (2) an interest
having a value of $10,000 or more; or (3) the receipt of a salary, gratuity,
or other compensation or remuneration of $5,000 or more, per year from
any individual, partnership, organization, or association within any
calendar year.




Section 3. Disclosure Reports, Each elected official, candidate for elective office, the chief
administrative officer, the chief purchasing officer, and the full-time general counsel shall
disclose the following information by May 1, or the appropriate deadline as referenced in Section
105.487, RSMo, if any such transactions occurred during the previous calendar year:

a. For such person, and all persons within the first degree of consanguinity
or affinity of such person, the date and the identities of the parties to
each transaction with a total value in excess of five hundred dollars, if
any, that such person had with the political subdivision, other than
compensation received as an employee or payment of any tax, fee or
penalty due to the political subdivision, and other than transfers for no
consideration to the political subdivision. .

b. The date and the identities of the parties to each transaction known to the
person with a total value in excess of five hundred dollars, if any, that
any business entity in which such person had a substantial interest, had
with the political subdivision, other than payment of any tax, fee or
penalty due to the political subdivision or transactions involving
payment for providing utility service to the political subdivision, and
other than transfers for no consideration to the political subdivision.

¢. The chief administrative officer, chief purchasing officer, and candidates
for either of these positions also shall disclose by May 1, or the
appropriate deadline as referenced in Section 105.487, RSMo, and the
following information for the previous calendar year:

1. The name and address of each of the employers of such person
from whom income of one thousand dollars or more was received
during the year covered by the statement;

2. The name and address of each sole proprietorship that he owned;
the name, address and the general nature of the business conducted
of each general partnership and joint venture in which he was a
partner or participant; the name and address of each partner or co
participant for each partnership or joint venture unless such names
and addresses are filed by the parinership or joint venture with the
secretary of state; the name, address and general nature of the
business conducted of any closely held corporation or limited
partnership in which the person owned ten percent or more of any
class of the outstanding stock or limited partnership units; and the
name of any publicly traded corporation or limited partnership that
is listed on a regulated stock exchange or automated quotation




system in which the person owns two percent or more of any class
of outstanding stock, limited partnership units or other equity
interests;

3. The name and address of each corporation for which such person
served in the capacity of a director, officer or receiver.

Section 4. Filing of Reports,

a. The financial interest statements shall be filed at the following
times, but no person is required to file more than one financial interest
statement in any calendar year;

1. Every person required to file a financial interest statement
shall file the statement annually not later than May 1 and

the statement shall cover the calendar year ending the
immediately preceding December 31; provided that any

member of the board may supplement the

financial interest statement to report additional interests

acquired after December 31 of the covered year until the

date of filing of the financial interest statement.

2. Each person appointed to office shall file the statement
within thirty days of such appointment or employment
covering the calendar year ending the previous December

31;

3. Every candidate required to file a personal financial
disclosure statement shall file no later than fourteen days
after the close of filing at which the candidate seeks
nomination or election or nomination by caucus. The time
period of this statement shall cover the twelve months prior
to the closing date of filing for candidacy.

b.  Financial disclosure reports giving the financial information
required in Section 3 shall be filed with the local political subdivision
and with the Missouri Ethics Commission. The reports shall be available
for public inspection and copying during normal business hours.

Section 5. Filing of Ordinance, A certified copy of this ordinance adopted prior to
September 15 shall be sent within ten days of its adoption to the Missouri Ethics Commission.



Section 6. Effective Date, This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the
date of its passage and approval and shall remain in effect for two years from the date of passage.

Read twice approved this /£ day 019%3 2023

Qw/.wu.)ﬁw

City Clerk




Missouri Revised Statutes
Chapter 105
Public Officers and Employees--Miscellaneous Provisions Section 105.454
Angust 28 2011

Additional prohibited acts by certain elected and appeinted public officials and employees,
exceptions.

105.454. No elected or appointed official or employee of the state or any political subdivision
thereof serving in an executive or administrative capacity, shall:

(1)  Perform any service for any agency of the state, or for any political subdivision thereof in
which he or she is an officer or employee or over which he or she has supervisory power for
receipt or payment of any compensation, other than of the compensation provided for the
performance of his or her official duties, in excess of five hundred dollars per transaction or five
thousand dollars per annum, except on transactions made pursuant to an award on a contract let
or sale made after public notice and competitive bidding, provided that the bid or offer is the
lowest received;

(2)  Sell, rent or lease any property to any agency of the state, or to any political subdivision
thereof in which he or she is an officer or employee or over which he or she has supervisory
power and received consideration therefor in excess of five hundred dollars per transaction or
five thousand dollars per year, unless the transaction is made pursuant to an award on a contract
let or sale made after public notice and in the case of property other than real property,
competitive bidding, provided that the bid or offer accepted is the lowest received;

(3)  Participate in any matter, directly or indirectly, in which he or she attempts to influence
any decision of any agency of the state, or political subdivision thereof in which he or she is an
officer or employee or over which he or she has supervisory power, when he or she knows the
result of such decision may be the acceptance of the performance of a service or the sale, rental,
or lease of any property to that agency for consideration in excess of five hundred dollars' value
per transaction or five thousand dollars' value per annum to him or her, to his or her spouse, to a
dependent child in his or her custody or to any business with which he or she is associated unless
the transaction is made pursnant to an award on a contract let or sale made after public notice and
in the case of property other than real property, competitive bidding, provided that the bid or
offer accepted is the lowest received;

(4)  Perform any services during the time of his or her office or employment for any
consideration from any person, firm or corporation, other than the compensation provided for the
performance of his or her official duties, by which service he or she attempts to influence a
decision of any agency of the state, or of any political subdivision in which he or she is an officer

or employee or over which he or she has supervisory power,



(5) Perform any service for consideration, during one year after termination of his or her office
or employment, by which performance he or she attempts to influence a decision of any agency
of the state, or a decision of any political subdivision in which he or she was an officer or
employee or over which he or she had supervisory power, except that this provision shall not be
construed to prohibit any person from performing such service and receiving compensation
therefor, in any adversary proceeding or in the preparation or filing of any public document or to
prohibit an employee of the executive department from being employed by any other department,
division or agency of the executive branch of state government. For purposes of this subdivision,
within ninety days after assuming office, the governor shall by executive order designate those
members of his or her staff who have supervisory authority over each department, division or
agency of state government for purposes of application of this subdivision. The executive order
shall be amended within ninety days of any change in the supervisory assignments-of the
governor's staff. The governor shall designate not less than three staff members pursuant to this
subdivision;

(6) Perform any service for any consideration for any person, firm or corporation after
termination of his or her office or employment in relation to any case, decision, proceeding or
application with respect to which he or she was directly concerned or in which he or she
personally participated during the period of his or her service or employment.




ORDINANCENO. 5 2.3 Bill No. 2023-0023

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF DIXON TO EXECUTE TASK
ORDER #4 OF THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is in the process of implementing improvements to its wastewater
treatment facility; and

WHEREAS TASK ORDER #4 is required to proceed with those improvements; and
WHEREAS the City has engaged the engineering services of the Archer Elgin.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: Task Order #4 which is attached hereto is hereby approved, and made a part hereof.
SECTION 2: The Mayor is authorized to sign said contract on behalf of the City of Dixon.
SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS/Z DAY OF , 2023,

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

City Clerk



City of Dixon, Missouri

Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements

TASK ORDER NO. 4

This Task Order pertains to an Agreement by and between the City of Dixon. Missouri,
(“OWNER™), and CM Archer Group, P.C., dba Archer-Elgin (“ENGINEER”), dated
September 7. 2021, (“the Agreement”). Engineer shall perform services on the project

described below as provided herein and in the Agreement. Upon execution, this
Agrecment as it pertains to the project described below.

PROJECT NAME: Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements

PART 1.0

PART 2.0

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The scope of WWTF improvements shall be divided into three separate
phases. The improvement phases shall correspond to the improvements
identified in the Facility Plan dated July 2022 that was submitted for
Missouri SRF funding in February 2023. It is anticipated that Phase 1 will
be funded with ARPA funds and supplemented with local funds. Phase 2
will be funded with SRF funding and potentially CDBG grant. Phase 3
funding has not yet been identified.

Phase 1 shall include a new aerobic digester structure and equipment.

Phase 2 shall include a new influent screening structure, intermediate
pump station, dry weather UV disinfection, wet weather PAA disinfection
and a wet weather pump station.

Phase 3 shall include new grit removal structure, secondary clarifier
equipment replacement and RAS/WAS pump station rehabilitation.

SCOPE OF SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY ENGINEER ON THE
PROJECT:

DESIGN PHASE

Upon authorization to proceed by OWNER, the ENGINEER will prepare plans
and specifications showing the general scope, extent, and character of the
improvements listed above. In addition, ENGINEER will furnish Instructions
to Bidders, Contract Documents, and other forms and items of information
necessary for seeking competitive Bids. Contract forms and bonds shall be
submitted to OWNER’s legal counsel for review.

The plans and specifications will be submitted to all required regulatory
agencies for their approval and such alterations made as they may require. The
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plans and specifications will also be submitted to any other agency, which
might be involved in the financing of the project. Five complete sets of bid
documents will be provided for OWNER’S use. Additional copies can be
provided in accordance with the schedule of rates.

The design phase will be completed within 365 calendar days from the date of
authorization to proceed by OWNER, subject to increases due to delays
beyond ENGINEER’s control.

The ENGINEER will advise OWNER of the design progress at least monthly,
advising OWNER of any adjustments to the opinion of probable construction
costs.

B. BIDDING PHASE SERVICES
ENGINEER shall perform Bidding Phase Engineering as follows:

Provide assistance in obtaining bids, answering questions, and preparing
addendums during the bid letting, hold pre-bid meeting and site tour, open,
review and tabulate bids, consult OWNER as to the acceptability of
subcontractors proposed by the prime contractor(s), evaluation of bids and
recommendation of award, and assembling and awarding contracts.

C. CONSTRUCTION PHASE

ENGINEER shall perform Construction Phase Engineering as follows:

1. Construction Administration — ENGINEER shall: Draft and issue
Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed documents, hold pre-
construction conference, review Contractor submittals and shop
drawings, provide contract document interpretation and response to
requests for clarification, provide assistance to OWNER for equipment
and materials procurement, hold monthly progress meetings, review
contractor’s schedule and work progress, review monthly pay
applications, assist with grant reimbursements, observe and record
construction startup and testing, review Contractor closeout documents,
review final operations and maintenance manuals, and draft and execute
project change orders.

2. Construction Observation — ENGINEER shall: conduct construction
observations at least once per week for the duration of the construction
contract.
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D. SURVEY, EASEMENTS, & ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

ENGINEER shall provide any topographic surveying necessary to perform the
design services.

Drawings Conforming to Construction Records - This includes the
preparation of final drawings conforming to construction records and
providing two sets to the OWNER after completion of the project.

Preparation of operation and maintenance manuals

Construction Staking — ENGINEER shall provide one-time construction
staking and layout of the proposed structures and alignments necessary for the
Contractor to construct the improvements.

The ENGINEER agrees to take steps to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises
(DBE’s) are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment, construction, and
services as required by 2 CFR 200.321.

DELIVERABLES

1.

Engineer Sealed Plans, Specifications, and Bidding Documents and all
Change Orders for the above scope of improvements. (One stamped hard
copy and one stamped electronic PDF copy are to be submitted to MDNR for
approval)

Assumptions for this study include:

PART 3.0

This study will consider and build on the information presented in the
applicable prior studies, construction documents, and reports.

No geotechnical sampling, analyses, or studies will be conducted as part of
this study. For costing purposes, all new structures will be assumed to require
foundations similar in size and spacing to existing structures.

No sample collection or lab analysis. If required, City will be responsible for
sample collection and lab analysis.

No flow monitoring is included in the scope of services and if required, will
be provided as an additional scope and fee item.

OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES:

OWNER shall do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services
of the ENGINEER:

A. Designate in writing a person to act as OWNER’s representative with respect

to the services to be rendered under this agreement.

City of Dixon — Task Order 4 Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements 3



D.

E.

Provide all criteria and full information as to OWNER’s requirements for the
Project, including design and construction standards which OWNER will
require to be included in the Drawings and Specifications.
Assist ENGINEER by placing at ENGINEER’s disposal all available
information pertinent to the Project including previous reports and any other
data relative to the design or construction of the project.
Arrange for access for ENGINEER to enter upon public and private property as
required for ENGINEER to perform services under this Agreement.
OWNER agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless ENGINEER and
employees from and against all claims, losses, damages, cause of action, suits,
liability, or every kind including all expenses of litigation, cost to cure, court
costs, and attorney fees resulting from inaccurate or insufficient information,
data, or instructions provided by the OWNER, employees, ENGINEER, or
agents.

Owner shall furnish the following information:

PART 4.0

PART 5.0

A.

A -
B -
C-
D-
E -

1. Make available the data listed above.

2. Future growth projections from prior “planning” documents (confirm
this is available).

3. Prior engineering reports, soils reports, and record drawings.

4. Equipment O&M manuals — we will review these at the WWTP and
make copies as needed.

PERIODS OF SERVICE:
Design to be complete and submitted to permitting authorities within 365
calendar days. Bidding Phase Services to be completed within 90 calendar
days. Construction Phase Services to be completed within 550 calendar
days. All periods subject increase due to delays beyond the Engincer’s
control.
PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER:
BASIC SERVICES
1. The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for the tasks specified on
a lump sum basis plus reimbursable expenses in the amounts and in the
manner stated below:
Phase 1 Phase 2&3
Design Phase $ 118,000.00 $ 690,000.00
Bidding $ 18,000.00 $ 25,000.00
Construction Phase Engineering $ 50,000.00 $ 494,000.00
Operation & Maintenance Manuals $ 5,000.00 $ 20,000.00
Drawings Conforming to Const Records $  5.000.00 $ 18.000.00

Total = $ 196,000.00 $ 1,247,000.00
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Tasks B — E shall only apply to Phase 1 and 2. The above fees shall not be exceeded
except by contract amendment.

B. PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER

Invoices will be submitted to OWNER by ENGINEER monthly based on a
percent completion as determined by ENGINEER. Invoice will be due and
payable upon receipt; the OWNER agrees to render all payments within thirty
days of receipt of invoices. The OWNER shall make payment in accordance
with section 8.960, RSMo.

PART 6.0 ADDITIONAL SERVICES:

In addition to the described basic services, the following services will be
provided at additional cost, but ONLY UPON PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL
OF THE OWNER.

A. Specialized geotechnical, soils, hydraulic, or other additional engineering studies
recommended by the ENGINEER.

B. Preparation of environmental impact statements, Cultural Resource Assessments,
or other documents not included under Basic Services.

C. Services resulting from a significant change in the general scope, extent, or
character of the Project or its design due to causes beyond ENGINEERS’ control.

D. Providing renderings or models for OWNER’s use.

E. Investigations and studies involving detailed consideration of operations,
maintenance, and overhead expenses, providing value engineering during the
course of design, or the preparation of rate schedules and appraisals, unless
specifically included under Basic Services.

F. Services resulting from the award of more separate prime contracts for
construction, materials, or equipment for the Project than are contemplated under

Basic Services.

G. Providing property surveys, staking to enable Contractor(s) to proceed with their
work, and other special field surveys, unless included under Basic Services.

H. Preparation of operation and maintenance manuals unless included in Basic
Services.
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1. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for OWNER in any
litigation, arbitration, or other legal or administrative proceeding involving the
Project.

J. Extra cost for contract administration and resident project representation
performed beyond the construction contract completion date specified in the
construction contract documents.

K. Additional services in connection with the Project not otherwise provided for in
this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this
AUTHORIZATION as of this date indicated below.

This Agreement is executed this _1ﬁ ~__dayof June , 2023

City of Dixon, Missouri CM Archer Group, P.C.

“OWNER” “ENGINEER” / /
| /44"

BY:
- '\{ A —
NAME: Mike Null NAME: J&f Medows, P.E.
TITLE: Mavor TITLE:; President
ADDRESS: 303 S. Elm Street ADDRESS: 310 E. 6" Street

Dixon, MO 65459 Rolla, MO 65401
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Bill # 2023-0024

ORDINANCE # (024

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, authorizing, fixing, and
determining a rate of levy on the hundred-dollar valuation of all taxable property within
the City for the year 2023.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON,
COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The pursuant to the laws of the State of Missouri, relevant to cities of the fourth class
and pursuant to the authority of the qualified voter at due and proper elections held in said City,
that there shall be levied and collected as taxes for the year 2023, upon all real estate, personal
and mixed property taxable within the City of Dixon, Missouri, at the rate of 1.1071 cents on the
$100.00 assessed valuation as per the following purposes:

GENERAL REVENUE ON EACH $100 ASSESSED VALUATION.............. 0.4867
FORPUBLIC LIBRARY ....couiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiii e ee e e e e eenns 0.1493
DEBT SERVICE. ..ottt cassstitittstee e veanansn s onn s o SiBOOSMEETIR 0.4711
TOTAL. .o e e 1.1071

And that the above tax rate levy on the $100.00 assessed valuation of taxable property in said
City of Dixon, be and is hereby made the true and lawful levy for said City for the year 2023.

Section 2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to furnish a copy of this

ordinance to the Clerk of the County Court of Pulaski County, Missouri, within the time required
by Law for the filing of city rates with said Clerk.

Section 3: This ordinance shall be in full force from the date of its passage.

DIXON, MISSOURI ON THIS 7 ¥* | DAY OF

e P

City Clerk Mike Null, Mayor —

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED BY THE BO OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF
ﬁ(_‘ ;‘442 72023




ORDINANCE NO. él S Bill No. 2023-0025

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF DIXON TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH REESE EQUIPMENT COMPANY, LLC ON BEHALF OF THE
CITY OF DIXON

WHEREAS the City of Dixon requested bids for the demolition of a building located at 300
South Ellen Street; and

WHEREAS Reese Equipment Company had the lowest and best bid; and
WHEREAS the City previously voted to accept said bid.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: The Contract which is attached hereto is hereby approved, and made a part hereof.
SECTION 2: The Mayor is authorized to sign said contract on behalf of the City of Dixon.
SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS T4-DAY OF L2023,

ROVED:

—

Mayor, (ﬁ/ty of Dixon, @\

ATTEST:

RV S V-

City Clerk /




CONTRACT
This Contract (the “Contract™) is made as of &‘i day of Lwﬂ 5 ;'O;3
(the “Effective Date) by and between ion and Reese

Equipment Company, LLC of Dixon, Mi §mun.

Reese Equipment Company, LLC desires to provide services for demolition and abatement
of 300 S. Ellen Street, Dixon, MO.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, the parties agree as
follows:

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES. Reese Equipment Company, LLC will provide to
City of Dixon the following services (collectively, the “Services™):
» Refer to attached bid dated May 18, 2023 attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference as though fully set forth herein.

2. SCOPE OF WORK. Reese Equipment Company, LLC will provide services for the
demolition of 300 S. Ellen Street, Dixon, Missouri, hereinafter referred to as

(“Worksite™).

3. PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS
City of Dixon will make available to Reese Equipment Company, LLC all existing
plans, specification, drawings, blueprints, and similar construction documents,

4. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Reese Equipment Company, LLC shall provide
the Services in a workmanlike manner, and in compliance with all applicable federal,
state and local laws and regulations, including, but not limited to all provisions of the
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Federal Family
and Medical Leave Act.

5. WORKSITE. Reese Equipment Company, LLC warrants that City of Dixon is
authorized to enter into this contract. Prior to the start of the demolition, City of
Dixon shall provide an easily accessible site, and in which the boundaries of 300 S.
Ellen Street, property will be clearly identified by stakes at all corners of the property.
Reese Equipment Company, LLC shall maintain these stakes in proper position
throughout construction.

6. PAYMENT. Payment shall be made to Reese Equipment Company, LLC for the
services described in this contract as follows:
$6700.00.

7. TERM. Reese Equipment Company, LLC shall complete the work described herein
within 30.

8. CHANGE ORDER. City of Dixon, or any allowed person, e.g. lender, public body, or
inspector, may make changes to the scope of work from time to time during the term of
this Contract. However, any such change or modification shall only be made in a written
“Change Order” which is signed and dated by both parties. Such Change Orders shall
become part of this Contract. City of Dixon agrees to pay any increase in the cost of the
Construction work as a result of any written, dated and signed Change Order. In the



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

event of the cost of a Change Order is not known at the time a Change Order is executed,
Reese Equipment Company, LLC shall estimate the cost thereof and City of Dixon
shall pay the actual cost whether or not this cost is in excess of the estimated cost.

PERMITS. City of Dixon shall obtain all necessary permits (any city, state or federal
permits and fees. City of Dixon shall apply for and obtain any other necessary permits
and licenses required by the local municipal/county government to do the work. Reese
Equipment Company, LLC shall obtain NESHAP permits from Department of
Natural Resources (DNR) for the Abatement and Demolition.

INSURANCE. Before work begins under this Contract, Reese Equipment
Company, LLC shall furnish certificates of insurance to City of Dixon substantiating
that Reese Equipment Company, LLC has placed in force valid insurance covering
its full liability under the Worker’s Compensation laws of the State of Missouri
(aggregate $1,000,000) and shall furnish and maintain general liability insurance
(aggregate $2,000,000).

WARRANTY. Reese Equipment Company, LLC shall provide its services and
meet its obligations under this Contract in a timely and workmanlike manner, using
knowledge and recommendations for performing services which meet generally
acceptable standards in the community and region, and will provide a standard of care
equal to, or superior to.

FREE ACCESS TO WORKSITE. City of Dixon will allow free access to work areas
for workers and vehicles and will allow areas for storage of materials and debris.
Driveways will be kept clear for the movement of vehicles during work hours. Reese
Equipment Company, LLC will make reasonable efforts to protect driveways, lawns,
shrubs, and other vegetation. Reese Equipment Company, LLC also agrees to keep
the Worksite clean and orderly and to remove all debris as needed during the hours of
work in order to maintain work conditions which do not cause health or safety hazards.

INSPECTION. City of Dixon shall have the right to inspect all work performed under
this Contract. All defects and uncompleted items shall be reported immediately. All
work that needs to be inspected or tested and certified by an engineer as a condition of
any government departs or other state agency, or inspected and certified by the local
health officer, shall be done at each necessary stage of construction and before further
construction can continue. All inspection and certification will be done at owner’s
expense.

DEFAULT. The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a material default
under this Contract:
a. The failure of City of Dixon to make a required payment when due.

b. The insolvency of either party or if either party shall, either voluntarily or
involuntarily, become a debtor of or seek protection under the Title 11 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code.

c. Alawsuit is brought on any claim, seizure, lien or levy for labor performed or
materials used on or furnished to the project by either party, or there is a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors, application or sale for or by any creditor or
government agency brought against either party.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

d. The failure of City of Dixon to make the site available or the failure of Reese
Equipment Company, LLC to deliver the Services in time and manner provided
for in the Contract.

REMEDIES. In addition to any and all other rights a party may have available
according to laws of the State of Missouri, if a party defaults by failing to substantially
perform and provision, term or condition of the Contract (including without limitation
the failure to make a monetary payment when due), the other party may terminate the
Contract by providing written notice to the defaulting party. This notice shall describe
with sufficient detail the nature of the default. The party receiving said notice shall have
15 days from the effective date of said notice to cure the default(s) or begin substantial
completion if completion cannot be made in 15 days. Unless waived by a party providing
notice, the failure to cure or begin curing, the default(s) within such time period shall
result in the automatic termination of this Contract.

FORCE MAJEURE. If performance of this Contract or any obligation under this
Contract is prevented, restricted, or interfered with by causes beyond either party’s
reasonable control (“Force Majeure”), and if the party unable to carry out its obligations
gives the other party prompt written notice of such event, then the obligations of the
party invoking this provision shall be suspended to the extent necessary by such event.
The term Force Majeure shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God, fire, explosion,
vandalism, storm, casualty, illness, injury, general unavailability of materials or other
similar occurrence, orders or acts of military of civil authority, or by national
emergencies, insurrections, riots, or wars, or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages. The
excused party shall use reasonable efforts under the circumstances to avoid or remove
such causes or non-performance and shall proceed to perform with reasonable dispatch
whenever such causes are removed or cease. An act or omission shall be deemed within
the reasonable control of a party if committed, omitted, or caused by such party, or its
employees, officers, agents, or affiliates.

ARBITRATION. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Contract, or
the breach thereof, shall be settled by arbitration administered by an Arbitrator agreed
upon by both parties in accordance with its Commercial Arbitration Rules (including the
Optional Rules for Emergency Measures of Protection), and judgement on the award
rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.
During any arbitration proceedings related to this Contract, the parties shall continue to
perform their respective obligations under this Contract. In the event arbitration is
necessary, each party shall be solely responsible for its attorney fees and cost.

ENTIRE CONTRACT. This Contract contains the entire Contract of the parties, and
there are no other promises or conditions in any other contract whether oral or written
concerning the subject matter of this Contract. Any amendments must be in writing and
signed by each party. This Contract supersedes any prior written or oral agreements
between parties.

SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract will be held to be invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions will continue to be valid and
enforceable. If a court finds that any provision of this Contract is invalid or
unenforceable, but that by limiting such provision it would become valid and



enforceable, then such provision will be deemed to be written, construed, and enforced
as so limited.

20. AMENDMENT. This Contract may be modified or amended in writing, if the writing is
signed by each party.

21. GOVERNING LAW. This Contract shall be construed in accordance with, and
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri, without regard to any choice of law
provisions of Missouri or any other jurisdiction.

22, NOTICE. Any notice or communication required or permitted under this Contract shall
be sufficiently given if delivered in person or by certified mail, return receipt requested,
to the address set forth in the opening paragraph or to such other address as one party
may have furnished to the other in writing.

23. WAIVER OF CONTRACTUAL RIGHT. The failure of either party to enforce any
provision of this Contract shall not be construed as a waiver or limitation of that party’s
right to subsequently enforce and compel strict compliance with every provision of this
Contract.

24. SIGNATORIES. This Contract shall be signed on behalf of Reese Equipment
Company, LLC and on behalf of City of Dixon, and shall be effective as of the date
first written above.

Owner:

f/

/

May®r, City of Dixon 7‘\ Kevin Reese

Reese Equipment Company, LLC

Address: PO Box 177 Address: 16400 N Hwy 133
Dixon, MO 65459 Dixon, MO 65459
Phone: S 73-9/7. 4<0Z Phone: 573-774-0485

wp 1. ¥2,000 4rted pice for asbestos and sraved.



EQUIPMENT & CONTRACTING,

May 18, 2023

City of Dixon

303 S. Elm

PO Bo 177

Dixon, MO 65459

RE: BID FOR DEMOLITION & REMOVAL OF 300 S. ELLEN, DIXON
Bid includes the following:

> DNR NESHAP filing fee

» Labor & machine time for demo of home
» Labor & machine time to clean up debris
» Hauling fees to an approved landfill

Bid DOES NOT include the following:

> Asbestos report
» Removal of any asbestos found once report has been obtained
> DNR NESHAP filing fee if asbestos is found

Total: $6,700.00

NOTE: ASBESTOS REPORT WILL NEED TO BE OBTAINED AND REVIEWED.  THIS REPORT HAS TO
BE FILED ALONG WTH THE DNR NESHAP FILING SINCE IT IS OWNED BY AJTY ENTITY. IF
ASBESTOS IS FOUND, IT WLL HAVE TO BE REMOMED PRICR TO DEMOUTION

. Digitally signed by Melinda L.
Melinda L. Reese reese
Date: 2023.05.18 10:06:35 -05'00' May 1 8, 2023

Melinda Reese, Office Manager Date

Reese Equipment Company, LLC - 16400 N. Hwy 133, Dixon MO 65459
PH: (573)759-7677 Fax: (573)759-3096
Email: reeseeq@yahoo.com
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Bill Namber— Ordinance Number

AN ORDINANCE ELECTING THAT CITY ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS BE HEARD BY
A PULASKI COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT AND TERMINATING THE CITY
MUNICIPAL COURT

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is a city of the fourth class, and currently has a municipal court;
and

WHEREAS the City has the Board of Alderman has determined that it would be beneficial to
have its ordinance violations heard in the Circuit Court of Pulaski County.

Be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon as follows:

SECTION 1. The City of Dixon presently has a municipal court which is adjudicating its city
ordinance violations.

SECTION 2. Pursuant to Section 479.040 RSMo., the City is electing to have its ordinance
violations heard and determined by the Pulaski County Circuit Court.

SECTION 3. The Mayor shall notify the Chief Judge of the 25th Judicial Circuit in writing of the
City of Dixon's election to have its city ordinance violations heard by an Associate
Circuit Court judge.

SECTION 4. Pursuant to Section 479.040 RSMo., this transfer of judicial duties will take effect 6
months after the Chief Judge of the 25th Judicial Circuit receives notice from the
Mayor, or sooner if consented to by the Presiding judge or Associate judge as
allowed by RSMo. 479.040.2.

SECTION 5. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from its date of passage and

approval.
IT IS SO ORDAINED:
OR MIKE NULL . —~——
W /)0, 22
ATTEST
City Clerk
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ROLL CALL VOTE

First Reading

Alderman Michal Gunther
Alderman Stacey Yoakum
Alderman Trevor Warnol
Alderman Mary Wiles

Alderman Anthony Campbell

SECOND READING
ROLL CALL VOTE
Alderman Michal Gunther
Alderman Stacey Yoakum
Alderman Trevor Warnol
Alderman Mary Wiles
Alderman Anthony Campbell
MOTION TO APPROVE
ROLL CALL VOTE
Alderman Michal Gunther
Alderman Stacey Yoakum
Alderman Trevor Warneol

Alderman Mary Wiles

Alderman Anthony Campbell

Yes
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JEFFREY THOMAS

ATTORNEY AT LAW
jeff@jeffthomasattorney.com

Physical Address: Physical Address:

700 W. 2" St., Suite C, Rolla, Missouri 65401 1058 Missouri Ave, Ste. 1, St. Robert, MO 65584
Mailing Address: Mailing Address:

700 W. 2" St., Suite C, Rolla, Missouri 65401 P.O. Box 4076, Waynesville, MO 65583
Telephone: (573) 426-2727 Telephone: (573) 336-5574

July 12, 2023

Presiding Judge of the 25" Judicial Circuit

c\o Julie Fridley, Secretary to the Presiding Judge
Phelps County Courthouse

200 N. Main Street

Rolla, MO 65401

Your Honor,
[ am writing on behalf of the Mayor of the City of Dixon pursuant to RSMo. § 479.040.

I have attached Dixon City Ordinance 626 whereby the City of Dixon has elected to have its municipal
ordinance violations heard by an Associate Circuit Judge in Pulaski County.

[ have also forwarded a copy of this letter and ordinance to Mrs. Rachelle Beasley.

RSMo. § 479.040 calls for these ordinances to begin being heard by the associate judge six months
after your notification. If your office or Mrs. Beasley require any assistance from the City to initiate
this process, please let me know.

Thank you for your attention in this matter.

Respectfully,

Cc: Mayor Null, Kathy Smith, municipal court clerk, Deanna Burns, city clerk, Rachelle Beasley,
circuit clerk



ORDINANCE NO. (27 F Bill No.202 3 ~00 2%

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF DIXON TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH RIDGE TOP INTERNET, LLC ON BEHALF OF THE CITY

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is in need of Information Technology management services; and

WHEREAS TASK ORDER the City has received a proposal for services from Ridge Top
Internet, LLC to provide said services; and

WHEREAS the City believes it is in the best interests of the City to enter into a contract with
Ridge Top Internet, LLC.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: The Service Agreement which is attached hereto is hereby approved, and made a
part hereof,

SECTION 2: The Mayor is authorized to sign said agreement on behalf of the City of Dixon.
SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOQURI, AND
APPROVED THIS /70 DAY OF ,2023.

APPROVED:

Mm of D o

ATTEST:

City Clerk



Service Agreement: RidgeTop Internet, LL.C with City of
Dixon Missouri

1. Agreement Period
From _ 07/01/2023 Until ___ 07/01/25

2. Aim of Agreement
RidgeTop Internet, LLC, hereinafter consultant, will provide
comprehensive computer and technical support to the City of Dixon,
hereinafter client.

3. Parties to the Agreement

RidgeTop Internet, LI.C

Mike Null, Mayor

City of Dixon (Authorized Representative)

4. Services to be provided

a. Up to 2 hours remote support per month

b. Network health and monitoring software installed at client site(s)
i alerts emailed to RidgeTop Internet for immediate
notification/potential remediation
ii. monthly examination of network monitoring reports to
ensure proper functionality

c Backup monitoring and testing
i. Includes receipt of backup service email logs and
notifications
ii. Checking exceptions in logs
iii, Monthly verification of backup data

d. Password auditing
i Includes scan of network credentials to check for policy
compliance
ii. Documented report of results provided to client, along with
recommended course of action, if any, for client’s records

€. Antivirus/Security Endpoint monitoring
i Includes receipt of security software email logs and
notifications
i, Checking exceptions in logs
iii. Verification of device compliance with network security
compliance



5. Equipment and Materials

The client is responsible for making purchases and having purchased
goods on site and available for consultant for installations and repairs, as
required.

The client is responsible for additional services that may be required, such
as electrical or data wiring, phone or internet service, etc. consultant does
not hire subcontractors for such services, unless previous agreements have
been made.

6. Communication

a.

b.

Local personnel will communicate as necessary regarding issues covered
by the Service Agreement.
Both parties must approve any changes to this agreement.

7. Terms of Service

a,

b.

Payment is to be made in full within fifteen days of receipt of invoice.

Upon completion of the term of this Agreement, client will be offered the
Agreement for renewal.

Early termination of this Agreement will result in forfeiture of service fees
for the remainder of the Agreement terms as stated in Section 1, unless
both parties reach a mutual understanding, to be expressed in writing and
signed by both parties.

Exception: If after 90 days from initial date of contract, client is
not content with consultant’s service, contract may be terminated with no
fees or penalties.

8. Schedule of Fees

a.

o an o

f.

Monthly Maintenance Fee: $ 150.00/mo

Backup Monitoring and Testing: $25/mo

Password Auditing: $15/mo

Antivirus Monitoring: $25/mo

Visit other than monthly two hour remote service: $60.00 per hour, one
hour minimum per instance

At the end of year one (ending 07/01/2024), consultant has option to
increase rates by 10% to be discussed with client prior to enactment

Total monthly amount to be paid: $215

Signatures:

Authorized Signatu

T Z 27

Date




%/ M _ 12005

Mark Mitchell, RidgeTop Intemnet, LLC Date



2023 ADOPTING ORDINANCE

BILL NO. 2023-0028 orn.no. 02 B

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING A NEW CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF DIXON, COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF MISSOURI; ESTABLISHING THE
SAME; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CERTAIN ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED
THEREIN, EXCEPT AS HEREIN EXPRESSLY PROVIDED; PROVIDING FOR THE MANNER
OF AMENDING SUCH CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING PENALTY FOR THE
VIOLATION THEREOF; AND PROVIDING WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME
EFFECTIVE

Be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon, County of Pulaski, State of
Missouri, as follows:

Section 1. Approval, Adoption and Enactment of Code.

Pursuant to Section 71.943 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, the codification of ordinances, as
set out in Titles I through VII, each inclusive, of the "Code of Ordinances of the City of Dixon,
County of Pulaski, State of Missouri," is hereby adopted and enacted as the "Code of Ordinances
of the City of Dixon"; which shall supersede all other general and permanent ordinances of the City
passed on or before June 12, 2023, to the extent provided in Section 3 hereof.

Section 2. When Code Provisions Effective.

All provisions of such Code shall be in full force and effect from and after the effective date of this
ordinance as set forth herein.

Section 3. Repeal of Legislation Not Contained in Code; Legislation Saved From Repeal;
Matters Not Affected By Repeal.

A. All ordinances of a general and permanent nature of the City adopted on final passage on or
before June 12, 2023, and not included in such Code or recognized and continued in force by
reference therein, are hereby repealed from and after the effective date of this ordinance, except
those which may be specifically excepted by separate ordinance, and except the following which
are hereby continued in full force and effect, unless specifically repealed by separate ordinance:

1. Ordinances promising or guaranteeing the payment of money for the City, or authorizing
the issuance of any bonds or notes of the City or any other evidence of the City 's
indebtedness, or authorizing any contract or obligation assumed by the City.

2. Ordinances levying taxes or making special assessments.



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Ordinances appropriating funds or establishing salaries and compensation, and providing
for expenses.

Ordinances granting franchises or rights to any person, firm or corporation.

Ordinances relating to the dedication, opening, closing, naming, establishment of grades,
improvement, altering, paving, widening or vacating of streets, alleys, sidewalks or public
places.

Ordinances authorizing or relating to particular public improvements.

Ordinances respecting the conveyances or acceptance of real property or easements in real
property.

Ordinances dedicating, accepting or vacating any plat or subdivision in the City or any part
thereof, or providing regulations for the same.

Ordinances annexing property to the City.

All zoning and subdivision ordinances not specifically repealed and not included herein.
Ordinances establishing TIF districts or redevelopment districts.

Ordinances relating to traffic schedules (e.g., stop signs, parking limits, etc.).

All ordinances relating to personnel regulations and policies (e.g., pensions, retirement, job
descriptions and insurance, etc.).

Ordinances authorizing the establishment of industrial development corporations.
Ordinances establishing tax rates for the City.

Ordinances regarding Police Department procedures and policies, including procedures on
arrest.

Ordinances regarding conflicts of interest and disclosure reports.

The repeal provided for in this Section shall not be construed to revive any ordinance or part
thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent ordinance which is repealed by this ordinance.

The repeal provided for in this Section shall not affect any offense or act committed or done or
any penalty or forfeiture incurred or any contract or right established or accruing before the
effective date of this ordinance, nor shall it affect any prosecution, suit or proceeding pending or
any judgment rendered prior to such date.



Section 4. Amendments To Code.

Any and all additions and amendments to such Code when passed in such form as to indicate the
intention of the Board of Aldermen to make the same a part thereof shall be deemed to be
incorporated in such Code so that reference to the "Code of Ordinances of the City of Dixon" shall
be understood and intended to include such additions and amendments.

Section 5. Violations and Penalties.

A. Whenever in this Code or any other ordinance of the City, or in any rule, regulation, notice or
order promulgated by any officer or agency of the City under authority duly vested in him/her
or it, any act is prohibited or is declared to be unlawful or an offense, misdemeanor or ordinance
violation or the doing of any act is required or the failure to do any act is declared to be unlawful
or an offense, misdemeanor or ordinance violation, and no specific penalty is provided for the
violation thereof, upon conviction of a violation of any such provision of this Code or of any
such ordinance, rule, regulation, notice or order, the violator shall be punished by a fine not
exceeding five hundred dollars ($500.00) or by imprisonment in the City or County Jail not
exceeding ninety (90) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment; provided that in any case
wherein the penalty for an offense is fixed by a Statute of the State, the statutory penalty, and no
other, shall be imposed for such offense, except that imprisonments may be in the City prison or
workhouse instead of the County Jail.

B. Every day any violation of this Code or any other ordinance or any such rule, regulation, notice
or order shall continue shall constitute a separate offense.

C. Whenever any act is prohibited by this Code, by an amendment thereof, or by any rule or
regulation adopted thereunder, such prohibition shall extend to and include the causing, securing,
aiding or abetting of another person to do said act. Whenever any act is prohibited by this Code,
an attempt to do the act is likewise prohibited.

Section 6. Applicability of General Penalty.

In case of the amendment by the Board of Aldermen of any Section of such Code for which a penalty
is not provided, the general penalty as provided in Section 5 of this ordinance shall apply to the
Section as amended; or in case such amendment contains provisions for which a penalty other than
the aforementioned general penalty is provided in another Section in the same Chapter, the penalty
so provided in such other Section shall be held to relate to the Section so amended, unless such penalty
is specifically repealed therein.

Section 7. Filing of Copy of Code; Codes To Be Kept Up-To-Date.

A copy of such Code shall be kept on file in the office of the City Clerk, preserved in loose-leaf form
or in such other form as the City Clerk may consider most expedient. It shall be the express duty of



the City Clerk, or someone authorized by said officer, to insert in their designated places all
amendments and all ordinances or resolutions which indicate the intention of the Board of Aldermen
to make the same part of such Code when the same have been printed or reprinted in page form and
to extract from such Code all provisions which from time to time may be repealed by the Board of
Aldermen. This copy of such Code shall be available for all persons desiring to examine the same.

Section 8. Altering or Tampering With Code; Violations and Penalties.

It shall be unlawful for any person to change or alter by additions or deletions any part or portion of
such Code, or to insert or delete pages or portions thereof, or to alter or tamper with such Code in any
manner whatsoever which will cause the law of the City of Dixon to be misrepresented thereby. Any
person violating this Section shall be punished as provided in Section 5 of this ordinance.

Section 9. Severability.

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Aldermen that the Sections, paragraphs,
sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance and the Code hereby adopted are severable, and if
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or Section of this ordinance or the Code hereby adopted shall
be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the valid judgment or decree of a court of
competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of this ordinance or the Code hereby adopted.

Section 10. Effective Date.

This ordinance and the Code adopted hereby shall become effective AMUIZOLS .

PASSED by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon this 4 day of. : Q,._/
202 3.

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Dixonthis ¢/ day of

2023

City Clerk
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City of Dixon, Missouri

2022 Statutory Updates

City of Dixon

2022 Statutory Updates Incorporated During Supplement #2

The Sections of the Code noted in the table below have been updated with the 2022 statutory material.
Some of the revisions noted herein are non-statutory changes to the Model Code intended to improve
clarity, enforceability, and/or better reflect regulations used by most communities. The City’s attorney
may want to review all statutory and non-statutory changes to determine whether any revisions are

necessary. All revised Sections will be in effect following the City’s adoption of the Code.

Note that these statutory updates do not include any changes to provisions regarding “home-based work™
as those provisions are not part of the Model Code and are specific to each community. Similarly, these
updates do not include any changes regarding sales tax holidays. See pages 8 and 2, respectively, of the
2022 CodeWatch Bulletin for additional information and consult with your attorney on any changes that

may be needed.

Section/Subsection
of the Code

Description of the Revision

Pursuant to
RSMo. Section

120.020

A new Subsection has been added to this Section setting out an
additional category of authorized closed records, which covers
certain records for customers of municipally owned utilities.

610.021

125.220

This Section, regarding appeal from jury verdicts, has been
removed. The statutory provisions set out herein only apply to
Associate Circuit Judges and are not applicable in communities
with Municipal Courts.

479.200.3

125.320

We revised Subsection (A)(8) to read in part, “as may be
otherwise provided by ordinance and permitted under the laws of
the State of Missouri” to further clarify what costs are allowed
under these provisions.

N/A

210.400

The offense of escape or attempted escape from custody has been
revised to include those in custody for a violation of probation or
parole.

575.200

210.720

This Section has been revised following a lawsuit involving
University City, MO, to increase the specificity of the prohibited
conduct. These revisions largely reflect revisions made by
University City during the lawsuit, which appeared to be
sufficient based on the court’s ruling.

N/A

210.840

We amended the internal reference to include (A)(12) when
necessary which prohibiting the discharge or shooting of a firearm
within the City limits.

N/A

210.1360

The provisions in Subsection (B) of this Section regarding the
protection of individuals under the age of 18 who have committed
the offense of prostitution have been revised.

567.020

210.1500

The definition of “sexual contact” has been revised to include
“causing semen, seminal fluid, or other ejaculate to come into
contact with another person.”

566.010

1of2




City of Dixon, Missouri

2022 Statutory Updates

Section/Subsection | Description of the Revision Pursuant to
of the Code RSMo. Section
210.1540 Subsection (A)(1) of this Section has been revised to include | 566.149
violations of Section 573.037, RSMo., regarding possession of
child pornography.
210.1545 A new Section has been added which prohibits certain offenders | 566.150
from being present or loitering within 500 feet of a public park,
swimming pool, athletic complex, museum, or nature center, with
some exceptions.
210.1800 We added wording to these three Sections to account for the | N/A
210.1810 medical marijuana and pending recreational marijuana
210.1830 amendments to the State Constitution.
210.2110 The wording in Subsection (E)(2) was revised to correct a | N/A
typographical error.
230.010 The definition of “solid waste” has been revised to exclude post- | 260.200
use polymers, recovered feedstocks, and mill scale.
300.010 The definition of “emergency vehicle” has been revised to include | 304.022
vehicles operated by county or municipal park rangers.
600.090 The wording in Subsection (A) was revised to improve the clarity | N/A
of the provisions therein.

20f2




ORDINANCENO. (029 Bill No. 2025~ 0029

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF DIXON TO EXECUTE
ADDENDUM #1 TO AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is in the process of implementing improvements to its wastewater
treatment facility; and

WHEREAS the City has previously approved TASK ORDER #4 which is required to proceed
with those improvements;

WHEREAS the City has engaged the engineering services of the Archer Elgin; and

WHEREAS sources of funding for the improvements have requested changes to the terms of the
Agreement for Engineering Services;

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: Addendum No. 1 to Agreement for Engineering Services which is attached hereto
is hereby approved, and made a part hereof.

SECTION 2: The Mayor is authorized to sign said contract on behalf of the City of Dixon.
SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDE OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS Ru& DAY OF , 2023.
APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Qﬂﬂmaié;mw

City Clerk




ADDENDUM NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

This Addendum dated this e Day of (Codpher , of 2023, will

supplement the Task Order No. 4 dated June 12, 2023 for the engineering services
associated with ARPA Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements.

TASK ORDER NUMBER: No. 4
PROJECT NAME: Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements

PART 1.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The scope of the WWTF Improvements shall correspond to the
improvements identified in the Facility Plan Dated July 2022. The requirements
for 10 CSR 20-4.040(12) shall be met. In addition, the scope shall include the
review of American Iron & Steel documentation, review of ordinances, and
additional planning services necessary for SRF funding.

PART 5.0 PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER

Part 5.0 shall removed and replaced with the below:

A. BASIC SERVICES

1. The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for the tasks specified on
a lump sum basis plus reimbursable expenses in the amounts and in the
manner stated below:

A - Design Phase $ 808,000.00
B - Bidding $  43,000.00
C - Construction Phase Engineering $ 544,000.00
D - Operation & Maintenance Manuals $ 25,000.00
E — Drawings Conforming to Const Records $ 23.000.00

Total = §1,443,000.00
The above fees shall not be exceeded except by contract amendment,

B.  PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER

Invoices will be submitted to OWNER by ENGINEER monthly based on a
percent completion as determined by ENGINEER. Invoice will be due and
payable upon receipt; the OWNER agrees to render all payments within thirty
days of receipt of invoices. The OWNER shall make payment in accordance
with section 8.960, RSMo.

City of Dixon 1 Task Order No. 4 — Addendum No. 1




IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties here to have executed, by their duly authorized
officials, this Addendum No. 1, on the respective dates indicated below.

(SEAL)
ATTEST:
BY:

NAME: D

nTLE:ﬁZ-&;_A&AL

ATTEST:

Dyann Careaga

TYPE NAME:

&_@ Ql_ug%@\

TITLE: Accounting Manager

City of Dixon

CITY OF DI URI
B
%
NAME: Mike Null
TITLE: Mayor o

CM ARCHER GROUP, P.C, gba
ARCHER-E

BY:

TYPEN : Jeff Medows, PE

TITLE: President

Task Order No. 4 — Addendum No. 1




Bill No. 2023~ 0030 ORDINANCE NO. (O @ )

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF DIXON TO
ENTERINTO A CONTRACT WITH MRPC

WHEREAS the funding is available under a number of grants and govermment funding
programs; and

WHEREAS the Missouri Regional Planning Commission (MRPC) has offered to provide
technical assistance to the City to apply for those grants and funds;

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is already a member of the MRPC; and

WHEREAS the Board of Alderman believes it would be beneficial to the City to enter into a
contract for those services.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: The Annual Membership Technical Assistance Contract attached hereto is hereby
approved.

SECTION 2: The City shall renew its membership to the MRPC at the Basic Membership Level.

SECTION 3: The Mayor of Dixon is authorized and directed to execute said contract on behalf
of the City of Dixon.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect on the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THISGND DAY OF ,2023.

APPROVED:

Mayor/,Qﬁy of Dixorf, Missouri

City Clerk



ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
by and between
MERAMEC REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
and the
CITY OF _ Dixon

This Agreement is made and entered into on the 1st day of July, 2023, by and between Meramec Regional
Planning Commission, #4 Industrial Drive, St. James, Missouri 65559, hereinafter referred to as "MRPC" and
the CITY OF _ Dixon , hereinafter referred to as "Client."

1. Services to Client. MRPC shall provide the services of one or more of its employees to the Client for
purposes of grant research, project development and grant writing, or other technical assistance work
allowed under the MRPC board’s hour allocation policy.

2. Client to Supply Data and Records as requested by MRPC. The Client agrees to appoint a single point
of contact to work with MRPC, and the Client agrees to supply MRPC with all required financial, demographic,
statistical and other data and information requested or required by MRPC, the applicable agency, and federal
and state law and regulation.

3. Independent Contractor. Both the Client and MRPC agree that MRPC and its employees and
representatives will act as independent contractors in the performance of its duties under this agreement. Neither
MRPC nor the Client shall have the authority to obligate or bind the other without the express written consent
of the other party.

4. Confidential Information. MRPC agrees that any information received by MRPC and its employees and
representatives during the term of this agreement, and at any time thereafter, concerning the personal, financial,
or other affairs of a private individual or business will be treated by MRPC in full confidence and will not be
revealed to any other person, firm or corporation without the express consent of the Client, or where otherwise
required by law, regulation, legal process or the state's Open Meetings Law.

5. Client to Hold Harmless MRPC. The Client will hold harmiess MRPC and the agents, employees, and
representatives of MRPC from all liability and claims of liability arising out of or incident to MRPC's
performance of its obligations under this agreement, excepting MRPC’s negligence or intentional misconduct.
The Client further watrants and agrees that all data and information provided to MRPC in conjunction with the

1



grant or loan application, and in conjunction with MRPC's performance of its obligations hereunder, is true and
correct, and MRPC, its agents and representatives and the agency herein above described may rely upon its
accuracy for purposes of processing the grant or loan application and throughout the completion of said project.
Client releases and fully discharges MRPC and its employees and representatives from any and all liability or
claims of liability arising out of or incident to the compilation of such information and data and the processing
and analysis thereof. The Client further acknowledges that MRPC and its employees and representatives have
made no warranty as to the viability of the Client's loan or grant application, and no assurance as to its approval
or acceptance by the designated agency has been made. Client acknowledges that the decision to proceed with
the application and the technical assistance and services to be provided under this agreement have been the sole
and exclusive decision of the Client, and the Client releases MRPC and its employees and representatives from
all liability or claims of lability in the event of disapproval of the application or revocation thereof for reasons

relating to the Client.

6. Time of Performance. MRPC will provide the services described in this agreement for the period
commencing July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. The time and services of this contract may be terminated,
extended or amended by Addendum hereto, containing the signatories of the parties. MRPC shall promptly
proceed with its obligations under this agreement and use reasonable efforts to complete same within a
reasonable time. Client acknowledges and agrees, however, that MRPC shall not be bound by time limitations
specified by the Client or imposed by the Client's agreements with third parties. No performance bond shall be
required of MRPC. MRPC's services pursuant to the terms of this agreement shall be concluded upon

completion of requested service(s).

7. Consideration. In consideration for the services provided by MRPC hereunder the Client agrees to pay
MRPC at the following hourly rates after using any available city/county allocated technical assistance hours!:
For the months of Julv 2023-June 2024: Clerical $46.00; Technical Level #1 $61.00; Technical Level #2
$55.00; Technical Level #3 $51.00; Management $71.00; Fiscal Officer $76.00; Assistant Director $77.00; and
Executive Director $98.00. MRPC shall periodically invoice the Client for fees and expenses as same are

incurred in a timely manner.

L At the beginning of each fiscal year, each member county and city will be allocated a given number of hours as a part of
membership dues. Any work exceeding 30 minutes in length that a member government requests of MRPC on a given
project—from researching potential funding options to writing grants—will be deducted from this annual hour allocation.
Once a member government uses its allocation of hours for the year, it will be charged at the established hourly rates for any
additional work requested that year. Excess hours cannot be carried over to succeeding years. If the project crosses fiscal
years, new hourly rates adopted by the MRPC board at the beginning of the new fiscal year will apply to the project. A
member government or client may only use one year's worth of allocated hours on a specific project, even if it crosses fiscal

years.

2



Member governments will be notified of the number of free hours with their membership (dues) statements each
year. This contract identifies the below number of free hours allocated to the member government and sets forth
hourly rates to be applied should a project require additional time in excess of those hours. If the project
crosses fiscal years, new hourly rates adopted by the MRPC board at the beginning of the new fiscal year will
apply to the project.

| Membership Level : County Hours | City Hours 2
Basic 18 - 15

Enhanced |24 21 : B

| Prime 130 S 7 A

8. Termination of Agreement. This agreement will terminate June 30, 2023; except that either MRPC or the
Client may terminate this contract prior to completion of the project, without cause by giving the other party not
less than thirty (30) days written notice thereof. In the event of termination prior to completion of the project,
the Client shall pay the cost of services rendered by MRPC, and expenses incurred in the performance of this

agreement to the effective date of termination.

9. Compliance with Applicable Law and Regulation. In MRPC's performance of this agreement, and in the
Client's performance of its obligations and responsibilitics under the contract, each party shall comply with all
applicable laws and regulations, and each party hereto shall supply the other, where necessary or applicable,
with information and data for compliance with such applicable law and regulation.

10. Conflict of Interest. No member of the governing body or board of the Client, and no other officer,
employee, or agent of the Client, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning
and carrying out of the contract, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in the project or

this agreement.

11. Authority to Enter into Agreement - Binding Affect. Both MRPC and the Client have been duly
authorized to enter into this agreement by their respective governing body or board, as the case may be, and this
agreement is a binding obligation on the parties hereto and may be enforced in accordance with its terms.

12. Enforcement - Costs of Collection. In the event Client should default in the payment of any sum due
hereunder or in the performance of any obligation on its part to be performed, and in the event MRPC should
retain or engage an attorney or attorneys to collect or enforce or protect its interest with respect to this
agreement, the Client shall pay all costs and expenses of such collection, enforcement, or protection, including

reasonable attorney's fees.



13. Governing Law. This agreement shall be governcd by and constructed in accordance with the law of the
State of Missouri, and where applicable, in accordance with federal law and regulation.

14. Notices. All notices, requests, demands or other communications provided for herein shall be in writing
and shall be deemed to have been given when sent by prepaid United States registered or certified mail, with
case may be, to MRPC at #4 Industrial Dr., St. James, Missouri
65559; and to the Client at CITY OF 4 : Attn: » Kevengezels
P Oé&z' 7y W 4 (address) (elv) \MO /654/& % : or to such address as

any party shall designate to the other from time to time in writing forward in like manner.

return receipt requested, addressed, as

15. Amcndments. No amendment, modification, termination, or waiver of any provision hereof shall be
effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

16. Severability of Provisions. Any provision hereof which is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction
shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without
invalidating the remaining provisions of this agreement of affecting the validity or enforceability of such
provision in any other jurisdiction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement the day and year first written above.

MERAMEC REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

By: _ Amu M@

Date: 10-le 720% 2

(seal)




Bill No. 2023-0031 Ordinance No. (03|

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DIXON
SETTING THE SCHEDULE OF COURT COSTS

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is City of the Fourth Class existing under the laws of Missouri;

WHEREAS the City of Dixon has determined and decided that its Municipal Ordinance
Violations shall be heard by an Associate Judge,

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON
AS FOLLOWS:

1. Section 1: The Dixon City Code is hereby amended to include the following;:

Court costs.

(a)Definitions. The following words and phrases, as used in this chapter, shall have the following
respective meanings:

(1)Court costs. The total of fees, miscellaneous charges and surcharges imposed in a
particular case.

(2)Fees. The amount charged for services to be performed by the court.

(3)Miscellaneous charges. The amounts allowed by law for services provided by
individuals or entities other than the court.

(4)Surcharges. Additional amounts payable to the State of Missouri or other entities or
payable to the city for specific designated purposes that are imposed for specific purposes
designated by law and assessed by the court.

(5) Municipal Judge refers to any judge hearing a violation of a Dixon Municipal
Ordinance Violation.

(b)Court costs imposed. In addition to any fine that may be imposed, the municipal judge may
assess against the defendant as court costs any or all of the following costs, except in those cases
where the defendant is found by the judge to be indigent and unable to pay the costs:

(DCourt fees. Court fees in the amount of fifteen dollars ($15.00) for any cases heard in
associate court as set forth in RSMo § 479.260 RSMo and limited by RSMo § 488.012,
and twelve dollars ($12.00) for any cases heard in the City’s municipal court.

(2)Crime victims’ compensation fund surcharge. A surcharge in the amount of seven
dollars and fifty cents ($7.50) as imposed by RSMo § 595.045 for purposes of the crime
victims’ compensation fund established by the State of Missouri. Any sums collected
pursuant to this subsection shall be distributed ninety-five (95) percent to the State of



Missouri for deposit to the crime victims’ compensation fund and five (5) percent to the
city as reimbursement for the costs of collection of such state-imposed charge;

(3)Peace officer standards and training surcharge. A surcharge in the amount of one
dollar ($1.00) as imposed by RSMo § 488.5336 for purposes of the peace officer
standards and training commission fund created by RSMo § 590.178; provided, however,
such surcharge shall not be assessed on any non-moving violations. Any sums collected
pursuant to this subsection shall be distributed to the State of Missouri for deposit to the
peace officer standards and teaching commission fund;

(4)Law enforcement training surcharge. A surcharge in the amount of two dollars ($2.00)
as set forth in RSMo § 488.5336 for training law enforcement officers; provided,
however, such surcharge shall not be assessed on any non-moving violations. Such
surcharge shall be deposited with the director of finance who shall place such costs in a
special account to be used for training law enforcement officers;

(5)Inmate prisoner detainee security surcharge. A surcharge in the amount of two dollars
($2.00) as set forth in RSMo § 488.5026. This surcharge shall be collected and deposited
with the director of finance who shall place the funds in a special account to be called the
“inmate prisoner detainee security fund.” Funds in this account may be used only for
acquiring, developing and maintain biometric verification and information sharing
systems, for expenses related to detention of prisoners and for any other purpose

allowed by RSMo § 488.5026; (OPTIONAL BY ORDINANCE)

(6)Alcohol related traffic offense cost recoupment. The actual and reasonable costs
incurred by the city as determined by the municipal judge for costs associated with the
arrest for violation of any city ordinance involving alcohol or drug-related traffic
offenses, including the cost of any chemical test to determine the alcohol or drug content
of the person’s blood, and the costs of processing, charging, booking and holding such
person in custody as set forth in RSMo § 488.5334;

(7)Statewide court automation fund surcharge. In addition to any cost which may be
assessed by the municipal division pursuant to statute, ordinance, or court rule, in every
proceeding filed in the municipal division for violation of an ordinance when the
statewide court automation case management system is in operation, a surcharge of seven
dollars ($7.00) shall be assessed. Such surcharge shall also be assessed in cases in which
please of guilty are processed in the violations bureau.

(c)Court costs prohibited, when. Court costs shall not be assessed when the case is dismissed or
when costs are to be paid by the state, county, or city.



(d)Judicial waiver of court costs. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit or limit
the authority of the judge to waive fees, miscellaneous charges and surcharges imposed in a
particular case in whole or in part.

2. Section 2: Any ordinances or any parts of ordinances inconsistent with this ordinance is
repealed. This ordinance specifically modifies Dixon City Code § 125.320.

3. Section 3: The effective date of this ordinance shall be the date it is passed.

+1
Read twice and approved this £ day ofﬁmr_ﬁ(/t) , 2023

APPROVED:

Mike > or

ATTEST:

JO

City Clerk




Bill No. 2023-0032 Ordinance No. (.D 32-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement with the Missouri
Highways and Transportation Commission.

Section 2: The agreement shall be in substantially the same form and contest as the agreement
attached hereto.

Section 3: This ordinance shall be in full force from the date of its passage.

READ TWO TIMES AND APPROVED THIS ; ﬁDAY OF NOVEMBER, 2023

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

City Clerk ;
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CCO Form: DE11 Municipal Agreement

Approved: 04/93 (CEH) Route: 28
Revised: 12/21 (BDG) County: Pulaski
Maodified: Job No.: CD0121

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by the Missouri Highways and Transportation
Commission (hereinafter, "Commission") and the City of Dixon, Missouri, a municipal
corporation (hereinafter, "City").

WITNESSETH:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and
representations contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

(1) IMPROVEMENT DESIGNATION: The public improvement designated as
Route 28, Pulaski County, Job No. CD0121 shall consist of ADA improvements.

(2) IMPROVEMENT WITHIN CITY: The improvement within the City is located
as follows:

Route 28: Beginning at Station 631+05.00, a point at the intersection of East A
Street and Route 28 (Ellen Street), run in a generally northerly direction along
existing Route 28 fo Station 643+00.00, a point at the intersection of Chestnut
Street and Route 28 (Ellen Street). Length of improvement within city is 1,195.00
feet.

(3) EXTENT OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall apply only to the portion
of the improvement lying within the city limits as they exist on the date this Agreement is
executed by the City.

(4) LOCATION: The general location of the public improvement is shown on
an attached sketch marked "Exhibit A" and made a part of this Agreement. The detailed
location of the improvement is shown on the plans prepared by the Commission for the
above-designated route and project.

(5) PURPOSE: It is the intent of this Agreement to outline the parties’
responsibilities with respect to the construction and maintenance of those improvements
to the State Highway System located within the City limits described in paragraphs (1)
and (2) above and designated as Commission Job No. CD0121.

(6) RIGHT-OF-WAY USE: The City grants the right to use the right-of-way of
public roads, streets, alleys and any other property owned by the City as necessary for




construction and maintenance of said public improvement.

(7) CLOSE AND VACATE: The City shall temporarily close and vacate alil
streets or roads, or parts thereof, which may be necessary to permit the construction of
the project in accordance with the detailed plans.

(8) RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION: Upon approval of all agreements, plans
and specifications by the Commission and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA),
the Commission will file copies of the plans with the city clerk of the City and the county
clerk of the county and proceed to acquire at its expense, at no cost or expense to the
City, any necessary right-of-way required for the construction of the improvement.

(9)  UTILITY RELOCATION:

(A) The Commission and the City shall cooperate to secure the
temporary or permanent removal, relocation, or adjustment of public utilities or private
lines, poles, wires, conduits, and pipes located on the right-of-way of existing public ways
as necessary for construction of the improvement and the cost shall be borne by such
public utilities or the owners of the facilities except where the City is by existing franchise
or agreement obligated to pay all or a portion of such cost, in which case the City will pay
its obligated portion of the cost.

(B) The Commission shall secure the removal, relocation, or adjustment
of any public or private utilities located upon private easements and shall pay any costs
incurred therein.

(C) Itis understood and agreed by the parties to this Agreement that no
city-owned utility facilities will require relocation or adjustment in connection with this
improvement, but that should utility facilites be discovered at any time during
development or construction of this improvement, relocation or adjustment of the same
will be done and performed under a supplemental agreement covering the subject, and
in accordance with Commission policy then in effect on division of costs for adjustment of
utility facilities.

(D) In cases of public utilities owned by the City which must be moved,
adjusted, or altered to accommodate construction of this improvement, and such city-
owned utilities, poles, wires, conduits, and pipes are located within the present city limits
and located on an existing city street, not state highway right-of-way, but being taken over
by the Commission as a part of its highway right-of-way, the City will perform the
necessary removal, adjustment, alterations and relocation, and the Commission will
reimburse the City except as otherwise provided. The City shall perform the removal,
adjustment, alterations and relocation in accordance with the detail plans, estimates of
costs and bills of materials prepared by the City in accordance with Federal Aid Policy
Guide, Title 23 CFR Subchapter G, Part 645, Subpart A (FAPG 23 CFR 645A), dated
December 9, 1991 and any revision of it, and approved by the Commission's District
Engineer, and shall perform all work and keep the records of the costs in accordance with



FAPG 23 CFR 645A and its revisions. Upon the completion of any such work and on
receipt by the Commission of the original and four copies of a bill for the actual costs
incurred by the City in making any such removal, adjustment, alteration and relocation,
the Commission shall reimburse the City for the actual cost necessitated by construction
of this public improvement. The Commission's obligation toward the cost of any such
removal, adjustment, alteration and relocation shall extend only to those costs incurred in
accordance with FAPG 23 CFR 645A and its revisions.

(E)  Should it be necessary to alter, relocate or adjust any city-owned
utility facilities outside the present city limits on public right-of-way or on state highway
right-of-way within or outside the city limits or within the right-of-way of a public way other
than a city street or alley, the alteration, relocation, or adjustment shall be made by the
City at its cost.

(Fy The City agrees that any installation, removal, relocation,
maintenance, or repair of public or private utilities involving work within highway right-of-
way included in this project shall be done only in accordance with the general rules and
regulations of the Commission and after a permit for the particular work has been obtained
from the Commission's District Engineer or his authorized representative. Similarly, the
City will allow no work on the highway right-of-way involving excavation or alteration in
any manner of the highway as constructed, including but not limited to driveway
connections, except in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Commission and
only after a permit for the specific work has been obtained from the Commission's District
Engineer or his authorized representative. The City shall take whatever actions that are
necessary to assure compliance with this Subsection.

(10) LIGHTING: The installation, operation, and maintenance by the
Commission of any lighting system on the public improvement covered by this Agreement
shall be only in accordance with the Commission's policy on highway lighting in effect at
the time of any such installation and only to the extent the Commission then deems
warranted. No street lighting system shall be installed or maintained by or for the City on
the improvement without approval of the Commission.

(11) TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES: The installation, operation and
maintenance of all traffic signals, pavement markings, signs, and devices on the
improvement, including those between the highway and intersecting streets shall be
under the exclusive jurisdiction and at the cost of the Commission. The City shall not
install, operate, or maintain any traffic signals, signs or other traffic control devices on the
highway or on streets and highways at any point where they intersect this highway without
approval of the Commission.

(12) DRAINAGE: The Commission will construct drainage facilities along the
improvement and may use any existing storm and surface water drainage facilities now
in existence in the area. The City shall be responsible for receiving and disposing of
storm and surface water discharged from those drainage facilities which the Commission
constructs within the limits of highway right-of-way to the extent of the City's authority and



control of the storm sewer facilities or natural drainage involved.

(13) PERMITS: The Commission shall secure any necessary approvals or
permits from the Surface Transportation Board, the Public Service Commission of
Missouri, or any other state or federal regulating authority required to permit the
construction and maintenance of the highway.

(14) COMMENCEMENT OF WORK: After acquisition of the necessary right-of-
way, the Commission shall construct the highway in accordance with final detailed plans
approved by the Federal Highway Administration (or as they may be changed from time
to time by the Commission with the approval of the FHWA) at such time as federal and
state funds are allocated to the public improvement in an amount sufficient to pay for the
federal and state government's proportionate share of construction and right-of-way
costs. The obligation of the Commission toward the actual construction of the public
improvement shall be dependent upon the completion of plans in time to obligate federal
funds for such construction, upon approval of the plans by the FHWA, upon the award by
the Commission of the contract for the construction, and upon the approval of the award
by the FHWA.

(15) MAINTENANCE:

(A) Except as provided in this Agreement, upon completion of the
improvement, the Commission will maintain all portions of the improvement within the
Commission owned right-of-way, excepting sidewalks whether new or used in place. The
Commission will remove snow from the traveled portion of the highway using a snowplow
or chemical means. Maintenance by the Commission shall NOT include maintenance or
repair of sidewalks, including snow removal on those sidewalks, water supply lines,
sanitary or storm sewers (except those storm sewers constructed by the Commission to
drain the highway), or city-owned utilities within the right-of-way.

(B)  The City shall inspect and maintain the sidewalks constructed by this
project, and further depicted in attached sketches labeled "Exhibit B", in a condition
reasonably safe to the public and, to the extent allowed by law, shall indemnify and hold
the Commission harmless from any claims arising from the construction and maintenance
of said sidewalks.

(C) Effective upon completion of construction, the Commission shall
transfer ownership to the City, and the City will accept the portions of existing highways
within City replaced by this improvement.

(16) ACCEPTED WITHIN HIGHWAY SYSTEM: Effective upon execution of this
Agreement, the Commission temporarily accepts the portion of the City street system
described in this Agreement as part of the State Highway System for the purposes of this
project. However, during the construction period contemplated in this Agreement:

(A)  The Commission will assume no police or traffic control functions not



obligatory upon Commission immediately prior to the execution of this Agreement, and

(BY  The City shall perform or cause to be performed normal maintenance
on the project site.

(17) CITY TO MAINTAIN: Upon completion of construction of this improvement,
the City shall accept control and maintenance of the improved City street that was
temporarily accepted as part of the State Highway System for the purposes of this project
pursuant to paragraph (16) above and shall thereafter keep, control, and maintain the
same as, and for all purposes, a part of the City street system at its own cost and expense
and at no cost and expense whatsoever to the Commission. All obligations of the
Commission with respect to the City street system under this Agreement shall cease upon
completion of the improvement.

(18) POLICE POWERS: ltis the intent of the parties to this Agreement that the
City shall retain its police powers with respect to the regulation of traffic upon the
improvement contemplated. However, the City will enact, keep in force, and enforce only
such ordinances relating to traffic movement and parking restrictions as may be approved
by the Commission and as are not in conflict with any regulations for federal aid. The
Commission shall not arbitrarily withhold approval of reasonable traffic regulations, signs,
and markings which will permit the movement of traffic in accordance with accepted traffic
regulation practices.

(19) RESTRICTION OF PARKING: Since the improvement is being designed
and constructed to accommodate a maximum amount of traffic with a minimum amount
of right-of-way, the City shall take whatever actions that are necessary to prevent parking
upon the highway or any part of the area of the highway right-of-way within the limits of
the improvement.

(20) OUTDOOR ADVERTISING: No billboards or other advertising signs or
devices or vending or sale of merchandise will be permitted within the right-of-way limits
of the project and the City shall take whatever actions that are necessary to enforce this
Section.

(21) WITHHOLDING OF FUNDS: In the event that the City fails, neglects, or
refuses to enact, keep in force or enforce ordinances specified or enacts ordinances
contrary to the provisions in this Agreement, or in any other manner fails, neglects or
refuses to perform any of the obligations assumed by it under this Agreement, the
Commission may, after serving written request upon the City for compliance and the City's
failure to comply, withhold the expenditure of further funds for maintenance, improvement,
construction, or reconstruction of the state highway system in the City.

(22) FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION: This Agreement is entered into
subject to approval by the Federal Highway Administration and is further subject to the
availability of federal and state funds for this construction.




(23) INDEMNIFICATION:

(A) To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the City shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, including its members and department
employees, from any claim or liability whether based on a claim for damages to real or
personal property or to a person for any matter relating to or arising out of the City's
wrongful or negligent performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

(B) The City will require any contractor procured by the City to work
under this Agreement:

(1)  To obtain a no cost permit from the Commission’s District
Engineer prior to working on the Commission’s right-of-way, which shall be signed by an
authorized contractor representative (a permit from the Commission’s District Engineer
will not be required for work outside of the Commission’s right-of-way); and

(2) To carry commercial general liability insurance and
commercial automobile liability insurance from a company authorized to issue insurance
in Missouri, and to name the Commission, and the Missouri Department of Transportation
and its employees, as additional named insureds in amounts sufficient to cover the
sovereign immunity limits for Missouri public entities ($500,000 per claimant and
$3,500,000 per occurrence) as calculated by the Missouri Department of Insurance,
Financial Institutions and Professional Registration, and published annually in the
Missouri Register pursuant to Section §37.610, RSMo.

(C) In no event shall the language of this Agreement constitute or be
construed as a waiver or limitation for either party’s rights or defenses with regard to each
party’'s applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections as
provided by federal and state constitution or law.

(24) AMENDMENTS: Any change in this Agreement, whether by modification
or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment approved
and signed by representatives of the City and Commission, respectively, each of whom
being duly authorized to execute the contract amendment on behalf of the City and
Commission, respectively.

(25) COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE: The Commission's Central District
Engineer is designated as the Commission's representative for the purpose of
administering the provisions of this Agreement. The Commission's representative may
designate by written notice other persons having the authority to act on behalf of the
Commission in furtherance of the performance of this Agreement.

(26) CITY REPRESENTATIVE: The City's Mayor is designated as the City's
representative for the purpose of administering the provisions of this Agreement. The
City's representative may designate by written notice other persons having the authority
to act on behalf of the City in furtherance of the performance of this Agreement.




(27) NOTICES: Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be
given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given three (3) days after delivery
by United States mail, regular mail postage prepaid, or upon receipt by personal or
facsimile delivery, addressed as follows:

(A) To the City:
Mr. Mike Null
Mayor, City of Dixon, Missouri
305 South Elm Street
Dixon, MO 65459
Email: mayor@cityofdixonmo.org

(B) To the Commission:
Machelle Watkins, P.E.
Central District Engineer
Missouri Department of Transportation
1511 Missouri Boulevard, P.O. Box 718
Jefferson City, MO 65102
Email: Machelle.Watkins@modot.mo.gov
Facsimile No.: 573-522-1059

or to such other place as the parties may designate in accordance with this Agreement.
To be valid, facsimile delivery shall be followed by delivery of the original document, or a
clear and legible copy thereof, within three (3) business days of the date of facsimile
transmission of that document.

(28) ASSIGNMENT: The City shall not assign, transfer or delegate any interest
in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Commission.

(29) LAW OF MISSOURI TO GOVERN: This Agreement shall be construed
according to the laws of the State of Missouri. The City shall comply with all local, state
and federal laws and regulations relating to the performance of the contract.

(30) VENUE: It is agreed by the parties that any action at law, suit in equity, or
other judicial proceeding to enforce or construe this Agreement, or regarding its alleged
breach, shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri.

(31) SOLE BENEFICIARY: This Agreement is made for the sole benefit of the
parties hereto and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or
benefits to anyone other than the Commission and the City.

(32) AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE: The signers of this Agreement warrant that
they are acting officially and properly on behalf of their respective institutions and have
been duly authorized, directed and empowered to execute this Agreement.




(33) SECTION HEADINGS: All section headings contained in this Agreement
are for the convenience of reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope
of any provision of this Agreement.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the

date last written below.

Executed by the City on I { wlzo23 (Date).

Executed by the Commission on

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

By:

Title:

ATTEST:

Secretary to the Commission

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Commission Counsel

(Date).

CITY OF DIXON, MISSOU

By:
Title: /%\/c_,/“
7/

ATTEST:

By: UL 4,/,1/1-441__7_L.§ (Ar>—

&
Title: ( ,‘,zf} Clenldl

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

Title:

Ordinance Number (0 32-




DocuSign Envelope ID: 737D83C0-AEB4-4128-9941-818FEF98EC92

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the

date last written below.

2024-04-10 | 2:14 pM CDT

Executed by the City on

(Date).

Executed by the Commission on

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

DocuSigned by:

2024-04~12 | 12:05 PM CDT

(Date).

#rie €. Sdusdur
SF8CCFESB29E499. ..
Title: Assistant chief Engineer
ATTEST:

A4668CDTI962498...

DocuSigned by:
*
AR

Secretary to the Commission

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

DocusSigned by:
Tum (. Parter

3ABEBFSBCTFS2489,

Commission Counsel

CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI

Dog:_u'Signedﬂ:‘
e
By: DDB230AOEEECAS1.
. M
Title: aver
ATTEST:
DocuSigned by:
By: l U : 9 ol

office Administrator

Title:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

Title:

632
Ordinance Number
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Bill No. _2023-0033 Ordinance No. (Q 5 5

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DIXON
SETTING THE SCHEDULE OF COURT COSTS

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is City of the Fourth Class existing under the laws of Missouri;

WHEREAS the City of Dixon has determined and decided that its Municipal Ordinance
Violations shall be heard by an Associate Judge,

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON
AS FOLLOWS:

1. Section 1: The Dixon City Code is hereby amended to include the following:

Court costs.

(a)Definitions. The following words and phrases, as used in this chapter, shall have the following
respective meanings:

(1)Court costs. The total of fees, miscellaneous charges and surcharges imposed in a
particular case.

(2)Fees. The amount charged for services to be performed by the court.

(3)Miscellaneous charges. The amounts allowed by law for services provided by
individuals or entities other than the court.

(4)Surcharges. Additional amounts payable to the State of Missouri or other entities or
payable to the city for specific designated purposes that are imposed for specific purposes
designated by law and assessed by the court.

(5) Municipal Judge refers to any judge hearing a violation of a Dixon Municipal
Ordinance Violation.

(b)Court costs imposed. In addition to any fine that may be imposed, the municipal judge may
assess against the defendant as court costs any or all of the following costs, except in those cases
where the defendant is found by the judge to be indigent and unable to pay the costs:

(1)Court fees. Court fees in the amount of fifteen dollars ($15.00) for any cases heard in
associate court as set forth in RSMo § 479.260 RSMo and limited by RSMo § 488.012.
(2)Crime victims’ compensation fund surcharge. A surcharge in the amount of seven
dollars and fifty cents ($7.50) as imposed by RSMo § 595.045 for purposes of the crime
victims’ compensation fund established by the State of Missouri. Any sums collected
pursuant to this subsection shall be distributed ninety-five (95) percent to the State of



Missouri for deposit to the crime victims’ compensation fund and five (5) percent to the
city as reimbursement for the costs of collection of such state-imposed charge;

(3)Peace officer standards and training surcharge. A surcharge in the amount of one
dollar ($1.00) as imposed by RSMo § 488.5336 for purposes of the peace officer
standards and training commission fund created by RSMo § 590.178. Any sums collected
pursuant to this subsection shall be distributed to the State of Missouri for deposit to the
peace officer standards and teaching commission fund;

(4)Law enforcement training surcharge. A surcharge in the amount of two dollars ($2.00)
as set forth in RSMo § 488.5336 for training law enforcement officers; provided. Such
surcharge shall be deposited with the director of finance who shall place such costs in a
special account to be used for training law enforcement officers;

(5)Inmate prisoner detainee security surcharge. A surcharge in the amount of two dollars
($2.00) as set forth in RSMo § 488.5026. This surcharge shall be collected and deposited
with the director of finance who shall place the funds in a special account to be called the
“inmate prisoner detainee security fund.” Funds in this account may be used only for
acquiring, developing and maintain biometric verification and information sharing
systems, for expenses related to detention of prisoners and for any other purpose

allowed by RSMo § 488.5026;

(6)4lcohol related traffic offense cost recoupment. The actual and reasonable costs
incurred by the city as determined by the municipal judge for costs associated with the
arrest for violation of any city ordinance involving alcohol or drug-related traffic
offenses, including the cost of any chemical test to determine the alcohol or drug content
of the person’s blood, and the costs of processing, charging, booking and holding such
person in custody as set forth in RSMo § 488.5334;

(7)Statewide court automation fund surcharge. In addition to any cost which may be
assessed by the municipal division pursuant to statute, ordinance, or court rule, in every
proceeding filed in the municipal division for violation of an ordinance when the
statewide court automation case management system is in operation, a surcharge of seven
dollars ($7.00) shall be assessed. Such surcharge shall also be assessed in cases in which
please of guilty are processed in the violations bureau.

(c)Court costs prohibited, when. Court costs shall not be assessed when the case is dismissed or
when costs are to be paid by the state, county, or city.

(d)Judicial waiver of court costs. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit or limit
the authority of the judge to waive fees, miscellaneous charges and surcharges imposed in a
particular case in whole or in part.



2. Section 2: Any ordinances are any parts of ordinances inconsistent with this ordinance is
repealed. Specifically, Ordinance 631 is hereby repealed. This ordinance specifically

modifies Dixon City Code § 125.320.

3. Section 3: This effective date of this ordinance shall be the date it is passed.

Read twice and approved this _\ A day of December 2023

Mike Null, Mayor




Bill No. 2023-0035 Ordinance No. (0‘3:5

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR DISPATCHING SERVICES
WITH THE CITY OF SAINT ROBERT

WHEREAS the City of Saint Robert operates a dispatching service, and
WHEREAS the City of Dixon is in need of said services.
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the agreement for dispatching services
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference.

Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force from the date of its passage.

READ TWO TIMES AND APPROVED THIS \ \42 DAY OF DECEMBER 2023

Mit@ Null, Mayor

City Clerk

1 ﬂil’#&:
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EXHIBIT A

AGREEMENT FOR DISPATCHING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, Made and Entered into this , l*k day of Decembey 20 23, by
and between the City of St. Robert, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State
of Missouri, hereinafter referred to as St. Robert, and the City of Dixon, a municipality of the

State of Missouri, hereinafter referred to as Dixon;
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS; the City of St. Robert’s Police department, operates a “911” emergency and
dispatching service; And

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the agreements herein
contained, the parties agree that the City of St. Robert will provide dispatching services under the
following terms and conditions.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. The term of this agreement shall be for a period of one year, beginning on
the _1st  day of January, 2024; provided, however, that the term of this
agreement shall be automatically renewed for twenty successive periods of one
year each thereafter unless either party gives written notice of non-renewal to the
other party not less than 180 days prior to expiration of the current term. Provided,
further, however, that either party shall have the right to terminate this agreement

at any time upon giving no less than 180 days advance written notice to the other

party.

2. As used in this document, the term “dispatching services” shall include the
receipt and efficient handling of telephone calls requesting law enforcement, fire
protection, ambulance services, medical services, utility services and other
services of an emergency nature. Upon receipt of a request for services within the
city limits of the City of Dixon, the City of St. Robert shall promptly notify the
appropriate agency. Radio communications will be conducted over the Dixon and
St. Robert repeater frequencies as necessary.

3. The City of St. Robert requests that the City utilize their own dispatch for
the period from 8:00 A.M. until 4:00 P.M., Monday through Friday (excluding
those holidays recognized by the City of Dixon as official city holidays and radio
traffic during emergency situations.) It will be the responsibility of the City of
Dixon to forward phones to the City of St. Robert, as well as notifying St. Robert
that the phone has been forwarded. St. Robert shall further provide dispatching
services based upon illness or unavailability of Dixon staffing.

4. The City of St. Robert will maintain recording of all voice calls and
dispatching transmissions, and the City of St. Robert will maintain an accurate log



EXHIBIT A

and record of all communications services, and the City of Dixon shall be entitled
to access those recording, logs and records at all reasonable times.

5t The City of St. Robert shall provide services related to any MULES
entries that are not otherwise provided by the Circuit Court, acting as a
subcontractor for service.

6. The City of Dixon shall submit annually, the 1st day of December a total
of §_15.000 to cover the cost of this agreement for the following year.

7. If there are any expenses that occur that are necessary to cause this dispatch
service to be accomplished, the City of Dixon will pay for this service. Those
expenses include, but are not limited to, modification and additions to existing
equipment at either city, which is necessary for the dispatch services to be
accomplished.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement as of the day and year
above written.

. Wﬁ
B ,
Y [ 7

Date /%¢§¢7éy€£3

ITY OF DIXON
y é

= ~
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ORDINANCE NO. (:Qa Vo) Bill No. 2024-0036

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF DIXON TO EXECUTE TASK
ORDER #5 OF THE LEAD SERVICE LINE INVENTORY

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is in the process of implementing improvements to its wastewater
treatment facility; and

WHEREAS TASK ORDER 5 is required to proceed with those improvements; and
WHEREAS the City has engaged the engineering services of Archer Elgin.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: Task Order #5 which is attached hereto is hereby approved, and made a part hereof.
SECTION 2: The Mayor is authorized to sign said contract on behalf of the City of Dixon.
SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALBERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS 8* DAY OF\ &y 2024,

APPROVED:

Mayor, City of Dixon, Missouti

ATTEST:

4.’

DY

3339333

‘f;‘/ T




City of Dixon Missouri
LEAD SERVICE LINE INVENTORY
TASK ORDER NO. §

This Task Order pertains to an Agreement by and between the City of Dixon, Missouri,
(“OWNER?”), and CM Archer Group, P.C., dba Archer-Elgin (“ENGINEER”), dated
September 7. 2021, (“the Agreement”). Engineer shall perform services on the project

described below as provided herein and in the Agreement. Upon execution, this
Agreement as it pertains to the project described below.

PROJECT NAME: Lead Service Line Inventory

PART 1.0

PART 2.0

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The project scope shall include an initial inventory of lead service lines in
the water distribution system. It is understood that this initial inventory
will not be exhaustive and will result in unknown service line materials to
be investigated in an ongoing effort.

SCOPE OF SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY ENGINEER ON THE
PROJECT:

HISTORICAL RESEARCH

ENGINEER shall review available records to determine likelihood of lead
service line presence for all service connections. This will consist of building
permits, construction record drawings, maintenance records, County
Assessor’s data and historical satellite imagery.

PHYSICAL INSPECTION

Based upon the historical research, ENGINEER shall select a statistical sample
of service lines to physically inspect and identify service line material. Physical
inspections may include observing the meter pit, customer service line entry
point, or utilization of hydro-vac equipment to excavate and expose the service
line for inspection. The number of physical inspections will be partially based
upon the records research and will likely be limited by available budget. We
anticipate our field crews will physically inspect approximately 15% of the
service lines. Excavation will be backfilled with sand and topped with topsoil,
seed and straw. Pavement (if encountered) will be patched with non-shrink
grout.

City of Dixon — Task Order 5 Lead Service Line Inventory 1



B.

GIS MAP/DATABASE

ENGINEER shall map water service line locations and generate a GIS map and
database in suitable format to download to MDNR inventory spreadsheet.

MDNR SUBMITTAL

The GIS database will be exported to populate the MDNR inventory
spreadsheet. ENGINEER shall assist the City with submittal to MDNR to
meet the October 16. 2024 deadline.

The ENGINEER agrees to take steps to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises
(DBE’s) are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment, construction, and
services as required by 2 CFR 200.321.

PART 3.0 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES:

OWNER shall do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services

of the ENGINEER:

A. Designate in writing a person to act as OWNER’s representative with respect
to the services to be rendered under this agreement.

B. Provide all criteria and full information as to OWNER’s requirements for the
Project, including maps, record drawings, building permit records, GIS
database, and Dent County Assessor’s database.

C. Provide location to dispose of excavation spoils.

D. Arrange for access for ENGINEER to enter upon public and private property
as required for ENGINEER to perform services under this Agreement.

E. OWNER agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless ENGINEER and
employees from and against all claims, losses, damages, cause of action, suits,
liability, or every kind including all expenses of litigation, cost to cure, court
costs, and attorney fees resulting from inaccurate or insufficient information,
data, or instructions provided by the OWNER, employees, ENGINEER, or
agents.

PART 4.0 PERIODS OF SERVICE:
Work to be complete and submitted to permitting authorities within 10
calendar months, subject to delays beyond the ENGINEER s control.
PART 5.0 PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER:
A.  BASIC SERVICES

City of Dixon — Task Order 5 Lead Service Line Inventory 2



The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for the tasks specified on a lump
sum basis plus reimbursable expenses in the amounts and in the manner stated

below:
A, C & D Historical Research, GIS & MDNR Submittal $ 97,500.00
B — Physical Investigation (Allowance) $ 42.500.00

Total = $ 140,000.00

Payment for Scope Item B shall be based upon a daily rate of $4,250 per day for
field investigation crew. The number of service line inspections will be based upon
the actual number of services that can be inspected in a day.

The above fees shall not be exceeded except by contract amendment.
C. PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER

Invoices will be submitted to OWNER by ENGINEER monthly based on a
percent completion as determined by ENGINEER. Invoice will be due and
payable upon receipt; the OWNER agrees to render all payments within thirty
days of receipt of invoices. The OWNER shall make payment in accordance
with section 8.960, RSMo.

PART 6.0 ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS:
The following conditions shall be part of the agreement:

A. All work performed within the scope of this Contract shall be subject to the
requirements of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, Title XVIII — Labor and
Industrial Relations, Chapter 290 — Wages, Hours and Dismissal Rights.
Annual Wage Order is attached.

B. Provisions to Terminate:

Upon seven days' written notice to Engineer, Owner may, with or without cause
and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, elect to abandon the Work
and terminate the Agreement. In such case, Engineer shall be paid for all Work
executed and any expense sustained plus reasonable termination expenses, which
will include, but not be limited to, direct, indirect and consequential costs
(including, but not limited to, fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys
and other professionals and court and arbitration costs).

If, through no act or fault of Engineer, other public authority or Engineer fails to
act on any Application for Payment within thirty days after it is submitted, or
Owner fails for thirty days to pay Engineer any sum finally determined to be due,
then Engineer may, upon seven days' written notice to Owner and Engineer,
terminate the Agreement and recover from Owner payment for all Work executed
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and any expense sustained plus reasonable termination expenses. In addition and
in lieu of terminating the Agreement, if Engineer has failed to act on an
Application for Payment or Owner has failed to make any payment as aforesaid,
Engineer may upon seven days' written notice to Owner and Engineer stop the
Work until payment of all amounts then due. The provisions of this paragraph
shall not relieve Engineer of the obligations under paragraph 6.29 to carry on the
Work in accordance with the progress schedule and without delay during disputes
and disagreements with Owner.

C. All work shall comply with Clean Water Act (CWA) 404 Permitting and 401 Water
Quality Certification (WQC).

D. The ARPA LSLI Drop-in Document is attached and shall be made part of this
agreement.

E. Since this contract includes investigation and inspection activities only and does not
include any repair or replacement work, this agreement does not require Performance
or Payment Bonds.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this
AUTHORIZATION as of this date indicated below.

L
This Agreement is executed this ¥ - day of /2024

City of Dixon, Missouri CM Archer Group, P.C.

“OWNER”

“ENGINEER” j// / Mé

BY: = '

NAME: Mike Null NAME: Jeff Medows, P.E.
TITLE: Mayor TITLE: President
ADDRESS: 303 S. Elm St. ADDRESS: 310 E. 6™ Street

Dixon, MO 65459 Rolla, MO 65401
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Missouri

Division of Labor Standards
WAGE AND HOUR SECTION

MICHAEL L. PARSON, Governor

Annual Wage Order No. 30

Section 085
PULASKI COUNTY

In accordance with Section 290.262 RSMo 2000, within thirty (30) days after a certified copy of
this Annual Wage Order has been filed with the Secretary of State as indicated below, any person
who may be affected by this Annual Wage Order may object by filing an objection in triplicate
with the Labor and Industrial Relations Commission, P.O. Box 599, Jefferson City, MO 65102-
0599. Such objections must set forth in writing the specific grounds of objection. Each objection
shall certify that a copy has been furnished to the Division of Labor Standards, P.O. Box 449,
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0449 pursuant to 8 CSR 20-5.010(1). A certified copy of the Annual
Wage Order has been filed with the Secretary of State of Missouri.

Oricinal Signed by
Todd Smith, Director
Division of Labor Standards

Filed With Secretary of State: March 10, 2023
Last Date Objections May Be Filed: April 10, 2023
Prepared by Missouri Department of Labor and Industrial Relations




Building Construction Rates for Section 085
PULASKI County

**Prevailing
OCCUPATIONAL TITLE Hourly
Rate

Asbestos Worker $42.56
Boilermaker $25.00*
Bricklayer $54.27
Carpenter $60.64

Lather

Linoleum Layer

Millwright

Pile Driver
Cement Mason $55.25

Plasterer
Communications Technician $25.00*
Electrician (Inside Wireman) $52.96
Electrician Outside Lineman $25.00*

Lineman Operator

Lineman - Tree Trimmer

Groundman

Groundman - Tree Trimmer
Elevator Constructor
Glazier
Ironworker $63.52
Laborer $45.57

General Laborer
First Semi-Skilled
Second Semi-Skilled
Mason $25.00*
Marble Mason
Marble Finisher
Terrazzo Worker
Terrazzo Finisher
Tile Setter
Tile Finisher
Operating Engineer $64.27
Group |
Group Il
Group Il
Group Ili-A
Group IV
Group V
Painter $45.70
Plumber $71.98
Pipe Fitter
Roofer $52.18
Sheet Metal Worker $70.10
Sprinkler Fitter $64.94
Truck Driver $25.00*
Truck Control Service Driver
Group |
Group |l
Group Il
Group IV

*The Division of Labor Standards received fewer than 1,000 reportable hours for this occupational title. The public works contracting
minimum wage is established for this occupational title using data provided by Missouri Economic Research and Information Center.
**The Prevailing Hourly Rate includes any applicable fringe benefit amounts for each occupational title as defined in RSMO Section 290.210.
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Heavy Construction Rates for Section 085
PULASKI County

**Prevailing
OCCUPATIONAL TITLE Hourly
Rate

Carpenter $25.00*

Millwright
Pile Driver

Electrician (Outside Lineman) $25.00*

Lineman Operator

Lineman - Tree Trimmer

Groundman

Groundman - Tree Trimmer

Laborer $50.39

General Laborer

Skilled Laborer
Operating Engineer $64.05
Group |

Group i
Group Il

Group IV

Truck Driver $25.00*

Truck Control Service Driver

Group |

Group i
Group I

Group IV

Use Heavy Construction Rates on Highway and Heavy construction in accordance with the classifications of
construction work established in 8 CSR 30-3.040(3).

Use Building Construction Rates on Building construction in accordance with the classifications of construction
work established in 8 CSR 30-3.040(2).

If a worker is performing work on a heavy construction project within an occupational title that is not listed on the
Heavy Construction Rate Sheet, use the rate for that occupational title as shown on the Building

Construction Rate Sheet.

*The Division of Labor Standards received fewer than 1,000 reportable hours for this occupational title.

Public works contracting minimum wage is established for this occupational title using data provided by Missouri

Economic Research and Information Center.

**The Prevailing Hourly Rate includes any applicable fringe benefit amounts for each occupational title.

ANNUAL WAGE ORDER NO. 30 3/23



OVERTIME
and
HOLIDAYS

OVERTIME

For all work performed on a Sunday or a holiday, not less than twice (2x) the prevailing
hourly rate of wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which the work is
performed or the public works contracting minimum wage, whichever is applicable, shall
be paid to all workers employed by or on behalf of any public body engaged in the
construction of public works, exclusive of maintenance work.

For all overtime work performed, not less than one and one-half (1%) the prevailing
hourly rate of wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which the work is
performed or the public works contracting minimum wage, whichever is applicable, shall
be paid to all workers employed by or on behalf of any public body engaged in the
construction of public works, exclusive of maintenance work or contractual obligation.
For purposes of this subdivision, "overtime work" shall include work that exceeds ten
hours in one day and work in excess of forty hours in one calendar week; and

A thirty-minute lunch period on each calendar day shall be allowed for each worker on a
public works project, provided that such time shall not be considered as time worked.

HOLIDAYS

January first;

The last Monday in May;

July fourth;

The first Monday in September;
November eleventh;

The fourth Thursday in November; and
December twenty-fifth;

If any holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be considered a holiday.

ANNUAL WAGE ORDER NO. 30 3/23



ARPA LSLI Contract Requirements

Eqgual Employment Opportunity and Nondiscrimination in Employment — 41 CFR 60-4; E.O. 11246: 41 CFR
60-4 published April 7, 1978 and amended October 3, 1980, requires that the ARPA funding applicant and selected
bidders comply with Executive Order 11246 for bids, contracts, and subcontracts for all federally assisted
construction contracts exceeding $10,000. The specifications explain the requirements for bidders and contractors
under E.O. 11246.
*  Bidders please see document titled “Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract
Specifications (Executive Order 11246)”

Contracting with Small and Minority Businesses, Women’s Business Enterprises. and Labor Surplus Area
Firms — 2 CFR 200.321: E.O. 11625 and 12138: Prior to awarding contracts, the ARPA funding applicant and any
contractor awarding subcontracts must take the following affirmative steps in accordance with 2 CFR 200.321:
a. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
b. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they
are potential sources;
c. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum
participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
d. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and
minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
e. Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business
Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; »
Bidders please also see Missouri Executive Order 15-06

Employment of Unauthorized Aliens Prohibited — §285.530 RSMo: Pursuant to §285.530.1, RSMo, the
contractor assures that it, as well as its subcontractors, does not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue
to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the State of Missouri, and shall affirm, by sworn affidavit
and provision of documentation, its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services. Further, the contractor assures that it,
as well as its subcontractor shall sign an affidavit affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an
unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services.

In accordance with §285.525 to 285.550, RSMo a general contractor or subcontractor of any tier shall not be liable
when such contractor or subcontractor contracts with its direct subcontractor who violates subsection 1 of §285.530,
RSMo if the contract binding the contractor and subcontractor affirmatively states that the direct subcontractor is not
knowingly in violation of subsection 1 of §285.530, RSMo and shall not henceforth be in such violation and the
contractor or subcontractor receives a sworn affidavit under the penalty of perjury attesting to the fact that the direct
subcontractor’s employees are lawfully present in the United States.

» The selected contractor(s) must complete the “Business Entity Certification, Enrollment Documentation, and
Affidavit of Work Authorization” form.

» In addition, the selected contractor(s) must enroll in the federal E-verify system, provide supporting
documentation of enrollment, and provide verification documentation for enrollment in the Federal EVerify
system.

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act — 40 U.S.C. 327-330: The contractor(s) and subcontractor(s)
shall comply with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330)
as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5).

OSHA Training — §292.675. RSMo: Any person signing a contract to work on the construction of public works for
any public body shall provide a ten-hour Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) construction
safety program for their on-site employees which includes a course in construction safety and health approved by
OSHA or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor and Industrial Relations which is at
least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. All employees are required to complete the program within sixty
days of beginning work on such construction project.
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ARPA LSLI Contract Requirements

Debarment and Suspension — 2 CFR 180: E.O. 12549: The Code of Federal Regulations at Title 2, Part 180,
prohibits participation in federally funded contracts by persons excluded or disqualified from doing business with
the federal government. Bidders are responsible for advising the Owner if they are excluded or disqualified, and to
check whether subcontractors they intend to use are excluded or disqualified. All tiers of subcontractors have the
same responsibility to notify the one for which they are providing services if they are excluded or disqualified, and
to check the status of any subcontractors they intend to use. Status can be checked on the System for Award
Management (SAM) located on the Internet at https://www.sam.gov/SAM/. All subcontracts at any tier should
include this language.

»  The selected bidders must complete the “Certification Regarding Debarment and Suspension” form.

Small Business Act — P.L. 100-590: Prior to awarding contracts, the ARPA funding applicant and any contractor
awarding subcontracts must take the following affirmative steps in accordance with Section 129 of Public Law
100590, Small Business Administration Reauthorization and Amendment Act of 1988:
a. Placing Small Business in Rural Areas (SBRA) on solicitation lists;
b. Ensuring that SBRAs are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
¢. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into small tasks or quantities to permit maximum
participation by SBRAs;
d. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirements of work will permit which would encourage
participation by SBRAs; and
e. Utilizing the services of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency
of the U.S. Department of Commerce, as appropriate.

Central Contractor Registration — P.L. 109-282: In accordance with the Federal Funding Accountability Act of
2006, the contractor assures that it, as well as its subcontractor(s), shall register in the System for Award
Management (SAM).

SAM is the Official U.S. Government system that consolidated the capabilities of Central Contractor Registration
(CCR)/FedReg, Online Representations and Certifications Application (ORCA), and Excluded Parties List System
(EPLS). There is NO fee to register for this site. If you had an active record in CCR, you have an active record in
SAM. You do not need to do anything in SAM at this time, unless a change in your business circumstances requires
updates to your Entity record(s) in order for you to be paid or receive an award, or you need to renew your Entity(s)
prior to its expiration. To update or renew your Entity records(s) in SAM, you will need to create a SAM User
Account located on the Internet at hitps://www.sam.gov and link it to your migrated Entity records. You will need a
user account to search for registered entities in SAM.

If the prime contractor is not currently registered in SAM, they are required to do so, as their status will be checked in
SAM using the Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) provided by SAM.

Privity of Contract: Neither the Missouri Department of Natural Resources, its divisions, nor its employees are or
will be a party to the contract(s) at any tier.

Protests — 2 CFR 200.318(k): Neither the U.S. Department of Treasury nor the Missouri Department of Natural
Resources will be involved in protest(s) and their resolution.

Domestic Products Procurement Law — §§34.350 - 34.359 RSMoe: All manufactured goods or commodities used
or supplied in the performance of any contract or subcontract awarded on this project shall be manufactured,
assembled or produced in the United States, unless obtaining American-made products would increase the cost of
the contract by more than ten percent (10%). In accordance with §34.350 through 34.359 RSMo, a waiver may be
requested from the owner.
> The selected bidders must complete the “Domestic Products Procurement Act — §§34.350 - 34.359 RSMo
Certification” form.
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ARPA LSLI Contract Requirements

Anti-Lobbying Act — P.L. 101-121: Sub-recipients who request or receive from the grant recipient a sub-grant,
contract, or sub-contract exceeding $100,000, at any tier under a federal grant shall comply with the Anti-Lobbying
Act, Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, and file an Anti-Lobbying Certification form, and the Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities form, if required, to the next tier above.
»  Selected bidders must complete one of the following forms:
> Ifthe selected bidder lobbied on the behalf of this project, the contractor will complete the “Disclosure
of Lobbying Activities” form.
»> If the selected bidder did not lobby on the behalf of this project, the contractor will complete the
“Certification Regarding Lobbying” form.

Record Retention — 2 CFR 200.334: §109.255 RSMo: The contractor(s) and sub-contractor(s) shall retain all
project related records for three years after final payment(s) and all other pending matters are closed. An extended
period of record retention may be required per the Local Record Retention Schedules created by the Local Records
Board as authorized by §109.255 RSMo.

Access to Construction Site and Contract Records: The contractor shall provide access to the project site and
project records by, the Missouri State Auditor, the Missouri Department of Natural Resources, the USEPA, the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives to any books, documents,
papers, and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the purpose of making
audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.

Payvment Provisions — §8.260 RSMo: §8.960 RSMo: The owner shall make payment to the contractor in accordance
with §8.260 and §8.960 RSMo. Retainage can be no more than 5%.

False Claims Act — 31 USC §3729: The contractor(s) and sub-contractor(s)s, if required by future OMB guidance,
shall promptly refer to the State of Missouri or other appropriate Inspector General any credible evidence that a
principal, employee, agent, contractor, sub-grantee, subcontractor or other person has submitted a false claim under
the False Claims Act or has committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest,
bribery, gratuity or similar misconduct involving those funds.

Clean Air Act - 42 U.S.C. 7506(C): The contractor(s) and sub-contractor(s) shall comply with the Clean Air Act.

Clean Water Act - 33 U.S.C. 1368: The contractor(s) and sub-contractor(s) shall comply with the Clean Water Act.

Energy Efficiency Requirements — Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.1..94-163. 89 Stat. 871): The
contractor(s) and sub-contractor(s) shall comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy

efficiency which are contained in the State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy
and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871).

Recycled Materials — U.S.C. 6962 (RCRA Section 6002): In accordance with Section 6002 of the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), preference shall be given to the procurement of specific products
containing recycled materials identified in guidelines developed by the USEPA. Current guidelines are contained in
40 CFR Part 247-254.

Historical and Archaeological — P.L. 93-291: If during the course of construction evidence of deposits of historical
or archaeological interest is found, the contractor shall cease operations affecting the find and shall notify the owner
who shall notify the Missouri Department of Natural Resources and the Director, Division of State Parks, P.O. Box
176, Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0176, Telephone (573) 751-2479. The contractor shall halt any further
disturbances of the deposits until notified by the owner that they may proceed. The owner will issue a notice to
proceed only after the state official has surveyed the find and made a determination to the Missouri Department of
Natural Resources and the owner. Compensation to the contractor, if any, for lost time or changes in construction to
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ARPA LSLI Contract Requirements

avoid the find, shall be determined in accordance with changed conditions or change order provisions of the
specifications.

Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment Certification — 2
CFR 200.216: In accordance with 2 CFR 200.216, recipients and sub-recipients are prohibited from obligating or
expending loan or grant funds to procure or obtain, extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain, or enter into a
comntract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical
technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications
equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or
any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical
infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced
by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology
Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

Anti-Discrimination Against Israel Act — §34.600 RSMo: In compliance with §34.600 RSMo, the contracting
company certifies that it is not currently engaged in and shall not, for the duration of the contract, engage in a
boycott of goods or services from the State of Israel; companies doing business in or with Israel or authorized by,
licensed by, or organized under the laws of the State of Israel; or persons or entities doing business in the State of
Israel, in accordance with §34.600, RSMo. Any contract that fails to comply with the provisions of this section shall
be void against public policy.

»  This provision does not apply to contracts with a total potential value of less than one hundred thousand

dollars or to contractors with fewer than ten employees.

Stormwater Permit — 10 CSR 20-6.200: The Department requires the ARPA funding applicant to verify their
existing National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit(s) cover stormwater discharges or obtain
the necessary permit(s). The following scenarios may be applicable:
1. The SRF funding applicant is a regulated Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) per 10 CSR
20-6.200(1)(D)24 and their NPDES MS4 permit outlines compliance with construction stormwater
requirements,
2. The design flow of the wastewater treatment plant is greater than or equal to 1 million gallon per day and
the NPDES wastewater permit also regulates construction stormwater, or
3. Neither 1 or 2 above applies and the proposed project disturbs one (1) or more acres of total land area or
less than one (1) acre as part of a common plan or sale resulting in the need for a land disturbance permit to
discharge construction stormwater.

For further information, contact the Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Water Protection Program,
Operating Permits Section, P.O. Box 176, Jefferson City, Missouri 65102. Telephone: (573) 522-4502:
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STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS
(EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246)

1. Asused in these specifications:
a. “Covered area” means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted,
b. “Director” means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs United States Department of
Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority;
c. “Employer identification number” means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer’s
Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941.
d. “Minority” includes:
(i) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
(ii) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish
Culture or origin, regardless of race);
(iii) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East,
Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and
(iv) American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North
America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community
identification).
2. Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any
construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of $10,000 the provisions of these
specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is
set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.
3. If the contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S.
Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action
obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for
those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation
in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each Contractor or Subcontractor participating
in an approved Plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a
good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good
faith performance by other Contractors or Subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any
covered Contractor’s or Subcontractor’s failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.
4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7 a through p of
these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as
percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should
reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered
Construction Contractors performing construction work in geographical areas where they do not have a Federal or
federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical
area where the work is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the FEDERAL REGISTER in notice
form, and such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from
Federal procurement contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in
meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.
5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the
Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor’s
obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto,
6. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such
apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must
have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the
availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the
U.S. Department of Labor.
7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation
of the Contractor’s compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results
from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at
least as extensive as the following:
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a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in
all facilities at which the Contractor’s employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign
two or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen,
superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor’s obligation to
maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites
or in such facilities.

b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification
to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have
employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations’ responses.

¢. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-
street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of
what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for
referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this
shall be documented in the file with the reason therefore, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may
have taken.

d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor
has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the
Contractor, or when the contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the
Contractor’s efforts to meet its obligations.

e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly
include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and training programs relevant to
the Contractor’s employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor.
The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 7b above.

f. Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs
and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting it’s EEO obligations; by including it in any
policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.;
by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least
once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location
where construction work is performed.

g. Review, at least annually, the company’s EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these
specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other
employment decisions including specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as
Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record
shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter
discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.

h. Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media,
specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the
Contractor’s EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates
doing business.

i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to
schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving
the Contractor’s recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than once month prior to the date for the
acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment sources, the Contractor shall send
written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be
used in the selection process.

J. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where
reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site
and in other areas of a Contractor’s work force.

k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under CFR Part 60-3.

L. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for
promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training,
etc., such opportunities.

m.Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices, do not
have a discriminatory affect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that
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the EEO policy and the Contractor’s obligations under these Specifications are being carried out.

n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities re nonsegregated except that separate or single-user toilet and
necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

0. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female
construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor
associations and other business associations.

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors’ adherence to and performance under the Contractor’s
EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.

8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more of their
affirmative action obligations (7a through p). The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union,
contractor-community, or other similar group of which the contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted
as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7a through p of these Specifications providing that the
Contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the
employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected
in the Contractor’s minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual
goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions
taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor’s and failure of such a
group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor’s noncompliance.

9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The Contractor,
however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups,
both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, the Contractor may be in
violation of the Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example,
even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the
Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized).

10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any
person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

11. The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government
contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.

12. The Contractor shall carty out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these Specifications and of the Equal
Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed
or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of
Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any Contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be
in violation of these Specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.

13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligation under these Specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action
steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these Specifications, so as to achieve
maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the
requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these Specifications, the Director shall
proceed in accordance with 41-CFR 60-4.8.

14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the
company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by
the Government and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone
numbers, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security
number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours
worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall
be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy
this requirement, Contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.

15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish
different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area
residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block
Grant Program).
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NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION
TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
(EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246)

1. The Offeror’s or Bidder’s attention is called to the “Equal Opportunity Clause” and the “Standard
Federal Equal Employment Specifications™ set forth herein.

2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage
terms for the Contractor’s aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the covered area,
are as follows:

Timetables Goals for minority participation Goals for female
for each trade participation in each trade
All years 2.3% 6.9%

These goals are applicable to all the Contractor’s construction work (whether or not it is Federal or
federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the contractor performs construction work in a
geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such
geographical area where the work is actually performed. With regard to this second area, the contractor
also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and nonfederally involved construction.

The Contractor’s compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4
shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action
obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the goals.
The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the
length of the contract, and in each trade, and the contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ
minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or
trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the
Contractor’s goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR
Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

3. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract
Compliance Programs within 10 working days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of
$10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting from this solicitation. The
notification shall list the name, address and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer
identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting
and completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is to be
performed.

4. Asused in this Notice, and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the “covered area™ is

(insert description of the geographical areas where the contract is to be performed giving the state, county
and city, if any).
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Participation Goals for Minority Contractors per the
October 2019 Department of Labor OFCCP - Technical Assistance Guide

Adair ..o, 4.0
Andrew......oooeeiienn. 3.2
Atchison........ccceennne. 10.0
Audrain .......ccoeeveannen. 4.0
Barry ..ooooovineiie 23
Barton........cc.coeerenveneenn. 2.3
Bates........cccccovveeennneen. 10.0
Benton.....ccocovvvuvnnnnne. 10.0
Bollinger ...........c........ 11.4
Boone......cooeovvvveveevinnnnn. 4.0
Buchanan...................... 32
Butler.....cccovvevinninnnnn. 114
Caldwell.......ccovvevennn. 10.0
Callaway .......ccccocceueeneee 4.0
Camden .......cocevveveennen.. 4.0
Cape Girardeau .......... 114
Carroll.....ooevvverieeenen. 10.0
Carter.......cccooveeeeeennennn. 11.4
Cass..covieeeecieeeceieenn, 12.7
Cedar......cccoeeveeeecnnenn. 2.3
Chariton.....ccceevvveenenne. 4.0
Christian........cccveeeeeeen. 2.0
Clark.....ccccoeeeeveeeennnnee. 34
Clay ..oooovccieeicicennn 12.7
Clnton.........ccoevveveneenn. 10.0
Cole ., 4.0
CoOper.....coveiicreicennees 4.0
Crawford..................... 11.4
Dade....ooeveeieeeennn. 2.3
Dallas .....cccceeveecnnnnnnnn. 2.3
Daviess....ccc.ovevvvrennen.. 10.0
DeKalb..veveeeennaeen, 10.0
Dentavviiiiiiiieiiiennn, 114
Douglas ....ccccccoeecnennenn. 2.3
Dunklin ..cccooevvveeeeene, 26.5
Franklin......cccccceeeee.. 14.7
Gasconade.................. 11.4
Gentry .oocceeveeeereenecennne. 10.0
Greene...ccccoveeecnvveeernenns 2.0
Grundy ............. et 10.0
Harrison............o......... 10.0
Henry......ccooviciininnnn. 10.0
Hickory ....cccoovvevrnniennnns 23
Holt oo 10.0

Missouri Counties

Howard..........ccccuveee..... 4.0
Howell..........ccoeevvveenene. 2.3
oo 114
Jackson.......ccccoenveennn. 12.7
Jasper.....occcvvciincncneens 2.3
Jefferson........cccueeenn.e. 14.7
Johnson ..o, 10.0
KNOX..ooovvevvreeececereeene, 4.0
Laclede........cccvveuuenenne. 2.3
Lafayette ........cccucue.n. 10.0
Lawrence........ccceeevnnnns 2.3
LeWIS...coveeeecnnieeeennnen. 3.1
Lincoln..........cccuueen.... 11.4
Linn ..oocooovveeeieineeeennnee, 4.0
Livingston................... 10.0
McDonald .................... 2.3
Macon ...cooovvevireivenennnn. 4.0
Madison...................... 114
Maries ......ccooeeevveennnn. 11.4
Marion..........ccccevveeeennn. 2.4
Mercer .....uuueveeeenvenennn. 10.0
Miller.......ccooovvvvenennns 4.0
MiSSiSSIPPI cevvereverreernne 114
Moniteau ............oeuuee.. 4.0
Monroe.......cccceueevevnennnn. 4.0
Montgomery............... 11.4
Morgan........ccccoceeernenne. 4.0
New Madrid ............... 26.5
Newton......cccccovvveerennnn. 2.3
Nodaway ......ccccceceennee. 10.0
Oregon......c.ccoceeeueeceenaeen 23
08agZe....orveeeieienrerenne 4.0
OzarK....ooooovvvneeieinnn. 2.3
Pemiscot.........ccon...... 26.5
Perry ..o 11.4
Pettis....cooovvvieeirieenns 10.0
Phelps....ccoovvvevecnennen. 11.4
Pike ....ovveeeerieen, 3.1
Platte ....ovvvveveeeeeiienne 12.7
PolK...oooooveeiiriiieiiie, 2.3
Pulaski......cccovvevvveeennnns 2.3
Putnam ........cccccocoeuneee. 4.0
RallS ..oooovvviieneiiienes 3.1
Randolph........cccooceeeene. 4.0
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| 28 ) 12.7
Reynolds .......c.ceueeeeeee. 11.4
Ripley....ccooovveieccennen. 11.4
St. Charles.................. 14.7
St. Clair........cvveeeennes 14.7
St. Francois ................ 11.4
Ste. Genevieve............ 114
St. LowiS .vvveeeinieeeeennes 14.7
St. Louis City ............. 14.7
Saline..........cccoevveeeennes 10.0
Schuyler ...........cceeeueeeee 4.0
Scotland........................ 4.0
Scott v 11.4
Shannon.............ccecuueeen. 2.3
Shelby ..coveeiveiieieeenee. 4.0
Stoddard .............cc... 11.4
StONE .o 2.3
Sullivan..........cccceeeneeee. 4.0
Taney.....ccoocvvevciencnnns 2.3
TeXaS..cccoruereirieeeereannns 2.3
Vemon........oecevieeeenennnn. 2.3
Warren.......ocovvvveeeennnn. 114
Washington................. 11.4
Wayne......ccooeeveveeneen. 11.4
Webster......ooocvvvreeennnn. 2.3
Worth .....ooverveeiienneen. 10.0
Wright ...ooveviiieciienee 2.3



BILL NO: 2024-0037 ORDINANCE NO. (D

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING REAL ESTATE INTO THE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DIXON
WHEREAS the City of Dixon is a City of the Fourth Class, and

WHEREAS the City of Dixon has received a Petition for Annexation from the owner of
a parcel of real estate requesting annexation into the City of Dixon; and

WHEREAS the parcel of real estate is contiguous and compact to the current corporate
limits of the City of Dixon, and

WHEREAS a public hearing was held on February 8, 2024, and
WHEREAS no objection has been filed regarding the proposed annexation, and

WHEREAS the annexation is reasonable and necessary to the proper development of the
City, and

WHEREAS the City is able to furnish normal municipal services to the parcels being
annexed.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
DIXON:

Section 1: The Real Estate described and set forth in Exhibit A which is attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference is hereby annexed into the Corporate limits of the City of
Dixon.

Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS E)'h" DAY OF Fc.(omav&_,2024

=

Mayor Mike Null

City Clerk
W AT \'1
AT

ﬂ‘pm-quv.,,"ﬁz (



EXHIBIT A

ALL OF LOT 10 IN BLOCK 2, OF THE WARREN PARKER SUBDIVISION OF
PULASKI COUNTY, MISSOURIE, PER THE SUPPLEMENTAL PLAT THEREOF
FILED IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE OF PULASKI COUNTY, MISSOURI IN
DECEMBER 4, 1957. SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF
RECORD. BEING THE SAME PROPERTY CONVEYED TO GRANTOR BY
INSTRUMENT RECORDED ON 3/23/2015 AT INSTRUMENT NO. 201501331 IN THE
RECORDS OF PULASKI COUNTY, MISSOURIL



»
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Recorded in Pulaski County, Missouri
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PETITION FOR ANNEXATION

By completing this document, the undersigned petitioner(s) are verifying the following:

1.

The undersigned is the owner of all fee interest in that real property described in Exhibit “A”, a copy of
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

Said property described in Exhibit “A” is not currently a part of any incorporated municipality.

Said property described in Exhibit “A” is contiguous and compact to the existing corporate limits of the
City of Dixon, Missouri.

The undersigned hereby petitions the City Council of the City of Dixon, Missouri, for voluntary
annexation of the real property described in Exhibit “A” and that it be included within the corporate
limits of the City of Dixon, Missouri as authorized by the provisions of 71.012, RSMo 2000.

The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Dixon require public notice to be
published and to conduct the public hearing required by law and to thereafter adopt an ordinance
extending the limits of the City of Dixon to include the real property described in Exhibit “A.”

The undersigned acknowledges and agrees that by submitting this petition, the City of Dixon will extend
valuable resources reviewing and researching the validity of this petition and planning for the
annexation requested. Accordingly, we hereby stipulate and agree that our request and consent to
annexation shall be irrevocable. We further agree to fully cooperate with the City of Dixon and take all
acts necessary to enact, approve and effectuate the annexation requests in this Petition. The undersigned
acknowledges that the City of Dixon will expend valuable resources, funds and labor in reliance on
representation, stipulation and agreement that this request and consent will not be withdrawn and is
irrevocable.

"Suslﬁ\f\ _MT“)MDSOI\ %WM—’—

Applicant Name (prlnt) / Applicant signature/
Applicant Name (print) Applicant signature -
Applicant Name (print) Applicant signature o

Property Address 50 7 H Te\"a S‘¥ “ \([W\ M’( O 664 5 q
Mailing Address 30—/‘ HJ G’\ﬁ\ 6‘1 \ XO(\ J M 0 m\ﬁ 4{5(7
Phone Number(s) 5 78 ?L Z q §0 \

**See Back Page for Notary Requirement**




STATE OF MISSOURI )

) SS
COUNTY OF PULASKI )
~ On this H day of, Jo.y\\u.wu\ 20 2\ , before me appeared J\&s{nv\ T\r\ompsov\ . to me

personally known to be the person i described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged
that they executed the same as their own free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, in the County and
State aforesaid, the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

KELLI K. LIVENGOOD
Notary Public - Notary Seal
STATE OF MISSOURI
County - Marics
Commission # 22524453
My Commission Expires: 03/06/2026
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GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

THIS INDENTURE is made as of the 1Y day of Se gembg Y ,2020 A.D,,
by and between NICOLE R. COLLINS FKA NICOLE R. COBB and TYLER COLLINS,
wife and husband, PULASKI County, Missouri, grantors and parties of the first part, and

JUSTIN THOMPSON, a single person, (grantee’s mailing address: 307 HIGH STREET,
DIXON, PULASKI County, Missouri 65459), grantees and parties of the second part.

WITNESSETH: that the grantors, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN
DOLLARS ($10.00) AND OTHER VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, to it paid by the grantee,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, do by these presents, GRANT,
BARGAIN AND SELL, CONVEY AND CONFIRM unto the grantee, his successors and

assigns the following-described lot, tract or parcel of land lying, being and situated in the County
of PULASKI and State of Missouri, to-wit:

ALL OF LOT 10 IN BLOCK 2, OF THE WARREN PARKER SUBDIVISION OF
PULASKI COUNTY, MISSOURI, PER THE SUPPLEMENTAL PLAT THEREOF
FILED IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE OF PULASKI COUNTY, MISSOURI IN
DECEMBER 4, 1957. SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF
RECORD. BEING THE SAME PROPERTY CONVEYED TO GRANTOR BY
INSTRUMENT RECORDED ON 3/23/2015 AT INSTRUMENT NO. 201501331 IN THE
RECORDS OF PULASKI COUNTY, MISSOURL

SUBJECT TO:(a) easements, restrictions, reservations, and other agreements and matters
of record, if any; (b) taxes and assessments, general and special, not now due and payable; and
(c) rights of the public in and to the parts thereof in streets, roads, or alleys.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the described premises, with all and singular the rights,
privileges, appurtenances, and immunities thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining, unto the
grantee and unto his successors and assigns forever, the said grantors hereby covenanting that
they are lawfully seized of an indefeasible estate in fee simple in the premises herein conveyed;
that they have good right to convey the same; that the premises are free and clear from any
encumbrances done or suffered by them or those under whom they claim(s) except as set forth
herein; and that they will Warrant and Defend the title of the said premises unto the grantee and
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unto his successors and assigns forever, against the lawful claims and demands of all persons,
except as set forth herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the grantors have caused these presents to be signed as of the
day and year first above written.

COLE R. COLLINS, Grantor
FKA NICOLE R. COBB

L4

TYLER COLLINS, Grantor

STATE OF Kansas )

) ss.

COUNTY OF Qoravd )

On this \4% day of SLP’«MW , 2020, before me, a Notary Public in
and for said state, personally appeared NICOLE R. COLLINS FKA NICOLE R. COBB
and TYLER COLLINS, wife and husband, known to me to be the same persons
described in and who executed the within instrument, and acknowledged to me they
executed the same for the purpose therein stated.

whs. Ly
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF KANSAS N ublic: —Trivsnie. Oew W
My Commission Expires: Q18|13
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Board of Alderman of the City of Dixon will hold a public hearing at 6:00 p.m. or as
soon as possible thereafter, on Thursday, February 8, 2024 at the Dixon City Hall, 305 S.
Elm Street, Dixon, Missouri 65459. The hearing is being held pursuant to the requirements of
Section 71.012 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri regarding the Voluntary annexation procedure.
1. Petition for annexation into the incorporated city limits of the City of Dixon of the
following address:
a. 307 High Street, Dixon, MO 65459.
2. A copy of the petition is available for review at the Office of the City of Dixon
City Clerk at Dixon City Hall during regular business hours.
3. All interested persons shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the public

hearing.

Posted: 02 !05 !2024



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Board of Alderman of the City of Dixon will hold a
public hearing at 6:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter,
on Monday February 5,2024 at the Dixon City Hall, 305 S.
Elm Street, Dixon, Missouri 65459. The hearing is being
held pursuant to the requirements of Section 71.012 of the
Revised Statutes of Missouri regarding the Voluntary
annexation procedure.

1. Petition for annexation into the incorporated city limits
of the City of Dixon of the following address:
a. 307 High Street, Dixon, MO 65459.

2. A copy of the petition is available for review at the
Office of the City of Dixon City Clerk at Dixon City Hall
during regular business hours.

3. All interested persons shall be given an opportunity to
be heard at the public hearing.

DATED: 1/16/2024

City Clerk
City of Dixon

2x4
#3
1-17-24

Cost: $56.00



2024 ADOPTING ORDINANCE

BILLNO. 2024-003% orp.N0. (3R

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING A NEW CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF DIXON, COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF MISSOURI; ESTABLISHING THE
SAME; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CERTAIN ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED
THEREIN, EXCEPT AS HEREIN EXPRESSLY PROVIDED; PROVIDING FOR THE MANNER
OF AMENDING SUCH CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING PENALTY FOR THE
VIOLATION THEREOF; AND PROVIDING WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME
EFFECTIVE

Be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon, County of Pulaski, State of
Missouri, as follows:

Section 1. Approval, Adoption and Enactment of Code.

Pursuant to Section 71.943 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, the codification of ordinances, as
set out in Titles I through VII, each inclusive, of the "Code of Ordinances of the City of Dixon,
County of Pulaski, State of Missouri," is hereby adopted and enacted as the "Code of Ordinances
of the City of Dixon"; which shall supersede all other general and permanent ordinances of the City
passed on or before June 12, 2023, to the extent provided in Section 3 hereof.

Section 2. When Code Provisions Effective.

All provisions of such Code shall be in full force and effect from and after the effective date of this
ordinance as set forth herein.

Section 3. Repeal of Legislation Not Contained in Code; Legislation Saved From Repeal;
Matters Not Affected By Repeal.

A. All ordinances of a general and permanent nature of the City adopted on final passage on or
before June 12, 2023, and not included in such Code or recognized and continued in force by
reference therein, are hereby repealed from and after the effective date of this ordinance, except
those which may be specifically excepted by separate ordinance, and except the following which
are hereby continued in full force and effect, unless specifically repealed by separate ordinance:

1. Ordinances promising or guaranteeing the payment of money for the City, or authorizing
the issuance of any bonds or notes of the City or any other evidence of the City 's
indebtedness, or authorizing any contract or obligation assumed by the City.

2. Ordinances levying taxes or making special assessments.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

15.

Ordinances appropriating funds or establishing salaries and compensation, and providing
for expenses.

Ordinances granting franchises or rights to any person, firm or corporation.

Ordinances relating to the dedication, opening, closing, naming, establishment of grades,
improvement, altering, paving, widening or vacating of streets, alleys, sidewalks or public
places.

Ordinances authorizing or relating to particular public improvements.

Ordinances respecting the conveyances or acceptance of real property or easements in real
property.

Ordinances dedicating, accepting or vacating any plat or subdivision in the City or any part
thereof, or providing regulations for the same.

Ordinances annexing property to the City.

All zoning and subdivision ordinances not specifically repealed and not included herein.
Ordinances establishing TIF districts or redevelopment districts.

Ordinances relating to tratfic schedules (e.g., stop signs, parking limits, etc.).

All ordinances relating to personnel regulations and policies (e.g., pensions, retirement, job
descriptions and insurance, etc.).

Ordinances authorizing the establishment of industrial development corporations.
Ordinances establishing tax rates for the City.

Ordinances regarding Police Department procedures and policies, including procedures on
arrest,

Ordinances regarding conflicts of interest and disclosure reports.

The repeal provided for in this Section shall not be construed to revive any ordinance or part

thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent ordinance which is repealed by this ordinance.

The repeal provided for in this Section shall not affect any offense or act committed or done or
any penalty or forfeiture incurred or any contract or right established or accruing before the
effective date of this ordinance, nor shall it affect any prosecution, suit or proceeding pending or

any judgment rendered prior to such date.



Section 4. Amendments To Code.

Any and all additions and amendments to such Code when passed in such form as to indicate the
intention of the Board of Aldermen to make the same a part thereof shall be deemed to be
incorporated in such Code so that reference to the "Code of Ordinances of the City of Dixon" shall
be understood and intended to include such additions and amendments.

Section 5. Violations and Penalties.

A. Whenever in this Code or any other ordinance of the City, or in any rule, regulation, notice or
order promulgated by any officer or agency of the City under authority duly vested in him/her
or it, any act is prohibited or is declared to be unlawful or an offense, misdemeanor or ordinance
violation or the doing of any act is required or the failure to do any act is declared to be unlawful
or an offense, misdemeanor or ordinance violation, and no specific penalty is provided for the
violation thereof, upon conviction of a violation of any such provision of this Code or of any
such ordinance, rule, regulation, notice or order, the violator shall be punished by a fine not
exceeding five hundred dollars ($500.00) or by imprisonment in the City or County Jail not
exceeding ninety (90) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment; provided that in any case
wherein the penalty for an offense is fixed by a Statute of the State, the statutory penalty, and no
other, shall be imposed for such offense, except that imprisonments may be in the City prison or
workhouse instead of the County Jail.

B. Every day any violation of this Code or any other ordinance or any such rule, regulation, notice
or order shall continue shall constitute a separate offense.

C. Whenever any act is prohibited by this Code, by an amendment thereof, or by any rule or
regulation adopted thereunder, such prohibition shall extend to and include the causing, securing,
aiding or abetting of another person to do said act. Whenever any act is prohibited by this Code,
an attempt to do the act is likewise prohibited.

Section 6. Applicability of General Penalty.

In case of the amendment by the Board of Aldermen of any Section of such Code for which a penalty
is not provided, the general penalty as provided in Section 5 of this ordinance shall apply to the
Section as amended; or in case such amendment contains provisions for which a penalty other than
the aforementioned general penalty is provided in another Section in the same Chapter, the penalty
so provided in such other Section shall be held to relate to the Section so amended, unless such penalty
is specifically repealed therein.

Section 7. Filing of Copy of Code; Codes To Be Kept Up-To-Date.

A copy of such Code shall be kept on file in the office of the City Clerk, preserved in loose-leaf form
or in such other form as the City Clerk may consider most expedient. It shall be the express duty of



the City Clerk, or someone authorized by said officer, to insert in their designated places all
amendments and all ordinances or resolutions which indicate the intention of the Board of Aldermen
to make the same part of such Code when the same have been printed or reprinted in page form and
to extract from such Code all provisions which from time to time may be repealed by the Board of
Aldermen. This copy of such Code shall be available for all persons desiring to examine the same.

Section 8. Altering or Tampering With Code; Violations and Penalties.

It shall be unlawful for any person to change or alter by additions or deletions any part or portion of
such Code, or to insert or delete pages or portions thereof, or to alter or tamper with such Code in any
manner whatsoever which will cause the law of the City of Dixon to be misrepresented thereby. Any
person violating this Section shall be punished as provided in Section 5 of this ordinance.

Section 9. Severability.

[t is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Aldermen that the Sections, paragraphs,
sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance and the Code hereby adopted are severable, and if
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or Section of this ordinance or the Code hereby adopted shall
be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the valid judgment or decree of a court of
competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of this ordinance or the Code hereby adopted.

Section 10. Effective Date.

This ordinance and the Code adopted hereby shall become effective «\Nd/\ "l R 201‘{.

PASSED by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon this "H’"‘ day of M&rck
2024

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Dixon this Y day of Movel =702

ayor OW}/ of Dixon

=

ATTEST:

VR

City Clerk
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City of Dixon, Missouri 2023 Statutory Updates

City of Dixon
2023 Statutory Updates Incorporated During Supplement # 4

The Sections of the Code noted in the table below have been updated with the 2023 statutory material.
The City’s attorney may want to review these changes to confirm these revisions are necessary. All
revised Sections will be in effect following the City’s adoption of the Code.

" Section/Subsection | _D_es'cl;piion of the Revision "Pursuantto |
of the Code [ ‘ | RSMo. Section |
120.020 | A new Subsection (A)(16) regarding certain law enforcement = 610.021

[ and/or public safety agency information was added and

subsequent Subsections were renumbered. In former Subsection |
(A)Y(16) [now (A)(17)], we deleted “which is or appears to be
terrorist in nature and.”

Additional provisions were added to Subsection (G) of this | 571.030
Section setting out an exception to certain weapons regulations
for certain school officers and school protection officers.

210.840

210.1230 | Subsection (A) of this Section was revised to read in part, “...or | 407.302
i utility regulated under Chapter 386 or 393, RSMo., including
| twisted pair copper telecommunications wiring of pair or greater
| existing in 19, 22 24. or 26 gaupe burnt wire. bleachers,

‘ guardrails...”
| = =
210.1870 i We added this Section regarding “drug masking products.” 579.041

340.230 This Section, regarding texting while operating a motor vehicle, | 304.820,
| was derived from Section 304.820, RSMo. SB 398 repealed | 304.822
| Section 304.820, RSMo., and adopted a new Section 304.822,
RSMo., which includes similar provisions. This Section was
revised to reflect the new provisions in Section 304.822, RSMo.

355.090 In Subsection (A), we corrected a typo in the Mode! Code by | 300.480
revising “..designate by proper signs placed not...” to read
“...designate by proper signs places not...”
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ORDINANCE NoO. (639 Bill No. 2024-0039
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING PENALTIES AND LATE FEES FOR FAILURE TO
TIMELY PROCURE OR RENEW ANNUAL CITY ALCOHOL LICENSE AS
REQUIRED BY THE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DIXON, AND PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF.
WHEREAS the ordinances of the City of Dixon require any person or entity desiring to
sell liquor within the City limits of the City of Dixon to obtain a license to do so, and renew said

license annually; and

WHEREAS the current penalty is insufficient for businesses to renew their licenses in a
timely manner.

NOW BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon, Missouri, as

follows:

Section 1: Penalty for Failure to Purchase a License for the sale of Alcohol:
Any person, corporation, company, or other entity required to obtain a license for the sale of
alcohol pursuant to Dixon City Code chapter 600 who fails to do so shall be subject to a fine of
$250.00 for every month (each month constitutes a separate violation), or part thereof, during
which the required license has not been purchased. The City Clerk may refuse to issue a current
license to any such person until payment has been made for the license together with any amount

owed as a consequence of penalties occurring pursuant to this ordinance.

Section 2: Any person, corporation, company, or other entity who fails to timely renew license
for the sale of alcohol as required by the ordinances of the City of Dixon shall pay a late fee

pursuant to the following schedule in addition to the renewal fee:

a. $100.00 if renewed 1-30 days late;
b. $200.00 if renewed 31-60 days late;
c. $300.00 dollars if renewed 61-90 days late.

d. An additional $400.00 for each 30 day period thereafter.



Section 3: Any person, corporation, company, or other entity who sells alcohol with an expired

license shall be subject to a fine of $250.00 for each sale.

Section 4: Any prior ordinances or sections of prior ordinances inconsistent with this ordinance

are repealed.

Section 5: Effective Date:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the

date of its passage by the Dixon Board of Aldermen and approval by its Mayor.

Read two times and passed this 9*" DAY OF APRIL 2024

g

’

= =
“Mayor Mike Null — /

Attest:

@CWJé}W

City Clerk




ORDINANCE NO. b Y40 Bill No. 2024-0040

AN ORDINANCE MODIFYING THE PROCEDURES FOR ISSUANCE OF BUSINESS

LICENSES FOR THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI.

WHEREAS the City of Dixon requires people and business entities to have a business

license to engage in business within the city limits; and
WHEREAS the ordinances currently require Council approval of a business license; and
WHEREAS the current system has proven inefficient.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON,

MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The city clerk may issue a business license upon receipt of a complete
application, proof that the applicant owes no taxes to the city, and proof any required insurances

for the business such as worker’s compensation insurance.

SECTION 2: If the City clerk finds the application irregular, incomplete, or otherwise has
concerns regarding the application, then the Clerk may place approval of the license on the

agenda at the next regular council meeting.

SECTION 3: If the Council denies the application, the applicant may request a hearing at

the next regular council meeting.

SECTION 4: All Ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are

hereby repealed.

Section 5: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its

passage and approval.



READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
DIXON, MISSOURI, AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 4 th pay OF MARCH

2024.

Mayor Mike Null

ATTEST: ! : ' 4g
W

City Clerk




BILL No. 2024-004] Ordinance No. (© Y |

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI ASSESSING
REGISTRATION FEES FOR VACANT AND
UNSAFE STRUCTURES

WHEREAS There are numerous vacant and unsafe buildings within the City of Dixon, and

WHEREAS the owners of the real estate seemingly have no motivation to correct the safety
issues with these buildings,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE
CITY OF DIXON:

Section 1: Registration fees for vacant and unsafe structures.

(a) Pursuant to Section 67.399 RSMo, there is hereby established a semiannual registration fee of
$250.00 which shall be charged to the owner of any parcel of residential property improved by a
residential structure, or commercial property improved by a structure containing multiple dwelling
units, that is vacant, and has been vacant for at least six months, and has been cited by the
building official of the city for violations of applicable building and housing codes established by
the city and set forth in the Code of Ordinances.

(b) The supervisor of public works, acting as the building official of the city, is hereby designated
as the municipal officer to investigate any property that may be subject to the registration fee. The
building official shall report his findings and recommendations, and shall determine whether any
such property shall be subject to the registration fee. Within five business days after the building
official has determined that a parcel of property is subject to the registration fee, the city clerk
shall notify by mail the owners of property on which the registration fee has been levied at their
Jast known address according to the records of the city and the county. The property owner shall
have the right to appeal the decision of the building official to the Municipal Division of the
Circuit Court of Pulaski County, Missouri within 30 days of such notification. Absent the
existence of any valid appeal or request for reconsideration pursuant to subsection (c) of this
section, the registration fee shall begin to accrue on the beginning of the second calendar quarter
after the decision of the building official.

(c) Within 30 days after the building official's notification of the property owner, the property
owner may complete any improvements to the property that may be necessary to revoke the levy
of the registration fee, and then may request a reinspection of the property and a reconsideration
of the levy of the registration fee by the building official. If the building official revokes the
registration fee, no such assessment shall be made and the matter shall be considered closed. If the
building official affirms the assessment of the registration fee, the property owner shall have the
right to appeal the reconsideration decision of the building official to the Municipal Division of
the Circuit Court of Pulaski County, Missouri within 30 days after such decision. Absent the
existence of any valid appeal to the municipal court or other court of competent jurisdiction, the



-

registration fee shall begin to accrue on the beginning of the second calendar quarter after the
reconsideration decision of the building official.

(d) The registration fee shall be $250.00 for each period of six months from the date of
commencement of said registration charge and shall be added by the city collector to the annual
property tax bill of the owner of the property assessed said registration fee. It shall be the duty of
the owner of said property to pay said fees as billed by the city collector in full on or before
December 31st of each year said registration fees are assessed. Delinquent payments shall result
in the same penalty, and pay the same rate of interest, as delinquent property taxes. Any
registration fees which are delinquent for a period of one year shall become a lien on the
property and shall be subject to foreclosure proceedings in the same manner as delinquent real
property taxes. The owner of the property against which the assessment was originally made
shall be able to redeem the property only by presenting evidence that the violations of the
applicable building and housing codes cited by the building official have been cured and
presenting payment of all registration fees and penalties. Upon bona fide sale of the property to
an unrelated party said lien shall be considered released and the delinquent registration fee
forgiven.

Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect on the date of its passage.

Read two times and passed this ¢~ DAY OF 1%& , 2024

v o R4

/’,./If-’

Mayst, Mike Null




Bill #2024-0042 ORDINANCE # (DLI C;L

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, authorizing, fixing, and
determining a rate of levy on the hundred-dollar valuation of all taxable property within
the City for the year 2024.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON,
COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The pursuant to the laws of the State of Missouri, relevant to cities of the fourth class
and pursuant to the authority of the qualified voters at due and proper elections held in said City,
that there shall be levied and collected as taxes for the year 2024, upon all real estate, personal
and mixed property taxable within the City of Dixon, Missouri, at the rate of 1.0987 cents on the
$100.00 assessed valuation as per the following purposes:

GENERAL REVENUE ON EACH $100 ASSESSED VALUATION........c.ccoovviiiiinnis 0.4900
FORPUBLIC LIBRARY ... e e 0.1500
DEBT SERVICE. ... .ot e 0.4587
TOTAL e i3 e 55 e sl e ee e e e eien e s Lt wee b e ne v el e e S e e v e oo e buamn e nofie s ea Galheens Zoeeo 1.0987

And that the above tax rate levy on the $100.00 assessed valuation of taxable property in said
City of Dixon, be and is hereby made the true and lawful levy for said City for the year 2024

Section 2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to furnish a copy of this
ordinance to the Clerk of the County Court of Pulaski County, Missouri, within the time required
by Law for the filing of city rates with said Clerk.

Section 3: This ordinance shall be in full force from the date of its passage.

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF
DIXON, MISSOURI ON THIS 8%~ DAY OF Av;j ust 2024

(MD =

City Clerk | Mike Nulll Mayor /~




Bill No. 262.4~ OO orRDINANCE NO. (042

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF DIXON TO
ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH MRPC ON BEHALF OF THE CITY

WHEREAS the funding is available under a number of grants and government funding
programs; and

WHEREAS the Missouri Regional Planning Commission (MRPC) has offered to provide
technical assistance to the City to apply for those grants and funds;

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is already a member of the MRPC; and

WHEREAS the Board of Alderman believes it would be beneficial to the City to enter into a
contract for those services.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: The Annual Membership Technical Assistance Contract attached hereto is hereby
approved.

SECTION 2: The City shall renew its membership to the MRPC at the Basic Membership Level.

SECTION 3: The Mayor of Dixon is authorized and directed to execute said contract on behalf
of the City of Dixon.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect on the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS 3rd DAY OF September , 2024,

iy




ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
by and between
MERAMEC REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
and the
CITY OF _Dixon

This Agreement is made and entered into on the Ist day of July, 2024, by and between Meramec Regional
Planning Commission, #4 Indusirial Drive, St. James, Missouri 65559, hereinafter referred to as "MRPC" and
the CITY OF _Dixon , hereinafter referred to as "Client."

1. Services to Client. MRPC shall provide the services of one or more of its employees to the Client for
purposes of grant research, project development and grant writing, or other technical assistance work
allowed under the MRPC board’s hour allocation policy.

2. Client to Supply Data and Records as requested by MRPC, The Client agrees to appoint a single point
of contact to work with MRPC, and the Client agrees to supply MRPC with all required financial, demographic,
statistical and other data and information requested or required by MRPC, the applicable agency, and federal

and state law and regulation.

3. Independent Contractor. Both the Client and MRPC agree that MRPC and its employees and
representatives will act as independent coniractors in the performance of its duties under this agreement, Neither
MRPC nor the Client shall have the authority to obligate or bind the other without the express written consent
of the other party.

4, Confidential Information. MRPC agrees that any information received by MRPC and its employees and
representatives during the term of this agreement, and at any time thereafier, concerning the personal, financial,
or other affairs of a private individual or business will be treated by MRPC in full confidence and will not be
revealed to any other person, firm or corporation without the express consent of the Client, or where otherwise
required by law, regulation, legal process or the state’s Open Meetings Law.

5. Chient to I{old Harmless MRPC. The Client will hold harmless MRPC and the agents, employees, and
representatives of MRPC from all liability and claims of liability arising out of or incident to MRPC's
performance of its obligations under this agreement, excepting MRPC’s negligence or intentional misconduct.
The Client further wazrants and agrees that all data and information provided to MRPC in conjunction with the

1



grant or loan application, and in conjunction with MRPC's performance of its obligations hereunder, is true and
correct, and MRPC, its agents and representatives and the agency herein above described may rely upon its
accuracy for purposes of processing the grant or loan application and throughout the completion of said project.
Client releases and fully discharges MRPC and its employees and representatives from any and all Iiability or
claims of liability arising out of or incident to the compilation of such information and data and the processing
and analysis thereof, The Client further acknowledges that MRPC and its employees and representatives have
made no warranty as to the viability of the Client's loan or grant application, and no assurance as to its approval
or acceptance by the designated agency has been made. Client acknowledges that the decision to proceed with
the application and the technical assistance and services to be provided under this agreement have been the sole
and exclusive decision of the Client, and the Client releases MRPC and its employees and representatives fiom
al! fiability or claims of liability in the event of disapproval of the application or revocation thereof for reasons

relating to the Client.

6. Time of Performance. MRPC will provide the services described in this agreement for the period
commencing July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. The time and services of this contract may be ferminated,
extended or amended by Addendum hereto, containing the signatories of the parties. MRPC shall promptly
proceed with its obligations under this agreement and use reasonable efforts to complete same within a
reasonabie time, Client acknowledges and agrees, however, that MRPC shall not be bound by time limitations
specified by the Client or imposed by the Client's agreements with third parties. No performance bond shall be
required of MRPC. MRPC's services pursuant to the terms of this agreement shall be concluded upon

completion of requested service(s).

7. Consideration. In consideration for the services provided by MRPC hereunder the Client agrees to pay
MRPC at the following hourly rates after using any available city/county allocated technical assistance hours
For the months of July 2024-June 2025: Technical Level #1 $65.00; Technical Level #2 $56.00; Management
$80.00; Fiscal Officer $85.00; Assistant Director $87.00; and Executive Director $110.00. MRPC shall
periodically invoice the Client for fees and expenses as same are incurred in a timely manner.

1.

Member governments will be notified of the number of free hours with their membership (dues) statements each
year. This contract identifies the below number of free hours allocated to the member government and sets forth

! At the beginning of each fiscal year, each member county and city will be allocated a given number of hours as 4 part of
membership dues. Any work exceeding 30 minutes in length that a member government requests of MRPC on a given
project-~from researching potential funding options to writing grants—will be deducted from this annual hour allocation,
Once a member povernment uses its allocation of hours for the vear, it will be charged al the established hourly rates for any
additional work requested that year, Excess hours cannot be carried over to succeading years. 1f the project crosses fiscal
years, new hourly rates adopted by the MRPC board at the beginning of the new fiscal year will apply to the project. A
member government or client may only use one year’s worth of allocated howrs on a specific project, even if it crosses fiscal
years.

2



hourly rates to be applied should a project require additional time in excess of those hours. If the project
crosses fiscal years, new hourly rates adopted by the MRPC board at the beginning of the new fiscal year will

apply to the project.

‘Membership Level | County Hours © - -] City Hours.
Basic 18 15
Enhanced 24 21
Prime 30 27

8. Termination of Agreement. This agreement will terminate June 30, 2025; except that either MRPC or the
Client may terminate this contract prior to completion of the project, without cause by giving the other party not
less than thirty (30) days written notice thereof. In the event of termination prior to completion of the project,
the Client shall pay the cost of services rendered by MRPC, and expenses incurred in the performance of this

agreement to the effective date of termination.

9. Compliance with Applicable Law and Regulation. In MRPC's performance of this agreement, and in the
Client's performance of its obligations and responsibilities under the contract, each party shall comply with ail
applicable laws and regulations, and each party hereto shall supply the other, where necessary or applicable,
with information and data for compliance with such applicable law and regulation.

10. Conilict of Interest. No member of the governing bedy or board of the Client, and no other officer,
employee, or agent of the Client, who exercises any [unctions or responsibilities in connection with the planning
and carrying out of the contract, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in the project or

this agreement.

11. Authority to Enter into Agreement - Binding Affect, Both MRPC and the Client have been duly
authorized to enter into this agreement by their respective governing body or board, as the case may be, and this
agreement is a binding obligation on the parties hereto and may be enforced in accordance with its terms,

12. Enforeement - Costs of Collection, In the event Client should default in the payment of any sum due
hereunder or in the performance of any obligation on its part to be performed, and in the event MRPC shouid
retain or engage an attorney or attorneys to collect or enforce or protect its interest with respect to this
agreement, the Client shall pay all costs and expenses of such collection, enforcement, or protection, including

reasonable altorney's fees.



13. Governing Law. This agreement shall be governed by and constructed in accordance with the law of the

State of Missouri, and where applicable, in accordance with federal law and regulation.

14. Notices, All natices, requests, demands or other communications provided for herein shall be in writing
and shall be deemed to have been given when sent by prepaid United States registered or certified mail, with
return receipt requested, addressed, as the case may be, to MRPC at #4 Industrial Dr., St. James, Missouri
65559; and to the Client at CITY OF_Dixon___ .Atn: __Natalie Perez 1
P.O. Box 177 (addressy  LJIXON iy .m0 85459 i ;- or to such address as

any parly shall designate to the other from time to time in writing forward in like manner.

15. Amendments. No amendment, modification, termination, or waiver of any provision hercof shall be
effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

16. Severability of Provisions. Any provision hereof which is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction
shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without
invalidating the remaining provisions of this agreement of affecting the validity or enforceability of such

provigion in any other jurisdiction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement the day and year first written above.

MERAMEC REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

By: %ﬂmz 0///&'}4,?{;/ i

Date: /0 ’l_[_é' A

ciTyor _Dixon




ORDINANCE No.(p Y BILL #: 2024.0044

AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING AND AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT FOR
GARBAGE AND TRASH COLLECTION BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF DIXON AND
WASTE CORPORATION OF MISSOURI, LLC

WHEREAS the Board of Alderman requested bids for the collection, transportation, and disposal
of residential garbage;

WHEREAS the Board has accepted the bid of Waste Corporation of Missouri, LLC.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: The Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A, providing for the collection,
transportation, and disposal of all residential garbage and trash from residences within the City
of Dixon is hereby approved, and made a part hereof.

SECTION 2: The City of Dixon shall charge an administrative fee to each residential customer
equal to 15% of the rate charged for waste collection services per month for collecting the fees
due under the contract,

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
‘APPROVED THIS 3rd DAY OF September  ,2024.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

City cmmN Mike Null, Mayor /




RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION CONTRACT
(Exclusive Contractor Services)

This Residential Solid Waste Collection Contract is made and entered into this ___ day of September,
2024 (hereinafter referred to as the “Contract”), by and between the City of Dixon, Missouti
(hereinafter referred to as the "City"), and Waste Corporation of Missouri LILC, which is qualified to do
and does business in the State of Missouri as WCA of Missouri, LLC (hereinafter referred to as
"Contractot™).

In enteting this Contract, the City hereby designates and approves Contractor as its sole and exclusive
contractor for the provision of solid waste collection services to the residential units located within the
jurisdictional limits of the City or any tresidential unit outside the City Limits currently billed for City

services.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained, to be performed by the
parties hereto and of the payments hereinafter agreed to be made, the City and Contractor enter into
this Agreement and mutually agree as follows:

1. Contractor is hereby designated as the exclusive contractor and is hereby granted the license and
ptivilege within the territorial jutisdiction of the City, to provide solid waste collection and
disposal services for all tesidental units within the City or outside the City but utilizing City
services. Contractor shall furnish all personnel, labor, equipment, trucks, and all other items
necessary to collect solid waste materials from all residential units.

2. The Contract Documents shall include the following documents, and this Contract does hereby
expressly incorporate same herein as fully as if set forth verbatim in this Contract:

A. Exhibit A — Contractor’s Pricing - Services
B. This Contract; and
C. Any addenda or changes to the foregoing documents agreed to by the City and Contractor.

3. The initial term of this Contract shall commence and be effective on October 1, 2024 (the
“Lffective Date”) and will expire on September 30, 2027, unless extended as provided in
Section 4 of this Contract.

4. This Agreement shall automatically renew for additional like terms unless prior written
notice is given by eithet party to the other of its election not to renew this Agreement, which
notice must be given in writing not more than 120 days and not less than 90 days prior to
the expiration of the term then in effect. The terms and conditions as applicable to the initial
term shall apply to the extended terms, except for the pricing which shall be as provided in the
pricing Exhibit to this Contract, and such other changes as may be mutually agreed upon by the
City and Contractor,

5. The City shall provide billing and collection to all residential customers that utilize
Contractor’s solid waste collection setvices. The City shall pay Contractor based on the
residential units in the City, or outside the City to whom City services are supplied, for which
Contractor petforms trash collection services, within thirty (30) days of the datc of
Contractor’s monthly invoice for such residential collection services.

6. Contractor shall maintain not less than $1,000,000.00, per occurrence and in the aggregate,
of commercial insurance covering bodily injury and property damage. Such insurance shall
be catried in a firm or corporation who has been duly licensed or permitted to carry on such



business in the State of Missouri. Contractor shall provide a certificate of insurance to the
City, evidencing that the policies for the required commercial insurance coverage is in full
force and effect and the City has been named on such policy or policies as an additional
named insured. Contractor shall also furnish the City with evidence that Contractor has in
force and is maintaining workets compensation insurance as prescribed by the law of the
State of Missour.

7 Solid waste to be picked up at residential units shall consist of ordinary household waste
only. Residential customers shall use containers fumished by Contractor and Contractor
shall not be obligated to pick-up any waste, trash or refuse not located within such
containers.

8. The container shall be placed by residents on public right-of-way suitable for the amount
and weight load of solid waste being placed for collection and Contractor’s service vehicle.

9. Contractot may decline to collect any container that is over-filled or contain sharps objects
or liquids or any solid waste not properly contained,

10. Contractor shall not be held responsible for any items inadvertently removed and disposed
of that is placed next to or near regular trash.

11. This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Missouri.

12. The Contract may not be assigned by either party without express written consent of the
other party, which consent shall not be unteasonably withheld.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, this Contract has been duly executed by authorized representatives of the City
and Conuactor effective as of the date first above written.

e -_\__‘ﬁ\
\X@ / City of Dixon
k R't/ﬂ ./

/ P By:

‘\. Name:

issouri South
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ORDINANCE NoO. (045
BILL NO: 2024-0045

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING REAL ESTATE INTO THE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DIXON
WHEREAS the City of Dixon is a City of the Fourth Class, and

WHEREAS the City of Dixon has received a Petition for Annexation from the owner of
a parcel of real estate requesting annexation into the City of Dixon; and

WHEREAS the parcel of real estate is contiguous and compact to the current corporate
limits of the City of Dixon, and

WHEREAS a public hearing was held on September 9, 2024, and
WHEREAS no objection has been filed regarding the proposed annexation, and

WHEREAS the annexation is reasonable and necessary to the proper development of the
City, and

WHEREAS the City is able to furnish normal municipal services to the parcels being
annexed.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
DIXON:

Section 1: The Real Estate described as follows:

All Lots 7, 8, and 9 in Block 3 of the JONES FIRST ADDITION, Pulaski
County, Missouri per the plat thereof filed in the Recorder’s Office of
Pulaski County Missouri.

is hereby annexed into the Corporate limits of the City of Dixon.
Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND

APPROVED THISG* DAY OF Segtembe, 2024

Mayor Mike Null —
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PETITION FOR ANNEXATION

By completing this document, the undersigned petitioner(s) are verifying the following:

L.

The undersigned is the owner of all fee interest in that real property described in Exhibit “A”, a copy of
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

Said property described in Exhibit “A” is not currently a part of any incorporated municipality.

Said property described in Exhibit “A” is contiguous and compact to the existing corporate limits of the
City of Dixon, Missouri.

The undersigned hereby petitions the City Council of the City of Dixon, Missouri, for voluntary
annexation of the real property described in Exhibit “A” and that it be included within the corporate limits
of the City of Dixon, Missouri as authorized by the provisions of 71.012, RSMo 2000.

The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Dixon require public notice to be published
and to conduct the public hearing required by law and to thereafter adopt an ordinance extending the limits
of the City of Dixon to include the real property described in Exhibit “A.”

The undersigned acknowledges and agrees that by submitting this petition, the City of Dixon will extend
valuable resources reviewing and researching the validity of this petition and planning for the annexation
requested. Accordingly, we hereby stipulate and agree that our request and consent to annexation shall be
irrevocable. We further agree to fully cooperate with the City of Dixon and take all acts necessary to enact,
approve and effectuate the annexation requests in this Petition. The undersigned acknowledges that the
City of Dixon will expend valuable resources, funds and labor in reliance on representation, stipulation
and agreement that this request and consent will not be withdrawn and is irrevocable.

I am Amy George (f/k/a Amy Kinsley).

I am a managing member of REW RE, LLC.

REW RE, LLC owns the property described in Exhibit “A”.

Ay K

Applicafit Name (pric h ' A@‘:éﬂ’t signature

Property Address(es) Lots £+ 'n BJOCk 3 'D‘F TmeS fvst &Jl‘hn’l
Mailing Address (1206 C hcn_/}u PL. Divor,, Mo (95457
Phone Number(s) 3}4’ qu Q%g

**See Back Page for Notary Requirement®*




STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS
COUNTY OF PULASKI )
On this 28™ day of, A\Lqu&‘\' 20 24 , before me appeared ﬂmu l( wnsley , known to

me to be the person who eXecuted the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that they xecuted the same as
their own free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, in the County and State
aforesaid, the day and year last above written.

m KELLI K. LIVENGOOD
B Gt —————r=— Notary Public - Notary Scal
Notary Public Signature STATE OF MISSOURI

County - Marics

. - . Commission # 22524453
Printed Name: . 6] My Commission Expires: (13/06/2026

My Commission Expires: O3 l Q2026

(Seal)
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WARRANTY DEED

THIS INDENTURE, Made on the _\__ day of cedloer™ . 2023, by and between
Christopher Davis and Jamie Davis, husband and wife, of the County of Pulaski and State of
Missouri. parties of the first part or Grantors. and REW RE, LLC, party of the second part or

Grantee, (mailing address of Grantee is:
I [205 c ery gi &;‘c‘;{é. Dixon MQ {Qﬁ S(:S— i T

WITNESSETIH. That the said parties of the first part, in consideration of the sum of
OTHER VALUABLE CONSIDERATION AND TEN & NO/100 - - - - -DOLLARSto
them paid by the said party of the second part. the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, do
by these presents Grant. Bargain and Sell. Convey and Confirm unto the said party of the second
part. its successors and assigns. the following described lots, tracts or parcels of land, lying, being
and situate in the County of Pulaski and State of Missouri, to-wit:

All of Lots 7. 8 and 9 in Block 3 of JONES FIRST ADDITION, Pulaski County,
Missouri. as per the plat thereof filed in the Recorder's Office of Pulaski County, Missouri.
Subject to easements, restrictions and reservations of record.

THIS DOCUMENT. INCLUDING THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION, WAS PREPARED BY WARREN &
WARREN, SOLELY UPON INFORMATION FURNISHED BY THE PARTIES OR THEIR AGENTS
AND WITHOUT TITLE SEARCH OR LXAMINATION,

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD. The Premiscs aforesaid, with all and singular rights,
_privileges., appurtenances and immunities thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining unto the
said party of the second part, and unto its successors and assigns forever; the said parties of the
first part hereby covenanting that they are lawfully seized of an indefeasible estate in fee in the
premises herein conveyed: that they have good right to convey the same: that the said premises

are free and clear of any encumbrances done or suftered by them or those under whom they
claim. and that they will Warrant and Defend the title to the said premises unto the party of the
second part. and unto its succesors and assigns, forever, against the lawful claims and demands
of all persons whomsoever.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The said parties of the first part have hereunto set their hands
the day and year first above written.

¢ - O @MLC

Christopher Davis Jamie Davis
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) S8
COUNTY OF PULASKI )
Onthis a¥_ day of getylsen” . 2023, before me personally appeared

Christopher Davis and Jamie Davis, husband and wife, to me known to be the persons
described in and who executed the foregoing instrument. and acknowledged that they executed
the same as their free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal

at my oftice in __ Myngjyﬂ[g y AA155any the day and year first above written.

My commission expires;

4
. s : . ﬂ/ \./
I AR B AR / 7 Rt -
Nolary Public - Ny Saa gy “Notary Public
OF Minil
amrissin B, ety 2, 2000
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Board of Alderman of the City of Dixon will hold a
public hearing at 6:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter,
on Monday September 9, 2024 at the Dixon City Hall, 305
S. Elm Street, Dixon, Missouri 65459. The hearing is being
held pursuant to the requirements of Section 71.012 of the
Revised Statutes of Missouri regarding the Voluntary
annexation procedure.

1. Petition for annexation into the incorporated city limits
of the City of Dixon of the following address:
a. Lots 8 and 9 — Blk 3 Jones First Addition,
Dixon, MO 65459.

2. A copy of the petition is available for review at the
Office of the City of Dixon City Clerk at Dixon City Hall
during regular business hours.

3. All interested persons shall be given an opportunity to
be heard at the public hearing.
DATED: 8/23/2024

City Clerk
City of Dixon

#35-1tc

2x4
#35
8-28-24

Cost: $56.00



BILL NO: 2024-0046 ORDINANCE NO. (o4

ORDINANCE RATIFYING AND AUTHORIZING A VALUE LEASE AGREEMENT

WHEREAS the City of Dixon in its ordinary course of business requires the use of a Printing
and Copying Machines; and

WHEREAS the City’s prior lease has expired for such equipment; and
WHEREAS the City has determined the attached contract is fair and equitable.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF DIXON:

SECTION 1: The Value Lease Agreement attached hereto is hereby approved.
SECTION 2: The Mayor is authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City.
SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS Q¥ DAY OF Septemmber ,2024.

APPROVED:

e

<"l@yor, City of Dixon, Missouri__

ATTEST;

/|

City cm&ﬁiﬁ'/
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The wprcfs "L gcsen,” "you" ar'ld‘" our” refer to Customer. The words 'Lé?‘smﬁh" “wa,” s and “ouc refer to GE! Digital, tne.

STREET ADDRESS

FULL LEGAL NAME .
. Gty of Dixon, Mo Munlmpal Government . T N 308 South Elm Street
‘QITY STME ZIP PHONE : FAX
Dixon . MO o ) 65459 B573-017-4504 " e
BIELING NAME (IF DIFFERENT FROM ASOVE) BILLING STREET ADDRESS v
oy i STATE ziP ERAIL.
klivengaod@ wjg,rofdixonmo.urg L i

EQUIPMENT LOCATION {IF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE)

" NOT FINANCED

UNDER THIS
QFYMARE/MODEL/ACCESSORIES SERIAL NO, STARTING METER AGREEMENT
3 Shamp MX-B427W BAW Ceopler (]
1_Sharp BP-r0C31 Color Copier ]
1 Sharp BPF-70C31 Color Copler o
; G .
5 :
.
...... "
DSBa altanhed thedula A £ See attaghed Billing Schedula
e 60_ Payme:;!s' of $ ) ) 34433 ) . #Fyou are exempt ﬁ'om s-m’as teur sifeah your G&lﬁk&fﬂ' nlug applicablie toxes
The payment {"Payment") period is monthly unless otherwise Indicatsd,
Paymont Includes _ ‘ 4908 . B8W pages par manth Overages billed monthly at $ 2017 0 011747 por BAW page*

. Goler nagea permonth Overages billed monthly at § -0 0456 . par Color pagy*

You may choose one of e follnwihg options, which you may exerclse st the end of the term, provided that ne evant of default inder this Agreerment has oscumad and is continuing.
i no box is shacked and Initialed, Fal Market Value will be your end of term option. Falr Markst Value means the value of the Equipment in continued use.

0 Purchasg all of the Equipment for iis Fair Market Value, renew this Agreement, or refum thé Equipment.

O  Purchasg all crfiha Equi menl for §1.00, At tha end of the term, fite to the Equl mentwfll aummaticall transfer ta you, AS 1S, WHERE 18, wilh no wafranlles of any kind

Gustomer's Inftals
Guslomel’s Imtials

GFI Digital, inc.
' usssofi“ '

O\-Sc_-zﬂ

"BATED

e

BY SIGNING BE!..DW DR AUTHENTICATING AN ELECTRONIC RECORD HEREOF. ¥Ou CERTIFY THM‘ YOU HAVE REVIEWED
THIS AGREEMENT ON THIS PAGE AND ONPAGE 2 ATTACHED HERETO, i

City of Dixon, Mo Bunicipal Government ‘ X ' R M ‘ ﬁ
CUSTOMER (as reférenced above) BIGNATURE ~ THE & ATED i
43-6005625 . M Ve o\

N FEDERAL TAX 0. #

FRINT NANE

N recel a, installed and _inp

X l(LUA,%w-ﬁ o ‘.b%u Mmm  Alzslzoy

CUSTOMER (as roferenced sbovoy == e HIENATURE - g e TTLE AGCEFTANGE DATE

F%%‘%ﬁjﬁﬁ b.\l-e,«vkaood

1. AGREEMENT! You agtee o lease fram us he goods, ogether with =l repiscemants, parts, repairs, addifions, and accesslons Incorporated thereln o attached Serelo and any and all procesds of he-Toregolag, Ingluding, without linftation,
Insurence recoveries {"Equisment”) and, If applicatiz, financa cerlain software, saftwars Feensefs), sofware components andfor professicnal services in eonneefion with soflware (colkctively, the "Financed llems," which are indluded In the
word *Equipmont’ inksss separalely stateﬁ) frcit saftware ikengorfs) andier supplier(s) {collectively, the "Supplier™), 81l as describad in this Agreement and in any atlachad schetvle, addendurt or amendmant hareto ("Agreament’), You
rapresent and warrant that vou will esz fia Equipment bor business purposes oy, You agres to 2l of the ems and condifions contalned in this Agresment, which, with the acceplance cartification, is the enfire agreement betwesn you and us

ragending e Equipmenl and which sugersedes &l prior agreaments, including any purchass onder, involes, request fof proposal, rasponse o other refated docment. Thi Agrewnthaamesvahd upan execubion by us. If any provision of
this Agreementis daclered unsrforcaable, the-pther provisions hereln shall remaln in full fome and efiect Tn the fillest exlantpemiliad by law. (Conliwed on Page 2}

32843 (2017} Fage {of 2 Rav, (8/03/2019



2. OWNERSHIP; PAYMENTS; TAXES AND FEES: We own the Equipment, excluding any Financed items. Ownership of any Financed Items shall remain with Supplier thereof. You will pay all Payments, as adjusted, when due, without
notice or demand and without abatement, set-off, counterclaim or deduction of any amount whatsoever. If any part of a Payment is more than 5 days late, you agree to pay a late charge equal to: a) the higher of 10% of the Payment which is
late or $26.00, or b) if less, the maximum charge allowed by law. The Payment may be adjusted proportionately upward or downward: (i) if the shipping charges or taxes differ from the estimate given to you; and/or (ii) to comply with the tax
laws of the state in which the Equipment is located. You shall pay all applicable taxes, assessments and penalties related to this Agreement, whether levied or assessed on this Agreement, on us {except on our income) or you, or on the
Equipment, its lease, sale, ownership, possession, use or operation. If we pay any taxes or other expenses that are owed hereunder, you agree to reimburse us when we request. We may charge you a processing fee for administering property
fax filings. You agree to pay us a fee of up to $50 for filing and/or searching costs required under the Uniform Commerciat Code (UCC™) or other laws. Yau agree o pay us an origination fee of up to $125 for all closing costs. We may apply
all sums received from you to any amounts due and owed to us under the terms of this Agreement. If for any reason your check is returned for insufficient funds, you will pay us a service charge of $30 or, if less, the maximum charge allowed
by law. We may make a profit on any fees, estmated tax payments and other charges paid under this Agreement.

3. EQUIPMENT; SECURITY INTEREST: Atyour expense, you shall keep the Equipment: (i) in good repair, condition and working order, in compliance with applicable laws, ordinances and manufacturers' and regulatory standards; (i} free
and clear of all liens and claims; and (iii) at your address shown on page 1, and you agree not to move it unless we agree in writing. You grant us a security interest in the Equipment to secure all amounts you owe us under this Agreement or
any other agreement with us ("Other Agreements™), except amounts under Other Agreements which are secured by land and/or buildings. You authorize and ratify our filing of any financing statement(s) to show our interest. You will not
change your name, state of organization, headquarters or residence without providing prior written notice to us. You will notify us within 30 days if your state of organization revokes or terminates your existence.

4. INSURANCE; COLLATERAL PROTECTION; INDEMNITY; LOSS OR DAMAGE: You agree to keep the Equipment fully insured against all risk, with us named as lender's loss payee, in an amount not less than the full replacement value
of the Equipment unti! this Agreement is terminated. You also agree to maintain commercial general liability insurance with such coverage and from such insurance carrier as shall be satisfactory to us and to include us as an additional insured
on the policy. You will provide written notice to us within 10 days of any modification or cancellation of your insurance policy(s). You agree to provide us certificates or other evidence of insurance acceptable to us. If you do not provide us
with acceptable evidence of property insurance within 30 days after the start of this Agreement, we may, at our sole discretion, do as provided in either (A) or (B) below: (A) We may secure property loss insurance on the Equipment from a
carrier of our cheosing in such forms and amounts as we deem reasonable to protect our interests. If we secure insurance on the Equipment, we will not name you as an insured party, your interests may not be fully protected, and you wil
reimburse us the premium which may be higher than the premium you would pay if you obtained insurance, and which may result in a profit to us through an investment in reinsurance. In addition, you agree to pay us our standard fees in
connection with obtaining such insurance. If you are current in &l of your obligations under the Agreement at the time of loss, any insurance proceeds received will be applied, at our aption, to repair or replace the Equipment, or to pay us the
remaining payments due or to become due under this Agreement, plus our booked residual, both discounted at 2% per annum. (B) We charge you a monthly property damage surcharge of up to .0035 of the Equipment cost as a result of our
credit risk and administrative and other costs, as would be further described on a letter from us to you. We may make a profit on this program. NOTHING IN THIS PARAGRAPH WILL RELIEVE YOU OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR LIABILITY
INSURANCE ON THE EQUIPMENT. We are not responsible for, and you agree to hold us harmless and reimburse us for and to defend on our behalf against, any claim for any loss, expense, liability or injury caused by or in any way related
to delivery, installation, possession, ownership, leasing, manufacture, use, condition, inspection, removal, return or storage of the Equipment. All indemnities will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. You are responsible for
any loss, theft, destruction or damage to the Equipment ("Loss"), regardiess of cause, whether or not insured. You agree to promptly notify us in writing of any Loss. If a Loss occurs and we have not otherwise agreed in writing, you will
promptly pay to us the unpaid balance of this Agreement, including any future Payments to the end of the term plus the anticipated residual value of the Equipment, both discounted to present value at 2%. Any proceeds of insurance will be
paid to us and credited against the Loss. You authorize us to sign on your behalf and appoint us as your attorney-in-fact to endorse in your name any insurance drafts or checks issued due t a Loss.

5. ASSIGNMENT: YOU SHALL NOT SELL, TRANSFER, ASSIGN, ENCUMBER, PLEDGE OR SUBLEASE THE EQUIPMENT OR THIS AGREEMENT, without our prior written consent. You shall not consolidate or merge with or into
any other entity, distribute, sell or dispose of all or any substantial portion of your assets other than in the ordinary course of business, without our prior writtien consent, and the surviving, or or entity or the transferee of such assets, as
the case may be, shall assume all of your obligations under this Agreement by a written instrument acceptable to us. No event shall occur which causes or results in a transfer of majority ownership of you while any obligations are outstanding
hereunder. We may sell, assign, or transfer this Agreement without notice to or consent from you. You agree that if we sell, assign or transfer this Agreement, our assignee will have the same rights and benefits that we have now and will not
have to perform any of our obligations. You agree that our assignee will not be subject to any claims, defenses, or offsets that you may have against us. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto
and their respective successors and assigns.

6. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES: You will be in default if: (i) you do not pay any Payment or other sum due to us or you fail to perform in accordance with the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement or any other agreement with us
or any of our affiliates or fail to perform or pay under any material agreement with any other entity; (i) you make or have made any false statement or misrepresentation to us; (iii) you or any guarantor dies, dissolves, liquidates, terminates
existence or is in bankruptcy; (iv) you or any guarantor suffers a material adverse change in its financial, business or operating condition; or (v) any guarantor defaults under any guaranty for this Agreement. If you are ever in default, at our
option, we can cance! this Agreement and require that you pay the unpaid balance of this Agreement, including any future Payments to the end of term plus the anticipated residual value of the Equipment, both discounted to present value at
2%. We may recover default interest on any unpaid amount at the rate of 12% per year. Concurrently and cumulatively, we may also use any remedies available to us under the UCC and any other law and we may require that you immediately
stop using any Financed items. If we take possession of the Equipment, you agres o pay the costs of repossession, moving, storage, repair and sale. The net proceeds of the sale of any Equipment will be credited against what you owe us
under this Agreement and you will be responsible for any deficiency. In the event of any dispute or enforcement of our rights under this Agreement or any related agreement, you agree to pay our reasonable atiomeys' fees (including any
incurred before or at trial, on appeal or in any other proceeding), actual court costs and any other collection costs, including any collection agency fee. WE SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE TO PAY YOU ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT
OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES FOR ANY DEFAULT, ACT OR OMISSION BY ANYONE. Any delay or failure to enforce our rights under this Agreement will not prevent us from enforcing any rights ata later time. You agree that this Agreement
is a "Finance Lease” as defined by Article 2A of the UCC and your rights and remedies are governed exclusively by this Agreement. You waive all rights under sections 2A-508 through 522 of the UCC. If interest is charged or collected in
excess of the maximum lawful rate, we will refund such excess to you, which will be your sole remedy.

7. INSPECTIONS AND REPORTS: We have the right, at any reasonable time, to inspect the Equipment and any documents relating to its installation, use, maintenance and repair. Within 30 days after our request (or such longer period as
provided herein), you will deliver all requested information (including tax returns) which we deem reasonably necessary to determine your current financial condition and faithful performance of the terms hereof. This may include: (i) compiled,
reviewed or audited annual financial statements (including, without limitation, a balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of cash flow, a statement of changes in equity and notes to financial statements) within 120 days after your
fiscal year end, and (i) management-prepared interim financial statements within 45 days after the requested reporting period(s). Annual statements shall set forth the corresponding figures for the prior fiscal year in comparative form, all in
reasonable detail without any qualification or exception deemed material by us. Unless otherwise accepted by us, each financial statement shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied
and shall fairly and accurately present your financial condition and results of operations for the period to which it pertains. You authorize us to obtain credit bureau reports for credit and collection purposes and to share them with our affiliates
and agents.

8. END OF TERM: Unless the purchase option is $1.00, at the end of the initial term, this Agreement shall renew for successive month-to-month renewal term(s) under the same terms hereof unless you send us written notice between 90 and
150 days before the end of the initial term or at least 30 days before the end of any renewal term that you want to purchase or refurn the Equipment, and you timely purchase or return the Equipment. You shall continue making Payments and
paying all other amounts due until the Equipment is purchased or retuned. As long as you have given us the required writlen notice, if you do not purchase the Equipment, you will retum all of the Equipment fo a location we specify, at your
expense, in retail re-saleable condition, full working order and complete repair. YOU ARE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ANY DATA THAT MAY RESIDE IN THE EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO HARD DRIVES,
DISK DRIVES OR ANY OTHER FORM OF MEMORY. You cannot pay off this Agreement or return the Equipment prior to the end of the initial term without our consent. [f we consent, we may charge you, in addition to other amounts owed,
an early termination fee equal to 5% of the price of the Equipment.

9. USA PATRIOT ACT NOTICE; ANTI-TERRORISM AND ANTI-CORRUPTION COMPLIANCE: To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain,
verify, and record information that identifies each customer who opens an account. When you enter into a transaction with us, we ask for your business name, address and other information that will allow us to identify you. We may also ask
1o see other documents that substantiate your business identity. You and any other person who you control, own a controlfing interest in, or who owns & controlling interest in or otherwise controls you in any manner ("Representatives”) are
and will remain in full compliance with all laws, regulations and govemment guidance concerning foreign asset control, trade sanctions, embargoes, and the prevention and detection of money laundering, bribery, corruption, and terrorism, and
neither you nor any of your Representatives is or will be listed in any Sanctions-related list of designated persons maintained by the U.S. Department of Treasury's Office of Foreign Assets Control or successor or the U.S. Department of State.
You shall, and shall cause any Representative to, provide such information and take such actions as are reasanably requested by us in order to assist us in maintaining compliance with anti-money laundering laws and regulations.

10. MISCELLANEOUS: Unless otherwise stated in an addendum hereto, the parties agree that: (i) this Agreement and any related documents hereto may be authenticated by electronic means; (i) the "original® of this Agreement shall be the
copy that bears your manual, facsimile, scanned or electronic signature and that also bears our manually or electronically signed signature and is held or controlled by us; and (jii) to the extent this Agreement constitutes chattel paper (as
defined by the UCC), a security interest may only be created in the original. You agree not to raise as a defense to the enforcement of this Agreement or any related documents that you or we executed or authenticated such documents by
electronic or digital means or that you used facsimile or other electronic means to fransmit your signature on such documents. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, we reserve the right o require you to sign this Agreement or any
related documents hereto manually and to send to us the manually signed, duly executed documents via overnight courier on the same day that you send us the facsimile, scanned or electronic ransmission of the documents. You agree to
execute any further documents that we may request to carry out the intents and purposes of this Agreement. Whenever our consent is required, we may withhold or condition such consent in our sole discretion, except as otherwise expressly
stated herein. From time to tme, Supplier may extend to us payment terms for Equipment financed under this Agreement that are mare favorable than what has been quoted to you or the general public, and we may provide Supplier information
regarding this Agreement if Supplier has assigned or referred it to us. All notices shall be mailed or delivered by facsimile transmission or overnight courier fo the respective parties at the addresses shown on this Agreement or such other
address as a parly may provide in writing from time to time. By providing us with a telephone number for a celiular phone or other wireless device, including a number that you later convert to a cellular number, you are expressly consenting to
receiving communications, including but not limited to prerecorded or artificial voice message calls, text messages, and calls made by an automatic telephone dialing system, from us and our affiliates and agents at that number. This express
consent applies to each such telephone number that you provide to us now or in the future and permits such calls for non-marketing purposes. Calls and messages may incur access fees from your cellular provider. You authorize us to make
non-material amendments (including completing and conforming the description of the Equipment) on any document in connection with this Agreement. Unless stated otherwise herein, all other modifications to this Agreement must be in
writing and signed by each party or in a duly authenticated electronic record. This Agreement may not be modified by course of performance.

11. WARRANTY DISCLAIMERS: WE ARE LEASING THE EQUIPMENT TO YOU "AS-IS." YOU HAVE SELECTED SUPPLIER AND THE EQUIPMENT BASED UPON YOUR OWN JUDGMENT. IN THE EVENT WE ASSIGN THIS
AGREEMENT, OUR ASSIGNEE DOES NOT TAKE RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE INSTALLATION OR PERFORMANCE OF THE EQUIPMENT. SUPPLIER 1S NOT AN AGENT OF QURS AND WE ARE NOT AN AGENT OF SUPPLIER,
AND NOTHING SUPPLIER STATES OR DOES CAN AFFECT YOUR OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER. YOU WILL MAKE ALL PAYMENTS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT REGARDLESS OF ANY CLAIM OR COMPLAINT AGAINST ANY
SUPPLIER, LICENSOR OR MANUFACTURER, AND ANY FAILURE OF A SERVICE PROVIDER TO PROVIDE SERVICES WILL NOT EXCUSE YOUR OBLIGATIONS TO US UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. WE MAKE NO WARRANTIES,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF, AND TAKE ABSOLUTELY NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, CONDITION, QUALITY, ADEQUACY, TITLE, DATA ACCURACY, SYSTEM
INTEGRATION, FUNCTION, DEFECTS, INFRINGEMENT OR ANY OTHER ISSUE IN REGARD TO THE EQUIPMENT, ANY ASSOCIATED SOFTWARE AND ANY FINANCED ITEMS. SO LONG AS YOU ARE NOT IN DEFAULT UNDER
THIS AGREEMENT, WE ASSIGN TO YOU ANY WARRANTIES IN THE EQUIPMENT GIVEN TO US.

12. LAW; JURY WAIVER: This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the principal place of business of Lessor or, if assigned, its assignee. You consent to jurisdiction and venue of any state or federal
court in the state of Lessor or, if assigned, its assignee has its principal place of business and waive the defense of inconvenient forum. For any action arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the Equipment, BOTH PARTIES WAIVE ALL
RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY.

13. MAINTENANCE AND SUPPLIES: You have elected to enter into a separate amangement with Supplier for maintenance, inspection, adjustment, parts replacement, drums, cleaning material required for proper operation and toner and
developer (*Arrangement”). You agree to pay all amounts owing under this Agreement regardless of any claim you have against Supplier relating to the Arrangement. Supplier will be solely responsible for performing all services and providing
all supplies under the Arrangement. You agree not to hold Lessor (if different from Supplier) or any assignee of this Agreement responsible for Supplier’s obligations under the Arrangement. As a convenience to you, we will provide you with
one invoice covering amounts owing under this Agreement and the Arrangement. If necessary, Supplier's obligations to you under the Arangement may be assigned by us. You agree to pay a monthly supply freight fee to cover the costs of
shipping supplies to you. Each month, you are entilied to produce the minimum number of pages shown on page 1 of this Agreement for each applicable page type. Regardless of the number of pages made, you will never pay less than the
minimum Payment. You agree to provide periodic meter readings on the Equipment. You agree to pay the applicable overage charge for each metered page that exceeds the applicable minimum number of pages. Pages made on equipment
marked as not financed under this Agreement will be included in determining your page and overage charges. At the end of the first year of this Agreement, and once each successive 12-month period thereafter, the maintenance and supplies
portion of the Payment and the overage charges may be increased by a maximum of 15% of the existing payment or charge. In order o facilitate an orderly transition, the start date of this Agreement will be the date the Equipment is delivered
to you or a date designated by us, as shown on the first invoice. If a later start date is designated, in addition to all Payments and other amounts due hereunder, you agree to pay us a transitional payment equal to 1/30th of the Payment,
multiplied by the number of days between the date the Equipment is delivered to you and the designated start date. The first Payment is due 30 days after the start of this Agreement and each Payment thereafter shall be due on the same day
of each month.
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STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT ADDENDUM

Addendum to Agreement # , between City of Dixon, Mo Municipal Government, as Customer and GFI Digital, Inc., as Lessor. The words “you”
and “your” refer to Customer. The words “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Lessor. In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions of the
Agreement and this Addendum, the terms and conditions of this Addendum shall control, and in the event of any conflict between the general provisions
of this Addendum and any provision of this Addendum that expressly applies to you only if you are a political subdivision, county, city, or schoot district of
specific state (“State-Specific Provision”), then the State Specific Provision shall control.

1. The parties wish to amend the above-referenced Agreement by adding the following language:

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF CUSTOMER: You hereby represent and warrant to us that: (i) you have been duly authorized under the Constitution and laws of the
applicable jurisdiction and by a resolution or other authority of your goveming body to execute and deliver this Agreement and to carry out your obligations hereunder; (ij) all legal
requirements have been met, and procedures have been folfowed, including public bidding, in order to ensure the enforceability of this Agreement; (iil) this Agreement is in compliance with
alllaws applicable to you, including any debt limitations or limitations on interest rates or finance charges; (iv) the Equipment will be used by you only for essential govemmental or proprietary
functions of you consistent with the scope of your authority, will not be used in a trade or business of any person or entity, by the federal government or for any personal, family or household
use, and your need for the Equipment is not expected to diminish during the term of this Agreement; (v) you have funds available to pay Payments until the end of your current appropriation
period, and you intend to request funds to make Payments in each appropriation period, from now until the end of the term of this Agreement; and (vi) your exact legal name is as set forth
on page one of this Agreement.

INITIAL TERM AND RENEWAL TERM(S): The term of the Agreement consists of an initial term beginning on the date we pay Supplier and ending at the end of your fiscal year in which
we pay Supplier, and a series of renewal terms, each co-extensive with your fiscal year. Except to the extent required by applicable law, if you do not exercise your right o terminate the
Agreement under the Non-Appropriation or Renewal paragraph as of the end of any fiscal year, the Agreement will be deemed automatically renewed for the next succeeding renewal term.

An election by you to ferminate the Agreement under the Non-Appropriation or Renewal paragraph is not a defautf.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Agreement, if we cancel the Agreement following a default by you, we may require that you pay the unpaid balance of Payments
under the Agreement through the end of your then-current fiscal year, but we may not require you to pay future Payments due beyond that fiscal year or the anticipated residual value of
the Equipment. If we sell the Equipment following a default by you, you will not be responsible for a deficiency, except to the extent of our costs of repossession, moving, storage, repair
and sale, and our attomeys’ fees and costs.

NON-APPROPRIATION OR RENEWAL: If either sufficient funds are not appropriated to make Payments or any other amounts due under this Agreement or (to the extent required by
applicable taw) this Agreement is not renewed either automatically or by mutual ratification, this Agreement shall terminate and you shall not be obligated to make Payments under this
Agreement beyond the then-current fiscal year for which funds have been appropriated. Upon such an event, you shall, no later than the end of the fiscal year for which Payments have
been appropriated or the term of this Agreement has been renewed, deliver possession of the Equipment to us. If you fail to deliver possession of the Equipment to us, the termination
shall nevertheless be effective but you shall be responsible, to the extent permitted by law and legally avaitable funds, for the payment of damages in an amount equal to the portion of
Payments thereafter coming due that is attributable to the number of days after the termination during which you fail to deliver possession and for any other loss suffered by us as a result
of your failure to deliver possession as required. You shall notify us in writing within seven days after (i) your failure to appropriate funds sufficient for the payment of the Payments or (i)
to the extent required by applicable law, (a) this Agreement is not renewed or (b) this Agreement is renewed by you (in which event this Agreement shall be mutually ratified and renewed),
provided that your failure to give any such notice under clause (i) or (ii) of this sentence shall not operate to extend this Agreement or result in any liability to you.

SUPPLEMENTS; SEPARATE FINANCINGS: To the extent applicable, in the event that the parties hereafter mutually agree to execute and deliver any supplement or schedule
(“Supplement’) under the above-referenced Agreement, such Supplement, as it incorporates the terms and conditions of the Agreement, shall be a separate financing distinct from the
Agreement or other Supplements thereto. Without limiting the foregoing, upon the occurrence of an event of default or a non-appropriation event with respect to the Agreement or a
Supplement (each, a separate “Contract’), as applicable, we shall have the rights and remedies specified in the Agreement with respect fo the Equipment financed and the Payments
payable under such Contract, and we shalt have no rights or remedies with respect to Equipment financed or Payments payable under any other Contract unless an event of default or non-
appropriation event has also occurred under such other Contract.

2. The parties wish to amend the above-referenced Agreement by restating certain language as follows:

Any provision in the Agreement stating that you shall indemnify and hold us harmless is hereby amended and restated as follows: “You shall not be required to indemnify or hold us
harmiess against liabilities arising from this Agreement. However, as between you and us, and to the extent permitted by law and legally available funds, you are responsible for and shall
bear the risk of loss for, shall pay directly, and shall defend against any and all claims, liabilities, proceedings, actions, expenses, damages or losses arising under or related to the
Equipment, including, but not limited to, the possession, ownership, lease, use or operation thereof, except that you shall not bear the risk of loss of, nor pay for, any claims, liabilities,
proceedings, actions, expenses, damages or losses that arise directly from events occurring after you have sumrendered possession of the Equipment in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement to us or that arise directly from our gross negligence or willful misconduct.

Any provision in the Agreement stating that the Agreement is governed by a particular state’s laws and you consent to such jurisdiction and venue is hereby amended and restated as
follows: “This Agreement will be govemed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state where you are located. You consent fo jurisdiction and venue of any state or federal
court in such state and waive the defense of inconvenient forum.”

Any provision in the Agreement stating this Agreement supersedes any invoice and/or purchase order is hereby amended and restated as follows: “You agree that the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, which, with the acceptance certification, is the entire agreement between you and us regarding the Equipment and which supersedes any purchase order,
invoice, request for proposal, response or other related document.”

Any provision in the Agreement stating that this Agreement shall automatically renew unless the Equipment is purchased, retumed or a notice requirement is satisfied is hereby amended
and restated as follows: “Unless the purchase option is $1.00 or $101.00, you agree to send us written notice at least 30 days before the end of the final renewal term that you want to
purchase or retumn the Equipment, and you agree to so purchase or retumn the Equipment not later than the end of the final renewal term. If you fail to so purchase or retum the Equipment
at or before the end of the final renewal term, you shall be a holdover tenant with respect to this Agreement and the Equipment, and this Agreement shall renew on a manth-to-month basis
under the same terms hereof until the Equipment has been purchased or retumed.”

Any provision in the Agreement stating that we may assign this Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows: “We may sell, assign, or transfer this Agreement without notice to
or consent from you, and you waive any right you may have to such notice or consent.”

Any provision in the Agreement stating that you grant us a security interest in the Equipment to secure all amounts owed to us under any agreement is hereby amended and restated as
follows: “To the extent permitted by law, you grant us a securily interest in the Equipment to secure all amounts you owe us under this Agreement and any supplements hereto. You
authorize and ratify our filing of any financing statement(s) and the naming of us on any vehicle title(s) to show our interest.”

NOTE: CAPITALIZED TERMS IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE DEFINED AS IN THE AGREEMENT, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED OTHERWISE.
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Any provision in the Agreement stating that a defautt by you under any agreement with our affiliates or other lenders shall be an event of default under the Agreement is hereby amended
and restated as follows: “You will be in default if: (i) you do not pay any Payment or other sum due to us under this Agreement when due or you fail to perform in accordance with the
covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement; (if) you make or have made any false statement or misrepresentation to us; or (iii) you dissolve, liquidate, terminate your existence or
are in bankruptcy.

Any provision in the Agreement stating that you shall pay our attorneys’ fees is hereby amended and restated as follows: “In the event of any dispute or enforcement of rights under this
Agreement or any related agreement, you agree to pay, to the extent permitted by law and to the éxtent of legally available funds, our reasonable attomneys’ fees (including any incurred
before or at trial, on appeal or in any other proceeding), actual court costs and any other collection costs, including any collection agency fee.”

Any provision in the Agreement requiring you to pay amounts due under the Agreement upon the occurrence of a default, failure to appropriate funds or failure to renew the Agreement is
hereby amended fo limit such requirement to the extent permitted by law and legally available funds.

3. your end-of-term option is the purchase of all Equipment for $1.00 or $101.00, the following applies: Unless otherwise required by law, upon your acceptance of the Equipment,
title to the Equipment shall be in your name, subject to our interest under this Agreement ; provided, however, that if you are a political subdivision of any of the States of Colorado, Georgia,
Louisiana, Minnesota, Ohio or Oklahoma, and if your end-of-term option is the purchase of all Equipment for $1.00 or $101.00, title to the Equipment shalf be in our name, subject to your
interest under the Agreement.

4. With respect to any “Financed Items,” the following provisions shall be applicable to such Financed tems:

This Addendum concems the granting to you of certain software and/or software ficense(s) (‘Licensed Software”), the purchase by you of certain software components, including but not
limited to, software maintenance and/or support (“Products”) and/or the purchase by you of certain implementation, integration, training, technical consulting and/or professional services in
connection with software (“Services") (collectively, the “Financed Items”) from software licensor(s) and/or supplier(s) {collectively, the “Supplier’), all as further described in the agreement(s)
between you and Supplier (collectively, the “Product Agreement’). For essential govemmental purposes only, you have requested and we have agreed that instead of you paying the fees
pursuant to the Product Agreement to Supplier for the Financed Items, we will satisfy your obligation to pay such fees to Supplier, and in consideration thereof, you shall repay the sums
advanced by us to Supplier by promptly making certain installment payments to us, which are included in the Payments set forth in the Agreement.

To the extent permitted by law, you grant us a security interest in the license(s), including without limitation, afl of your rights in the Licensed Software granted thereunder, the Products, all
rights to payment under the Product Agreement, the Financed ttems, and all proceeds of the foregoing to secure all amounts you owe us under this Agreement. You authorize and ratify
our filing of any financing statement(s) to show our interest.

Ownership of any Licensed Software shall remain with Supplier thereof. All Financed ltems shall be provided by a Supplier unrelated to us, and your rights with respect to such Financed
Items shall be govemed by the Product Agreement between you and Supplier, which shall not be affected by this Agreement. [N NO EVENT SHALL WE HAVE ANY OBLIGATION TO
PROVIDE ANY FINANCED ITEMS, AND ANY FAILURE OF SUPPLIER TO PROVIDE ANY FINANCED ITEMS SHALL NOT EXCUSE YOUR OBLIGATIONS TO US IN ANY WAY. YOU
HAVE SELECTED SUPPLIER AND THE FINANCED ITEMS BASED UPON YOUR OWN JUDGMENT. WE DO NOT TAKE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE INSTALLATION OR
PERFORMANCE OF THE FINANCED ITEMS. SUPPLIER IS NOT AN AGENT OF OURS AND WE ARE NOT AN AGENT OF SUPPLIER, AND NOTHING SUPPLIER STATES OR DOES
CAN AFFECT YOUR OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER. YOU WILL MAKE ALL PAYMENTS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT REGARDLESS OF ANY CLAIM OR COMPLAINT AGAINST ANY
SUPPLIER, LICENSOR OR MANUFACTURER, AND ANY FAILURE OF A SERVICE PROVIDER TO PROVIDE SERVICES WILL NOT EXCUSE YOUR OBLIGATIONS TO US UNDER
THIS AGREEMENT. WE MAKE NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE FINANCED ITEMS COVERED BY THE PRODUCT AGREEMENT AND TAKE ABSOLUTELY
NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR AS TO ANY PATENT, TRADEMARK OR COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT,
CONDITION, QUALITY, ADEQUACY, TITLE, DATA ACCURACY, SYSTEM INTEGRATION, FUNCTION, DEFECTS OR ANY OTHER ISSUE IN REGARD TO THE FINANCED ITEMS.
YOU HEREBY WAIVE ANY CLAIM (INCLUDING ANY CLAIM BASED ON STRICT LIABILITY OR ABSOLUTE LIABILITY IN TORT) THAT YOU MAY HAVE AGAINST US FOR ANY
LOSS, DAMAGE (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF DATA OR ANY OTHER DAMAGES) OR EXPENSE CAUSED BY THE FINANCED ITEMS
COVERED BY THE PRODUCT AGREEMENT OR A TERMINATION OF THE FINANCED ITEMS PURSUANT TO AN EVENT OF DEFAULT, EVEN IF WE HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF
THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE, LOSS, EXPENSE OR COST.

The following shall be additional events of default under the Agreement: (i) you fail to perform in accordance with the covenants, terms and conditions of the Product Agreement, or (i) the
Product Agreement is terminated, suspended, materially restricted or limited.

The following shall be additional remedies we have for your default under the Agreement: We shall have the right to: (a) cause the termination of the Financed Iltems and you irrevocably
consent to such termination of the Financed Items by Supplier; and (b) require you to immediately stop using the Financed Items (regardless of whether you are in default under the Product
Agreement) and you shall, at our option, either deliver to us a certification executed by a duly authorized officer certifying that you have ceased use of the Financed ltems or deliver the
Financed items to a location designated by us. In the event you are entitled to transfer the right to use the Financed Items to any third party, you hereby agree fo transfer any such right to
use the Financed Items to any third party selected by us and acknowledge that you shall have no right to fees payable by any third party in connection with such transfer. However, we
shall not be required to mitigate our damages caused by a default by transferring any Financed Items to a third party.

5. if you are a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, the following applies: We understand that you may cancel the Agreement within three years after the start date of the
Agreement if any person significantly involved in negotiating, drafting, securing or obtaining the Agreement for or on your behalf becomes, during the term of the Agreement, our employee
or agent or becomes, during the term of the Agreement, a consultant to us with respect to the subject matter of the Agreement.

6. If you are a school district in the State of California and your end-of-term option is the purchase of all Equipment for $1.00 or $101.00, the following applies: You will be
deemed to have acquired title to the Equipment from the Supplier on the date we pay for it, and you hereby sell, transfer and convey the Equipment to us on that date. You represent to us
that the resolution of your goveming body authorizing the execution and delivery of the Agreement contained a finding that the Equipment is a major item of equipment or data processing
equipment and that the sale and leaseback of the Equipment was the most economical means of providing the Equipment to you.

7. If you are a political subdivision of the State of Florida, the following applies: We agree that there is no intention to create under the Agreement a right in us to dispossess you
involuntarily of your interests in or the right of use of the Equipment. We hereby imevocably waive any right to specific performance of your covenant to return possession of the Equipment
to us if you default or exercise your right not to appropriate funds to make Payments. We acknowledge that Payments may not be payable from ad valorem taxes, and in no event may we
compel the use of ad valorem taxing power for you to make Payments.

If the end-of-term option for the Agreement is the purchase of all Equipment for $1.00 or $101.00, you agree that you will give all notices and file all reports with the State Division of Finance
as may be required in connection with the Agreement by Florida Statutes Annotated Section 218.38 and the rules adopted thereunder.

8. If you are a county of the State of Florida and your end-of term option is the purchase of all Equipment for $1.00 or $101.00, the following applies: If the term of the Agreement
exceeds five (5) years, you represent and covenant to us that Payments will be paid from sources other than ad valorem taxes, and that the Agreement has been approved by our Board
of County Commissioners.

9. If you are a political subdivision in the State of Georgia, the following applies: You represent to us that your acquisition or lease (or other financing) of the Equipment has not been
the subject of a referendum or a proposed issuance of bonded debt which failed to receive the appraval of your voters within the four calendar years immediately preceding the start date
of the Agreement.

10. If you are a school district in the State of Georgia, the following applies: The term of the Agreement will consist of an original term, which will commence on the date we pay the
Supplier and will continue through the end of the then-current calendar year, and a series of renewal terms, each having a duration of one calendar year. You will have the right to terminate
the Agreement pursuant to the Non-Appropriation or Renewal paragraph at the end of each calendar year, and at the end of each fiscal year, if sufficient funds are not appropriated for such
fiscal year or calendar year to make Payments. If you do not exercise your right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to the Non-Appropriation or Renewal paragraph at the end of any
calendar year or fiscal year, the Agreement will be deemed to have been automatically renewed for the next calendar year or fiscal year, as applicable.

NOTE: CAPITALIZED TERMS IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE DEFINED AS IN THE AGREEMENT, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED OTHERWISE.
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1%, Wyou aie a political subdivision of the Stale of daho, the following applies: If you are raquired under the Agresment to make any payments fo us {other tan & Payment) during
any fiscal year during the term of the Agreement In the avent of {2) a late payment charge for Sayments, (b} an advance by us which you are required 1o Tepay, {6} an Indemulty paymeant
you owa o s, or {d} any other addifional payment obligation yout twe to us under the Agreemtent {callectively, the "Additional Payments”), the Additional Payments shel be payable salely
from legrilly apprepriated funds avalleble for such flscalyeer {"Avallable Finds™). Tothe extant Avaliaile Funds are not avaitable forsuch fsnal year for payment of the Addifonal Payments,
then the Addifionat Payrents shad be sublect to appropriation for the following fiscal year, o tha fiscal year following tha fina fise:sd year of the tenn of the Agreement, if the Additionzl
Payment wag Incured i1 the final fiscal year of the term of this Agreement. Fallure trso approypriate the Additionat Payments for the following scal year in each such case shall ba a non-
appropriation describad in the Non-Appropriation or Renewal paragraph «f the Agrestment, providing the remadies to us for such an guent In said paragraph. You will nof be eniitled to
prapay the Agreemant or fo exarcle your option o purchase the Equipment at the nd of the term of the Agresment so long 23 8ny Addional Payments are outstanding and wnpaid.

12, Fyou are a political subdivision of the State of Kansas, the folloving applies: We agree thak you are obligated only to pay Payments undar the Agteemant a8 may lawlully ba
made from furds buegeted and appropriated for that puryose during the fen-current fiacal yaar, or funds made available from any kauly oparated revenue producing scirce. K you are
a school distipt, you mprasent and warrantto ug that your Board of Education, by resolufion 2nprovad by a majority of members of the Board of Education, has closted 0 omit the mandatory
contrast provisions prescribed by the Kanisas Depariment of Adminlsiration 1 fom DA-148a, a5 amended, from the Agreement, and such provisions & hereby so onnitied; provided,
ficwever, that this elestion does not atithorize the orvlsslon from the Agreament of the provisions of Kansan Stafites Annotated (YC8.A") § 72-4148 {refaied to indemnification and hold
hammess provisions) of § 724147 (applicable law shall be Kansas law and applicable courts shall bs Kansas courts), 28 amended, To the extent that the terms of the Agreement Isin
conflict with the tems of K.S.A, § 72-1146 or K.S.A, § 72-1147, the terms of K.S.A. § 72-1146 and K.5.A, § 72-1147 shall prevail

13, 1 you are a poliiical subdivision of ihe Stafe of Kentucky an your end-gferm option Is the purchase of all Equipmant for $1.00 or $101.00, the following applies: You
represent to us that you have in connection with the Agresment glven all noflces ta and chizined al consents frot the site local debt officer (or in the case of a schott district, the chief
state school officar) requinsd by applicable law.

14, if you ave & school district of the Sixte of Miscour and youy end-of-tatm oplicn is the purchase of all Enuipment for $1.00 o7 £101.60, the following applies: You represent
to us that Payments under the Agreeriiend whl ba pald fom the capital outlay fund, and that sufficlent funds necessary fo make Paymenis fequired undsr the Agresmsant have been
appiopriated {o the capital oulay fund for the fstal year tat nchudes the commencement date of the Agresment,

5. Ifyou are a political subdivision of e State of Newada, the Tollowing applles: You rapresent 1o us fhot, to the extent required by applicable law {a) the Agreamsnt has been
approved by the Executive Director of the Nevada Tax Commisslon, {b) the Agreement was approved by resclution of your governing body, and suoh resolution was approved by two-hirds
of the members ¢f such poverning body, and (g) the resolution approving the Agreement was In form {hat complles with Nevada Revised Statues Section 350,087, fnchding e requived
findings of fact, end was puhlished in accordance with tha requiements af Section 250,087, To the extent required by appiicable law, you agree to update your plan for capitel {mprovements
in accordance with the requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes Seclion 350.031.

16, Hyou are 2 school distslet of the State of Mew Jersey, the following applies: You represent fo us hat (=) vou have compiied with sl niles and regulations of the New Jersey Siate
Board of Edusation appicable to the leasing of tre Financed ltems undsi the Agreement, {b) you have comped with and wil continus to somply with all rufes and rqulations refaled to
New Jersey Stelute 18A:18A-4.6, {¢) you are not entering into the Agresment t finance malnienance, quarantess, or verification of guarantees of ensargy conservation measures, and {d)
you will not except ovt the Agreement fran any bidget of fax levy fimltation othenwise provided by law. -

17, Fyou ave a pofitical subdivision of the Staie of Hew York, the following applies: The Agreamant shall be desmed executory only to the extent of monles appropriated and
avaitabla for the purpose of the Agreemant, and no liability o accouni hersof shafl be ingurred by you beyond the amount of such monies. The Agreement 15 not your geners! obfgation,
Naither your full faith and crodt nor your texing power are pledged to the payment of any amount dus or to hecome due uader the Agreament, If Is understood that neither the Agreement
nor any representation by any public employee of officer creatad any lsgal or moral pbEgation to appropriate or make monles avallabls for the pirposss of the Agreoment

15, §fyou are & pelitical subdivision of the Stats of Ollahoma, the following applies: The Agreement will terminate at the end of gach fiscal year unless you and we ralify the reriewal
hareof, and any such tsmaiation wil be freated as a non-apptopriation undar the Noa-Appropriation or Renewal paragraph of the Agreement,

4, W you ans a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsyluania, the following applies; You represent to us that you have complied with the Pennsylvania Local
Govemment Unit Debt Act, Pa, Corie, Stat, 11, 53, Sectoms 8007 to 8049 {inoluding fling of debl staement and advariisement of propesed firancing) In connection with the Agresment,

20. i yon are 4 political subdivision of the State of South Dakola, the following apglies: You rapresent to us that the Agreament has been apprved by the reguisite number of
membars of your govemlng body, IFyou are 2 schonl distric, you represent and covenant {o ua fiat all Payments under the Agresment will be pald f:om your capital oullay fund and that
you have nof recafved any petilions from your voters requesting voter approval ofthe Aureesnent, and the fime for fiing such pelifions has explred.

2. Evou are a sshce] district in the State of West Virpinia, the following applies: Any acion, sult or proceeding arising out of or relating to the Agreement shall be tried In the West
Viginia Cowrt of Claiims, and we hereby ecnsent to the fusisdiction and venue in sueh court. You will have o pbigation % pay.any taxes assoclaled with fhe use, ovmership or acquisition
of e Equipment unless the use, ownership or acaulsiion of the Equipment is determined by fiial non-appealable judicial order t e subject to taxation, in which event you shell, o the
extor pemitied by applcable taw, pay sush taxes. If you recelve rotice fiom any faxing authorty alieaing that the Equipment Is subject to property taxes, you will () give prosmp witlen
notice o s, {b) contest such allegations by proper proceedings, and (¢) to the extent pemmitted by appicable law, and without prejudice i the posiiton that the Equipment should be exempt
from alt property faes, establish resarves for the payment of such taxes as required by general acoepled accounting principles. We understand that you do not waive the benefit of any
statute of limkiations govesning the tne In which we may bring suit against you under he Agreement. You will not be ohligated o pay any attormeys' fees incurrad by us In commection wilh
any slt, action, proceeding ot ofher exarcise of remedies ender the Agieemant absent a final, non-appealable order of a court of compatent Jurisdiotion awarding attomeys' fess 1o us. We
aga6 ot {0 repossess the Equipment foflowing a default or non-appropiration under the Agreament without giving saven (7) days prior wiitten netice to you. Following the repossession
of fefirn of the Equipment as a result of a default or non-appropriation, you will have the right to acquire or lease slmllar property without restricion. We undessiand that the Agresmant is
a public record under the West Virginla Freedem of information Act, - . S ) ’ e

By slgning this Addendum, Customer acknowledges the above changes to the Agresementand authorizes Lessor to make such changes,
tn the event of any conflict between this Addandum and the Agreement, this Addendum shall prevail, In all other respects, the terms and
conditions of the Agreement remair in full force and effect and remaln binding on Customer.

~ GF1 Digital, Inc. _ City of Dixan, Mo Munigipal Government
Lessor ' Customer Mﬂw‘"’” e L

o | S:ighatufe ; -

Daté Title ~ Date

Title

NOTE: CAPITALIZED TERMS IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE DEFINED AS IN THE AGREEMENT, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED OTHERWISE.
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ORDINANCE NO. £Q\@

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING REAL ESTATE INTO THE

BILL NO:_2024-0048

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DIXON
WHEREAS the City of Dixon is a City of the Fourth Class, and

WHEREAS the City of Dixon has received a Petition for Annexation from the owner of
a parcel of real estate requesting annexation into the City of Dixon; and

WHEREAS the parcel of real estate is contiguous and compact to the current corporate
limits of the City of Dixon, and

WHEREAS a public hearing was held on December 2, 2024, and

WHEREAS no objection has been filed regarding the proposed annexation, and

WHEREAS the annexation is reasonable and necessary to the proper development of the
City, and

WHEREAS the City is able to furnish normal municipal services to the parcels being
annexed.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF
DIXON:

Section 1: The Real Estate described as follows:

All of Lots 11A,; 11 & 12 in Block 9 of the LIONS ADDITION (a/k/a Lions Club
Addition) to the City of Dixon, Pulaski County, Missouri per the plat thercof filed
in the Recorder’s Office of Pulaski County Missouri.

is hereby annexed into the Corporate limits of the City of Dixon.
Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON. MISSOURI, AND
APPROVED THIS 2" DAY OF \ Yocomng (2024
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PETITION FOR ANNEXATION

By completing this document, the undersigned petitioner(s) are verifying the following:

Is

The undersigned is the owner of all fee interest in that real property described in Exhibit “A”, a copy of
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

Said property described in Exhibit “A” is not currently a part of any incorporated municipality.

Said property described in Exhibit “A” is contiguous and compact to the existing corporate limits of the
City of Dixon, Missouri.

The undersigned hereby petitions the City Council of the City of Dixon, Missouri, for voluntary
annexation of the real property described in Exhibit “A” and that it be included within the corporate limits
of the City of Dixon, Missouri as authorized by the provisions of 71.012, RSMo 2000.

The undersigned requests that the City Council of the City of Dixon require public notice to be published
and to conduct the public hearing required by law and to thereafter adopt an ordinance extending the limits
of the City of Dixon to include the real property described in Exhibit “A.”

The undersigned acknowledges and agrees that by submitting this petition, the City of Dixon will extend
valuable resources reviewing and researching the validity of this petition and planning for the annexation
requested. Accordingly, we hereby stipulate and agree that our request and consent to annexation shall be
irrevocable. We further agree to fully cooperate with the City of Dixon and take all acts necessary to enact,
approve and effectuate the annexation requests in this Petition. The undersigned acknowledges that the
City of Dixon will expend valuable resources, funds and labor in reliance on representation, stipulation
and agreement that this request and consent will not be withdrawn and is irrevocable,

-

I am Helen Rae Reynolds.

I am a managing member of FGR ENTERPRISES, LLC.

FGR ENTERPRISES, LLC owns the property described in Exhibit “A”.

Helen Rae Reunolds M Da Ao

' Applicant Name (prirlf) v Applicant signature ©

Property Address(es) 3@ 5 E)d, ” PM K 'IFL&{ ) D’ X o) MD (.96 LP@?
Mailing Address | 420 Hhaward | p ,Dixon M0 LM 59
Phone Number(s) o) -4'5 29| PP :H'}

**See Back Page for Notary Requirement**



STATE OF MISSOURI )
S8

S’

COUNTY OF PULASKI )

Onthis 13™ day of, Novewlser 20 2Y , before me appeared Heie, n Koe ‘eo.u‘ nolds , known to
me to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same as
their own free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, in the County and State
aforesaid, the day and year last above written.

‘ é U N ;ﬁ (2 KELLI K. LIVENGOOD
: - Notary Public - Nocary Seal
Notary Public Signature o STATE OF MISSOURI
County - Maries
. . . Commission # 22524453
Printed Name: ¢y K. Liv eu\s ool My Commission Expires: 03/06/2026

My Commission Expires: 03| ot [zoz 0

(Seal)
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WARRANTY DEED

THIS INDENTURE, Made onthe 43 day of ¢dctober 2024, by and between Helen
Rae Reynolds and Jess Reynolds (AKA Jess W. Reynolds), wife and husband, of the County of
Pulaski and State of Missouri, parties of the first part or Grantors, and FGR Enterprises, LLC, of the
County of Pulaski and State of Missouri, party of the second part or Grantee, (mailing address of Grantee
is: 14250 IHoward Lane, Dixon, MO 65459 ;)

WITNESSETH, That the said parties of the first part, in consideration of the sum of OTHER
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION AND TEN & NO/100 - - - - -DOLLARS to them paid by the
said party of the second part, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, do by these presents Grant,
Bargain and Sell, Convey anéd Confirm unto the said party of the second part, its successors and assigns,
the following described lots, tracts or parcels of land, lying, being and situate in the County of Pulaski

and State of Missouri, to-wit:

Allof Lots 11A, 11 & 12 in Block 9 of the Lions Addition (a/k/a Lions Club Addition) to the
City of Dixon, Pulaski County, Missouri, per the plat thereof filed in the Recorder’s Office of Pulaski
County, Missouri.

ALSO All of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter in Section
36, Township 36 North, Range 13 West of 5th P.M. EXCEPT the following described tract of 1 % acre
more or less retained by owners; Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of Highway
"W" and the South subsection line of the Northwest Quarter of Southeast Quarter of Southwest Quarter,
said Section 36, Township 36 North, Range 13 West; thence North along West right-of-way line of
Highway "W" 210 feet; thence West 315 feet; thence South to the aforesaid South subsection line 210
feet; thence East 315 feet to the point of beginning. ALSO EXCEPT tract conveyed to John Shortell and
Heather Shortell, husband and wife in Document No. 2003-7901.

ALSO A part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 26, Township 38
North, Range 11 West of the 5" P.M. described as follows: Commencing at the Northeast Corner of said
Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter; thence along the East line of said Northwest Quarter of the
Northwest Quarter South 0% 09' 09" East 55.40 feet to the Southerly right-of-way line of Missouri
Highway “C” and the point of beginning; thence along said Southerly right-of-way line North 71° 39" 30"
West 62.80 feet; thence with same North §7° 41' 30" West 59.17 feet; thence leaving said South right-of-
way line South 0° 27' 34" East 88.15 feet; thence South 80° 24' 12" East 119.93 feet to the East line of

Page 1



said Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter; thence along said East line North 0° 09' 09" West
86.00 feet to the point of beginning. Description per Survey No. H-0407 by Heimbaugh Surveying Co.,
LLC.

ALSO conveying Grantors right to use of easement described in Document No. 2012-2206 to the said
Grantees. Subject to ecasements, restrictions and reservations of record.

THIS DOCUMENT, INCLUDING THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION, WAS PREPARED BY WARREN &
WARREN, SOLELY UPON INFORMATION FURNISHED BY THE PARTIES OR THEIR AGENTS
AND WITHOUT TITLE SEARCH OR EXAMINATION.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, The Premises aforesaid, with all and singular rights, privileges,
appurtenances and immunities thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining unto the said party of the
second part, and unto its successors and assigns forever; the said parties of the first part hereby
covenanting that they are lawfully seized of an indefeasible estate in fee in the premises herein conveyed;
that they have good right to convey the same; that the said premises are free and clear of any
encumbrances done or suffered by them or those under whom they claim, and that they will Warrant and
Defend the title to the said premises unto the party of the second part, and unto its successors and
assigns, forever, against the lawful claims and demands of all persons whomsoever.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The said parties of the first part have hereunto set their hands the day
and year first above written.

/) % ) (
Ml Gy fo e
Ilelen Rae Reynolds v J%fnolds AXA Jess W, Reynolds

STATE OF MISSOURI |
) SS
- COUNTY OF PULASKI 3
Onthis A3 dayof Oedober , 2024, before me personally appeared Helen Rae

Reynolds and Jess Reynolds (AKA Jess W. Reynolds, wife and husband, to me known to be the
persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed
the same as their free act and deed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my

office in \a\)&-\\lﬂc ayv/l , Missouri, the day and year first above written.
7
My commission expires: IRERY
BARTON B WARREN N
Notary Public - Notary Seal = .
STATE OF MISSOUR) (LA77 " Notary Public

Commissioned for Pulaski Count
My Cnmm:ssroq Expires 1/24/2028
Commission # 16181304
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Bouard of Alderman of the City of Dixon will hold a
public hearing at 6:00 p.an. oras soon as possible therealter,
on Monday December 2, 2024 at the Dixon City Hall, 305
S. Elm Street. Dixon, Missouri 65459, The hearing is being
held pursuant to the requirements of Section 71.012 of the
Revised Statutes of Missouri regarding the Voluntary
annexation procedure.

I'. Petition for annexation into the incorporated city limits
of the City of Dixon of the following address:

a.Lots 1A, 11 & 12 in Block 9 ol the Lions Addition.
Dixon, MO 63459,

2. A copy of the pelition is available for review at the
Office of the City of Dixon City Clerk at Dixon City Hall
during regular business hours.

3. All interested persons shall be given an opportunity to

be heard at the public hearing.

DATED: 11/13/2024
City Clerk
City of Dixon

2x4
#47
11-20-24

Cost: $56.00



Bill No. 2024-0049 Ordinance No. (09

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DIXON REQUIRING BACKFLOW
PREVENTION DEVICES

WHEREAS the City of Dixon desires to update its building code;

WHEREAS the Board of Alderman for the City of Dixon has determined that requiring
backflow prevention devices would protect the citizens of the City and their property.

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON
AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: Backflow Prevention Devices shall be required as set forth in this Ordinance.

A. Responsibility for Backflow Prevention Devices.

I. The term "backflow prevention device" includes, but is not limited to, backwater
overflow devices, backwater check valves, pressure relief devices, shutoff systems
and any other device the City of Dixon may approve for the purpose of preventing
or minimizing the possibility that raw sewage will back up into any structure or
for any similar purpose.

2. All backflow prevention devices shall comply with standards acceptable to the
City of Dixon and shall be maintained and repaired by the property owner to
provide for the device's uninterrupted function.

3. All new construction private lateral, including replacements, shall be equipped
with a cleanout riser. All new construction private laterals shall also be fitted with
a backflow prevention device, type and materials as approved by the City of
Dixon. The device shall be located on the private lateral between the building and
the property line, preferably upstream of the cleanout. in the manner
prescribed by the City of Dixon.

4. Additionally, a backflow prevention device shall be required when any of the
following conditions exist:

a. The installation of new building private laterals and private lateral
replacements.

b. On remodels where plumbing fixtures are added to the property and/or
more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the structure area is being
remodeled.

¢. When property has been damaged by the blockage of the City of Dixon's
public sewer system or by the private lateral. In the event that private
property was damaged by a blockage of the City's public sewer system,
the Board of Alderman or its designated representative is authorized to
negotiate a cost share with the house owner. If the City's portion of the



cost share exceeds one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) the Board of
Alderman must approve the cost share.

d. When property has been damaged by the blockage of the City's public
sewer system, a backflow prevention device may also be required if the
City of Dixon's Public Works Supervisor or Building Official
determines it is in the best interest of both the property owner and the
City to install a backflow prevention device.

5. The installation of backflow prevention devices shall be at the sole cost and
expense of the property owner, unless otherwise noted in this Section. The
maintenance of the backflow prevention devices shall be the sole obligation of the
property owner or the owner's successor, in interest. The City of Dixon is under
no obligation to maintain any backflow prevention device or guarantee its
continued operating condition.

B. Maintenance Requirements.

1. All backflow prevention devices shall be maintained by the property owner to
provide for their continuing function, as designed.

2. All backflow prevention devices shall be accessible at all times and shall be free
from any obstructions, including, but not limited to, rocks, soil, vegetation, debris,
grass, bushes, plants, landscaping, concrete, asphalt or other ground coverings
or any other materials or substances that may impair the proper function or
accessibility to the devices.

C. Elevation Requirements.

I. All backflow prevention devices shall be installed at an elevation that protects the
property upon which it is installed and other property in its vicinity from damage.
The property owner shall either confirm that the backflow prevention device is
properly installed and placed at the proper elevation, or obtain competent
assistance from a duly licensed plumber or contractor to confirm the proper
elevation.

2. If any subsequent modification of the property results in the backflow prevention
device being at an improper elevation, the property owner shall adjust the
backflow prevention device to the proper elevation.

3. The property owner shall be responsible for any damage to property or injury to
persons that is sustained as a result of the improper installation or location of a
backflow prevention device.

D. Failure to Follow Backflow Prevention Device Requirements.

1. Any property owner who fails, or refuses to install a backflow prevention device
as required by this Section, or other law or regulation, or which has a defective or
improperly installed backflow prevention device, or which has a backflow
prevention device that does not comply in all respects with the requirements and
standards adopted or utilized by the City of Dixon shall be responsible for all



damages that result from the lack of such a device and/or the failure of a defective
or improperly installed or noncompliant device. The City of Dixon will not be
liable for damages resulting from sewer overflows when a backflow prevention
device has not been installed or maintained as required by this Section.

2. In the event of damage to property or injury to persons regarding sewer overflows
on already established property (not new construction) or has not under gone a
major renovation, the City may advise and recommend the property owner install
a backflow prevention device in order to prevent sewer overflows in the future. If
additional sewer overflow incidents occur due to the failure of the property owner
to install a backflow prevention device, all claims for reimbursement shall be
processed through the City's insurance carrier and may or may not be covered.

E. The Board of Alderman or its designated representative is authorized to establish policies
and procedures to implement this program.

Section 2: Any person who fails to install a backflow prevention device as set forth in this
section shall be guilty of an ordinance violation and shall be subject to a fine of up to $500.00.

Section 3: The Board of Alderman or its designee may issue a stop work order for any
construction occurring in the City of Dixon for failure to install a backflow prevention device.

Section 4: Any ordinance requiring a lesser standard for the installation and maintenance of
backflow prevention devices is hereby repealed.

Section 5: The effective date of this ordinance on January 1, 2025.

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED BY THE BOA%\D OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF

DIXON, MISSOURI, AND APPROVED THIS 2“ DAY OF S R gbg " .2024.

APPROVED:

AW—\ i, 4
- LS
.

City Clel~ _——




Bill No. 2024-0050 Ordinance No. (05©

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DIXON SETTING FEES FOR CERTAIN TYPES

OF PERMITS

WHEREAS the City of Dixon requires building permits to be issued for certain construction
projects within its city limits; and

WHEREAS the City has the authority to charge for those permits.

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN FOR THE CITY OF DIXON
AS FOLLOWS:

l.

Section |: The fees for a general build permit shall be $25.00 for the following types of
projects: remodel, deck, shed, electrical, fence, add-on room, temporary structure,
swimming pool, retaining wall, plumbing, garage/carport, re-roofing, mechanical, and
demolition.

Section 2: The fee for a general build permit shall be $100.00 for new construction. “New
Construction™ means the construction of any building not immediately attached to
another building by the sharing of a structural wall.

The fees required by this ordinance shall be paid in full at the time the general build
permit application is submitted.

Section 3: The effective date of this ordinance shall be the date of its passage.

Section 4: This ordinance does not change or modify any other requirements for the
issuance of a building permit. It is only the intent of the Board to set fees by the passing
of this ordinance.

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF
DIXON, MISSOURI, AND APPROVED THIS 2:‘\ DAY OF 5 QCQ Im 20\ .2024.

\

ATTEST:

APPROVED:

N <

4" QMayor, City of Dixon, Missou%




Bill No. 2024-0051 Ordinance No. (D 6 \

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DIXON SETTING TAP FEES FOR NEW
CONNECTIONS TO WATER AND SEWER SERVICE

WHEREAS THE CITY OF DIXON owns and operates a water service system and a sewer
service system; and

WHEREAS the fees for providing new services are outdated: and

WHEREAS the City has the power to set such fees.

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN FOR THE CITY OF DIXON
AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: Any person, firm, corporation, company, or other entity that is requesting a new
connection to the City’s water system for property that is inside the City limits shall pay a water

tap fee of $250.00, plus materials.

Section 2: Any person, firm, corporation, company, or other entity that is requesting a new
connection to the City’s sewer system for property that is inside the City limits shall pay a sewer

tap fee of $250.00, plus materials.

Section 3: Any person. firm, corporation. company, or other entity that is requesting a new
connection to the City’s water system for property that is outside the City limits shall pay a water

tap fee of $2000.00, plus materials.

Section 4: Any person, firm. corporation. company. or other entity that is requesting a new
connection to the City’s sewer system for property that is outside the City limits shall pay a sewer

tap fee of $2000.00, plus materials.

Section 5: The tap fees set out in this ordinance are in addition to any other fees required by

other ordinances including but not limited to building permits and fees.

Section 6: Nothing in this ordinance shall require the City to provide water and sewer services to

a location where it is impractical to do so.

Section 7: The effective date of this ordinance is the date of its passage.



READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF

DIXON, MISSOURI, AND APPROVED THIS 2 b DAY OF \ VQC @Yy ﬂ OV 2024

APPROVED:

~Mayor, (Won, Mi@.




Bill No. 2024-0052 Ordinance No. (OS-Z

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF DIXON PROHIBITING PRIVATE WELLS
WITHIN CITY LIMITS

WHEREAS the City of Dixon is a Fourth class city in the State of Missouri:

WHEREAS the City finds this ordinance to be necessary to protect the health, safety, and
welfare of its citizens.

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON AS
FOLLOWS:

Section |: 1t shall be unlawful for any person to drill a private water well or use a private well
within the city limits, except existing private wells and any wells on real property annexed into
the city limits.

Section 2: This ordinance shall be effective on the date of its passage.

‘\d

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED THIS £ DAY OF DECEMBER 2024.

MAYOR




Bill No., _2024-0053 Ordinance No. (06 3

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT
BETWEEN MIDSTATE PIPELINE MAINTENANCE, LLC AND THE CITY OF
DIXON, MISSOURI FOR THE DIXON WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT,

PHASE 1.

WHEREAS, the City of Dixon recognizes the necessity for upgrades and improvements
to the city’s wastewater treatment plant, specifically all work associated with Phase 1;

WHEREAS, Midstate Pipeline Maintenance, LI.C, located at 21884 Maries Rd 315,
Belle, MO 65013, was determined to be the lowest responsible bidder with a bid of
$2,250,000.00, and

WHEREAS, the City of Dixon, in compliance with the provisions required by law,
advertised and opened bids for the project, and subsequently awarded the contract to Midstate
Pipeline Maintenance, LLC for the specified work under Phase I; and

WHEREAS, this project is funded in part by an ARPA grant and will follow all
applicable local and state regulations for wage and labor requirements as outlined in the
agreement; and

WHEREAS, the terms of the agreement specify a project completion timeline of 395
consecutive calendar days from the issuance of the Notice to Proceed, with liquidated damages
assessed at $1,500 per calendar day for delays beyond the stipulated completion date, unless an
extension is granted by the City;

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF DIXON
AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The agreement between the City of Dixon, Missouri, and Midstate Pipeline
Maintenance, LLC, for the Dixon Wastewater Treatment Plant, Phase , is hereby approved in
the amount of $2,250,000.00.

Section 2: The Mayor and/or authorized city officials are hereby authorized to execute all
necessary documents to formalize and implement the contract with Midstate Pipeline
Maintenance, LLC for the completion of Phase 1.

Section 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval.



READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF
DIXON, MISSOURI, AND APPROVED THIS 4™ DAY OF Ja wu o - 2025.

APPROVED:

Mayor, City of Dixon, Missauri

ATTEST:

Mo Do f

v

Acting City Clerk




00500 AGREEMENT

CITY OF DIXON WWTP PHASE 1 IMPROVEMENTS
FOR
CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this Z 5» day of J&WULOL\(LA , 205 by and
between City of Dixon : Part)7J of the First Part and
hereinafter called the Owner, and Midstate Pipeline Maintenance, LLC

a Limited Liability Company of 21884 Maries Rd. 315; Belle, MO 65013

Party of the Second Part and hereinafter called the Contractor.
WITNESSETH:

THAT WHEREAS, the Owner has caused to be prepared, in accordance with law, specifications, plans, and
other contract documents for the work herein described and has approved and adopted said documents, and
has caused to be published, in the manner and for the time required by law, an advertisement for and in
connection with the construction of the improvements, complete, in accordance with the contract documents
and the said plans and specifications; and '

WHEREAS, the Contractor, in response to such advertisement, has submitted to the Owner, in the manner
and at the time specified, a sealed bid in accordance with the terms of said advertisement;

WHEREAS, the Owner, in the manner prescribed by law, has publicly opened, examined and canvassed the
bids submitted in response to the published advertisement therefore, and as a result of such canvass has
determined and declared the aforesaid Contractor to be the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder for the
said work and has duly awarded to the said Contractor a contract therefore, for the sum or sums named in the
Contractor's bid, a copy thereof being attached to and made a part of this contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the compensation to be paid to the Contractor and of the mutual
agreements herein contained, the Parties to these presents have agreed and hereby agree, the Owner for
itself and its successors, and the Contractor for its, his, or their executors and administrators, as follows:

ARTICLE |. That the Contractor shall (a) furnish all tools, equipment, supplies, superintendence,
transportation, and other construction accessories, services and facilities; (b) furnish all materials, supplies
and equipment specified and required to be incorporated in and form a permanent part of the completed work
except the items specified to be furnished by the Owner; (c) provide and perform all necessary labor; and (d)
in a good, substantial, and workmanlike manner and in accordance with the provisions of the General
Congiitions and Supplementary Conditions of this contract which are attached hereto and make a part hereof,
and in conformance with the contract plans and specifications designated and identified therein, execute,
construct, and complete all work included in and covered by the Owner's official award of this contract to thé

said Contractor, such award being based on the acceptance by the Owner of the Contractor's bid for the
construction of the improvements.

Itis further stipulated that not less than the prevailing rate of
Industrial Relations of the State of Missouri or determined
performing work under this Contract.

wages as found by the Department of Labor and
by the courts of appeal shall be paid to all workmen

21072211-TO4 - WWTP PH1 Improvements 00500-1 Agreement



ARTICLE Il. Thatthe Contractor shall construct, complete as designated and describeq in the foregoing Bid
Form, this Agreement, Bonds, General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, specmcathns, drawings,
addenda, and other contract modifications (change orders) of the contract documents, all qf which documents
form the contract and are fully a part hereto as if repeated verbatim here, the project,__Dixon WWTP Phase
1 Improvements _, hereafter referred to as the work and as also defined in the General Conditions.

ARTICLE lll. That the Owner shall pay to the Contractor for the performance of the work described as
follows: DIXON WWTP PHASE 1 IMPROVEMENTS

and the Contractor will accept as full compensation thereof, the sum (subject to adjustment as provided by the

contract) of TWO MILLION TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO/100
Dollars ($ 2,250,000.00 )

for all work covered by and included in the contract award and designated in the foregoing Article I. Payment
therefore shall be made in the manner provided in the General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions

attached hereto.

ARTICLE IV — CONTRACT TIMES. i ;
1. Timeis of the Essence. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion
and readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are the essence of the

Contract.

2. Days to Achieve Substantial Completion and Final Payment
a. Substantial Completion shall be achieved upon

i. Successful start-up and acceptance of the Intermediate Pump Station eq.uipment
packages, to include delivery of a complete and approved operation and
maintenance manual.

ii. Successful start-up and acceptance of the UV Disinfection equipment packages,
to include delivery of a complete and approved operation and maintenance
manual.

iii. Successful start-up and acceptance of the Aerobic Digester aeration and sludge
pumping equipment packages, to include delivery of a complete and approved
operation and maintenance manual.

iv. If selected by the Owner for implementation at the site, successful start-up and
acceptance of the aerobic digester process equipment packages, to include delivery
of a complete and approved operation and maintenance manual.

b. Final Completion shall be achieved upon Contractor completion of all punchlist items,
operator training, delivery of operations and maintenance manuals, etc., necessary for a
complete and fully functional implementation of the project plans and specifications
contained herein.

c. The Contractor shall begin assembly of materials and equipment within ten (10) days after
receipt from the Owner of executed copies of the contract. The Work shall be substantially
complete within 365 consecutive calendar days after the commencement date of the
Contract. The Work shall be completed and ready for final payment in conformance with

értictle 1t4 of the General Conditions within 395 days after the commencement date of the
ontract.

d. The commencement date of the Contract shall be the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of

tFtne Aqer:ement, or if a Notice to Proceed is given, from the date indicated in the Notice to
roceed.

3. Liquidated Damages

21072211-TO4 - WWTP PH1 Improvements 00500-2 Agreement



a. Owner and Contractor recognize time is of the essence for this agreement and that Owner
will suffer financial loss if the work is not completed within the time specified above, plus any
extensions thereof allowed in allowance with Article 12 of the General Conditions. Owner
and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay, but notas a penalty, Contractor
shall pay Owner One Thousand Five Hundred __ dollars ($ __1,500.00 )eachand
every calendar day that expires following the time specified above for Substantial Completion
milestone. Contractor shall pay Owner _One Thousand Five Hundred _ dollars $
1.500.00 ) each and every calendar day that expires following the time specified
above the final completion milestones.

b. Liquidated damages will be waived for any one period of time covered by a time extension
granted by the Owner.

c. Incase of joint responsibility for any delay in the final completion of the Work covered by the
Agreement; where two or more separate Agreements are in force at the same time and
cover work on the same project and at the same site, the total amount of liquidated damages
assessed against all contractors under such Agreement for any one day of 'delay in the final
completion of the Work will not be greater than the approxir , total of the damages
sustained by the Owner by reason of such delay in completion of the Work, and the amount
assessed against any Contractor for such one day of delay will be based upon tf :
responsibility of such Contractor for the aforesaid delay as ¢
judgment of the Owner. S

d. The Owner shall have the right to deduct said lig
hands, otherwise due or to become due to
compensation for damages for nonperformance o
herein and provided for.

f the /

ARTICLE V. This Agreement will not be binding and eff&atﬁre U
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this contract as of the day and year first above
written.

(Name and Titié) , (SEAL)

e G 4 s = ;
& a'. By s

R R L Rl R R

LICENSE or CERTIFICATE NUMBER, if applicable

SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR: £ €

ontractor, Party of the Second Part

*hkkhkkhkhkhkhkhhkhkhkhkhkhkkhkdkhkdkdkdkdkdhdkdkdkhkhkhkdhkdkdkk*h

IF A CORPORATION

Contractor, Party of the Second Part

(Name and Title)

STATE OF ) A%l
COUNTY OF

On This




Bill Number: 2025-0054 Ordinance Number: (05('!

AN ORDINANCE APPOINTING CARRIE WILLIAMSON
AS CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY PROSECUTOR

Now, Therefore, be it found and ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of
Dixon, Missouri, as follows:

SECTION 1: Carrie Williamson is appointed as City Attorney and City Prosecutor.

SECTION 2: The Mayor is authorized to execute the agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A,
to legally bind the City to the terms thereto, and to expend City funds pursuant to
the terms of the Agreement.

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its execution and
shall repeal and replace all other ordinances or parts of ordinances that conflict
with this ordinance. The City Clerk is directed to affix to the agreement the
official seal of the City and attest to the same.

READ TWO TIMES, PASSED. AND APPROVED ON THIS aya\ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2025.

MIKE NULL. MAYOR

ATTEST:

mw

CITY CLERI\

o @01y

,ummm;u. !.)/'_.) )
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EXHIBIT A

AGREEMENT FOR CARRIE WILLIAMSON TO ACT AS CITY ATTORNEY
AND CITY PROSECUTOR FOR CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI

COME NOW, Carrie Williamson, attorney at the law firm of Smith & Turley, and the
City of Dixon, Missouri and do agree as follows: |
L, Carrie Williamson is an attorney who is duly licenséd to practice law in the State of
Missouri é.nd is a member in goﬁd st#nding Witil Tﬁe Missouri Bar. |
2, Carrie Williamson will be appointed and will act as City'Attomey and City Prosecutor for
the City of Dixon. | |
3, The scope of work for City Attofney and City Prosecutor will .be to perform all legal

services and prosecutorial services forthe City of Dixon,

4, Duties other than the provision of legal services may be assigned to Ms. Williamson by
the Mayor.
5. The fee for Ms. Williamson’s services as City Attorney and City Prosecutor will be

$2,000.00 per month, for up to ten hours of attorney time. It is ant:icipated that the time incurred
for Ms. Williamson to provide monthly general services as City A.t'tdinéj’r-and' Clty Prbé-;eéu:tof'
will generally be within the ten hour time frame set out herein.

6. The fee rates for any time incurred in excess of ten hours per month will be billed by Ms.
Williamson at the rate of $225.00 per hour, for attorney time, and at the rate of $75.00, for legal
assistant time, provided that, if the City of Dixon becomes involved in specific civil litigation of
a substantial nature, either party may request to negotiate a separate agreement for attorney fees
(which may include a flat fee or different hourly rates for attorney and legal assistant time) for

that specific civil litigation matter.



7. Ms. Williamson shall provide the City of Dixon with a monthly reporting of incurred
attorney time (and legal assistant time, as applicable), which shall include an accounting and
invoice for any time incurred in excess of ten hours in a given month.

8. The term of this agreement shall be equivalent to the term of Ms. Williamson’s
appointment as City Attorney and City Prosecutor, which, pursuant to the City of Dixon City
Code, shall be from the date of its execution to the date of the first council meeting after the City
of Dixon’s annual election.

9, The term of this agreement shall renew on an annual basis, on or about the date of the
first council meeting after the City of Dixon’s annual election, unless either party terminates the
agreement in writing and at least thirty days prior to the renewal date of the next term.

10. It is understood that this agreement shall be subject to the Board of Aldermen’s approval

of the inclusion of the payments described herein in the City's annual budget.

CITY OF DIXON, RI
/
R4-0%
MIKE NULL, MAYOR DATE
ATTEST:
Py s 2| b[zo28
CITY CLERK N DATE
" = p— . - X .
C(Xb\xu; F‘)) LU&&MQWW}U February 10, 2025
CARRIE B. WILLIAMSON DATE

Attorney At Law
Smith & Turley



2025 ADOPTING ORDINANCE

BILL NO. 2025-0055 ORD. NO. 655

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING A NEW CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF DIXON, COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF MISSOURI; ESTABLISHING THE
SAME; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CERTAIN ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED
THEREIN, EXCEPT AS HEREIN EXPRESSLY PROVIDED; PROVIDING FOR THE MANNER
OF AMENDING SUCH CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING PENALTY FOR THE
VIOLATION THEREOF; AND PROVIDING WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME
EFFECTIVE

Be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon, County of Pulaski, State of Missouri,
as follows:

Section 1. Approval, Adoption and Enactment of Code.

Pursuant to Section 71.943 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, the codification of ordinances, as
set out in Titles I through VII, each inclusive, of the "Code of Ordinances of the City of Dixon,
County of Pulaski, State of Missouri," is hereby adopted and enacted as the "Code of Ordinances
of the City of Dixon"; which shall supersede all other general and permanent ordinances of the City
passed on or before March 4, 2024, to the extent provided in Section 3 hereof.

Section 2. When Code Provisions Effective.

All provisions of such Code shall be in full force and effect from and after the effective date of this
ordinance as set forth herein.

Section 3. Repeal of Legislation Not Contained in Code; Legislation Saved From Repeal;
Matters Not Affected By Repeal.

A. All ordinances of a general and permanent nature of the City adopted on final passage on or
before March 4, 2024, and not included in such Code or recognized and continued in force by
reference therein, are hereby repealed from and after the effective date of this ordinance, except
those which may be specifically excepted by separate ordinance, and except the following which
are hereby continued in full force and effect, unless specifically repealed by separate ordinance:

1. Ordinances promising or guaranteeing the payment of money for the City, or authorizing
the issuance of any bonds or notes of the City or any other evidence of the City 's
indebtedness, or authorizing any contract or obligation assumed by the City.

2. Ordinances levying taxes or making special assessments.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

15.

Ordinances appropriating funds or establishing salaries and compensation, and providing
for expenses.

Ordinances granting franchises or rights to any person, firm or corporation.

Ordinances relating to the dedication, opening, closing, naming, establishment of grades,
improvement, altering, paving, widening or vacating of streets, alleys, sidewalks or public
places.

Ordinances authorizing or relating to particular public improvements.

Ordinances respecting the conveyances or acceptance of real property or easements in real
property.

Ordinances dedicating, accepting or vacating any plat or subdivision in the City or any part
thereof, or providing regulations for the same.

Ordinances annexing property to the City.

All zoning and subdivision ordinances not specifically repealed and not included herein.
Ordinances establishing TIF districts or redevelopment districts.

Ordinances relating to traffic schedules (e.g., stop signs, parking limits, etc.).

All ordinances relating to personnel regulations and policies (e.g., pensions, retirement, job
descriptions and insurance, etc.).

Ordinances authorizing the establishment of industrial development corporations.
Ordinances establishing tax rates for the City.

Ordinances regarding Police Department procedures and policies, including procedures on
arrest.

Ordinances regarding conflicts of interest and disclosure reports.

The repeal provided for in this Section shall not be construed to revive any ordinance or part
thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent ordinance which is repealed by this ordinance.

The repeal provided for in this Section shall not affect any offense or act committed or done or
any penalty or forfeiture incurred or any contract or right established or accruing before the

effective date of this ordinance, nor shall it affect any prosecution, suit or proceeding pending or
any judgment rendered prior to such date.



Section 4. Amendments To Code.

Any and all additions and amendments to such Code when passed in such form as to indicate the
intention of the Board of Aldermen to make the same a part thereof shall be deemed to be
incorporated in such Code so that reference to the "Code of Ordinances of the City of Dixon" shall
be understood and intended to include such additions and amendments.

Section 5. Violations and Penalties.

A. Whenever in this Code or any other ordinance of the City, or in any rule, regulation, notice or
order promulgated by any officer or agency of the City under authority duly vested in him/her
or it, any act is prohibited or is declared to be unlawful or an offense, misdemeanor or ordinance
violation or the doing of any act is required or the failure to do any act is declared to be unlawful
or an offense, misdemeanor or ordinance violation, and no specific penalty is provided for the
violation thereof, upon conviction of a violation of any such provision of this Code or of any
such ordinance, rule, regulation, notice or order, the violator shall be punished by a fine not
exceeding five hundred dollars ($500.00) or by imprisonment in the City or County Jail not
exceeding ninety (90) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment; provided that in any case
wherein the penalty for an offense is fixed by a Statute of the State, the statutory penalty, and no
other, shall be imposed for such offense, except that imprisonments may be in the City prison or
workhouse instead of the County Jail.

B. Every day any violation of this Code or any other ordinance or any such rule, regulation, notice
or order shall continue shall constitute a separate offense.

C. Whenever any act is prohibited by this Code, by an amendment thereof, or by any rule or
regulation adopted thereunder, such prohibition shall extend to and include the causing, securing,
aiding or abetting of another person to do said act. Whenever any act is prohibited by this Code,
an attempt to do the act is likewise prohibited.

Section 6. Applicability of General Penalty.

In case of the amendment by the Board of Aldermen of any Section of such Code for which a penalty
is not provided, the general penalty as provided in Section 5 of this ordinance shall apply to the
Section as amended; or in case such amendment contains provisions for which a penalty other than
the aforementioned general penalty is provided in another Section in the same Chapter, the penalty
so provided in such other Section shall be held to relate to the Section so amended, unless such penalty
is specifically repealed therein.

Section 7. Filing of Copy of Code; Codes To Be Kept Up-To-Date.

A copy of such Code shall be kept on file in the office of the City Clerk, preserved in loose-leaf form
or in such other form as the City Clerk may consider most expedient. It shall be the express duty of



the City Clerk, or someone authorized by said officer, to insert in their designated places all
amendments and all ordinances or resolutions which indicate the intention of the Board of Aldermen
to make the same part of such Code when the same have been printed or reprinted in page form and
to extract from such Code all provisions which from time to time may be repealed by the Board of
Aldermen. This copy of such Code shall be available for all persons desiring to examine the same.

Section 8. Altering or Tampering With Code; Violations and Penalties.

It shall be unlawful for any person to change or alter by additions or deletions any part or portion of
such Code, or to insert or delete pages or portions thereof, or to alter or tamper with such Code in any
manner whatsoever which will cause the law of the City of Dixon to be misrepresented thereby. Any
person violating this Section shall be punished as provided in Section 5 of this ordinance.

Section 9. Severability.

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Aldermen that the Sections, paragraphs.
sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance and the Code hereby adopted are severable, and if
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or Section of this ordinance or the Code hereby adopted shall
be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the valid judgment or decree of a court of
competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of this ordinance or the Code hereby adopted.

Section 10. Effective Date.

This ordinance and the Code adopted hereby shall become effective ma,rd/\ 3 \ 20;5.

PASSED by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon this 3“{ day of Mavrclh

2026

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Dixon this 3vd day of _ [Mowvech 202S.

Mayor ity of/Dixon

/ L DT £
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City of Dixon, Missouri 2024 Statutory Updates

City of Dixon
2024 Statutory Updates Incorporated During Supplement # 6

The Sections of the Code noted in the table below have been updated with the 2024 statutory material.
The City’s attorney may want to review these changes to confirm these revisions are necessary. All
revised Sections will be in effect following the City’s adoption of the Code.

NOTE: As indicated below, we added a new Section 210.845, which is derived from Section 571.031,
RSMo. Subsection 3(3) of Section 571.031, RSMo., includes provisions allowing municipalities to adopt
certain restrictions regarding the discharge of firearms near occupied structures (see the wording
underlined below). This may refer to the restriction in Subsection 3(8) of Section 571.031, RSMo. The
City may want to review Section 571.031, RSMo., with the City’s attorney and determine whether any
revisions are needed to Section 210.845.

(3) To lawfully take wildlife during an open season established by the department of
conservation. Nothing in this subdivision shall prevent a municipality from adopting an
ordinance restricting the discharge of a firearm within one-quarter mile of an occupied structure;

Section/Subsection | Description of the Revision Pursuant to
of the Code RSMo. Section
120.020 A new Subsection (A)(15), regarding allegations of improper | 610.021

government activities, was added and subsequent Subsections
were renumbered.

210.830 A new definition of “school” was added. 571.010

210.845 A new Section was added regarding unlawful discharge of a | 571.031
firearm within a municipality and its exceptions.

210.1290 A new Section was added regarding criminal mischief. 569.200

210.1800 We revised references to the State Constitution marijuana | N/A

210.1810 provisions to refer to Article XIV in its entirety.

210.1830

340.230 We deleted Subsection (1) of this Section regarding the issuance | N/A

of a warning rather than a citation, which only applied prior to
January 1, 2025. Former Subsection (J) is now Subsection (1).

370.160 In Subsection (E), the reference to “Subsection (B) of this | N/A
Section” was revised to refer to “Subsection (C) of this Section”
to reflect statutory provisions.

380.140 Subsection (A) was revised to include new provisions regarding | 303.025
voluntary suspension of motor vehicle registration.

lofl
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R L CodeWatch 2024
C 0 D E Missouri State Legislature Changes Affecting

A Member of the ICC Family of Solutions

Municipalities and Their Codes of Ordinances

CodeWatch generally focuses on revisions that would affect a municipality's Code book, and is not intended
to include every change made by the Legislature. That said, some of the changes included are not necessarily
Code-worthy but are set out to inform municipalities of revisions that may be of interest.

In addition to the Bills cited in this document, there are always a number of new provisions or amended
provisions that have been passed dealing with specific municipalities or counties {e.g., Sections 140.190 and
141.820 et seq., RSMo.). We have NOT included those types of provisions herein, as we believe the affected
municipalities and counties are aware of said provisions. In addition, we do not usually include amendments
to felony offenses since felonies are not typically prosecuted in municipal court; however, we ocassionally
mention amendments to felony offenses that municipalities may want to review.

It is not the intent of General Code to give legal advice or opinions by way of the CodeWatch bulletin, but to
provide as much information as possible to enable municipal officials to make necessary decisions. Any
questions as to the validity or legal sufficiency of legislation, or as to interpretation of Statutes, will properly
remain the responsibility of the Municipal Attorney.

TITLE 1. GOVERNMENT CODE
Depositary for city funds, how selected. § 95.280, RSMao.; Depositary to deposit securities — contract
term for depositaries, certain cities (Maryville) § 95.285, RSMo.; City depositary. § 95.355, RSMo.
~ 8B 1359 This Bill repeals these three Sections in their entirety, effective August 28, 2024,

Selection of depositories, competitive bid process — definitions — requirements — contracts — records.
§ 110.075, RSMo. - SB 1359 This Bill enacts new provisions applicable to all municipalities when
selecting their deposttories,

1. As used in this section, the following terms shall mean:

(1) “Depository”, banking institution headquartered in or maintaining a full-service branch in this
state which is selected by a municipality to hold and manage public funds,

(2) “Governing body”, any city council, board of aldermen, or board of trustees;

(3) “Municipal depositories”, any state-chartered ov federally chartered banking institution as
defined in Article IV, Section 15 of the Constitution of Missouri;

(4) “Municipality”, any city or village in this state;

(3) “Public funds” funds owned or controlled by a municipality, including tax revenues, fees,
granis, and other sources of income.

2. All municipalities shall select depositories through a competitive process in accordance with the
provisions in this section. The governing body of each municipality shall develop and publish a
request for proposals which shall outline the requirements for selecting one or more municipal
depositories. Such requirements shall address or include the following matters:

800.836.8834 | generalcode.com | CodeWatch 2024 | page 1



(1) The municipality shall use due diligence for determining the financial stability and soundness
of the depository based on publicly available financial reports and other public sources;

(2) Safe custody and liquidity of public funds, including deposit insurance coverage and pledge of
collateral or investment in appropriate government securities as authorized for public funds;

(3) Interest rates and fees offered;

(4) Services offered, including online banking, cash management, deposit sweep and repurchase
accounts, invesiment in a common trust fund in eligible securities for municipalities and political
subdivisions, and other banking service options;

(3} Compliance with alf applicable state and federal banking regulations;

(6) Convenient and efficient treasury functions, including if the location of the depository institution
shall be required to be located within the municipality or in the same county as the municipality.

3. Banking institutions interested in becoming the municipal depository shall respond to the
municipality’s request for proposals within the time frame specified by the municipality in the
request.

4. The governing body shall evaluate the proposals based on the criteria outlined in the request for
proposals and select a banking institution that best meets the municipality's needs and objectives.

5. The selected banking institution shall enter into a contract with the municipality outlining the
terms and conditions of the depository relationship, including, but not limited to, the interest rates,
fees, and services to be provided.

6. Municipalities shall maintain records of the selection process, including all proposals received
by the municipality for a period of two yvears.

Closed meetings and closed records authorized when, exceptions. § 610.021, RSMo, — HB 2111 This
Bill adds a new Subsection (17), set out below, and renumbers subsequent Subsections.

(17) Records relating to veports of allegations of improper governmental activities under section
29.221;

TITLE II. PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE

Criminal mischief, offense of — penalty. § 569.200, RSMo. — HB 2062 This Bill adds the following new
misdemeanor offense:

1. A person commits the offense of criminal mischief if he or she unlawfully detains, occupies, or
trespasses upon a residential dwelling.

2. The offense of criminal mischief is a class A misdemeanor.
Definitions. § 571.010, RSMo. — HB 2287 This Bill adds the following new definition to this Section:
(17) “School”, any charter school, as such term is defined in section 160.400, any private school,

as such term is defined in section 166.700, or any public school, as such term is defined in section
160.011;

800.836.8834 | generalcode.com | CodeWatch 2024 | page 2




Blair’s Law — unlawful discharge of a firearm, offense of — penalties. § 571.031, RSMo. - SB 754, et
al. This Bill adds the following new Section, which sets out numerous exceptions to unlawful discharge in
a municipality:

1. This section shall be known and may be cited as “Blair's Law”,

2. A person commits the offense of unlawful discharge of a firearm if he or she recklessly discharges
a firearm within or into the limits of any municipality.

3. This section shall not apply if the firearm is discharged:

(1) As allowed by a defense of justification under chapter 563;

(2) On a shooting range that is.

(a) Indoor,

(b) Owned or operated by the state or any political subdivision;

(¢} A commercial shooting range, including any range used by paying members; and

(d) Supervised by any person eighteen years of age or older;

(3) To lawfully take wildlife during an open season established by the department of conservation.
Nothing in this subdivision shall prevent a municipality from adopting an ordinance restricting the

discharge of a firearm within one-quarter mile of an occupied structure;

(4) For the control of nuisance wildlife as permitted by the department of conservation or the
United States Fish and Wildlife Service;

(3) By special permit of the chief of police of the municipality;

(6) As required by an animal control officer in the performance of his or her duties;

(7) Using blanks,

(8) Move than one mile from any occupied structure;

(9) In self-defense or defense of another person against an imminent or ongoing animal attack
unless the self-defense or defense of another person is a gross deviation from the standard of care
which a reasonable person would exercise in the situation to protect oneself ov the other person
Sfrom such animal attack and such person shall not have a duty to retreat;

(10) In defense of a domestic animal against an imminent or ongoing animal attack, unless the
defense of the domestic animal is a gross deviation from the standard of care which a reasonable

person would exercise in the situation to protect a domestic animal from atiack, or

(11) By law enforcement personnel, as defined in section 590.1040, or a member of the United
States Armed Forces if acting in an official capacity.

4. 4 person who commits the offense of unlawful discharge of a firearm shall be guilly of:
(1) For a first offense, a class A misdemeanor;

(2) For a second offense, a class E felony; and

800.836.8834 | generalcode.com | CodeWatch 2024 | page 3



(3) For a third or subsequent offense, a class D felony.

Possession of firearm unlawful for certain persons — penalty — exception. § 571.070, RSMo. — SB 754,
et al. This Bill revises Subsection 2 of this Section as indicated below.

2. Unlawful possession of a firearm is a class B C felony, unless a person has been convicted of a
dangerous felony as defined in section 556.061, or the person has a prior conviction for unlawful
possession of a firearm in which case it is a class € B felony.

Definitions. § 575.010, RSMo. — SB 754, et al. This Bill deletes the definition of “police animal” and adds
the following definition of “law enforcement animal”:

(7) “Law enforcement animal” means a dog, horse, or other animal used in law enforcement or a
correctional facility, or by a municipal police department, fire department, search and rescue unit
or agency, whether the animal is on duty or not on duty. The term shall include, but not be limited
fo, accelerant detection dogs, bomb detection dogs, narcotic detection dogs, search and rescue
dogs, and tracking animals;

Valentine's Law — aggravated fleeing a stop or detention of a motor vehicle, offense of — penalty.
§ 575.151, RSMo. — SB 754, et al. This Bill adds the following new Section regarding aggravated fleeing
a stop or detention. This is a felony offense.

1. This section shall be known and may be cited as “Valentine's Law”.

2. A person commits the offense of aggravated fleeing a stop or detention of a motor vehicle if he
or she knows or reasonably should know that a law enforcement officer is attempting to detain or
stop a motor vehicle, and for the purpose of preventing the officer from effecting the stop or
detention, he or she flees and:

(1) Such person operates a motor vehicle at a high speed or in any manner which creates a
substantial visk of serious physical infury or death to any person;

(2) As a result of such flight causes physical injury to another person, or
(3) As a result of such flight causes death to another person.

3. A person is presumed to be fleeing a vehicle stop or detention if he or she continues to operate
a motor vehicle afier he or she has seen or reasonably should have seen clearly visible emergency
lights or has heard or reasonably should have heard an audible signal emanating from the law
enforcement vehicle pursuing him or her.

4. It is no defense to a prosecution pursuant (o subsection 2 of this section that the law enforcement
officer was acting unlawfully in making the arrest. However, nothing in this section shall be
construed to bar civil suits for unlawful arrest. A person need not know the basis jor the arrest,
detention, or stop, only that the person was being stopped or detained.

5. The offense of aggravated fleeing a stop or delention in violation of subdivision (1) of subsection
2 of this section shall be a class D felony, without eligibility for probation, parole, or conditional
release until the defendant has served no less than one year of such sentence. The offense of
aggravated fleeing a stop or detention in violation of subdivision (2) of subsection 2 of this section
shall be a class B felony. The offense of aggravated fleeing a stop or detention in violation of
subdivision (3) of subsection 2 of this section shall be a class A felony.

Max's Law — assault on a police animal — penalties. § 575.353, RSMo. — SB 754, et al. This Bill revises
this Section as indicated below.
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1. This section shall be known and may be cited as “Max's Law ”.

2. A person commits the offense of assault on a pelice law enforcement animal if he or she
knowingly attempts to kill or disable or knowingly causes or attempis to cause serious physical
infury to a pelice law enforcement animal when that animal is involved in law enforcement
investigation, apprehension, tracking, or search, or the animal is in the custody of or under the
control of a law enforcement officer, department of corrections officer, municipal police
department, five department or a rescue unit or agency.

2- 3. The offense of assault on a pelice law enforcement animal is a: class-Cnisdemennor—unless

(1) Class A misdemeanor, if the law enforcement animal is not injured to the point of requiring
veterinary care or treatment;

{2) Class E felony if the law enforcement animal is seriously injured to the point of requiring
veterinary care or treatment, and

(3) Class D felony if the assault results in the death of such animal.
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Acts and facilities to which section 574.130 and sections 578.005 to 578.023 do not apply. § 578.007,
RSMo. — SB 754, et al. This Bill revises Subsection (9) of this Section as indicated below.

(9) The killing of an animal by any person at any time if such animal is outside of the owned or
rented property of the owner or custodion of such animal and the animal is injuring any person or

Jarm animal,, but this exemption shall not include police-or-guard-dogs the killing or injuring of a
law enforcement animal while working;

Law enforcement dogs, exempt from certain laws, when. § 578.022, RSMo, — SB 754, et al, This Bill
revises this Section as indicated below.

Any dog that is owned, or the service of which is emploved, by a law enforcement agency and that
bites or injures another animal or human in the course of their official duties is exempt from the
provisions of sections 273.033 and,_ 273.036 and section, 578.012, and 578.024.

TITLE III. TRAFFIC CODE

Duty to maintain financial responsibility, residents and nonresidents, misdemeanor penalty for
failure to maintain—exception, methods—court to notify department of revenue, additional
punishment, right of appeal. § 303.025, RSMo. — HB 2168 This Bill revises this Section as indicated
below. Note that this Bill was enacted during the 2022 Legislative Session and went into effect January 1,
2024.

1. No owner of a motor vehicle registered in this state, or required lo be registered in this state,
shall operate, register or maintain registration of a motor vehicle, or permit another person to
operate such vehicle, unless the owner maintains the financial responsibility which conforms to the
requivements of the laws of this state. No nonresident shall operate or permit another person to
operate in this state a motor vehicle registered to such nonresident unless the nonresident
maintains the financial responsibility which conforms fo the requirements of the laws of the
nonresident’s state of residence. Furthermore, no person shall operate a motor vehicle owned by
another with the knowledge that the owner has not maintained financial responsibility unless such
person has financial responsibility which covers the person's operation of the other’s vehicle;
however, no owner or nonresident shall be in violation of this subsection if he or she fails to
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maintain financial responsibility on a motor vehicle which is inoperable or being stored and not in
operation. The direcior of the department of revenue shall establish by rule a process for voluntary
suspension of motor vehicle registration for vehicles which are inoperable or being stored and not
in operation. The owner or nonresident shall not further operate the vehicle until the owner or
nonresident notifies the department of revenue that the vehicle will be in use, and the department
shall reinstate the motor vehicle registration upon receipt of proof of financial responsibility.
Owners or nonresidents who operate a moior vehicle during a period of inoperability or storage
claimed under this subsection shall be guilty of a class B misdemeanor and may additionally be
guilty of a violation of this subsection. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the conirary, the
department of revenue mav verify motor vehicle financial responsibility as provided by law, but
shall not otherwise take legal or administrative action to enforce the requirements of this section
unless, in the discretion of the director, the motor vehicle is determined to have been operated in
violation of this section, a motor vehicle registration is applied for in violation of this section, or
the motor vehicle on two separaie occasions thirty days apart is determined to have ils registration
maintained in violation of this section. The director may prescribe rules and regulations for the
implementation of this section.

2. A motor vehicle owner shall mainiain the owner's financial responsibility in a manner provided
for in section 303.160, or with a motor vehicle liability policy which conforms to the requirements
of the laws of this state. A nonresident motor vehicle owner shall maintain the owner's financial
responsibility which conforms to the requirements of the laws of the nonresident's state of
residence.

3. Any person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor. Except as otherwise provided
in this section, a first violation of this section shall be punishable as a class D misdemeanor. A

i
second or subsequent violation of this section shalt may be punishable punished by imprisonment
in the county jail for a term not to exceed fifteen days endior and shall be punished by a fine not
less than two hundred dollars but not to exceed five hundred dollars. Prior pleas of guilty and prior
findings of guilty shall be pleaded and proven in the same manner as required by section 358.021.

However, no person shall be found guilty of violating this section if the operator demonstrates to
the court that he or she met the financial responsibility requirements of this section at the time the
peace officer, commercial vehicle enforcement officer or commercial vehicle inspector wrote the
citation. In addition to any other authorized punishment, the court shall notify the director of
revenue of any person convicted pursuant to this section and shall do one of the following:

[.]

6. Anv fines owed fo the state pursuant to this section may be eligible for payment in installments.
The director shall promuleate rules for the application of payment plans, which shall take info
account individuals' ability fo pay.

Traffic citation, infraction, no warrant of arrest, when — alternate notice, procedure. § 307.018,
RSMo. — SB 754, et al. This Bill adds the following new Section restricting the court’s ability to issue a
warrant of arrest for a person’s failure to pay a fine or appear in court with respect to a traffic citation issued
for a violation of Chapter 307, RSMo.

1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no court shall issue a warrant of arrest for a
person's failure to respond, pay the fine assessed, or appear in court with respect to a traffic

citation issued for an infraction under the provisions of this chapter. In lieu of such warrant of
arrest, the court shall issue a notice of failure to respond, pay the fine assessed, or appear, and the
court shall schedule a second court date for the person to respond, pay the fine assessed, or appear.

A copy of the court's notice with the new court date shall be sent to the driver of the vehicle. If the
driver fails to respond, pay the fine assessed, or appear on the second court date, the court shall
issue a second notice of failure to respond, pay the fine assessed, or appear. If the driver fails to
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respond, pay the fine assessed, or appear after the second notice, the court may issue a default
Judgment under section 556.021 for the infraction.

2. At any point after the default judgment has been entered, the driver may appear in court to state
that he or she is unable to pay and to request the court to modify the judgment. The court shall hold
a hearing to determine whether the driver has the ability to pay. If the court finds the driver lacks
the present ability to pay, the court shall modify the judgment in any way authorized by statute or
court rule, including:

{1} Allowing for payment of the fine on an installment basis;
(2) Waiving or reducing the amount owed; or

(3) Requiring the driver to perform community service or attend a court-ordered program in lieu
of payment.

3. At any point after the default judgment has been entered, the driver may appear in court and
show proof that he or she corrected the equipment violation for which the fine and costs were
assessed. If the driver shows such proof, the court may waive the fines and costs that ave due.

TITLE V1. BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION

Electric vehicle charging stations — political subdivision restrictions, § 67.288, RSMo. — HB 2062 This
Bill adds the following new Section, which sets certain restrictions on a political subdivision regarding
electric vehicle charging stations.

1. For purposes of this section, the following terms mean:

(1) “Electric vehicle”, any vehicle that operates, either partially or exclusively, on electrical
energy from the grid or an off-board source that is stored onboard for a motive purpose;

(2) “Electric vehicle charging station”, a public or private parking space that is served by battery
charging station equipment that has as its primary purpose the transfer of electric energy by
condctive or inductive means to a battery or other energy storage device in an electric vehicle.

2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, no political subdivision shall adopt
any ordinance, resolution, regulation, code, or policy that requires electric vehicle charging
stations or infrastructure for future installation of electric vehicle charging stations on any parking
lot owned or leased to any church or nonprofit organization exempt from taxation under 26 U.S.C.
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Code of 1986, as amended.

3. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a business owner or property owner from paying for the
installation, maintenance, or operation of an electric vehicle charging station.

Definitions, — § 67.2677, RSMo. — HB 2057 and SB 872. These Bills revise the definition of “video
service” as indicated below.* Senate Bill 872 also deletes Subsection 2 of this Section, which stated, “T#he
repeal and reenactment of this section shall become effective August 28, 2023.”

¥These Bills used slightly different wording in the beginning of this definition. The wording below reflects
the wording set out on the Missouri Revisor of Statutes website.

(14) “Video service”, the provision, by a video service provider, of video programming provided
through wireline facilities located ot least in part in the public right-of-way without regard to
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delivery technology, including internet protocol technology whether provided as part of a tier, on
demand, or on a per-channel basis. This definition includes cable service as defined by 47 U.S.C.
Section 522(6), but does not include any video programming provided by a commercial mobile
service provider defined in 47 U.S.C. Section 332(d), or any video programming previded-solely
as-part-ofand accessed via a service that enables users to access content, information, elecironic
mail, or other services offered over the public internet,_including streaming content;

Expiration date, exception. § 67.5122, RSMo. — SB 872. This Bill changes the expiration date for small
wireless facilities from January 1, 2025, to December 31, 2029. This Section now reads as follows:

Sections 67.5110 to 67.5122 shall expire on December 31, 2029, except that for small wireless
facilities already permitted or collocated on authority poles prior to such date, the rate set forth in
section 67.5116 for collocation of small wireless facilities on authority poles shall remain effective
Jor the duration of the permit authorizing the collocation.

Home inspection not required for sale of property, exception. § 436.345, RSMo. — HB 2062 This Bill
adds the following new Section regarding home inspections.

Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, no political subdivision shall require
a property owner to have a home inspection conducted of a residential property prior to the sale
of the property. This provision shall not apply to any inspection requirement of new construction
OF OCCUPANCY pernits.

TITLE VII. UTILITIES

Definitions. § 644.016, RSMo. — HB 2134 and HB 1956, These Bills add the following new definitions
to this Section related to water regulations:

(1) “Agrichemical fucility”, any site, with the exception of chemical production facilities, where
bulk pesticides or fertilizers, excluding anhydrous ammonia fertilizer, are:

(a) Stored and combined in nonmobile containers, dedicated containers, or storage basins, or

(b) Stored or being mixed, applied, repackaged, or transferred between containers ov storage
basins;

(14) “Open storage basin®, an open earthen basin (nonconcrete) with a capacity of two and one-
half million gallons or larger that stores industrial process wastewater or industrial process
wastewater residuals for disposal or land application;

(15) “Open storage vessel”, any metal, plastic, or polymer lined basin with a capacity of two and
one-half million gallons or larger that stores industrial process wastewater or industrial process
wastewater residuals for disposal or land application;

(16) “Operating location”, all contiguous lands owned, operated, or controlled by one or more
persons jointly or as lenants in common, except land application sites are not required to be
contiguous,;

Efftuent regulations to be promulgated — nutrient management technical standard, requirements,
inapplicability. § 644.041, RSMo. — HB 2134 and HB 1956. These Bills add the following new
Subsections to this Section:

2. Any land application of indusirial wastewater, industrial wastewater treatment sludge, and
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related process wastes, excluding concentrated animal feeding operations, livestock markets, and
animal manure, shall be subject to a nutrient management technical standard established and
incorporated into rule by the department, which shall include land application practices, annual
soil sampling, setbacks, material sampling requirements and frequency, and a process for
establishing land application rates. The nutrient management technical standard shall allow the
use of a phosphorus index developed by Missouri's first land grant university, regardless of
operational control over land application fields. Such phosphorus index shall be revised for each
annual planned application of such material and include, but shall not be limited to, data inputs
Jor field use, field slope, field management practices, application method, soil type, phosphorus
soil test, phosphorus solubility, and tillage type. Results of any sampling required under this
subsection shall be provided to the department. Such rules shall afford a prudent degree of
environmental protection designed to ensure safe and clean soils and water for the surrounding
community while accommodating modern agricultural practices. Any rule or portion of a rule, as
that term is defined in section 536.010, that is created under the authority delegated in this section
shall become effective only if it complies with and is subject to all of the provisions of chapter 536
and, if applicable, section 536.028. This section and chapter 536 are nonseverable and if amy of
the powers vested with the general assembly pursuant to chapter 536 to review, to delay the
effective date, or to disapprove and annul a rule are subsequently held unconstitutional, then the
grant of rulemaking authority and any rule proposed or adopted after the effective date of this act,
shall be invalid and void.

3. The provisions of subsection 2 of this section shall not apply to land application conducted in
compliance with a land application management plan approved by the department.

Prohibited acts — permits required, when, exemptions, fee — permit application procedures —
rulemaking - limitation on use of permit fee moneys — permit shield provisions. § 644,051, RSMo, —
HB 2134 and HB 1956. These Bills add new Subsections 6 through 8, set out below, and renumber
subsequent Subsections.

6. Notwithstanding any provision of this section to the contrary, the commission may exempt an
entity from the requirement to obtain a permit under this section based on licensure under the
Missouri fertilizer law, sections 266,291 to 266.351, only if the entity is producing producis that
are commercially sold to an end user in accordance with such sections and has accurate labeling
Jor each container that includes the information required under subsection 1 of section 266.321.

7. Entities currently storing combined bulk fertilizers in storage basins shall not be exempt from
any design requirements for agrichemical facilities established by rule when constructing new
agrichemical facilities.

8. (1) In order to receive an operating permit under this section, any point source or operating
location seeking an operating permit for a commingled offsite industrial wastewater or wastewater
residuals open storage basin or open storage vessel shall meet current design requirements for a
wastewater treatment facility's design capacity.

(2) Except as provided in subdivision (3) of this subsection, the department shall require at least,
but not more than, the following buffer distances between the nearest commingled offsite industrial
wastewater or wastewater residuals open storage basin or open storage vessel and any public
building or occupied residence other than a public building or occupied residence that is operated
by the commingled offsite industrial wastewater or wastewater residuals open storage basin or
open storage vessel or a residence from which a wrilten agreement for operation is obtained.

{a) For a facility with a capacity of more than five hundred thousand gallons but less than or equal
fo five miflion gallons, one thousand feet;
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(b) For a facility with a capacity of more than five million gallons but less than or equal to ten
million gallons, two thousand feet; and

(¢c) For a facility with a capacity of more than ten million gallons, three thousand five hundred feet.

(3) All commingled offsite industrial wastewater or wastewater residuals open storage basins or
open storage vessels holding valid operating permits as of the effective date of this section shall be
exempt from the buffer distances prescribed in subdivision (2) of this subsection. Such distances
shall not apply to a facility that has received a written agreement signed by all offected property
owners within the relevant buffer distance.

(4) The depariment shall requive groundwater monitoring on a site-specific basis when, in the
determination of the division of geological survey, the commingled offsite industrial wastewater
and wastewater residuals open storage basin or open storage vessel is located in proximity to o
geological feature that increases the likelihood of groundwater contamination.

(5)(a) The department shall establish by rule sampling requirements for commingled offsite
industrial wastewater and wastewater residuals open siorage basins or open storage vessels based
on permitted materials.

(b) The department shall, within sixty days of the effective date of this section, begin the process of
promulgating rules, which shall include creating a chain of custody record form io be used by all
parties during the handling of testing samples, and, at a minimum, establish criteria to require
annual sampling and testing of any contents of any commingled offsite industrial wastewater or
wastewater residuals open storage basin or open storage vessel for:

a. The total concentrations of metals, including arsenic, aluminum, barium, cadmium, chromium,
copper, lead, mercury, selenium, silver, and thallium; and

b. E. coli and fecal coliform.
(c) Testing under paragraph (b) of this subdivision shall be done by a third-parly certified

laboratory and vesults of the testing shall be sent to the department by the third-party certified
laboratory annually.
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Bill Number: 2025-0056 Ordinance Number: (D 5 (D

AN ORDINANCE APPOINTING KELLI LIVENGOOD AS CITY CLERK FOR THE
CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI AND ESTABLISHING DUTIES AND TERM OF OFFICE

Be it ordained by the Board of Alderman of the City of Dixon as follows:

SECTION 1. The City Clerk of the City of Dixon is a position that is elected by the Board of
Aldermen.

SECTION 2. On February 3, 2025, the Board of Aldermen elected Kelli Livengood to serve as
the City Clerk for the City of Dixon.

SECTION 3. Pursuant to City Code Section 115.090, the City Clerk’s “duties and term of
office shall be fixed by ordinance.”

SECTION 4. The duties of the City Clerk of the City of Dixon shall be those established by
City Code, including but not limited to Code Sections 115.090 and 130.090.

SECTION 5. The City Clerk shall hold office for an indefinite term and this term will be
terminated by: her resignation, her termination from employment with the City,
or by the Board of Aldermen’s removal of her from the office of City Clerk and
subsequent election of another individual to serve as the City Clerk.

SECTION 6. All ordinances or parts of ordinances therefore enacted which are in conflict with
this ordinance are repealed.

SECTION 7. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval.

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI ON MARCH 3, 2025.

Mayor




Bill Number:  2025-0057 Ordinance Number: (05 7

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR
INSTALLATION OF SEWER SERVICE INFRASTRUCTURE

Be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon as follows:

SECTION 1. An Agreement for Installation of Sewer Service Infrastructure between City of
Dixon and Dixon R-1 School District is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is
incorporated herein by specific reference.

SECTION 2. The terms of Exhibit A are approved and the Mayor is authorized to execute the
documents and legally bind the City to the terms of the agreement.

SECTION 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval.

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI ON APRIL 7, 2025.

=

Mayor N—"

Attest:

e Foond

City Clerk

See .
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EXHIBIT A

AGREEMENT FOR INSTALLATION OF SEWER SERVICE INFRASTRUCTURE

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this Tiw day of Ap Y\ \ ,
2025, by and between Dixon R-1 School District in Dixon Missouri, hereinafter referred to as
“School,” and City of Dixon, Missouri, a Missouri fourth-class city, hereinafter referred to as
“City,”

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, City provides sewer utility services; and

WHEREAS, previously, City has charged School for sewer services for a building
owned by School known as the bus barn;

WHEREAS, the bus barn is not presently connected to City’s sewer infrastructure and
School is requesting for this connection to be constructed; and

WHEREAS, School and City wish to enter into a mutually beneficial agreement
regarding the construction of a connection between School’s bus barn and City’s sewer main,
using a gravity service line.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the covenants herein
contained, the parties agree:

1. City will provide all labor, at its cost, to construct a connection of School’s bus
barn to the existing service line that ties into City’s sewer main, including the installation
of a Liberty pump lift station.

2. City will prepurchase and School will reimburse City for the cost of the Liberty
lift station, piping, and wiring from the bus barn to the Liberty pump.

3. The Liberty pump lift station will be installed on School’s real property and, upon
School’s cost reimbursement to City, the Liberty pump lift station and all infrastructure
from the pump to the bus barn shall become the School’s property. After the completion
of the installation of the pump and the startup of City sewer services to the bus barn, it
shall be the School’s sole responsibility to provide all maintenance and upkeep regarding
the pump and all infrastructure from the pump to the bus barn.

+ City will pay for all supplies necessary to install the connection of the Liberty
pump lift station to the existing service line that ties into City’s sewer main.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this agreement as of the dates entered
below.



Dixon R-1 School District
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Name, Title

City of Dixon, Missouri

yMayor

Attest: W y""\/ﬁbﬂQ

City Clerk v

EXHIBIT A
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Bill Number: 2025-0058 Ordinance Number: (O 5 6

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AGREEMENT TO TERMINATE AGREEMENT FOR
DISPATCHING SERVICES BETWEEN CITY OF ST. ROBERT AND CITY OF DIXON
AND APPROVING DISCLOSURE, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, AND CONFLICT WAIVER

Be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon as follows:

SECTION 1. An Agreement to Terminate Agreement for Dispatching Services Between City of
St. Robert and City of Dixon is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is incorporated
herein by specific reference. A Disclosure to and Acknowledgement by City of
Dixon and City of St. Robert Regarding Legal Representation and Agreement
Regarding Conflict of Interest is attached hereto as Exhibit B and is incorporated
herein by specific reference.

SECTION 2. The terms of Exhibits A and B are approved and the Mayor is authorized to
execute the documents and legally bind the City.

SECTION 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval.

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI ON APRIL 7, 2025.

Mayor «_

Attest:

Kl S dd

City Clerk v




Bill Number: =D Ordinance Number:

4143

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AGREEMENT TO TERMINATE AGREEMENT FOR
DISPATCHING SERVICES BETWEEN CITY OF ST. ROBERT AND CITY OF DIXON

AND APPROVING DISCLOSURE, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, AND CONFLICT WAIVER

Be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of St. Robert as follows:

SECTION 1. An Agreement to Terminate Agreement for Dispatching Services Between City of
St. Robert and City of Dixon is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is incorporated
herein by specific reference. A Disclosure to and Acknowledgement by City of
Dixon and City of St. Robert Regarding Legal Representation and Agreement
Regarding Conflict of Interest is attached hereto as Exhibit B and is incorporated
herein by specific reference.

SECTION 2. The terms of Exhibits A and B are approved and the Mayor is authorized to
execute the documents and legally bind the City.

SECTION 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval.

READ THREE TIMES AND PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ST. ROBERT, MISSOURI ON APRIL 15, 2025.

Clty Clerk ,ww‘y Z



EXHIBIT A

AGREEMENT TO TERMINATE AGREEMENT FOR DISPATCHING
SERVICES BETWEEN CITY OF ST. ROBERT AND CITY OF DIXON

THIS AGREEMENT TO TERMINATE, is made and entered into on this ;2’“"day
of fpvil , 2025, by and between the City of St. Robert, a Missouri municipality of
the fourth class, hereinafter referred to as “St. Robert,” and the City of Dixon, a Missouri
municipality of the fourth class, hereinafter referred to as “Dixon”;

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS; the City of St. Robert’s police department operates a “911” emergency and
dispatching service; and

WHEREAS, on or about December 11, 2023, St. Robert and Dixon entered into an
Agreement for Dispatching Services, pursuant to which the St. Robert police department
provided dispatching services to the City of Dixon, hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”;
and

WHEREAS, after the execution of the Agreement, the St. Robert police department
updated its dispatching equipment and software and the new equipment and software is not
compatible with Dixon’s equipment and software; and

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement is for one year, renewable upon the first day of
each year, unless either party give the other party a written notice of non-renewal at least 180
days prior to expiration of the current term; and

WHEREAS, both parties agree that it is no longer feasible for the St. Robert Police
Department to provide effective dispatching services to Dixon and therefore, they are in
agreement that the Agreement should be terminated; and

WHEREAS, neither party has given the requisite notice of non-renewal within the time
period specified in the Agreement.

THE PARTIES, THEREFORE, AGREE,

1. As of the full execution of this agreement to terminate the Agreement, the Agreement
shall terminate and shall no longer be an enforceable contract between the parties.

2. As of the date of termination, neither party shall have any liability of any type, including
but not limited to financial liability, to the other party, regarding the terms of the Agreement.



EXHIBIT A

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this agreement to terminate as of the day and

year above written.

City of St. Robert

4/ /5LS

Date

sz S

A ttest: City Clerk, z'-fa)‘y —
City of Dixon

By:

Mayor

Attest: City Clerk

o

Date

‘—{{1[2025

Date

q[1lz0zs

Date




EXHIBIT B

DISCLOSURE TO AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY CITY OF DIXON
AND CITY OF ST. ROBERT REGARDING LEGAL REPRESENTATION
AND AGREEMENT REGARDING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

By executing this document, City of Dixon and City of St. Robert expressly acknowledge
the disclosures made herein. Particularly, the attorneys of the law firm of Smith & Turley
disclose that Tyce S. Smith, attorney at law with Smith & Turley, is the City Attorney for the
City of St. Robert and that Carrie B. Williamson, attorney at law with Smith & Turley, is the
City Attorney for City of Dixon. Generally, these representations do not create a conflict of
interest. However, the attorneys of the law firm of Smith & Turley make this disclosure because
the respective Cities have expressed a mutual wish to voluntarily terminate an Agreement for
Dispatching Services entered into between the parties on or about December 11, 2023. The
termination of the legal agreement will require legal services to be provided to the respective
parties by Mr. Smith and Ms. Williamson.

It is the joint position of the attorneys of the law firm of Smith & Turley that a waivable
conflict of interest exists regarding the legal representations described above. Further, it is the
position of the attorneys of the law firm of Smith & Turley that, after a full disclosure, City of
Dixon and City of St.. Robert may waive the conflict of interest that exists and agree and consent
to Tyce S. Smith continuing to represent City of St. Robert as City Attorney and for Carrie B.
Williamson to represent City of Dixon regarding the termination of the said prior agreement,
primarily because the Cities are fully in agreement regarding the purpose of the legal services
that are to be provided.

Tyce S. Smith and Carrie B. Williamson agree that, should any circumstances occur that
give rise to a disagreement or disputed issue regarding the representations set out herein, they
will immediately notify City of Dixon and City of St. Robert and each city shall then retain
separate independent counsel regarding the resolution of this matter.

Therefore, City of Dixon and City of St. Robert waive the conflict of interest regarding
the termination of the Agreement for Dispatching Services entered into between the parties on or
about December 11, 2023 and authorize Mr. Smith to represent City of St. Robert and Ms.

Williamson to represent City of Dixon regarding the termination of the said agreement.



THE FOREGOING DISCLOSURES ARE AKNOWLEDGED AND THE PARTIES
AGREE TO THE FOREGOING TERMS.

City of Dixon

By:_ Y[1leozs
Mayor Date
J()L/UM W “4(q lzozs
Attest: City Clerk Date

City of St. Robert

L) 528
Date
Lrr5 25
Date
Smith & Turley
Tyce S. Smith, Attorney At Law Date
. ~ o0
(:C\,\J\,UL ?D- LU&WM)Q April 11,2025

Carrie B. Williamson, Attorney At Law Date

0o



Bill Number:  2025-0059 Ordinance Number: (QS q

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR DISPATCHING SERVICES

Be it ordained by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Dixon as follows:

SECTION 1. An Agreement for Dispatching Services between City of Dixon and the Sheriff’s
Office of Pulaski County, Missouri is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is
incorporated herein by specific reference.

SECTION 2. The terms of Exhibit A are approved and the Mayor is authorized to execute the
documents and legally bind the City to the terms of the agreement.

SECTION 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval.

READ TWO TIMES AND PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF DIXON, MISSOURI ON APRIL 7, 2025.

Mayor — ~_ >

Attest:

K T

City Clerk ~




EXHIBIT A

AGREEMENT FOR DISPATCHING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this [’_’lf?z day of | §// ,
2025, by and between the Sheriff’s Office of Pulaski County, Missouri, which is a department of
a Missouri a third-class county, hereinafter referred to as “Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office,” and
City of Dixon, Missouri, a Missouri fourth-class city, hereinafter referred to as “Dixon.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office operates a “911” emergency and
dispatching service; and

WHEREAS, Dixon and Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office wish to enter into an agreement
pursuant to which Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office will provide certain dispatching services to

Dixon.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the covenants herein
contained, the parties agree that Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office will provide certain dispatching

services to Dixon according to the following terms and conditions:

1. The term of this agreement shall be for a period of one year, beginning on the

AV dayof | §7 , 2025. The term of this agreement shall automatically
renew for up to twenty successive one year periods, unless either party gives written
notice of non-renewal to the other party not less than 180 days prior to expiration of the
current term. Additionally, either party shall have the right to terminate this agreement at
any time upon giving no less than 180 days advance written notice to the other party.

2. As used in this document, the term “dispatching services” shall include the receipt
and efficient handling of telephone calls requesting law enforcement, fire protection,
ambulance services, medical services, utility services, and other services of an emergency
nature. Upon receipt of a request for services within the city limits of Dixon, Pulaski
County Sheriff’s Office shall promptly notify the appropriate agency. Radio
communications will be conducted over Dixon and Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office

repeater frequencies, as necessary.

3. Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office requests that Dixon utilize its own dispatch
during “regular business hours,” which shall be from 8:00 A.M. until 4:00 P.M. Monday
through Friday (excluding all holidays recognized by Dixon as official city holidays and
excluding radio traffic during emergency situations.) Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office
shall further provide dispatching services on an as-needed basis for Dixon, based upon

illness or unavailability of Dixon staffing.

4. During the periods of time when Pulaski County Sheriff’s Department will be
handling dispatch services for Dixon, it will be the responsibility of Dixon to forward its
police department phone line(s) to Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office and Dixon shall also



EXHIBIT A

be responsible for notifying Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office when the phone line(s)
have been forwarded.

4. Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office will maintain recordings of all voice calls and
dispatching transmissions and maintain an accurate log and record of all communications
services. Dixon shall be entitled to access those recording, logs, and records at all
reasonable times.

5. Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office shall provide services related to any MULES
entries that are not otherwise provided by the Circuit Court, acting as a subcontractor for
service.

6. Dixon shall submit annually, on or before the 1st day of A , a total of
$8,000.00, which sum shall cover the cost of this agreement for the next twelve months.

7. If any incurred expenses are necessary to allow Pulaski County Sheriff’s Office to
provide dispatch service to Dixon as contemplated in this agreement, Dixon will pay for
the expense. Those expenses include but are not limited to modifications and additions to
existing equipment of Dixon, which are necessary for the dispatch services to be
accomplished.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this agreement as of the dates entered,
below.

Pulaski County, Missouri
Sheriff’s Office

v A0

County Clerk
City of Dixon, MiSSOul;i/ -
By: _— X = - £
Mayor
t
Attest ‘w M“’Q
City Clerk ¢

Ty h"“:uu: L
5 \.y‘\ Ly
e C LY




	Ordinance 1-34
	Ordinance 29
	Ordinance 31
	Ordinance 35
	Ordinance 41
	Ordinance 42
	Ordinance 43
	Ordinance 45
	Ordinance 46
	Ordinance 48
	Ordinance 49
	Ordinance 50
	Ordinance 52
	Ordinance 54
	Ordinance 55
	Ordinance 56
	Ordinance 57
	Ordinance 58
	Ordinance 59
	Ordinance 61
	Ordinance 63
	Ordinance 64
	Ordinance 65
	Ordinance 66
	Ordinance 67
	Ordinance 68
	Ordinance 69
	Ordinance 70
	Ordinance 71
	Ordinance 72
	Ordinance 73
	Ordinance 74
	Ordinance 75
	Ordinance 76
	Ordinance 77
	Ordinance 78
	Ordinance 79
	Ordinance 81
	Ordinance 82
	Ordinance 84
	Ordinance 85
	Ordinance 86
	Ordinance 87
	Ordinance 88
	Ordinance 90
	Ordinance 91
	Ordinance 92
	Ordinance 93
	Ordinance 94
	Ordinance 95
	Ordinance 96
	Ordinance 97
	Ordinance 99
	Ordinance 100
	Ordinance 101
	Ordinance 102
	Ordinance 103
	Ordinance 104
	Ordinance 105
	Ordinance 106
	Ordinance 107
	Ordinance 108
	Ordinance 109
	Ordinance 110
	Ordinance 111
	Ordinance 112
	Ordinance 113
	Ordinance 114
	Ordinance 115
	Ordinance 116
	Ordinance 118
	Ordinance 119
	Ordinance 120
	Ordinance 122
	Ordinance 123
	Ordinance 124
	Ordinance 125
	Ordinance 126
	Ordinance 127
	Ordinance 128
	Ordinance 129
	Ordinance 130
	Ordinance 131
	Ordinance 133
	Ordinance 134
	Ordinance 135
	Ordinance 136
	Ordinance 137
	Ordinance 138
	Ordinance 139
	Ordinance 140
	Ordinance 141
	Ordinance 142
	Ordinance 143
	Ordinance 145
	Ordinance 146
	Ordinance 148
	Ordinance 149
	Ordinance 150
	Ordinance 151
	Ordinance 152
	Ordinance 153
	Ordinance 154
	Ordinance 155
	Ordinance 156
	Ordinance 157
	Ordinance 158
	Ordinance 159
	Ordinance 160
	Ordinance 161- 162
	Ordinance 163
	Ordinance 164
	Ordinance 165
	Ordinance 166
	Ordinance 167
	Ordinance 168
	Ordinance 169
	Ordinance 170
	Ordinance 171
	Ordinance 172
	Ordinance 173
	Ordinance 174
	Ordinance 175
	Ordinance 176
	Ordinance 177
	Ordinance 178
	Ordinance 179
	Ordinance 180
	Ordinance 181
	Ordinance 182
	Ordinance 183
	Ordinance 184
	Ordinance 185
	Ordinance 186
	Ordinance 187
	Ordinance 188
	Ordinance 189
	Ordinance 190
	Ordinance 191
	Ordinance 192
	Ordinance 193
	Ordinance 194
	Ordinance 195
	Ordinance 196
	Ordinance 197
	Ordinance 198
	Ordinance 199
	Ordinance 200
	Ordinance 201
	Ordinance 203
	Ordinance 204
	Ordinance 205
	Ordinance 206
	Ordinance 207
	Ordinance 208
	Ordinance 209
	Ordinance 210
	Ordinance 211
	Ordinance 212
	Ordinance 213
	Ordinance 214
	Ordinance 215
	Ordinance 216
	Ordinance 217
	Ordinance 218
	Ordinance 219
	Ordinance 220
	Ordinance 221
	Ordinance 222
	Ordinance 223
	Ordinance 224
	Ordinance 225
	Ordinance 226
	Ordinance 227
	Ordinance 228
	Ordinance 229
	Ordinance 230
	Ordinance 231
	Ordinance 232
	Ordinance 233
	Ordinance 234
	Ordinance 235
	Ordinance 236
	Ordinance 237
	Ordinance 238
	Ordinance 239
	Ordinance 240
	Ordinance 243
	Ordinance 244
	Ordinance 245
	Ordinance 246
	Ordinance 247
	Ordinance 248
	Ordinance 249
	Ordinance 250
	Ordinance 251
	Ordinance 252
	Ordinance 253
	Ordinance 254
	Ordinance 255
	Ordinance 256
	Ordinance 257
	Ordinance 258
	Ordinance 259
	Ordinance 260
	Ordinance 261
	Ordinance 262
	Ordinance 263
	Ordinance 264
	Ordinance 265
	Ordinance 266
	Ordinance 267
	Ordinance 268
	Ordinance 269
	Ordinance 270
	Ordinance 271
	Ordinance 272
	Ordinance 273
	Ordinance 274
	Ordinance 275
	Ordinance 276
	Ordinance 277
	Ordinance 278
	Ordinance 279
	Ordinance 280
	Ordinance 281
	Ordinance 282
	Ordinance 283
	Ordinance 284
	Ordinance 285
	Ordinance 286
	Ordinance 287
	Ordinance 288
	Ordinance 289
	Ordinance 290
	Ordinance 291
	Ordinance 292
	Ordinance 293
	Ordinance 294
	Ordinance 295
	Ordinance 296
	Ordinance 297
	Ordinance 298
	Ordinance 299
	Ordinance 300
	Ordinance 301
	Ordinance 302
	Ordinance 303
	Ordinance 304
	Ordinance 305
	Ordinance 306
	Ordinance 307
	Ordinance 308
	Ordinance 309
	Ordinance 310
	Ordinance 311
	Ordinance 312
	Ordinance 314
	Ordinance 315
	Ordinance 316
	Ordinance 317
	Ordinance 318
	Ordinance 319
	Ordinance 320
	Ordinance 321
	Ordinance 322
	Ordinance 323
	Ordinance 324
	Ordinance 325
	Ordinance 326
	Ordinance 327
	Ordinance 328
	Ordinance 329
	Ordinance 330
	Ordinance 331
	Ordinance 332
	Ordinance 333
	Ordinance 334
	Ordinance 335
	Ordinance 336
	Ordinance 337
	Ordinance 338
	Ordinance 339
	Ordinance 340
	Ordinance 341
	Ordinance 342
	Ordinance 343
	Ordinance 344
	Ordinance 345
	Ordinance 347
	Ordinance 348
	Ordinance 349
	Ordinance 350
	Ordinance 351
	Ordinance 352
	Ordinance 353
	Ordinance 354
	Ordinance 355
	Ordinance 356
	Ordinance 358
	Ordinance 359
	Ordinance 360
	Ordinance 361
	Ordinance 362
	Ordinance 363
	Ordinance 364
	Ordinance 365
	Ordinance 366
	Ordinance 367
	Ordinance 368
	Ordinance 369
	Ordinance 370
	Ordinance 371
	Ordinance 372
	Ordinance 373
	Ordinance 374
	Ordinance 375
	Ordinance 376
	Ordinance 377
	Ordinance 378
	Ordinance 379
	Ordinance 380
	Ordinance 381
	Ordinance 382
	Ordinance 383
	Ordinance 384
	Ordinance 385
	Ordinance 386
	Ordinance 387
	Ordinance 388
	Ordinance 389
	Ordinance 390
	Ordinance 391
	Ordinance 392
	Ordinance 393
	Ordinance 394
	Ordinance 395
	Ordinance 396
	Ordinance 397
	Ordinance 398
	Ordinance 399
	Ordinance 400
	Ordinance 402
	Ordinance 403
	Ordinance 404
	Ordinance 405
	Ordinance 406
	Ordinance 407
	Ordinance 408
	Ordinance 409
	Ordinance 410
	Ordinance 411
	Ordinance 412
	Ordinance 413
	Ordinance 414
	Ordinance 415
	Ordinance 416
	Ordinance 417
	Ordinance 418
	Ordinance 419
	Ordinance 420
	Ordinance 421
	Ordinance 422
	Ordinance 423
	Ordinance 424
	Ordinance 425
	Ordinance 426
	Ordinance 427
	Ordinance 428
	Ordinance 429
	Ordinance 430
	Ordinance 431
	Ordinance 432
	Ordinance 433
	Ordinance 434
	Ordinance 435
	Ordinance 436
	Ordinance 437
	Ordinance 438
	Ordinance 439
	Ordinance 440
	Ordinance 441
	Ordinance 442
	Ordinance 443
	Ordinance 444
	Ordinance 445
	Ordinance 446
	Ordinance 447
	Ordinance 448
	Ordinance 449
	Ordinance 450
	Ordinance 451
	Ordinance 452
	Ordinance 453
	Ordinance 454
	Ordinance 455
	Ordinance 456
	Ordinance 457
	Ordinance 458
	Ordinance 459
	Ordinance 460
	Ordinance 461
	Ordinance 462
	Ordinance 463
	Ordinance 464
	Ordinance 465
	Ordinance 466
	Ordinance 467
	Ordinance 468
	Ordinance 469
	Ordinance 470
	Ordinance 471
	Ordinance 472
	Ordinance 473
	Ordinance 474
	Ordinance 475
	Ordinance 476
	Ordinance 477
	Ordinance 478
	Ordinance 479
	Ordinance 480
	Ordinance 481
	Ordinance 482
	Ordinance 483
	Ordinance 484
	Ordinance 485
	Ordinance 486
	Ordinance 487
	Ordinance 488
	Ordinance 489
	Ordinance 490
	Ordinance 491
	Ordinance 492
	Ordinance 493
	Ordinance 494
	Ordinance 495
	Ordinance 496
	Ordinance 497
	Ordinance 498
	Ordinance 499
	Ordinance 500
	Ordinance 501
	Ordinance 502
	Ordinance 503
	Ordinance 504
	Ordinance 505
	Ordinance 506
	Ordinance 507
	Ordinance 508
	Ordinance 509
	Ordinance 510
	Ordinance 511
	Ordinance 512
	Ordinance 513
	Ordinance 514
	Ordinance 515
	Ordinance 516
	Ordinance 517
	Ordinance 518
	Ordinance 519
	Ordinance 520
	Ordinance 521
	Ordinance 522
	Ordinance 523
	Ordinance 524
	Ordinance 525
	Ordinance 526
	Ordinance 527
	Ordinance 528
	Ordinance 529
	Ordinance 530
	Ordinance 531
	Ordinance 532
	Ordinance 533
	Ordinance 534
	Ordinance 535
	Ordinance 536
	Ordinance 537
	Ordinance 538
	Ordinance 539
	Ordinance 540
	Ordinance 541
	Ordinance 542
	Ordinance 543
	Ordinance 544
	Ordinance 546
	Ordinance 547
	Ordinance 548
	Ordinance 549
	Ordinance 550
	Ordinance 551
	Ordinance 552
	Ordinance 553
	Ordinance 554
	Ordinance 555
	Ordinance 556
	Ordinance 557
	Ordinance 559
	Ordinance 560
	Ordinance 561
	Ordinance 562
	Ordinance 563
	Ordinance 564
	Ordinance 565
	Ordinance 566
	Ordinance 567
	Ordinance 568
	Ordinance 569
	Ordinance 570
	Ordinance 571
	Ordinance 572
	Ordinance 573
	Ordinance 574
	Ordinance 575
	Ordinance 576
	Ordinance 577
	Ordinance 578
	Ordinance 579
	Ordinance 580
	Ordinance 581
	Ordinance 582
	Ordinance 583
	Ordinance 584
	Ordinance 585
	Ordinance 586
	Ordinance 587
	Ordinance 588
	Ordinance 589
	Ordinance 590
	Ordinance 591
	Ordinance 592
	Ordinance 593
	Ordinance 594
	Ordinance 595
	Ordinance 596
	Ordinance 597
	Ordinance 598
	Ordinance 599
	Ordinance 600
	Ordinance 601
	Ordinance 602
	Ordinance 603
	Ordinance 604
	Ordinance 605
	Ordinance 606
	Ordinance 607
	Ordinance 608
	Ordinance 609
	Ordinance 610
	Ordinance 611
	Ordinance 612
	Ordinance 613
	Ordinance 614
	Ordinance 615
	Ordinance 616
	Ordinance 617
	Ordinance 618
	Ordinance 619
	Ordinance 620
	Ordinance 621
	Ordinance 622
	Ordinance 623
	Ordinance 624
	Ordinance 625
	Ordinance 626
	Ordinance 627
	Ordinance 628
	Ordinance 629
	Ordinance 630
	Ordinance 631
	Ordinance 632
	Ordinance 633
	Ordinance 635
	Ordinance 636
	Ordinance 637
	Ordinance 638
	Ordinance 639
	Ordinance 640
	Ordinance 641
	Ordinance 642
	Ordinance 643
	Ordinance 644
	Ordinance 645
	Ordinance 646
	Ordinance 648
	Ordinance 649
	Ordinance 650
	Ordinance 651
	Ordinance 652
	Ordinance 653
	Ordinance 654
	Ordinance 655
	Ordinance 656
	Ordinance 657
	Ordinance 658
	Ordinance 659
	Ordinance 661
	Ordinance 662
	Ordinance 663
	Ordinance 664
	Ordinance 665
	Ordinance 666
	Ordinance 667
	Ordinance 668
	Ordinance 669
	Ordinance 670
	Ordinance 671
	Ordinance 672



